17.0630.04000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
04/04/2017

Amendment to: SB 2344

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues $1,600,000 $987,500 $3,204,000 $2,275,000
Expenditures $52,840 $885,355 $837,500 $346,516 $1,975,000
Appropriations $162,085 $346,516

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.
2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The Bill creates and reenacts sections of NDCC relating to the implementation and authorization of medical
marijuana, provide for a continuing appropriation and declare an emergency.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The bill is further amended to reduce the registration fee for qualified patients and designated caregivers.
Additionally, the registration fees for compassion centers were increased and the number of manufacturing facilities
(growers) was reduced from four to two facilities. These change will impact revenues.

Based on research of other states that have implemented medical marijuana the Department of Health (DoH) based
the number of qualifying patients on 5 for every 1000 individuals in the state or 3,800 patients for a full biennium of
implementation which would be 2019 — 2021. We estimated the number of patients to be 1,900 during the initial
biennium of operation - 2017 — 2019. It was estimated that 50% of the patients would have a caregiver.

Pages 6 and 8 of the bill indicate a $50 fee which can be charged for an application each year for a qualifying
patient and designated caregiver.

Page 8 of the bill also requires designated caregivers to have a criminal background check. These expenditures will
be incurred by the Attorney General’s Office - Bureau of Criminal Investigation and must be paid by the applicant.
This revenue would be deposited into the state general fund.

Page 12 identifies the cost for replacement cards - $25 fee.

Page 14 identifies the number of Compassion Centers that may operate as a manufacturing facility (2) and the
number of Compassion Centers that may operate as a dispensary (8). The DoH is allowed to register additional
manufacturing facilities and dispensaries if determined that additional entities are necessary to increase access to
usable marijuana.

Page 15 sets the nonrefundable application fee for a Compassion Center at $5,000, while page 17 provides for a
registration fee of $110,000 for growers and $90,000 for dispensaries. Compassion Centers register once every two



years.

Pages 19 establishes the registration fee for all agents of a Compassion Center at an amount of $200 with an
annual renewal. Page 20 notes that lost cards for agents are replaced at $25 per card.

Page 21 establishes a penalty of $150 for cardholders failing to provide proper notification of changes required by
this chapter.

Page 1. #2 defines the allowable amount of marijuana for medical use. A registered qualifying patient may not
purchase or have purchased by a registered caregiver more than two and one-half ounces of usable marijuana in a
thirty-day period. This sale of product will result in sales tax revenue that will be deposited into the general fund and
the state aid distribution fund as estimated by the Office of the State Tax Commissioner. However, The Office of Tax
Commissioner is unable to estimate the potential income tax revenue that could result from the provisions of this bill.
There is not enough information available to make assumptions about the profitability of the growers or dispensaries
in the first years of operation.

Contact was made with Workforce Safety and Insurance and the Department of Human Services and the bill is
determined to have no or minimal fiscal impact on these agencies.

Contact was also made with the BCI and they indicated that with the approved patients and the caregivers not
growing the marijuana and the “audits” being conducted of the compassion centers only, the cost to Law
Enforcement is greatly minimized. The marijuana testing and all fees are the responsibility of the registered card
holders (patient, care giver or compassion center connected employee.

Response for law enforcement assistance, at the compassion center or with a care giver should not be any different
for law enforcement as a call for service from a citizen complaint.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

2015-2017 - We do not anticipate collecting any revenues in the current biennium.

2017-2019

DoH:

Compassion Centers (CC) Revenue:

Grow Only Application Fees $5,000 — assume 8 apply $ 40,000
Grow Only Registration Fees $110,000 assume 2 220,000
Dispensary Application Fees $5,000 — assume 8 apply 40,000
Dispensary Registration Fees $90,000 — assume 4 360,000
Add’l Dispensary Application fee $5,000 — assume none

Add’l Dispensary Registration fee $90,000 — assume none
Qualified Patients / Designated Caregivers/ CC Agents:
Qualified Patient (QP) — 1900 - $50 fee $ 95,000

Designated Caregiver (DC) — 950 - $50 fee

(less 50 QP who are minors & DC is parent / guardian

each year - fee is waived) 45,000

Agents of Compassion Center — 150 - $200 fee 30,000
Replacement Cards - 150 - $25 3,750

Failure to notify DoH of changes 25 - $150 3,750

Total DoH Revenue - Compassionate Care Fund $837,500

Office of the State Tax Commissioner:

Using patient and consumption assumptions consistent with the Health Department, the Office of Tax Commissioner
estimates an increase in sales and use tax revenue of $1.7 million in the 2017-19 biennium, with approximately
91.3% deposited in the state general fund or $1.55 million and approximately 8.7% deposited in the state aid
distribution fund or $150,000.

Office of the Attorney General:



Revenue from background checks - $50,000 to be deposited to the general fund.

2019-2021

DoH:

Compassion Centers (CC) Revenue:

Grow Only Application Fees $5,000 — assume 8 apply $ 40,000
Grow Only Registration Fees $110,000 assume 2 220,000
Dispensary Application Fees $5,000 — assume 16 apply 80,000
Dispensary Registration Fees $90,000 — assume 8 720,000
Add’l Dispensary Application fee $5,000 — assume 4 20,000
Add’l Dispensary Registration fee $90,000 — assume 2 180,000
Qualified Patients / Designated Caregivers/ CC Agents:
Qualified Patient (QP) — 3800 reg. both years - $50 fee $380,000
Designated Caregiver (DC) — 1900 reg. both years - $50 fee
(less 100 QP who are minors & DC is parent / guardian

each year - fee is waived) 185,000

Agents of CC — 300 reg. both years - $200 fee 120,000
Replacement Cards - 300 per year - $25 15,000

Failure to notify DoH of changes 50 per year - $150 15,000
Total DoH Revenue - Compassionate Care Fund $1,975,000

Office of the State Tax Commissioner:

Using patient and consumption assumptions consistent with the Health Department, the Office of Tax Commissioner
estimates an increase in sales and use tax revenue of $3.4 million in the 2019-21 biennium, with approximately
91.3% deposited in the state general fund or $3.1 million and approximately 8.7% deposited in the state aid
distribution fund or $300,000.

Office of the Attorney General:

Revenue from background checks - $104,000 to be deposited to the state general fund.

. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

2015-2017
DoH - Expenditures are estimated to be $52,840, which reflects the costs of hiring the Director of the Medical
Marijuana program. Other costs have yet to be determined.

2017-2019:

DoH

Total expenditures estimated - $1,560,770 and 6 FTE. The expenditures include ongoing expenditures: salary and
wages of $870,198 and operating costs (rent, ITD data processing and phone, travel, printing, postage, system
maintenance / storage) totaling $595,506. One-time equipment / furniture under $5,000 for new employees of
$21,577 and one-time capital costs of $73,489 for a card registration IT system and space / security upgrades.

Attorney General’s Office
One FTE - $123,597 and related operating costs of $38,488 to process the background checks for a total of
$162,085.

Total combined costs of $1,722,855.

2019-2021:

DoH

Total expenditures estimated - $1,942,569 and 8 FTE. The expenditures include ongoing expenditures: salary and
wages of $1,233,668 and operating costs (rent, ITD data processing and phone, travel, printing, postage, system
maintenance / storage) totaling $708,901.

Attorney General’s Office
Two FTE - $265,692 and related operating costs of $80,824 to process the background checks for a total of
$346,516.



Total combined costs of $2,289,085.

. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing
appropriation.

Section 8 declares the act to be an emergency measure. Expenditures may be made during the 2015-2017
biennium at an estimated amount of $52,840. No adjustment to 2015-2017 is needed.

The general fund expenditure amounts reflected in this fiscal note have been included in the DoH'’s appropriation bill
- SB 2004 - so no additional appropriation is needed. The expenditure amounts for the Attorney General’s Office
would require an appropriation. Page 32 of the bill provides a continuing appropriation to the DoH of all fees
deposited to the medical marijuana fund so an appropriation of this funding for expenditures is not necessary but
has been included in SB 2004.

Name: Brenda M. Weisz
Agency: DoH
Telephone: 328-4542
Date Prepared: 04/04/2017



17.0630.03000 FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council
02/20/2017

Amendment to: SB 2344

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding

1

levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues $1,600,000 $1,457,500 $3,204,000 $3,810,000
Expenditures $52,840 $1,244,750 $1,307,500 $346,516 $2,940,081
Appropriations $162,085 $346,516

B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

subdivision.
2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions

having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The Bill creates and reenacts sections of NDCC relating to the implementation of the North Dakota Compassionate
Care Act to authorize medical marijuana, provide for a continuing appropriation and declare an emergency.

. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal

impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The bill is amended and does not allow for individuals to petition the DoH to add conditions to the list of debilitating
conditions. This change will decrease the DoH’s costs for legal fees and personnel time to handle such requests.
Also, changes were made that waived the registration fee where the patient is a minor, living in the designated
caregiver home and the designated caregiver is the patient’s parent or legal guardian. This will impact the amount of
revenue collected.

Based on research of other states that have implemented medical marijuana the Department of Health (DoH) based
the number of qualifying patients on 5 for every 1000 individuals in the state or 3,800 patients for a full biennium of
implementation which would be 2019 — 2021. We estimated the number of patients to be 1,900 during the initial
biennium of operation - 2017 — 2019. It was estimated that 50% of the patients would have a caregiver.

Sections 3 and 4 of the bill indicate a $200 fee which can be charged for an application each year for a qualifying
patient and designated caregiver.

Section 4 of the bill also requires designated caregivers to have a criminal background check. These expenditures
will be incurred by the Attorney General’s Office - Bureau of Criminal Investigation and must be paid by the
applicant. This revenue would be deposited into the state general fund.

Section 10 identifies the cost for replacement cards - $25 fee.

Section 12 identifies the number of Compassion Centers that may operate as a manufacturing facility (4) and the
number of Compassion Centers that may operate as a dispensary (8). The DoH is allowed to register additional
dispensaries if determined that additional dispensaries are necessary to increase access to usable marijuana.
Section 14 sets the nonrefundable application fee for a Compassion Center at $5,000, while Sections 15 and 16
provide for a registration of $80,000 for growers and $60,000 for dispensaries. Compassion Centers register once
every two years.

Section 28 establishes the registration fee for all agents of a Compassion Center at an amount of $200 with an
annual renewal. Lost cards for agents are replaced at $25 per card.

Section 30 establishes a penalty of $150 for cardholders failing to provide proper notification of changes identified in
section 30.



Section 42 requires the revenue generated by the DoH to be sufficient to cover all costs of the Department
beginning with the 2019-2021 biennium.

Section 2. #1 defines the allowable amount of marijuana for medical use. A registered qualifying patient may not
purchase or have purchased by a registered caregiver more than two and one-half ounces of usable marijuana in a
thirty-day period. This sale of product will result in sales tax revenue that will be deposited into the general fund and
the state aid distribution fund as estimated by the Office of the State Tax Commissioner. However, The Office of Tax
Commissioner is unable to estimate the potential income tax revenue that could result from the provisions of this bill.
There is not enough information available to make assumptions about the profitability of the growers or dispensaries
in the first years of operation.

Contact was made with Workforce Safety and Insurance and the Department of Human Services and the bill is
determined to have no or minimal fiscal impact on these agencies. Contact was also made with the BCI and they
indicated that with the approved patients and the caregivers not growing the marijuana and the “audits” being
conducted of the compassion centers only, the cost to Law Enforcement is greatly minimized. The marijuana testing
and all fees are the responsibility of the registered card holders (patient, care giver or compassion center connected
employee.

Response for law enforcement assistance, at the compassion center or with a care giver should not be any different
for law enforcement as a call for service from a citizen complaint.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

2015-2017 - We do not anticipate collecting any revenues in the current biennium.

2017-2019

DoH:

Compassion Centers (CC) Revenue:

Grow Only Application Fees $5,000 — assume 16 apply $ 80,000

Grow Only Registration Fees $80,000 assume 4 $320,000

Dispensary Application Fees $5,000 — assume 8 apply $40,000

Dispensary Registration Fees $60,000 — assume 4 $240,000

Add’l Dispensary Application fee $5,000 — assume none

Add’l Dispensary Registration fee $60,000 — assume none

Qualified Patients / Designated Caregivers/ CC Agents:

Qualified Patient — 1900 - $200 fee $380,000

Designated Caregiver — 950 - $200 fee

(less 50 caregivers each year where the fee is waived) $180,000

Agents of Compassion Center — 300 - $200 fee $60,000

Replacement Cards - 150 - $25 $3,750

Failure to notify DoH of changes 25 - $150 $3,750

Total DoH Revenue - Compassionate Care Fund $1,307,500

Office of the State Tax Commissioner:

Using patient and consumption assumptions consistent with the Health Department, the Office of Tax Commissioner
estimates an increase in sales and use tax revenue of $1.7 million in the 2017-19 biennium, with approximately
91.3% deposited in the state general fund or $1.55 million and approximately 8.7% deposited in the state aid
distribution fund or $150,000.

Office of the Attorney General:

Revenue from background checks - $50,000 to be deposited to the general fund.

2019-2021

DoH:

Compassion Centers (CC) Revenue:

Grow Only Application Fees $5,000 — assume 16 apply $ 80,000
Grow Only Registration Fees $80,000 assume 4 $320,000
Dispensary Application Fees $5,000 — assume 16 apply $80,000
Dispensary Registration Fees $60,000 — assume 8 $480,000
Add’l Dispensary Application fee $5,000 — assume 4 $20,000



Add’l Dispensary Registration fee $60,000 — assume 2 $120,000
Qualified Patients / Designated Caregivers/ CC Agents:

Qualified Patient — 3800 reg. both years - $200 fee $1,520,000
Designated Caregiver — 1900 reg. both years - $200 fee

(less 100 caregivers each year where the fee is waived) $720,000
Agents of CC — 350 reg. both years - $200 fee $140,000
Replacement Cards - 300 per year - $25 $15,000

Failure to notify DoH of changes 50 per year - $150 $15,000

Total DoH Revenue - Compassionate Care Fund $3,510,000

Office of the State Tax Commissioner:

Using patient and consumption assumptions consistent with the Health Department, the Office of Tax Commissioner
estimates an increase in sales and use tax revenue of $3.4 million in the 2019-21 biennium, with approximately
91.3% deposited in the state general fund or $3.1 million and approximately 8.7% deposited in the state aid
distribution fund or $300,000.

Office of the Attorney General:

Revenue from background checks - $104,000 to be deposited to the state general fund.

. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

2015-2017
DoH — Expenditures are estimated to be $52,840, which reflects the costs of hiring the Director of the Medical
Marijuana program. Other costs have yet to be determined.

2017-2019:

DoH

Total expenditures estimated - $2,390,165 and 12 FTE. The expenditures include ongoing expenditures: salary and
wages of $1,452,786 and operating costs (rent, ITD data processing and phone, travel, printing, postage, system
maintenance / storage) totaling $641,652. One-time equipment / furniture under $5,000 for new employees of
$44,905 and one-time capital costs of $250,822 for a card registration IT system and space / security upgrades.

Attorney General’s Office
One FTE - $123,597 and related operating costs of $38,488 to process the background checks for a total of
$162,085.

Total combined costs of $2,552,250.

2019-2021:

DoH

Total expenditures estimated - $2,940,081 and 15 FTE. The expenditures include ongoing expenditures: salary and
wages of $2,126,515 and operating costs (rent, ITD data processing and phone, travel, printing, postage, system
maintenance / storage) totaling $813,566.

Attorney General’s Office
Two FTE - $265,692 and related operating costs of $80,824 to process the background checks for a total of
$346,516.

Total combined costs of $3,286,597.

. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing
appropriation.

Section 43 declares the act to be an emergency measure. Expenditures may be made during the 2015-2017
biennium at an estimated amount of $52,840. No adjustment to 2015-2017 is needed.

The general fund expenditure amounts reflected in this fiscal note have been included in the DoH'’s appropriation bill
- SB 2004 so no additional appropriation is needed. The expenditure amounts for the Attorney General’'s Office



would require an appropriation. Section 41 of the bill provides a continuing appropriation to the DoH of moneys
deposited to the Compassionate Care Fund so an appropriation of this funding for expenditures is not necessary but
has been included in SB 2004.

Name: Brenda M. Weisz
Agency: DoH
Telephone: 328-4542
Date Prepared: 02/20/2017



17.0630.02000 FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council
01/27/2017

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2344

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding

1

levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues $1,600,000 $1,467,500 $3,204,000 $3,850,000
Expenditures $52,840 $1,488,269 $1,317,500 $346,516 $3,190,350
Appropriations $1,488,269 $346,516

B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

subdivision.
2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions

having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The Bill creates and reenacts sections of NDCC relating to the implementation of the North Dakota Compassionate
Care Act to authorize medical marijuana, provide for a continuing appropriation and declare an emergency.

. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal

impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Based on research of other states that have implemented medical marijuana the Department of Health (DoH) based
the number of qualifying patients on 5 for every 1000 individuals in the state or 3,800 patients for a full biennium of
implementation which would be 2019 — 2021. We estimated the number of patients to be 1,900 during the initial
biennium of operation - 2017 — 2019. It was estimated that 50% of the patients would have a caregiver.

Sections 3 and 4 of the bill outline a maximum of $300 which can be charged for an application each year for a
qualifying patient and designated caregiver.

Section 4 of the bill also requires designated caregivers to have a criminal background check. These expenditures
will be incurred by the Attorney General’s Office - Bureau of Criminal Investigation and must be paid by the
applicant. This revenue would be deposited into the state general fund.

Section 10 identifies the cost for replacement cards - $25 fee.

Section 12 identifies the number of Compassion Centers that may operate as a manufacturing facility (4) and the
number of Compassion Centers that may operate as a dispensary (8). The DoH is allowed to register additional
dispensaries if determined that additional dispensaries are necessary to increase access to usable marijuana.

Section 14 sets the nonrefundable application fee for a Compassion Center at $5,000, while Sections 15 and 16
provide for a registration fee for each type of Compassion Center not to exceed $100,000. Compassion Centers
register once every two years.

Section 28 establishes the registration fee for all agents of a Compassion Center at an amount not to exceed $300
with an annual renewal. Lost cards for agents are replaced at $25 per card.



Section 30 establishes a penalty of $150 for cardholders failing to provide proper notification of changes identified in
section 30.

Section 42 requires the revenue generated by the DoH to be sufficient to cover all costs of the Department
beginning with the 2019-2021 biennium.

Section 2. #1 defines the allowable amount of marijuana for medical use. A registered qualifying patient may not
purchase or have purchased by a registered caregiver more than two and one-half ounces of usable marijuana in a
thirty-day period. This sale of product will result in sales tax revenue that will be deposited into the general fund and
the state aid distribution fund as estimated by the Office of the State Tax Commissioner. However, The Office of Tax
Commissioner is unable to estimate the potential income tax revenue that could result from the provisions of this bill.
There is not enough information available to make assumptions about the profitability of the centers or dispensaries
in the first years of operation.

Contact was made with Workforce Safety and Insurance and the Department of Human Services and the bill is
determined to have no or minimal fiscal impact on these agencies.

Contact was also made with the BCI and they indicated that with the approved patients and the caregivers not
growing the marijuana and the “audits” being conducted of the compassion centers only, the cost to Law
Enforcement is greatly minimized. The marijuana testing and all fees are the responsibility of the registered card
holders (patient, care giver or compassion center connected employee).

Response for law enforcement assistance, at the compassion center or with a care giver should not be any different
for law enforcement as a call for service from a citizen complaint.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

2015-2017 - We do not anticipate collecting any revenues in the current biennium.

2017-2019

DoH:

Compassion Centers (CC) Revenue:

Grow Only Application Fees $5,000 — assume 16 apply $ 80,000
Grow Only Registration Fees $80,000 assume 4 $320,000
Dispensary Application Fees $5,000 — assume 8 apply $40,000
Dispensary Registration Fees $60,000 — assume 4 $240,000
Add’l Dispensary Application fee $5,000 — assume none

Add’l Dispensary Registration fee $60,000 — assume none
Qualified Patients / Designated Caregivers/ CC Agents:
Qualified Patient — 1900 - $200 fee $380,000

Designated Caregiver — 950 - $200 fee $190,000

Agents of Compassion Center — 300 - $200 fee $60,000
Replacement Cards - 150 - $25 $3,750

Failure to notify DoH of changes 25 - $150 $3,750

Total DoH Revenue - Compassionate Care Fund $1,317,500

Office of the State Tax Commissioner:

Using patient and consumption assumptions consistent with the Health Department, the Office of Tax Commissioner
estimates an increase in sales and use tax revenue of $1.7 million in the 2017-19 biennium, with approximately
91.3% deposited in the state general fund or $1.55 million and approximately 8.7% deposited in the state aid
distribution fund or $150,000.

Office of the Attorney General:
Revenue from background checks - $50,000 to be deposited to the general fund.



2019-2021

DoH:

Compassion Centers (CC) Revenue:

Grow Only Application Fees $5,000 — assume 16 apply $ 80,000
Grow Only Registration Fees $80,000 assume 4 $320,000
Dispensary Application Fees $5,000 — assume 16 apply $80,000
Dispensary Registration Fees $60,000 — assume 8 $480,000
Add’l Dispensary Application fee $5,000 — assume 4 $20,000
Add’l Dispensary Registration fee $60,000 — assume 2 $120,000
Qualified Patients / Designated Caregivers/ CC Agents:
Qualified Patient — 3800 reg. both years - $200 fee $1,520,000
Designated Caregiver — 1900 reg. both years - $200 fee $760,000
Agents of CC — 350 reg. both years - $200 fee $140,000
Replacement Cards - 300 per year - $25 $15,000

Failure to notify DoH of changes 50 per year - $150 $15,000
Total DoH Revenue - Compassionate Care Fund $3,550,000

Office of the State Tax Commissioner:

Using patient and consumption assumptions consistent with the Health Department, the Office of Tax Commissioner
estimates an increase in sales and use tax revenue of $3.4 million in the 2019-21 biennium, with approximately
91.3% deposited in the state general fund or $3.1 million and approximately 8.7% deposited in the state aid
distribution fund or $300,000.

Office of the Attorney General:

Revenue from background checks - $104,000 to be deposited to the state general fund.

. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

2015-2017
DoH — Expenditures are estimated to be $52,840, which reflects the costs of hiring the Director of the Medical
Marijuana program. Other costs have yet to be determined.

2017-2019:

DoH

Total expenditures estimated - $2,643,684 and 13 FTE. The expenditures include ongoing expenditures: salary and
wages of $1,598,174 and operating costs (rent, ITD data processing and phone, travel, printing, postage, system
maintenance / storage totaling $746,533. One-time equipment / furniture under $5,000 for new employees of
$48,155 and one-time capital costs of $250,822 for a card registration IT system and space / security upgrades.

Attorney General’s Office
One FTE - $123,597 and related operating costs of $38,488 to process the background checks for a total of
$162,085.

Total combined costs of $2,805,769.

2019-2021:

DoH

Total expenditures estimated - $3,190,350 and 16 FTE. The expenditures include ongoing expenditures: salary and
wages of $2,271,903 and operating costs (rent, ITD data processing and phone, travel, printing, postage, system
maintenance / storage totaling $918,447.

Attorney General’s Office
Two FTE - $265,692 and related operating costs of $80,824 to process the background checks for a total of
$346,516.

Total combined costs of $3,536,866.



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing
appropriation.

Section 43 declares the act to be an emergency measure so an appropriation was not reflected for the 2015-2017
biennium.

The general fund expenditure amounts reflected in this fiscal note have not been included in the DoH’s appropriation
bill - SB 2004 or the appropriation bill of the Attorney General’s Office and would require an appropriation.

Section 41 of the bill provides a continuing appropriation to the DoH of moneys deposited to the Compassionate
Care Fund so an appropriation of this funding for expenditures is not necessary.
Name: Brenda M. Weisz
Agency: DoH
Telephone: 328-4542
Date Prepared: 02/06/2017
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to implementation of the ND compassionate Care Act to authorize medical
marijuana; to provide a report to the legislative management; to provide a penalty; to provide
a continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Minutes: 15 Attachments.

Chair J. Lee: brought the hearing to order. All members were present.

Sen. Rich Wardner, District 37 (0:45-13:40) Introduced the bill, please see attachment
#1.

Rep. Al Carlson, District 41 (14:00-25:25) Testified in favor, please see attachment #2.

Senator Heckaman: Could you address local licensure of growers and 8 Compassionate
Care centers, that will have to be left up to locals, to approve that licensure?

Rep. Carlson: I'll let Jennifer answer that. | believe we've given authority to the Health
Department. There’s also a Law Enforcement issue, how this would be monitored, for
recreation use or medicinal use, the people passed the Measure, how do we monitor it.

Jennifer Clark, Legislative Council (27:00) Testified neutral, please see attachment #3.
Explained attachment #3, cross reference structure, explained format of amendment,
traditional drafting would be difficult to read, they would be bound to the sections. Legislative
Council got rid of defined terms that weren'’t used in the bill, and tried to retain the spirit of
the Measure. She gave a brief overview of requirements for all parties to be involved in
medical marijuana. Began walk-through of amendments (33:00-38:30).

Senator Piepkorn: Didn’'t Rep. Carlson say very few physician willing to write certification?

Ms. Clark: | don't remember Rep. Carlson talking about the number as it relates to the
definition of physicians, for the general population it's got to be a physician with whom you
have a bona fide patient-physician relationship, as it relates to the children, there will probably
be a limited number of pediatricians who fit that definition in ND.
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Senator Anderson: Rep. Carlson spoke about survey that was done regarding physicians ‘
prescribing marijuana. This isn’t prescribing, they said they wouldn’t do that, this is a

physician saying a patient might benefit, if it was a prescription, then it has to be filled at a
pharmacy, and pharmacies can’t handle medical marijuana. The physician can'’t prescribe

it, they'd be in violation of DEA registration, they can say a patient has a condition that

might benefit.

Senator Piepkorn: Is that the way the language is in the bill?

Ms. Clark: That's my understanding, but | don’t think the bill addresses prescription. | think
that's something we use loosely outside of the bill, because that's what we’re familiar with
physicians doing. Physicians can’t prescribe this, it's not an FDA approved medication, they
would run into licensure issues, if they actually wrote a prescription. There is a process here,
with a form they fill out, in their medical opinion, they think this individual would benefit from
the use; it can be for a limited time, resubmitted annually. I'm not familiar with the survey that
went out. If it actually said prescription there may have been some misunderstanding with
the physician, they would be well aware that they couldn’t prescribe it.

Chair J. Lee: We haven'’t seen the survey, but I'd be surprised if the majority of physicians
would be eager to prescribe, even if it were legal. At this point it is illegal, so it is a
recommendation.

Ms. Clark (42:05-50:00) resumed walk-through.

Senator Heckaman: Besides being licensed through the Health Department, do the growing
sites and dispensaries have to be licensed through local political subdivision? For example,
if a center applied to be in Bismarck any requirement by county or city to also license or
approve?

Ms. Clark: | don’t know there’s a requirement, there’s authority at local level through
ordinances, the centers would have to comply with on a jurisdiction basis. My recollection in
the application process there is verification that the selected site would comply with local
requirements. There’s recognition that the locals may have some regulation over this, before
the Department certifies them for a specified location.

Senator Heckaman: So if Bismarck city or Burleigh County would not approve this, then the
Health Department couldn’t override that.

Ms. Clark: | haven't researched that; my instinct is they probably could override. Planning
and zoning might have some opinions about this.

Senator Heckaman: Please find out for us.

Ms. Clark (52:30-55:35) Resumed walk-through. Covered Compassion Centers and
application process. ‘
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Chair J. Lee: I'm going to point out, on page 56, lines 23-24 it says evidence of approval
from local officials as to the proposed Compassion Center compliance with local zoning laws
for the physical address, so that does require approval. So we've got that answer.

Ms. Clark (56:05-1:05:55) Resumed walk-through. Covered pesticides, card certification and
revocation, violations, nursing homes, inventory and security.

Arvy Smith, Co-Director, ND Department of Health (DoH) (1:06:35-1:26:00) Testified in
favor, please see attachment #4. Because this isn't a medical prescription, sales tax will
apply to it. An estimate of the income is hard to determine.

Senator Heckaman: Is this what other states do in the taxing realm?

Ms. Smith: There are at least, one maybe more, some states do add an extra excise tax. |
can't tell you if that’s only recreational or if its medical as well.

Senator Heckaman: They do the sales and income?

Ms. Smith: | didn’t look at other states, | can'’t think of a state that actually uses a prescription,
they’re all recommendations, so their laws are written like ND’s laws, but | can’t say whether
prescriptions are taxable in other states or not.

Senator Piepkorn: What is the cost of a 2.5 ounce, 1-month supply?
Ms. Smith: $300/ounce, $750 a month plus tax.

Senator Anderson: Looking at your testimony on page 3, under safety, lower half of the
page, on the second bullet you're talking about the pediatric use for minors, in that section
you say section 2, page 8, line 21, which is the section that applies to pediatric medical
marijuana. This doesn’t allow smoking for any individual, seems only excludes it for pediatric
patients. On the 4" bullet, section 2, page 9 line 23, it says excludes smoking, | don’t see
where we’ve excluded smoking for everybody else in the bill except for pediatric patients.

Ms. Smith: | see that my testimony is confusing. Under the 2" bullet that reference to section
2 page 8, applies to the sentences prior to that reference, the smoking, so it doesn't
specifically prohibit smoking, but by the definition of usable marijuana, it isn’t included in
there, that is how that is presented. | did want to make it clear that smoking wasn'’t allowed.

Senator Anderson: The definition of usable marijuana is on page 9, line 12 includes only
the liquids and oils.

Ms. Smith: (1:31:16-1:34:00) continued testimony, last paragraph.
Senator Anderson: To clear up, in the 15t biennium after the approval that your costs would

be higher because of startup costs, but when | look at the numbers $2.6 million for the first
biennium, and then you're up to $3.19 million in the second biennium. Could you explain?
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Ms. Smith: In the 15t biennium, we won't be doing the work of accepting applications are ‘
registrations for patients and caregivers until a year down the road, so we won't incur that
expense until later, so these are partial expenses for the biennium, there’s no need for staff

until product is available. Enforcement staff would not be hired until needed, because there

won't be anything to regulate or enforce.

Chair J. Lee: Is there any further information other than on the fiscal note on page 2 under
3a where it talks about the office of the state tax commissioner. This talks about sales and
use tax income. Anything further about that or does that tell us everything?

Ms. Smith: That is everything we know at this time.
Ron Martin (1:36:50-1:46:45) Testified in favor, please see attachment #5.

Senator Anderson: One of the things you mentioned was no addresses on the grow centers,
one of the things the bill has is to hold the public hearing in the local area about those centers
meeting the zoning requirements. Those are in conflict, can’t have a public hearing if we
don’t’ want to disclose the address.

Mr. Martin: I'm not sure how you get around that. Every other state redacts that information
| would imagine there’s some precedent out there.

having these located there. Public hearings are going to talk about where it is, because that’s

Chair J. Lee: It is a problem with local political sub-divisions having the right to consider ‘
a part of the public hearing process.

Joan Lee (1:49:20-1:53:35) Testified in favor, please see attachment #6.

Opposition

Rep. Pam Anderson, District 41 (1:54:45-1:58:45) Testified in opposition, please see
attachment #13.

Senator Anderson: Don’t you think a child with intractable seizures has been to every
neurologist their parents could find? They would go a lot further than Fargo to find that person
they thought would help their child, don’t you think?

Rep. Anderson: You can'’t cross state lines, if you only have 8 doctors who specialize and
you live in Tioga | don'’t think it should be limited to just those, | think that’'s burdensome.

Chair J. Lee: Did you suggest that the pharmacists have locked up spaces, so they should
be able to dispense this? The Board of Pharmacy wouldn’'t be happy about their licensed
pharmacists dispensing a federally illegal drug.

Rep Anderson: In some states, they have hundreds of dispensaries. | don’t think 8 is ‘
enough.
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Chair J. Lee: We did hear from Mr. Martin that because of the economies of scale that it is
difficult to make it profitable; so yes competition will speak.

Rep. Anderson: It's not covered by insurance so people have to pay. | think more
competition will drive down the price. | think that will be beneficial.

Tracy Vearrier (2:01:30-2:03:30) Testified in opposition, please see attachment #7.
Linda Kersten (2:04:42-2:12:50) Testified in opposition, please see attachment #8.
Erik Johnson (2:13:30-2:17:05) Testified in opposition, please see attachment #9.
V-Chair Larsen: There’s been a lot of talk about us defeating this bill, we’re trying to make
the best thing happen. Do you think the state of ND will pick up the tab to implement Measure
5?7 | don’t see how the mechanics will work, the Health Department is saying it can’t be done.
If this fails and Measure 5 is implemented, do you think it will just sit there as an unfunded
entity?

Mr. Johnson: | can’t speak to that. We could probably find a better middle ground that leans
towards Measure 5 more. Measure 5 wasn'’t perfect; we've moved so far away from it | don't
believe it's fair anymore to the patients.

Chair J. Lee: The fiscal note says $1.6 million in revenues and $1.488 million in
expenditures in the next biennium and 13 FTES. Part of that is in establishing the system,
it's another thing to maintain it. This is different than the fiscal impact of Measure 5.

Chair J. Lee: recessed until 2:30.

Chair J. Lee: reopened the public hearing. Passed out Cole Memorandum, please see
attachment #15.

Josh Wehri (2:21:00-2:24:19) Testified in opposition, please see attachment #10.
Gail Pederson (2:25:06-2:31:36) Testified in opposition, please see attachment #11.

Chair J. Lee: Which section were you referencing on the last page? The reporting incidents
where someone is not authorized to possess marijuana reference?

Ms. Pederson: That's the one, am | going to have to break patient confidentiality?

Chair J. Lee: Well, if its legal to buy it, and they’re choosing to get it illegally, then that would
be a problem, that’s true.

Ms. Pederson: It's patient confidentiality, and | want my patients to tell me what they’re using.

Chair J. Lee: Do you think everyone who voted for it read the entire initiated measure? All
38 pages? The 8 lines on the ballot didn't give all the information. | think they were voting for



Senate Human Services Committee
SB 2344

2/8/17

Page 6

medical marijuana, but you can’t say that everybody who signed the Measure will be opposed .
to everything in 2344, or that they supported everything in the Measure.

Ms. Pederson: When you think of marijuana, how do you think of ingesting it? You think
smoking it.

Chair J. Lee: The pointis it's a simplistic focus point and there’s much more to it. That's the
complication of initiated measures, there’s no way to put the whole thing out there on the
ballot.

Anita Morgan: Testified in opposition. Everybody has covered what we’re concerned
about, patient fees, wanted to thank whoever authored the legal protections maintenance of
privacy.

Rene Mitchel: Testified in opposition. Is a small business owner from Fargo. Wanted to
add perspective; other things that are legal: alcohol contributes to 88,000 deaths per year,
tobacco use contributes to 480,000 deaths per year, prescription drugs contribute to 110,000
deaths, how many deaths per year attributed to marijuana?

Chair J. Lee: We don’t know; you can'’t record deaths due to illegal drugs use, necessarily.

Ms. Mitchel: Stated that the government would make sure we knew about them if they could

link them, that humans are biologically hardwired to interact with marijuana, and it should just

be all legal so we don’t have to spend so much money on regulating. Stated that she’s sure .
everybody who voted for the Measure was expecting to smoke it and asked the committee if

they were going to represent the people or themselves.

Return to Neutral
Kevin Cross (2:41:15-2:48:20) testified neutral please see attachment #12.
Chair J. Lee: Ended public hearing.

After the hearing, Attachment 14 containing personal testimony from citizens was
submitted.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to implementation of the ND compassionate Care Act to authorize medical
marijuana, to provide a report to the legislative management; to provide a penalty; to provide
a continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Minutes: Attachment #1. Common complaints

Chair J. Lee: 4 leaders, Arvy Smith from the Health Dept., Rebecca Ternes from the
Governor’s office, Wayne Stenehjem, Tara Brandner attorney for Health Department,
talking about 2344 objections, AG office came up with common complaints, please see
attachment #1, no smoking was common, read what | sent you from Colorado, do about
smoking med marijuana in presence of children, pregnant and smoking we have strict rules
for other kinds of smoking, think about addressing that somehow.

Senator Heckaman: Suggestion AG allow limited access, physician feels need that product
vs pill or oil, vaping is allowed, the AG had appropriate language especially PTSD, and
cancer patients that maybe need to have that smoke-able product and he was suggesting
some language. We are not promoting smoking, but were allowing physician to determine
what product that an individual can use for the medical marijuana.

Senator Piepkorn: Someone has to get a prescription from a medical doctor? So what are
you just talking about?

Chair J. Lee: Recommendation, it's an illegal drug.
Senator Piepkorn: What weight does that carry?

Chair J. Lee: Enable them to get a registration card then which will enable them to purchase
it.

Chair J. Lee: Vaping is allowed both in the initiated measure and in 2344.

Senator Clemens: You mentioned smoking for cancer and Post Traumatic Stress Disorder,
the only two that there is evidence that it would help, it is them two?
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Senator Heckaman: There's evidence that those are the two conditions that a smoke-able ‘
product is more effective than the pill or the oil. Your doctor has to say you need it. Not
everybody will get it, 'm not sure how you’re going to regulate it, the AG wording that we
have to be comfortable with it, we have to be comfortable with it, given the fact that we've so
hard on getting people not to smoke, anything, but this is ok, had meeting not used as heavily
as a nicotine product, this last longer than nicotine product. The nicotine effect wears off and
then you have to have another cigarette to take care of that, and this apparently lasts longer.

Chair J. Lee: The quantity will be lower in 2344 compared to the initiated measure, because
it was too high. What we learned is that 3 ounces every equivalent of 250 joints.

Senator Clemens: Smoking marijuana, is that harmful to lungs? | imagine it is, it's smoke.
Senator Heckaman: | don’t know. | don’t have a lot of evidence on why you can't.
Chair J. Lee: | can’t imagine it's any better for you than tobacco smoke.

V-Chair Larsen: It lacks nicotine, which is the harmful part, they’re not touting that. We know
that the measure is passed because a large number knew they were going to be able to
smoke it. | handed out an email address that talked about, my thought allows them something
to smoke, if you are being stopped med marijuana in your hand, you can’t physically look at
that and see. Use what’s called hash or a butane hash oil, which isn’t refined all the way
down to the oil form, so then when you look at it, if you see the hash or the manufactured ‘
smoke-able product, not everybody in recreational field, can mimic it, these dispensaries do
the additional production, then they don’t have to vape it, they can smoke it, then we can
allow smoke it, we will know the difference. That's an option to put into this bill. My fear is
this, people already self-medicating, they're not going to search out, vs illegal. Senator
Anderson said there is 2 pills coming out. I'm sure they’ll be saying get this pill insurance
company will cover, through the doctor not the suggestion of what their getting through the
dispensary. So, | think that's going to go by the way side, dispensaries have off brand FDA
pot pill. These people are wanting to some it, and if you give it to them, you can’t determine
the difference of those unless your lab determines it.

Senator Clemens: Allow smoke for cancer PTSD, then they get card, if you got the card,
you’re ok, no card, not ok. Allow smoke for the 2 diagnosis, we've fulfilled that part of the bill,
| think might be a solution.

Senator Heckaman: That's an easier solution that Senator Larson’s concern about this but,
if you're stopped by a cop, you'll have a card that tells how much you can have with you.
That decriminalizes the issue right there. | wouldn’t know how much it would be.

V-Chair Larsen: Here's the problem, so | have my card, and | want to have my med
marijuana, | can grow my own 8 plants, they’ll have that hash product, grow plants in home
can’'t make hash in your oven like you can manufactured, it's another step that it's going to ‘
be harder for them to produce and make, so when you get pulled over. If your allowing people
to distribute it or not, or allow people to smoke for medical marijuana, and | have my card, |
can guarantee you, | have my card, | am not going to the dispenser anymore, | am growing
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my own. They're not going to manufacture hash in their kitchen. If you give them marijuana
they can smoke, they’ll grow their own. We've got to try to make it hard. When we put these
roadblocks in the way, they’ll just revert back to recreational.

Senator Kreun: What do they do in Colorado? Are they growing their own?

V-Chair Larsen: They are growing their own. They're not supposed to. They go once, get
the barcoded container, refill it from home. You don’t see hash at the Colorado or Washington
or these other places because it is another manufacturing step that there not going to take
time in doing.

Senator Kreun: What you're saying the smoking should be only with the hash?

V-Chair Larsen: Because it has a finger print. Now there will still be people making hash,
you're not going to get a cancer patient who will manufacture but they will and they are going
to self-medicate now.

Chair J. Lee: | think you should talk to Wayne and Arvy. Because if they are working on the
amendment and Jennifer Clark too.

V-Chair Larsen: | have heartburn over the price of the card. We can tax it; | believe we
should fund a large portion from the state. If you force me to buy a $200 card, I'm growing it
in my back yard.

Senator Heckaman: The card funds the startup costs. They expect that. The bill says up to
$300, Arvy’s expecting that to drop off, every agency is cutting, hopefully down the line, drop
that cost, after while down to a minimal. Right now they have no way to pay for this, so # 5
the people that drafted measure 5 didn’t put in a funding mechanism in here and that’s a big
part of that. Because there are full time employees, going to have to work on this, start at
$200 maybe not even that.

Chair J. Lee: I'm resentful that money is going someplace beside public health in the health
department budget.

Senator Clemens: Language in measure 5, the act would provide for an identification card
and registration which would be issued by the Department of Health. It doesn’t get into the
price, but it says.

Chair J. Lee: The proposed bill says $300, recommended actually by Rep. Weisz, that it
would be an up too number, but in the discussion that we had last Thursday, the feeling was
to have a flat figure that was lower, would be more acceptable because people are getting
bent out of shape about the fees, but it's not going to be free. | did ask that this be shared
with you, Kevin Cross, who was one of the people who testified last week had talked about
taxing manufacturers and dispensaries, to help fund the program. For your info, go through
rest of chart. Background checks were for both designated care givers and compassion
agents, no felony offense or drug related misdemeanor convictions, 5 years prior to
application. So both of them are the same. The fees for the compassion centers in 2344, the
application would be, the growers would be $80,000, and the distributer would be $60,000
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for a 2-year period. In the initiated measure it was $5,000 with a $25,000 license fee for 2
years. Again there has got to be a way to start this stuff up. The fee for the cardholders the
measure didn't specify a figure, 2344, would be $200 for caregiver, $200 for a qualified
patient, parent just one fee. Age for minor would be 19, no consumption by anybody still in
high school. Initiated had no restrictions regardless of age. Business model nonprofit is
required none for profit model but you can’t get that because it’s illegal federally, can’'t have
it anyways. Apply in the 501c3 designation anyway. It's in that perfect initiated measure.

Senator Heckaman: They still would be able to apply through the Secretary of State as a
non- profit?

Senator J. Lee: They can apply in the state, but they cannot get a 501¢c3 designation.

Senator Heckaman: 501c3 is a federal designation and they are not able to get the federal
number that they want for that for writing off donations.

Senator J. Lee: Yes, they wanted donations.
Senator Kreun: What do you mean?
Chair J. Lee: Oh that they are so benevolent that they give money to various charities.

Senator Heckaman: Fund them and write off if 501¢3 they can still apply as a nonprofit
through state.

Chair J. Lee: North Dakota residency for compassion care agents, both measure and bill
requirement. Quantity moving lower so as not to divert to the illegal market, although it's
going to happen anyway. The background checks language in bill follows Cole measure. Not
going to prosecute states that have medical marijuana, that are trying to comply with their
lists of regulations that the feds think are appropriate, so the language in the bill is compliant
with that. But the really big deal initiated measure did not decriminalize possession of
marijuana, if you have it in your possession you will be a criminal if 2344 does not pass in
both Houses. If we don’t get 2/3 majority in both House’s it goes back to the initiated measure
and then you will be a criminal if you possess it. Guess what they forgot a pretty important
part in the initiated measure. Review of the things we talked about in the meeting last week
and stuff that will be coming up and we know that there are amendments that come will be a
first draft kind of thing, and we’ll all have to be going over them again.

V-Chair Larsen: On pg 7 line 1 some people covered the Hepatitis C issue, currently state
pays for Medicaid expansion, anybody on hepatitis, unfortunately group like to start using
recreational marijuana, if they fail a drug test, they're kicked off that. Something needs to be
said that. If the state pays for Hepatitis C treatment, drug testing folks to save money if this
passes, the Hepatitis C folks who are self-medicating or go get their card. That's a hiccup
spot there. | don’t think we want people self-medicating, if | understand the therapy, being on
marijuana doesn’t help it, it slows the process.

Senator Kreun: What does it say in the measure about this kind of stuff.
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V-Chair Larsen: They shouldn’t be on it Hep C. Prior to drug testing them, they were running
through the whole process and paying for their Hep C programs while they are still self-
medicating, and it wasn’t working, avenue they could take to stop wasting money on it.
Chair J. Lee: Maybe we need to say caused by Hepatitis C, not under current treatment.

Senator Kreun: So they shouldn’t have medical marijuana?

V-Chair Larsen: That's what my source says. They should not be on medical marijuana
when they’re taking their Hepatitis C that the state is paying for.

Senator Kreun: They get to make a choice then?

Chair J. Lee: If we look, if someone who isn’t under treatment, with that drug, because not
everybody is, they want to use it, they could be eligible, but that's why we maybe need to talk
about something like that under current treatment. That may not be the right verbiage.

Senator Kreun: What happens if they’re under treatment, try it, then tested.

Chair J. Lee: | don’'t want to waste $86,000 on people who don’t even care enough to
continue the treatment.

Senator Kreun: | know that's why they need to be tested and as soon as their tested with
whatever drug that is not compatible with their Hepatitis C, then they are off.

Senator Heckaman: Maybe we could have lan check with department to see if what their
thoughts on are that? Because | would say if you're in the state penitentiary you’re not going
to get it anyhow.

Chair J. Lee: Veteran of Vietham, they could be on expanded Medicaid. They are not on
Medicaid if they are in the pen because we can’t cover them there.

V-Chair Larsen: | can understand cancer; why would you need marijuana for Hepatitis C?
Chair J. Lee: It's not, for decompensated cirrhosis.

Senator Anderson: Decompensation means that as you get sicker, your liver gets worse,
and consequently the cirrhosis gets worse, so your Hepatitis C gets worse, it's a kind of a
downward spiral. Once you get into decompensation, then your heart pumps faster you're
your congested heart failure gets worse and your heart pumps faster yet, then it gets worse.

Senator Clemens: That was Hepatitis C was in original, new bill added “caused by".

Chair J. Lee: That makes sense though, lan you want to ask Arvy Smith in the Health
Department about that.

Senator Anderson: Brendon in MA would know.
Chair J. Lee: Recessed until after lunch.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to implementation of the North Dakota Compassionate Care Act to authorize
medical marijuana; to provide a report to the legislative management; to provide a penalty;
to provide a continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Minutes: Testimony attached # 1,2,3

Chair J. Lee brought the meeting to order for committee work on SB 2344. All committee
members were present. Joan Lee, Arvy Smith, and Tara Brandner were also present.

Chair J. Lee discussed the amendment. (see attachment 1)
V-Chair Larsen: “Is there a reason we can’t have the age at 187"
Chair J. Lee: “That would mean someone would be in high school.”
Senator Piepkorn: “What's the $200 per year for?”

Chair J. Lee: “It is for the qualifying patient registry identification card. You have to get one
every year.”

V-Chair Larsen: “I'm not a fan of the non-refundable part.”

Senator Piepkorn: “Is this a fund raiser then? For this $200 dollars?”

Chair J. Lee: “Part of it is needed to get this thing off the ground.”

The Committee continued reviewing the Amendment.

V-Chair Larsen: “So we'’re going from the basement of a felony to the middle of the road
felony? My concern is does the punishment fit the crime in this new legislation? It seems
stiffer than it should be. I’'m wondering where the registry of cardholders is kept? | think | put

that in an amendment, but | haven’'t seen the amendments come down from Jennifer yet. |
think there should be transparency on this. When you sign up for a cardholder, that you go
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into a database. So if you get pulled over that will come up when you get pulled over or when
you go to the doctor, all that comes up. | know there’s the HIPAA scare, but in this issue,
there should be total transparency, so everybody knows who'’s got the card.”

Senator Anderson: “There’s still no smoking in here?”

Senator Heckaman: “Yeah, there is.”

V-Chair Larsen: “| didn’t see it in the amendment, and | don’t think it's in the bill.”
Off-microphone discussion followed that was inaudible.

V-Chair Larsen: “So a designated caregiver applying for an application, they put forth their
money for the application process, but during the application process they are found to have
a felony conviction four years ago. So the $5000 is nonrefundable. | have a problem with
that. | need an example of something else where you give an application fee and you don'’t
get that back.

Senator Kreun: “Pharmacy license, | believe.”

V-Chair Larsen: “Do you get your money back for a liquor license? I'm going to apply for a
liquor license, | can’t imagine they wouldn’t give me my money back if | was denied.”

Senator Kreun: “You don’t have to go through a background check for that.”

V-Chair Larsen: “Has everybody matched the amendments up to the bill? Is there any
heartburn in any parts of it?”

Senator Anderson: “What was the reason for making felony convictions more severe?”

Senator Heckaman: “l don’'t know about that. We talked about that, that must have been
something that they did internally through the AG’s office after we left.”

Senator Anderson: “| wonder if was because those violations in other parts of the code were
similar to those new felony convictions?”

Senator Heckaman: “That may be true.”

V-Chair Larsen: “l was looking for the consistency part of that. | know they want the age
down from 21-19, so kids in high school won't have access, but we can be drafted at 18, we
can smoke at 18, | can boat at 18. Also, we haven't talked about smoke-ables, these high
school students are still only getting the pill and the oil. Due to the cost of the oil at $1700
dollars, my guess is they are getting it in the pill form? | don’'t have a problem with an 18-
year-old getting prescribed Codeine; so | don’t have a problem with an 18-year-old getting
prescribed this in the pill form.”

Senator Anderson: “Again, it's not a prescription it's just a recommendation.”




Senate Human Services Committee
SB 2344

2/13/17

Page 3

V-Chair Larsen: “That's my point, these folks are going to getit. \We're not talking about the
smokable form so why not give it to them when they’re 18-years-old? Why not give it to them
when they’re in high school?”

Senator Anderson: “Senator Heckaman asked how they are able to prescribe that, that's
because Tetrahydrocannabinol was specifically categorized as a Class Ill Controlled
Substance several years ago when the product was originally marketed. It actually has
tetrahydrocannabinol in a liquid capsule; a gel cap. There’s a new drug that will be introduced
that has Cannabidiol in it, and that's the other active ingredient in marijuana. Which will also
be available by prescription. When that becomes active we will probably schedule that right
away; probably a Schedule Il or Schedule llll, so it can be prescribed right away.”

V-Chair Larsen: “Is that in a gel cap form?”

Senator Anderson: “It's not, I'm not sure it can be smoked. Regardless, it is illegal to take
a medication in any other way than what it was prescribed, unless given approval by your
doctor.”

V-Chair Larsen: “Can it be injected?”
Senator Anderson: “Yes.”

V-Chair Larsen: “My personal opinion is that it doesn’t matter what age you are to be
prescribed it.”

Senator Heckaman: “The industry is not complaining about any of the fees at all. | go back
to the bottom line on here, and it's whether cities and counties are going to allow anything in
their city and county.”

V-Chair Larsen: “The dispensaries are at the eight district health units currently? Are they
approving the dispensaries?”

Senator Heckaman: “They’re going to okay eight dispensaries, but it doesn’t say they're in
the health units; it has nothing to do with the health units. We have an issue; we don’t see
any language in here that allows leaves or the flowers.”

Chair J. Lee: “No, and there’s supposed to be.”

Senator Heckaman: “Tara from the AG'’s office will be checking on that for us.”

V-Chair Larsen: “Where is the section where the diseases are covered?”

Chair J. Lee: “Pages 6 and 7.”

V-Chair Larsen: “We want to keep this tight. | can see people coming in and ask what about
this illness, and what about that iliness. | think we should cut that part out and just leave it to

what we have now. We can always change it later depending on what people think. Then
bring that in as a bill amendment after the bill has passed.”
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Senator Anderson: “Whatever the Health Department (HD) decides would have to be done .
by rule, we could certainly add those in two years if those came to the legislature and said
we want to have one of those.”

Senator Heckaman: “My recollection of this is to be allowed by rule, but they would have a
procedure to follow to petition the HD to add a condition. There’s a mechanism in here, so if
a medical practitioner has suggestions to add diseases to this bill then there would be a
procedure to do that.”

Senator Piepkorn: “The two main things people are upset about is the smoking and the
cost. | think due to fair estimates; a person could look forward to $10,000 a year when
everything was added up. That much money would drive people to grow their own.”

Senator Heckaman: ‘| think the cost is fine, when my brother had cancer, even after his
insurance paid, his personal payments were $4,000 a month for his cancer treatment drugs.
| don't think this will make people do it illegally. | don’t think our bill is going to add to that. |
think our bill will give those people who really are sincere about using medical marijuana the
opportunity to do it without becoming criminals, and that's where I’'m at with the bill.”

Chair J. Lee: “On page 54, lines 28-30, why was that confusing again, Joan?”
manufacture, or dispense marijuana unless the person is registered as a dispensary or a

manufacturing facility. So if you reverse that, a person who is registered at a dispensary may
cultivate, dispense, or manufacture marijuana — that’s the way | read it.”

Joan Lee: “Reversing the English grammar in the sentence. A person may not cultivate, ‘

Chair J. Lee: “But the dispensary, isn’'t supposed to be able to grow marijuana?”
Joan Lee: “Correct.”

Chair J. Lee: “That needs to be rewritten so it's clear, maybe it takes two sentences? Seems
to me that would be the cleanest way to do that.”

Senator Anderson: “In the original bill it wasn’t separated.”

V-Chair Larsen: “On page 54, line 1, it says a resident can submit a petition. | don't like
that. They have to go to district court to petition this, | say just let it run.”

Senator Heckaman: “I've spoken with people in the House and they question whether it's
convenient for everybody to be scheduled in the Burleigh County District Court, and why
couldn’t it be in their local jurisdiction?” That was one issue, another issue regards
pediatricians. | was talking about some language that would say, ‘in consultation with a
pediatric specialist,” a child would have seen . . . | don’t know. Something like that.” ‘

Chair J. Lee: “Can we find the page about the pediatrician?”
Chair J. Lee found the page - Pg8 very bottom, lines 26-30.
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V-Chair Larsen discussed how he believes keeping the consistency of the age of 18 would
match up with other regulations.

Chair J. Lee: “People whined about the age being 21. We backed it up to 19 and not 18 to
keep the age out of high school.”

V-Chair Larsen: “If we look at the listed diseases here: epilepsy, is usually for children under
the age of 18; Alzheimer’s, we're not going to have that as a child disease. | haven't heard
a word about people who voted for Measure 5 saying they want this on the list, and this on
the list, and this on the list.”

Arvy Smith, Co-Director of the North Dakota Department of Health: “We got questions
about AHDH. | don’t know what the science is for that?”

Chair J. Lee: “Let’s take it out and see what the House says.”

V-Chair Larsen: “Then that eliminates 1-7 on the next page on page 54. The great thing
would be to develop this and let it breath. | can see Burleigh county get inundated with
petitions the first two years.”

Senator Anderson: “Any additions would be made by future legislation.”

Arvy Smith: “Our list is very comprehensive when compared to other states.”

Chair J. Lee: “We talked about the 19-21 age, is there heartburn about that?”

Arvy Smith: “The original measure had no age restriction.”

The committee discussed the issue with the age and how they considered a minor being age
18 and younger.

Arvy Smith: “If we could somehow write it so a child under the age of 18, or whatever we
want to put for an age, if we can write it that the pediatrician could write the recommendation
in consultation with one of these specialists, or if the child has a history with one of these
specialists, that'd be best.”

Chair J. Lee: “Let’s see what we can do to loosen that up.”

Senator Heckaman: “| think somewhere along the way that that child would have to be seen
by a specialist.”

Chair J. Lee: “Does Tara have an amendment on the leaves and flowers?”
Arvy Smith: “The smoking | did not see in these amendments either. What was discussed
is that if the physician certifying says this is the best way for this particular person to receive

this, then we would do it.”

Tara Brandner, Assistant Attorney General, was called up to testify.
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“| provide legal guidance to the North Dakota Department of Health, so | am here at that .
capacity. | think what the intent was is that we would go in and revise the definition of written
certification which is made by the physician in order for you to get the marijuana, and we
would say something to the effect of, ‘the physician would have to say that you won’t benefit

from any other form of marijuana.”

Senator Kreun: “So the only way you would be able to smoke is if there’s no other way.
What about vets with PTSD?”

Tara Brandner: “Your physician will say that the other forms won'’t benefit you.”

V-Chair Larsen: “Could we have that language in the form of the butane-able hash oils
instead of the leaves and flowers, because that brings up my concern that | don’t mind them
smoking it in the hash form, because that is smokable. That gives a fingerprint that is easily
identifiable as compared to the leaf and the flower.”

Chair J. Lee: “Could you do some research for us on Senator Larsen’s comment?”

Tara Brandner: “Yes.”

Senator Piepkorn: “| see the scientific logical step here; | just don’t think it will fly.”

Chair J. Lee: “If it's that or nothing, if they really care about the treatment, and not just about
getting high, they should be okay with it.”

Tara Brandner: “The language in the proposed bill right now may be broad enough to allow
that as is without an amendment.”

Chair J. Lee: “Well if we want to make sure it isn’t grown; would it be useful to mention it?”
Tara Brandner: “It may be, yes.”

Senator Piepkorn: “What does it cost to see a physician to get the recommendation?”
V-Chair Larsen: “$150 for office visit.”

Chair J. Lee: “Why should that be cheaper than any other visit? You could just have a
checkup with your physical and get this too.”

Tara Brandner: “Did you have questions regarding jurisdiction?”

Chair J. Lee: “Is there a reason for the Burleigh County thing, or is there an option for other
district courts?”

Tara Brandner: “We basically followed the process for concealed weapons. Burleigh County ‘
will have more expertise.”
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Arvy Smith questioned the manufacturers and dispensaries all having to be agents of North
Dakota.

“| think the decision was not to change that. | still wonder about our border people and
the odds of them going across the border.”
Senator Anderson: “l think they can find investors in North Dakota.’

Senator Piepkorn: “It seems that restricting this strictly to North Dakota is going in the
opposite trend of what we are currently doing.”

V-Chair Larsen: “What's the big rub? | can't live in Florida and decide to come up and do
this. Why does it matter? As long as I'm not a felon then it shouldn’t matter.”

Arvy Smith: “The fear is people from out of state may come and take over.”

Chair J. Lee: “Talk to us about felony increases.”

Tara Brandner: “We increased felonies from c to b. The idea of that was that our division
has gone through it and right now if you're caught selling it on the street you are essentially
charged with a class b felony not a class c felony. So we have gone in and basically evened
it out to what it is now.”

Chair J. Lee closed the hearing on SB 2344.

No motions were made, attachments #2 and #3 were provided via email after the hearing.
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A bill relating to implementation of the ND compassionate Care Act to authorize medical
marijuana, to provide a report to the legislative management; to provide a penalty; to provide
a continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Minutes: #1, #2, #3

Tara Brandner: This is the 2006 version #1, #2, #3 and should contain all of the original
ones except the things that we decided to be changed. It will include additional changes.
Chair J. Lee: | can write on the 2000 version.

Tara Brandner: Manager number on page 6 line 25, those changes and anything related to
that were from Secretary of State Office, and they allow Compassion Center to be a nonprofit
corporation, a nonprofit LLC or a corporation. So that is that change. Then on page 7, line
21, those are all just housekeeping items. All the way up to page 8 line 17, replaced 21 with
19. That was one you had decided in committee. That's changing the age of a minor from 21
down to 19. So up until 19, an individual would be required to have a parent act as a
designated care giver. That person would have to purchase their useable marijuana and that
could only be pediatric medical oil. Page 8, line 29, we removed the specialty so the pediatric
neurologist pediatric gastric enologist and the pediatrician and what else was there before,
and we just said pediatrician. That was a change at the request of the committee.

Chair J. Lee: Were we going to say “in consultation with specialist”?

V-Chair Larsen: They can see a pediatrician. They have to have a consult with a specialist
but, they don’t have to go to the specialist each time they get their prescription filled. In the
bill, every time they went to get the prescription filled the suggestion was, it had to be from
the specialist. This way the pediatrician can confer with the specialist. That has to be in the
record.

Tara Brandner: | can clarify a little bit. The way it's set up, they will come in after having a
written certification from the physician, and they will have to renew that every year. If it was
a child, they would have to see the specialist every year.

Chair J. Lee: The struggle is if there are only 8 in the state.

Tara Brandner: So you would only want them to have that initial consultation.

Senator Anderson: (audio too poor)

Chair J. Lee: Consultation with initial consultation with a specialist.

Senator Anderson: It could be any. As long as it can reach out to them.
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Tara Brandner: So something to the extent, that a pediatrician will make the recommend
after consultation with one of these.

Chair J. Lee: It doesn’t have to be an in-person-visit or an examine by the specialist. It can
be communicating with the specialist.

Tara Brander: You have to have something in that the child has seen one of these.

Chair J. Lee: | didn’t think we were going to say that they had to see them. It just says that
the pediatrician would be in consultation with a specialist.

Senator Heckaman: On Line 29 where it says, the physician must, then insert, “be Iin
consultation with,” and leave that. That is what we would insert.

Chair J. Lee: No, must be a pediatrician who would be in consultation.

Senator Heckaman: Is it going to be any easier for them to consult? Let’s try it as see if it
flies.

Chair J. Lee: They could do it by phone. | just want to make sure we are on board for
everybody. That is what | was thinking we would do.

Senator Kreun: How often are we going to ask them to do it? Just a consultation once a
year?

Chair J. Lee: Annually, but with regular visits to pediatrician. It may not be a chronic
condition. It may not be going on for the rest of their lives.

V-Chair Larsen: Example would be epilepsy. Many people have it and take meds or don't
take meds because of the drawbacks. They would have to confer with this person first to
keep that going. | know someone now who has epilepsy and they are not taking anything.
Senator Kreun: If these people are sick, they're going to consult with a doctor more than
once a year.

Chair J. Lee: They'll still be consulting with a pediatrician, but the specialist consultation
with the pediatrician would be once a year. Because there is not enough of them in the state.
Senator Kreun: For what reason?

Senator Heckaman: To get the certification, to get certified.

Senator Kreun: So you’re given medication and the consultation is once a year. Is that how
a regular pediatrician or any other doctor consults with a sick person to give him medicine?
Chair J. Lee: The pediatrician is capable of following up on whatever recommendation that
the specialist would have given him.

Senator Kreun: Who's giving the recommendation?

Chair J. Lee: It will be a miracle if anyone of us does that.

Senator Anderson: If their pediatrician who they see regularly wants to recommend
marijuana use, then that pediatrician needs to consult with specialist before they make that
recommendation annually. They can still see the individual every two weeks, if that is
appropriate care. But in order to recommend marijuana, they have to have this consult at
least once a year with this other individual.

Chair J. Lee: | know not everybody loves it. The way we are talking about it, but | want to
know if 4 out of 6 thinks it is okay.

V-Chair Larsen: The pediatrician has this client, then they step out and ask the specialist,
that conversation between the specialist and the pediatrician might say | want to consult in 6
months or see them person. Let them communicate before to push. Maybe they won't.
Chair J. Lee: | think we have to have some confidence in the professional behavior.
Senator Anderson: | think it remains that that person’s pediatrician is who makes the
recommendation. We're not asking that consultant who might be in Washington to make any
recommendations specifically except to the pediatrician. From there the pediatrician takes it.
Senator Kreun: Why would you even have to consult with that other person?




Senate Human Services Committee
SB 2344

2/15/17

Page 3

Chair J. Lee: | have an expert idea.

Senator Kreun: That pediatrician would be doing that even if the child was sick anyway. It
doesn’t matter, | guess.

Chair J. Lee: | have confidence in the pediatrician and specialist.

Tara Brandner: | understand. On line 29, the physician must be a pediatrician who consults
with a pediatric neurologist pediatric gastrologist. If we are done with that, pg. 10 line 29.
That is the change from non-refundable to annual. We just call it an annual fee.

V-Chair Larsen: That's throughout as well. It will be replaced throughout. It is just not on
that one line.

Chair J. Lee: Then we add the 200 there.

Senator Heckaman: That's not how its written. It says page 10 line 29. It not after non-
refundable insert annual.

Tara Branner: | apologize, | misspoke.

Chair J. Lee: That is right.

Senator Heckaman: Why would we say non-refundable annually? We don’t get half of it
back.

Chair J. Lee: If they pay the fee they pay the fee. We are not pro-rating it.

V-Chair Larsen: I'm confused | thought | wanted the nonrefundable out, they can pay every
year but if something happens and they don'’t get their application. Then they don't.

Chair J Lee: If they don't get their certification they get their money back.

Tara Brandner: No, the intent was.

V-Chair Larsen: My intent is I'm going to apply for my application and pay my fee, if | get my
application | get my money, every year | will pay my money. But if a year or 2 years, or when I'm
applying | want my money back if | don’t get my application.

Chair J. Lee: But it still cost money and time for application.

Tara Brandner: The other thing that this will allow annual after nonrefundable is if a patient
applies at the beginning of the year and they are on the program for 2 months, and then
reapply in July, since they have already paid that fee they wouldn’t have to pay again in the
year.

Senator Anderson: There is no place where this says calendar year? It would be a rolling
date.

Tara Brandner: On page 11 removes line 1-2. That is allowing the department to establish
a fee not to exceed $300.

V-Chair Larsen: | was in favor of $25 for the fee. | want it on record.

Chair J. Lee: There isn't any state that that is $25.

V-Chair Larsen: | was just looking out for measure 5 folks.

Discussion followed:

Tara Brandner: The cleanup on pg. 11 and removing lines 1-2 pg. That is just cleanup
language on fees established on the previous page. On page 12, after line 10 we would insert
this language. This would essentially allow the department to wave a fee for a child who lives
in the home of their parent who had to pay a fee to be their designated care giver. Next one
just specifies again that it is an annual fee. The next one, pg.13, line 22, is a fee of $200.
Again that will just give the amount. On the next one we're removing the caretaker and
replacing with caregiver. It's just a clean-up item. Page 50, line 23, replace card holder with
compassion center. This allows the department of the departments need to come in and
come in if they have a reasonable suspicion that for some reason the compassions are
violating this act. The way it is written right now, it would allow the department to do that for
all cardholders, which would be qualifying patients designated caregiver. It allows them to
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enter their house. We are trying to do with this language to limit that down, so the department
would only be able to enter a compassions with reasonable suspicions. It means
automatically. Page 50, line 26, Again it is just cleanup. We are replacing that registered
designated caregiver with cardholder and on both line 26 and line 29. On page 50, line 31 is
just replacing section with chapter. Continued on with explanation. Questions and clarification
followed intermittently.

Senator Anderson: On page 68 line 28-30, a personnel record for each compassion center
agent for a period of at least 3 years, is there a logical reason for keeping that record?

Tara Brandner: The original measure required it for 6 months, it was thought that if there
was a criminal investigation at a later date 6 months was too short. So that was increased to
3 years.

Tara Brandner: Explaining the bill changes continued.

Chair J. Lee: We are eliminating #6, the first sentence on pg. 73.

Tara Brandner: Explanation continued on bill changes.

V-Chair Larsen: Hash oil is a process before oil but the process is before that, so it should
go hash oil, a liquid including an oil. If you want the order of operation it would be hash oil, a
liquid including oil, or a pill.

Senator Piepkorn: Does that just go in with the rest of them?

Chair J. Lee: We will decide if we want to include, but that is something recommended we
include.

Tara Brandner: The intent of using the word oil was to include hash oil. That should be
inclusive of hash oil. Say the form they could purchase would be a pill, a liquid, an oil. We
tried to stay away from telling them how they could use that. Essentially, they could take the
liquid, they could take the oil, or they could take the pill and use it how they choose. They
could take the oil and bake with it. They could take liquid and vaporize it. This was just to
define what forms are available and how you use it is your choice.

Chair J. Lee: In your opinion, you don’t need the distinction of oil and hash 0il?

Tara Brandner: Correct.

V-Chair Larsen: Hash is not an oil. So are the manufactures going to be making hash as a
product and the liquid product and the pills as a product? We are getting the pills from the
FDA. If that's the clarification I'm ok with that.

Tara Brandner: Perhaps it would be beneficial to the committee to define what an oil is.
V-Chair Larsen: Could include hash? Yeah. Expand the definition of what oil is.

Chair J. Lee: It's better to spell it out so people understand.

V-Chair Larsen: A liquid including an oil doesn’t mean hash to me.

Senator Anderson: \Who knows more about it than we do?

Senator Kreun: You can smoke hash, but you can’t smoke oil.

V-Chair Larsen: You don't smoke oil; you cook with it.

V-Chair Larsen: It's called Butane, BHO, butane able hash oil. It falls under the category of
oil. That's why | am confused. | have never called hash, hash oil.

Chair J. Lee: You get excited about anything with butane in it. It could just blow up.
V-Chair Larsen: That's why it is manufactured to make that product.

Chair J. Lee: It's not going to light on fire, but if you buy it, is it going to blow up?

V-Chair Larsen: Hash isn't combustible in that form.

Tara Brandner: Under this measure it would also need to be tested to make sure no
solvents.

V-Chair Larsen: Exactly

Senator Kreun: You're manufacturing medicine here.
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Chair J. Lee: The FDA isn’t there to make sure everything is done correctly.

Senator Kreun: no audio

Chair J. Lee: Is that concept acceptable?

V-Chair Larsen: The only way | can move forward with a smoke-able form is if it has a
fingerprint. If we see it in the leaf or bud form in one hand and recreational in the other, there
is not distinction unless you take it to a lab. So when you pull somebody over on the road
and they show it to you. We don’t know. If we pull them over and they have a rock of hash in
the pillbox we know that it might be counterfeit. It is a lot harder to counterfeit then the weed
or the flower. That’s the whole origin of the amendment.

Tara Brandner: | want to clarify for my sake as | go in and make the amendments. My
understanding is that this is a hash oil, so the end product that the consumer would get would
be an oil not a solid.

V-Chair Larsen: It is a solid. They call it wax or snap. Those are the street forms.

Senator Piepkorn: We have a failure to communicate. Using a common word oil and we
know what that is. Hash oil is a solid, that's what it's called. It is not a liquid. It is a term.
Senator Anderson: | think hash oil or hash is a resin clears it up. You have a rosin. You
extract form plant using butane.

Chair J. Lee: I'd like to have something we can all agree. | want to know about pg. 54. We
need 2 sentences instead of 1. That's just language tweaking, but we have to fix it.

V-Chair Larsen: | thought you'd submitted those sentences.

Senator Anderson: We would break those into 2.

lan Arendt: Jen said to tell you that it's not a specific clause and it doesn’t allow you to
manufacture, they specifically left it that way.

Tara Brandner: She’s saying a person may not cultivate manufactured dispense marijuana
or otherwise act as a compassion unless registered as a dispensary or manufacturing facility.
What this is doing is referring a dispensary so nobody can do those things unless you are
registered. The definition of dispensary specifically includes, that they cannot manufacture
or cultivate and the definition of a manufacturer facility specifically include that they can
cultivate, manufacture and dispense to a dispensary.

V-Chair Larsen: | like the 2 sentences that made it clearer.

Senator Anderson: \When you mix them in there, there is always a question. Well it's in the
same sentence. Just make it two sentences.

V-Chair Larsen: While we are on pg. 54, did we cut out line 1 about petitioning the
department to add a medical condition that was in relation to page 7.

Senator Anderson: We cut it out.

Chair J. Lee: We replaced it with the registry identification cards information, which we
deleted later on. So you will see a couple of sections that were moved and that is one of
them.

V-Chair Larsen: This is something new not on your sheets. But from page 56, line 27, there
is a bill in House currently reducing selling drugs in 1000 meters, could possibly go away.
Should we cut this 1000 feet from school issue? You could be across the street and bee in
compliance and when vyoure not then you are 3 more years in jail
Do we even want to make reference to that?

Tara Brandner: Right now in criminal law, if you're are caught dispensing or possessing a
controlled substance within a 1000 feet of a school your sentence is increased. So that bill is
removing that ability for increase. This one is just saying a compassion center can’t operate
within 1000 goal of a school and keep them separate.

V-Chair Larsen: Wouldn't that be in the zoning part?
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Tara Brandner: This was in the original measure. .
V-Chair Larsen: On page 71, let’s talk about Compassion Centers and revocations. There's

no suggestion about child support folks. This is just like the driver's license, if they aren'’t
paying child support they don’t need the card.

Senator Anderson: You wouldn’t want to deny somebody their medicine just because they
haven'’t paid their child support.

V-Chair Larsen: On page 73 line 20, it says we are only going to fine them a $1000 in
violation, is that too low? A Compassion Center must be fined up to $1000 for violation, |
think that’s too low. | think about giving booze to minors, should it be worse?

Senator Kreun: It got changed.

Chair J. Lee: If a Compassion Center violates the law it could be fined up to a $1000.
Tara Brandner: It was written in consistent with the rest of the language in here so what we
have done is rewritten it. The $1000 will still exist.

V-Chair Larsen: | think it's too low, | think about the protesting and cruelty to animals and
what we are fining them.

Senator Anderson: Suggests since Mr. Bollinger is here, does he have any comments,
since he’s in charge of this?

Kennon Bollinger: We've been working on it since November. I've had 33 years in state
health department. That's why | was asked to do this. | was in regulatory work for most of the
time, but also served as Director of Crime Lab with a criminal lab testing background. You'll
see a lot of me.

Senator Anderson: Does it look like it is more manageable?

Kennon Bollinger: | think these changes are all good. These are all manageable.

Chair J. Lee: Is there anything we’re not considering? '
Kennon Bollinger: | think you've done a great job. The is all manageable law that’s
somewhat fiscally responsible.

Chair J. Lee: The voters wanted to implement this. We are trying to make it not so restrictive
that they refer it or have a new initiative measure next month. We also need to get 2/3 votes
out of both house.

Kennon Bollinger: We talked to the initiated measure folks. We bounced some of these
things off of them early on and seemed to be okay.

Chair J. Lee: There’'s a number of things that are in both places.

V-Chair Larsen: There’s been a discussion of paying for this system. The cost of the card
per individual has there been pushback? Do they know that it'll be up to $2007?

Kennon Bollinger: They certainly were aware of it, they were concerned. | think there was
misinformation by somebody opposing the fees. They said there is no state that had that a
high fee. | know there are states that do. MN is proposing to go over $200.

V-Chair Larsen: We were hearing the numbers of between 1-5 per 1000 population that will
be in effect of this. If they go and get pill in prescription form they don’t even go through this
system. Do you see this continuing to work with only 1000 people using this system?
Kennon Bollinger: We struggle with that. We don’t know how many patients will register.
Arvy Smith: Kennon doesn’t know this yet. We are doing scenarios preliminary. The fiscal
picture relies heavily on numbers. We can be in the hole. If we go above 5 per 1000, we will
have an excess. Then we can look at bringing the $200 fee down. If we fall short, we don’t
have enough money. If we fall short, we won’t have enough money. ‘
V-Chair Larsen: In a business if | start going backwards, what what point do you close? Are
we just going to go under $600,000 or when do we quit?
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Arvy Smith: | don’'t’ know how we’re going to play that out. We've had discussions about
doing a survey. | don’t know if we’'ll get good information to see how many will be in on the
program. The smoking has a big impact on number of patients we’re going to see. I'm trying
to think what changes we can make until we see where we are at.

Senator Anderson: Don't you think if we come in and numbers are way too low for us to
make budget, could the numbers of inspectors drop down? Obviously you have a minimum
of staff. We could raise fees next session. We could have one Compassion Center and one
inspector instead of having 8.

Arvy Smith: We did take that into consideration. | think we feel good about 5/1000. The state
of Delaware doesn’t allow smoking and they have 4.7.

Chair J. Lee: | would rather see something more limited now, with an explanation to people
that it will take a year to set up and a year to work out the bugs. If you don’t have the
resources, it's much harder to pull it back in again. | would rather begin with something that’s
tighter with more control handles for what you've got to do.

Arvy Smith: We should be okay.

V-Chair Larsen: We bring on these huge projects. We always do a pilot project.

Senator Kreun: How are we going to roll this out?

Arvy Smith: We will add staff as we need. We have been advised to get one Compassion Center
up and running. And then add the rest.

Kennon Bollinger: The rule making process will be key. It is hard to get to it when the
legislature isn’t passed. Comparing packages is first priority. There is no need to register
patients if there is no product. We have to develop criteria for reviewing applications and
addressing security and alarms system and those types of things.

Senator Kreun: Along with the type of seed and how you bring it in.

Kennon Bollinger: It's out there, they'll find it somewhere. It is different for medical.

Chair J. Lee: Recessed the hearing. Back at 4 o’clock.

Chair J. Lee: Reopened the hearing. Full committee here.

Chair J. Lee: We had a chat about hash.

Senator Heckaman: Did you present the language we discussed today Tara? Let’s hear it.
Tara Brandner: This language changes on page 9, line 22, after it says the patients de-
abilitating medical condition, we would add that a physician must also add “physician must
state no other form of useable marijuana would be excepted and provided to the patients”.
Senator Heckaman: That was the thing the Attorney General recommended as a way to
provide some alternatives. | don’t know what that means for line 13 though.

Tara Brandner: That language means change to say (audio difficult)

Senator Heckaman: That was one of the things that came through attorney general. I'm not
sure where you came up with Senator Larson’s recommendation.

Tara Brandner: We discussed a little bit defining oil. There were some concerns that hash
is a completely different substance.

V-Chair Larsen: Are we cutting out or leaving in line 137

Chair J. Lee: I'd like it left in there, if we get a lot of resistance that would be the language
be could visit with our colleagues.

Tara Brandner: Consider that nothing in this measure eliminates ability to vaporize, which
is similar to what combustible form would do. Is that sufficient?

Senator Heckaman: Can we get a copy of that language?

Senator Heckaman: s the resin or the oil as strong or stronger. How does it relate?

Tara Brandner: That | couldn’t say.
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V-Chair Larsen: When a medical marijuana plant it only has so much THC. When a hemp .
plant is growing it only has so much. When a recreational plant is growing it only has so much
THC. When you’re manufacturing a resin out of hemp, out of recreation or medical, the THC
should be the same. That is why we are testing it.

Tara Brander: Perhaps maybe Kennon, depending on how you breathe or use female plants,
you can increase the THC.

Chair J. Lee: People who care about medical ought to care about dosage being consistent.
Tara Brander: The end product will have to be tested. That may raise some of the same
difficulties testing an edible would.

Kennon Bollinger: | think you're right. We are going to mandate that all batches get tested.
They have to be labeled with the levels are correct. We're going to make sure qualifying
patients get the right levels. Some states have pharmacists suggest levels.

Senator Heckaman: If you're getting a certain level is that from a certain plant or certain
concentration that is available in a plant?

Kennon Bollinger: It is a combo of both. Its various strains through the production of oils.
You can have a concentrated level.

Senator Heckaman: For vaping, you could have concentrated form.

Chair J. Lee: Do we want to visit with colleagues or have this in?

Senator Kreun: The term says only the dried leaves of the plant in a combustible form.
Tara Brandner: This wouldn'’t be a resin. This would be the dry leaves.

Senator Kreun: We are trying to give the law enforce the ability to determine between
recreational grown and medical grown and the resin form becomes the medical form.
V-Chair Larsen: In the news, someone got arrested for medical marijuana from another
state in the leaf form, | guarantee it hasn’t been tested yet. It takes time. It will take months ‘
to get it tested.

Senator Heckaman: On the issue the Senator Larsen is concerned about, how will law
enforcement determine whether it's for medical if it is in a leaf or flower form?

Tara Brandner: They wouldn’t. The department would have strict packaging requirements.
They would have to keep it in their old package. That's the issue with combustibles.
V-Chair Larsen: This a dated deal. We were just saying they can’t have it for 6 months, so
if | have a package that was dated and | get pulled over a year later, that’s not right.

Chair J. Lee: What do you want to do with this piece from AG office, do you have that
question? Is that compatible with what we've just discussed. Is this compatible?

Tara Brandner: Can you clarify what you mean is this compatible?

Chair J. Lee: Only the dried leaves and flowers are in combustible delivery form. Is this
comparable from the AG office for useable marijuana definition? Is the language in there
what we want it to do if we have to go forward with dried leaves and flowers?

Tara Brandner: These are consistent.

Senator Anderson: If we include that language, 90% of what is dispensed will be in that
form, the others will be in that form.

Senator Kreun: Does that go back to the question of the smoking capability with the resin
form? Does that fit the definition usable marijuana in combustible form?

Tara Brandner: Resin right now? No, my understanding the resin comes from dried leaves
and flowers we’re allowing them to possess those dried leaves and flowers. | think the
question goes down to hash and its position in the Controlled Substances Act. | need to verify ‘
this, in addition to legalizing marijuana you would also be legalizing hash.

Senator Anderson: I'd have to look at the Act, we'll do that.

Chair J. Lee: Are we in a position to act on these? I'd like to move this forward.
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V-Chair Larsen: | make a motion to adopt 2006 amendments and 2007 amendment added
in.

Senator Kreun: second.

Senator Heckaman: When we move this we are completely moving the bill and not consider
anything else?

Chair J. Lee: We need to move to appropriations.

Senator Heckaman: I'd like some time to consider this one form the AG’s office. That’s got
to be part of our conversation to include as much as we can in a safe and effective manner.
I'd like some time to visit with caucus.

Chair J. Lee: Can’t we move these amendments forward and look at further amending?
Senator Heckaman: What is your time line?

Chair J. Lee: How are we going to get it to appropriations if we don’t meet until next week?
Senator Heckaman: You have to consider the other amendment from the AG'’s office.
Chair J. Lee: If it has to be something we look at on the house side, I'd rather not wait. Our
committee isn’t going to have a chance to meet this week.

Senator Heckaman: Your adding hash oil in without Tara. I'm fine with 2006, but not with
2007.

Chair J. Lee: The amendment is for both. If we don’t want the hash oil one in there, then we
have to not approve that amendment. It would be so nice if we could get that done.
Senator Heckaman: If they would amend the motion to do 2006 | would be happy with that.
V-Chair Larsen: I'll rescind and move to pass the amendments of 2006.

Senator Kreun: second

Motion passes 7-0-0

Chair J. Lee: That amendment passes, so it gives us this to visit with our colleagues about.
V-Chair Larsen: | motion to move amendment 2007.

Senator Kreun: Second

Senator Anderson: \We have to refine language talk about resin but the intention is to add
that product which typically users recognize. The idea would be to them a little more
comfortable that they can vaporize or whatever that product in addition to the ones that are
in the there. That's why | support it.

Chair J. Lee: We'll ask Ms. Brandner research before the final action because it is two
different substances.

Tara Brandner: I'll make sure Char comes down.

Senator Heckaman: I'd be happier to know more. I'll vote no on the second amendment
Roll Called: 5 yeas, 2 no amendment passes. We will look at refining language as was
discussed

V-Chair Larsen: | move SB 2344 as amended for a do pass and refer to appropriation.
Senator Kreun: second

Senator Heckaman: Consider the AG’s wording.

V-Chair Larsen: I'll never vote for smoking a leaf or flower.

Chair J. Lee: I'd be more comfortable voting it out if we have time for visiting with colleagues.
Senator Clemens: In my opinion we've covered a lot of ground by working on 06 and 07.
Chair J. Lee: We've got to move it forward knowing it is far from perfect.

Senator Anderson: \When you say move in forward are you saying we should table the
vote? I'll second that motion to table until the call of the chair.

Chair J. Lee: That was a motion Senator Clemens that we table the vote?

Senator Clemens: Until you call a meeting.
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Senator Heckaman: I'm comfortable with that if it destroys the bill. I'm happy to vote for .
2006, but not for the rest.

Chair J Lee: This is a motion to table the bill.

Roll called: 5 yeas, 2 nays

Senator Anderson: If we look at the bill on page 8, lines 8-11, it talks about what marijuana
means. It clearly says it includes the resin.

Chair J. Lee: | forgot it was in there. Any other comments? Do some research. We're adjourned.
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Chair J. Lee: Called the hearing on Committee work on SB 2344 to order. Sen. Anderson
was absent.

Jennifer Clark, Legislative Council: Testified in a neutral capacity. See Attachment #1 for
17.0630.02008 amendments. (Walked through all the changes from 2007 version.)

(8:18) Senator Kreun: What about private administration?

Jennifer Clark: | know that we have some records here about facilities and regulations. | do
not know that we talk about using it in public. | would say tobacco laws all apply.

V-Chair Larsen: You can smoke on the sidewalk but not the other areas.

Jennifer Clark: The smoking laws apply, where can smoke in areas around facilities that is
where you can use. | think that facilities have conditions, and | think reasonable
accommodations can be made.

Senator Clemens: If you're allowed to smoke in a smoking area, it will be up to individual
places of employment whether you can smoke over noon hour?

V-Chair Larsen: This is supposed to be medicine.
Senator Clemens: | know. You can take medicine at work

V-Chair Larsen: They will put a sticker on the window just like | can’t carry my gun in the
mall.

Jennifer Clark: That is addressed in here in any for. You have to decide if it is adequately
addressed.

Senator Heckaman: What about the face to face?
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Jennifer Clark: We have that in the definition of bonified patient relationship. If you think that
is not adequately covered, we can amend that.

Tara Brandner, Assistant AG: The only thing that we may want to do if we are talking about
the facility restrictions, on page 77, line 27, we allow a basic care facility, a nursing facility,
and an assisted living facility, to limit vaporization; we may want to include combustibles
there. Essentially we would add that it can be consumed in forms other than vaporization or
smoke-able.

Chair J. Lee: Wayne Stenehjem had offered to visit about this and when | ended up getting
in there we had several that had been talking about this. Tara and others are really helping
us with this.

Tara Brandner: See Attachment #2 for a change to the definition for allowable amount of
useable marijuana for medical use.

(16:00) Senator Piepkorn: How did you arrive at these figures?
Chair J. Lee: The expertise of the assembled group.
Senator Kreun: How much different is that from pgs. 5-6?

Chair J. Lee: None of the quantities are in the original bill or draft of what we are working
with. It is the part in the middle that has the quantities that is not in there.

Tara Brandner: Part of the problem was that in the original definition, we were talking about
liquids and how you measure those, but the part that didn’t count towards that measurement
was the weight of any non-marijuana ingredients. So if | had an extract that was made from
marijuana, and then | added it to an oil, that oil addition didn’t count towards the limit. So, the
enforcement ability of law enforcement is essentially null. They would really struggle to
determine how much too much. We put amounts on each thing, and we put a different amount
for the pills, liquids, and oils because they have a much higher THC concentration amount
and they can be more potent.

Chair J. Lee: Would you like to have Char come up and talk about the products and how
the strength varies?

Tara Brandner: Yes. We would suggest removing the term “resin” from useable marijuana.

(18:15) Charlene Rittenbach, Forensic Scientist, State Crime Lab: The question was
brought about the definition of useable marijuana and having the word resin in there. It poses
concerns because no you are allowing hash products. The definition in code for hash means
the resin extracted from any part of the cannabis plant. You are basically taking the marijuana
plant and extracting out that resin to a more concentrated form. By having resin in useable
marijuana definition, you're almost allowing hash products. On the liquids, you can have
concentrated hash products where it is a more solid, sticky 80-90% THC, or you can have a
liquid product that is like a tincture. Where it is extracted out of the marijuana plant, usually
the alcohol solution that extracts the cannabinoids, and then that alcohol solution is filtered
and that solution is sold as a tincture. It might be sold to put under the tongue. there’s
different products that can be sold. There are concerns of having resin or oil in the definition,
you may be allowing somebody to sell 2.5 ounces of a very concentrated product. The
amounts had to be adjusted for the liquids and oils versus the plant material. | believe when
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the 2 %2 ounces and 3 ounces was originally put in was meant to go with the plant material.
It didn’t coincide with liquids because they are more potent, and we wanted to eliminate pure
hash products being sold at 2.5 ounces.

(20:37) V-Chair Larsen: | thought that if a plant is grown and it has the capability of having 6%
THC, that is all that plant can produce.

Charlene Rittenbach: Each marijuana plant can produce various levels of THC. When you
say 6%, are you referring to the pediatric useable amount for that oil?

V-Chair Larsen: Yes.

Charlene Rittenbach: That is for the pediatric oil. That's not for any other oil that someone
over 21 can purchase. There’s no concentration in the original bill that defines that.

Chair J. Lee: It is significantly more potent than the combustible product.

Charlene Rittenbach: To give you a reference, on the average, smokeable plant material,
is anywhere from 18-20% THC content. You can have hash concentrated products that vary
from 30-90% THC. It's going to be important to label these.

Chair J. Lee: The idea is that it isn’t the state responsibility to prove the concentration. It is
the manufacturers responsibility to have it tested and prove the concentration and it is
supposed to be on the label.

V-Chair Larsen: [f we're producing this resin, can’t that be cut with a wax product to dilute
it to bring it down to a THC level that is consistent every time? Aren’t we in the lab producing
this smokeable resin?

Charlene Rittenbach: Yes, in the lab, and that is the point of adding these levels. It needs
to be stated the maximum percentage. But when you make hash products the levels can be
varied.

Chair J. Lee: It makes sense to have to set a limit of what the manufactures can produce.

V-Chair Larsen: There was discussing yesterday that there was a difference between hash
resin and marijuana resin. Is there a difference or not?

Charlene Rittenbach: No, hash is the resinous extract of marijuana.

V-Chair Larsen: If we set up a facility to grow the medical marijuana, the plant is supposed
to have lower THC in first place. That is what we are hoping for. We are not taking recreational
marijuana seeds and planting them. We are taking medical marijuana seeds, much like hemp
seeds with a different THC level and we are producing this hash product. When it is in its
pure 90% form of THC, the next step in manufacturing would be to cut that with another resin
to dilute that to the 6% or whatever. We are producing the number in the lab coming out of
the facilities. Is that correct?

Charlene Rittenbach: Yes, you can dilute it and form it to whatever concentration that you
need. But, from my knowledge, there is a difference between hemp seed and a marijuana
seed, but there is not a difference between a medical marijuana seed and a regular marijuana
seed. Medical marijuana is marijuana that is for the industry.
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V-Chair Larsen: For clarification, some marijuana has a higher level of THC just because
of breeding of the plant.

Charlene Rittenbach: Yes, various different strains have different potencies.

V-Chair Larsen: In CO you can go to a facility and they have several different varieties of
plants that have different THC levels that could be possibly used for many different medical
purposes.

Charlene Rittenbach: That's a hard question because the FDA hasn’t approved this. As far
a certain level for a specific thing, that is a question | cannot answer.

V-Chair Larsen: That is the crux we are in now. We have the pill, but we are hearing that it
helps people better if they smoke or vape, etc.

Charlene Rittenbach: The route of administration of a drug greatly effects its affects. When
you smoke it you feel the effects right away. When you eat an edible product, it takes time to
feel the effects. With the tinctures that go under the tongue, those absorb readily and it is
similar to smoking. The route greatly affects.

Senator Clemens: Could there be some dangers if you took too much in a brownie?
Chair J. Lee: How about and 85% THC that is put into brownies and they have 47

Charlene Rittenbach: From what | have read and know, it's not possible to completely
overdose on marijuana, where you lose the breathing capabilities like you would in an opioid,
but you can overdose to the point where you get paranoid and your heart rate and blood
pressure go up. As far as ending life, | have not heard of any, but there is still the possibility
of going to the ER and having certain symptoms.

Chair J. Lee: After hearing from folks in the room and with Wayne Stenehjem, | am a great
deal more comfortable with putting limits on the other forms of the products as well. | am
pretty comfortable with this amendment. | would encourage us to look at this as being a
favorable addition.

Senator Heckaman: I'm fine with the amendment on allowable uses. On her
recommendation, we’'ll have to know where to take the wording our that she is suggesting
we take out.

Tara Brandner: It was on the proposed amendment that you voted on yesterday.
lan: It wasn’t in the amendment.
Tara Brandner: Yesterday you voted on this amendment.

Senator Heckaman: On page 8, line 8, of the original bill, it states the resin extracted, does
that stay?

Charlene Rittenbach: Yes, that definition coincide with Century Code definition of
marijuana.

Senator Heckaman: The amendment yesterday needs to...




Senate Human Services Committee
SB 2344

2/16/17

Page 5

Tara Brandner: Correct, because all you are saying is this is the definition of marijuana and
this is what facilities can have, but the end product that they can give the consumer is the
useable marijuana form. That would be where the resin would need to come out.

Chair J. Lee: Looking page 9, line 12, which is the useable marijuana definition, it doesn’t
have hash oil in there.

lan: We moved that amendment, but | can’t access the documents to change it.
Chair J. Lee: That's right.

Tara Brandner: On page 9, line 12, it would say “useable marijuana means a liquid including
an oil, or a resin, or a pill”. You need to take out a resin.

Senator Heckaman: \We have to reconsider our actions on amendment 2007 then.
Chair J. Lee: Yes.
Senator Heckaman: Moved to reconsider action on amendment 2007.

Senator Kreun: Seconded.

All were in favor.
V-Chair Larsen: | object, she can’t bring it back because she voted against that.

(34:40) Committee discussion: Committee discussed rules and procedures. It was
reminded to the committee that they had a motion to vote for the amended bill that was tabled
previously.

(36:49) Chair J. Lee: Moves to discussion.

Senator Heckaman: Given testimony from AG office, | recommend that we do not pass
amendments 2007. Restated Motion to reconsider amendment 2007 (Do Not Pass
Amendment.)

V-Chair Larsen: Seconded. The weight of the amount of resin has been reduced so we
don’t have 2.5 ounces. My biggest fear is as soon as you put a leaf or flower in someone’s
hand that is unrecognizable as medical, there can be black marketed resins, but it's harder
to get resins than it is to get the flower or the leaf. As soon as we do that, take fingerprint off.
The card means nothing, because somebody will be getting these flower and they will be
growing their own. They will keep container that it came in and they will put their own
homegrown product in there to continue to have that as a counterfeit.

Senator Clemens: Is there someone here from criminal side to help us? What concerns
should we have on the different forms of marijuana?

(39:20) Lonnie Grabowska, Deputy Director, DCI: As far as the criminal nexus goes. If an
individual would be stopped today in a vehicle, there is no way to tell if the marijuana is going
to be medical or recreational because marijuana is just marijuana across the board. The only
way to know if that person can have it if this goes into effect as is written, we would have to
check the system if the person is a card holder and see if they are able to have that product.
With the smokeable, oils, pills, it is the card that tells us what they can have. Is it hard to
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enforce right there on the street? The system will tell us if they can have it but it will be hard
to qualify what they have. It will be hard no matter what we do. There is not a test out there
that we can run.

V-Chair Larsen: In your job, how many times do you run across somebody with resins or a
flower or a leaf?

Mr. Grabowska: We would see more of the leaf and flower then we would with the resin.
With the resin you are talking about hash oils or hash itself. We don’t see as much of that
product on the street because it takes extra work to get that and manufacture it. You have to
have a press to get the hash brick. It takes a lot of marijuana to make the hash oil. You
actually lose a lot of your useable, smokeable product to make hash.

Charlene Rittenbach: Analyzing samples at the crime lab, we have seen a drastic increase
in hash type samples in the last 3-4 years. It is probably due to the whole medical marijuana
movement. There is a new extraction method to make hash that is very easy. It is called the
butane honey oil hash and it makes very potent THC concentrates. There is more plant
material marijuana but it is not uncommon to see hash sample.

V-Chair Larsen: Could you fingerprint that by a color that changes regularly to stay ahead
of that?

Charlene Rittenbach: I'm not aware of a way to fingerprint that. That's not saying there
isn't a way. The manufacture would have to add a discriminate to that product. Right now, no
we can'’t fingerprint.

Chair J. Lee: There are a couple of people in the room that are not comfortable with hash
being included. | would like comments on why that is a bad idea.

Tara Brandner: Shelby created spreadsheet on the differences. Hash is a felony to carry
hash. Marijuana is a misdemeanor.

Chair J. Lee: Tell me again.

Shelby Schields, intern for the Attorney General’s office.: Hash is a Class C Felony, and
marijuana is a Class D misdemeanor.

V-Chair Larsen: Is there an amount that makes it a felony?
Tara Brandner: There is no breakdown that | have.

Charlene Rittenbach: From what | know, there is no gram limit on hash that enhances the
penalty, but | do know that hashish itself is a felony.

Senator Kreun: You said hash or resin is much stronger than the leaf or bud, so can you cut
that down with less strength to make pill form so that it could be monitored?

Charlene Rittenbach: Yes we can. The manufacturers can control the THC.
Senator Kreun: Which product sells the best?

Mr. Grabowska: the value of the item on street, the higher THC concentration on the street
will sell at a higher rate and a faster rate. If we get a hash oil group come into the area, we
will hear about it from our confidential informants and we go out and can get it at a higher
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rate but it goes quickly. Within a couple of days, the hash oil will be gone. It can be put on
tobacco and smoked or put into products and consumed.

Senator Kreun: So you will see more leaf and bud as useable then hash or resin?

Mr. Grabowska: Its easier for us to find leaf and flower than it is to find the hash, because it
is a longer process. The higher THC is in the hash compared to the leaf and flower substance.

Senator Kreun: My concern is how's it going to get on the street.

Mr. Grabowska: No matter what comes out of this bill, there will be diversion of that product.
That is the ugly part of this process. To alleviate some of that, the leafy substance will have
lower THC.

V-Chair Larsen: Would it have a lower THC, or the same, if we have the grow centers that
are growing the marijuana and making the resin and in the lab cutting it and maybe color it.
Would you agree that that could happen?

Mr. Grabowska: | would hope that the care centers would limit the THC on the product. | do
not have the background to say how they would do that. As far as coloring | don’t know.

V-Chair Larsen: This stuff come out like honey, why can’t you add food coloring! The way
you make the resin, it comes out light colored. It doesn’t come out black. | believe it can be
monitored. Those manufactures are going to have their lab to make sure it medical THC
levels.

Mr. Grabowska: | would not know how they do the process.

Chair J. Lee: | see this as a matter for rule. The absolutes for the details on how things are
going to be manufactured, | don't think it's appropriate for us to decide, because we are all
stupid about this. That is something for the Health Department would have expertise on and
could manage. We cannot get bogged down on some of those details. We are in the weeds
way too far.

Arvy Smith, Co-Director, NDDOH: | think we'd be fine with putting something like that in
the rules. I've never heard of anybody foot printing it. We will look at that.

Senator Heckaman: Given the fact that we are being asked by the Attorney General’s office
to remove hash oil | call for my motion.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 1 nay, 1 absent.

Motion Carried.

Senator Heckaman: Moved to Amend with the 2008 version with the addition of the
change in the allowable use.

Senator Clemens: Seconded.
Chair J. Lee: Discussion?

V-Chair Larsen: When we let leaves and buds be allowed to be smoked, people are going
to go to the bar and they are going to get $65 worth of weed to last them a week and they
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will get their $200 card saying that they can hold for that year and they are going to be self-
medicating because we just priced it out of the whole deal and that is going to be everywhere.

Tara Brandner: In order for the dried leaves and buds to be available to an individual, their
physician is going to have to attest to the fact that they won't receive a benefit from any other
form. That is a high standard that physicians are going to take seriously. There is potential
for a medical malpractice claim. You have to receive a certification from physician.

Chair J. Lee: We're never going to stop the street traffic.

V-Chair Larsen: | agree. | will also say that | know in doctors in CA were handing in out for
sprained ankles. | guarantee that if this keeps going we are going to add to list and have
people abusing.

Tara Brandner: Since you have removed the authority for the Department of Health to add
to the list, the only way in next 7 years a condition could be added to the list is if it is approved
by the legislature with a 2/3 vote.

Chair J. Lee: | didn't’ know we couldn’t change it for 7 years. We need to know that for
sure.

Tara Brandner: That's a great question. | have to look in to that. (Reads from page 73, line
17, and page 74, line 4) Those in the original language.

Chair J. Lee: Page 54, lines 28-30, we were going to clarify that language.

Tara Brandner: You are going to over strike “dispensary or a”, and at page 54, lines 30, you
are going to overstrike “or a manufacturing facility” and instead of both of those terms you
are going to insert “compassion center”.

Chair J. Lee: We can add that in the amendment.
Senator Heckaman: I'd like that included in amendment.

Tara Brandner: On page 77, line 27, this was the one that we discussed about facility
restrictions, we need to add “or combustibles”.

Chair J. Lee: So, the amendment includes amendment 2008, the plus AG amendment, plus
language pg 54 lines 29-10, plus pg 77 line 27. Got that?

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 1 nay, 1 absent.
Motion carried.

Chair J. Lee: The vote that we tabled was on an amendment. Could you all withdraw you
motions?
Senator Kreun: | withdraw motion on passing the bill.

V-Chair Larsen: | will not withdraw.
Voice vote was taken and it passed.

Senator Kruen: Moved a do Pass As Amended and Re-refer to Appropriations.
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Senator Heckaman: Seconded.

Senator Piepkorn: | will vote against this. | am standing for over the 200,000 people that
voted the initiated measure in. It is the states responsibility to enact what they voted.

Chair J. Lee: Do you think they read the initiated measure?
Senator Piepkorn: | think many of them did.
Chair J. Lee: | don’t think so.

Senator Piepkorn: | believe that the state should work for the people and most of the people
that want this or who could use it, can’t afford the fees that it is going to take for them to get
the medication. It is too cumbersome. | will vote no.

Senator Clemens: ['ve listened to comments from colleagues, and the way it stands right
now, if we don’'t pass this, it will revert back to the initiated measure that has not
decriminalized marijuana. They won't be able to take part in it. | agree with some things
Senator Piepkorn is saying but we are doing a service to the people, unknown to them, and
it may not be appreciated, but this is the only way they are going to be able to use medical
marijuana.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 2 nays, 1 absent.
Motion Carried.

Chair J. Lee will carry the bill.

On 2/17/17 Senator Anderson recorded his votes for SB 2344. Job Number 28488.
Final vote on motion to reconsider: 6-1-0

Motion to adopt amendment: 6-1-0

Motion to do pass as amended and re-refer: 5-2-0



17.0630.02006 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senate Human Services Committee
February 14, 2017

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2344

Page 6, line 25, after the second underscored comma insert "member, manager, governor,"

Page 7, line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "and"

Page 7, line 21, remove ", and"

Page 7, remove line 22

Page 7, line 23, remove "the department"

Page 8, line 17, replace "twenty-one" with "nineteen"

Page 8, line 29, remove "pediatric neurologist, pediatric gastroenterologist, pediatric"

Page 8, line 30, replace "oncologist, or pediatric palliative care specialist" with "pediatrician

Page 10, line 29, after "nonrefundable" insert "annual”

Page 10, line 29, after "fee" insert "of two hundred dollars"

Page 11, remove lines 1 and 2
Page 12, after line 10, insert:

"4, If the applicant is a minor, the department may waive the application or
renewal fee if:

a. The parent or legal guardian of the applicant is the applicant's
registered designated caregiver; and

b. The applicant resides with the applicant's registered designated
caregiver."

Page 13, line 22, after "nonrefundable" insert "annual"

Page 13, line 22, after "fee" insert "of two hundred dollars"

Page 13, line 24, remove "The department shall establish an application fee in an amount not
t_O_"

Page 13, remove line 25
Page 15, line 1, replace "caretaker" with "caregiver"

Page 50, line 23, replace the first "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 23, replace the second "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 24, replace "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 26, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver" with
"cardholder"

Page 50, line 29, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver" with
"cardholder"
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Page 50, line 31, replace "section" with "chapter"

Page 51, line 1, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver" with

"cardholder" ‘

Page 53, line 15, remove "Debilitating"

Page 53, line 16, replace "medical condition - Petition" with "Registry identification cards"

Page 54, replace lines 1 through 7 with:

"1. Reqistry identification cards must contain:

a. The name of the cardholder;

b. Adesignation as to whether the cardholder is a qualifying patient,
designated caregiver, or compassion center agent;

c. Adesignation as to whether a qualifying patient is a minor:;

d. The date of issuance and expiration date;

e. Arandom ten-digit alphanumeric identification number containing at
least four numbers and at least four letters which is unique to the
cardholder:;

f. Ifthe cardholder is a designated caregiver, the random identification

number of the qualifying patient the designated caregiver is authorized
to assist;

g. A photograph of the cardholder; and

h. The phone number or website address at which the card can be

verified.
2. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a registry identification card
expiration date must be one year after the date of issuance.
3. If a physician states in the written certification that the qualifying patient

would benefit from the medical use of marijuana until a specified date, less
than one vyear, the reqistry identification card expires on that date."

Page 56, line 14, after "fee" insert "of five thousand dollars"

Page 56, line 15, remove ", in the amount set by the"

Page 56, line 16, remove "department, not to exceed five thousand dollars"

Page 56, line 17, after "incorporation” insert "or articles of organization"

Page 56, line 17, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 57, line 3, after "member" insert ", or of each member-manager, manager. or governor."

Page 57, line 5, after "member" insert ", or each member-manager. manager, or governor."

Page 57, line 8, after the first underscored comma insert "or for each of the proposed
compassion center applicant's member-managers, managers, or governors."

Page 58, line 6, after the underscored comma insert "or of the member-managers, managers,
or governors,"
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Page 58, line 28, remove "established by the"

Page 58, line 29, replace "department, not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars" with "of
sixty thousand dollars for a dispensary and eighty thousand dollars for a manufacturing

facility"
Page 59, line 4, after "incorporation" insert "or articles of organization"

Page 59, line 4, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement,"

Page 59, line 29, remove "in an amount established by the"

Page 59, line 30, replace "department, not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars" with "of
sixty thousand dollars for a dispensary and eighty thousand dollars for a manufacturing

facility"
Page 60, line 28, after "Bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 60, line 30, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 60, line 31, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 61, line 1, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 61, line 1, after "ownership" insert "or management"

Page 61, line 2, after the second underscored comma insert "board of governors,
member-managers, or managers,"

Page 63, line 20, after the second "be" insert "well"

Page 63, line 20, remove "as provided by"

Page 63, line 21, remove "rules adopted under this chapter and"

Page 69, line 11, after "member" insert ", member-manager, manager, or governor."

Page 70, line 4, remove "established by the department in an"

Page 70, line 5, replace "amount not to exceed three" with "of two"

Page 71, line 16, replace "registration" with "registry identification"

Page 71, after line 25, insert:

"12. Notwithstanding subsection 2, the department may issue a reqgistry
identification card to an otherwise qualified compassion center agent who
is a compassion center employee or volunteer and who is not a North
Dakota resident."

Page 72, line 25, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 2, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 9, replace "C" with "B"

Page 73, line 20, remove "A compassion center must be fined up to one thousand dollars for a
violation of this"
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Page 73, replace lines 21 and 22 with "In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, if a
compassion center violates this chapter the department may fine the compassion
center up to one thousand dollars for each violation."

Page 73, line 25, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 30, replace "C" with "B"
Page 74, line 4, replace "registration" with "registry identification"

Page 74, line 9, replace "B" with "A"

Page 76, line 27, remove "child"

Page 78, replace lines 5 through 22 with:
"19-24-35. Rules.

1. The health council shall adopt rules as necessary for the implementation
and administration of this chapter.

2. The health council may adopt rules regarding the operation and
governance of additional categories of reqistered medical marijuana
establishments.

|0

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for reporting
incidents of individuals not authorized to possess marijuana or usable
marijuana under this chapter and who are found in possession of
marijuana or usable marijuana. The rules must identify professionals
required to report, the information the reporter is required to report, and
actions the reporter shall take to secure the marijuana or usable marijuana.

e

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for law
enforcement officials and health care professionals to report to the
department incidents involving overdose or adverse reaction related to the
use of usable marijuana."

Page 81, remove lines 1 through 16

Page 81, line 17, replace "19-24-41" with "19-24-40"

Page 81, replace lines 26 through 30 with:

"SECTION 41. Section 19-24-41 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

19-24-41. Funding.

Beginning in the 2019-21 biennium, revenue generated by the department
under this chapter must be sufficient to cover all costs of the department."

Renumber accordingly
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17.0630.02007
Title.

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Senator O. Larsen
February 14, 2017

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2344

Page 9, line 12, after "oil" insert ", a hash oil"

Renumber accordingly
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17.0630.02009 Adopted by the Human Services Committee
Title.03000
February 17, 2017

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2344
Page 1, line 4, after the fifth comma insert "and"
Page 1, line 4, remove ", and 19-24-42"

Page 6, line 3, replace "usable marijuana" with "dried leaves or flowers of the plant of genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form"

Page 6, line 4, replace "usable marijuana" with "dried leaves or flowers of the plant of genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form"

Page 6, line 4, remove "The allowable"
Page 6, remove line 5

Page 6, line 6 replace "marijuana, such as ingredients added to prepare a liquid delivery form"
with "A registered qualifying patient may not purchase or have purchased by a
registered caregiver more than ten grams of liquid. including oil, or pill delivery form of
marijuana with a maximum delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of thirty percent
in a thirty-day period and may not possess more than fifteen grams of liquid. including
oil, or pill delivery form of marijuana with a maximum delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol
concentration of thirty percent at any time"

Page 6, line 25, after the second underscored comma insert "member, manager, governor,"

Page 7, line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "and"
Page 7, line 21, remove "; and"
Page 7, remove line 22

Page 7, line 23, remove "the department"

Page 8, line 17, replace "twenty-one" with "nineteen"

Page 8, line 30, after "specialist" insert "or must be a pediatrician working in consultation with
one of these pediatric specialists"

Page 9, line 12, after the second "marijuana" insert "or the dried leaves or flowers of the plant
of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form"

Page 9, line 13, replace "the dried leaves or flowers of the plant" with "marijuana infused food"

Page 9, line 21, after "of" insert "useable"

Page 9, line 22, after the underscored period insert "If the physician authorizes the use of dried
leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form, the
written certification must include an attestation in the physician's professional opinion
no other form of usable marijuana would be effective in providing the patient
therapeutic or palliative benefits."

Page 10, line 29, after "nonrefundable" insert "annual"

Page 10, line 29, after "fee" insert "of two hundred dollars"
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Page 11, remove lines 1 and 2 p 4G
Page 11, line 15, remove "and"

Page 11, line 16, after "(7)" insert "If the physician authorizes the patient to use the dried leaves
or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form, attestation
in the physician's professional opinion no other form of usable marijuana will be
effective in providing the patient therapeutic or palliative benefits: and

(—8—)"

Page 12, after line 10, insert:

"4. If the applicant is a minor, the department may waive the application or
renewal fee if:

a. The parent or legal guardian of the applicant is the applicant's
registered designated caregiver; and

b. The applicant resides with the applicant's registered designated
caregiver.”

Page 13, line 22, after "nonrefundable" insert "annual”

Page 13, line 22, after "fee" insert "of two hundred dollars"

Page 13, line 24, remove "The department shall establish an application fee in an amount not
I.Q"

Page 13, remove line 25
Page 15, line 1, replace "caretaker" with "caregiver"

Page 50, line 23, replace the first "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 23, replace the second "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 24, replace "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 26, replace "registered gualifying patient or registered designated caregiver" with
"cardholder"

Page 50, line 29, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver" with
"cardholder"

Page 50, line 31, replace "section" with "chapter"

Page 51, line 1, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver" with
"cardholder”

Page 53, line 15, remove "Debilitating"

Page 53, line 16, replace "medical condition - Petition" with "Registry identification cards"

Page 54, replace lines 1 through 7 with:

"1. Registry identification cards must contain:

a. The name of the cardholder:
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b. Adesignation as to whether the cardholder is a qualifying patient. p. TG
designated caregiver, or compassion center agent:
c. Adesignation as to whether a qualifying patient is a minor:
d. A designation as to whether a qualifying patient or a designated
caregiver's qualifying patient is authorized to use the dried leaves or
flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis:
e. The date of issuance and expiration date;

f. Arandom ten-digit alphanumeric identification number containing at
least four numbers and at least four letters which is unique to the
cardholder;

g. If the cardholder is a designated caregiver, the random identification
number of the qualifying patient the designated caregiver is authorized

to assist:
h. A photograph of the cardholder; and
i. The phone number or website address at which the card can be
verified.
2. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a registry identification card
expiration date must be one year after the date of issuance.
3. If a physician states in the written certification that the qualifying patient

would benefit from the medical use of marijuana until a specified date, less
than one vyear, the reqistry identification card expires on that date."

Page 54, line 29, remove "dispensary or a"

Page 54, line 30, replace "manufacturing facility" with "compassion center"

Page 56, line 14, after "fee" insert "of five thousand dollars"

Page 56, line 15, remove ",_in the amount set by the"

Page 56, line 16, remove "department, not to exceed five thousand dollars"

Page 56, line 17, after "incorporation" insert "or articles of organization"

Page 56, line 17, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 57, line 3, after "member" insert ", or of each member-manager, manager, or governor."

Page 57, line 5, after "member" insert ", or each member-manager, manager, or governor,"

Page 57, line 8, after the first underscored comma insert "or for each of the proposed
compassion center applicant's member-managers, managers, or governors,"

Page 58, line 6, after the underscored comma insert "or of the member-managers, managers,
or governors."

Page 58, line 28, remove "established by the"

Page 58, line 29, replace "department, not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars" with "of
sixty thousand dollars for a dispensary and eighty thousand dollars for a manufacturing

facility"
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Page 59, line 4, after "incorporation” insert "or articles of organization" p-4 ot b

Page 59, line 4, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement."

Page 59, line 29, remove "in an amount established by the"

Page 59, line 30, replace "department, not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars" with "of
sixty thousand dollars for a dispensary and eighty thousand dollars for a manufacturing

facility"
Page 60, line 28, after "Bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 60, line 30, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 60, line 31, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 61, line 1, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 61, line 1, after "ownership" insert "or management"

Page 61, line 2, after the second underscored comma insert "board of governors,
member-managers, or managers,"

Page 62, after line 6, insert:

"c. May not dispense to a registered qualifying patient or registered
careqiver the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form unless the registry
identification card and verification system authorize this form of
useable marijuana."

Page 63, line 20, after the second "be" insert "well"
Page 63, line 20, remove "as provided by"

Page 63, line 21, remove "rules adopted under this chapter and"

Page 69, line 11, after "member" insert ", member-manager, manager, or governor,"

Page 70, line 4, remove "established by the department in an"

Page 70, line 5, replace "amount not to exceed three" with "of two"

Page 71, line 16, replace "registration" with "registry identification"
Page 71, after line 25, insert:

"12. Notwithstanding subsection 2, the department may issue a registry
identification card to an otherwise qualified compassion center agent who
is a compassion center employee or volunteer and who is not a North
Dakota resident."

Page 72, line 25, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 2, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 9, replace "C" with "B"

Page 73, line 20, remove "A compassion center must be fined up to one thousand dollars for a
violation of this"
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Page 73, replace lines 21 and 22 with "In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, if a
compassion center violates this chapter the department may fine the compassion
center up to one thousand dollars for each violation."

Page 73, line 25, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 30, replace "C" with "B"

Page 74, line 4, replace "registration" with "registry identification"

Page 74, line 9, replace "B" with "A"

Page 76, line 26, replace "Vaporizing" with "Using a combustible delivery form of usable
marijuana or vaporizing"

Page 76, line 26, after "the" insert "smoke or"
Page 76, line 27, remove "nonpatient"
Page 76, line 27, remove "child"
Page 77, line 27, after "vaporizing" insert "or combustion"
Page 78, replace lines 5 through 22 with:
"19-24-35. Rules.

1. The health council shall adopt rules as necessary for the implementation
and administration of this chapter.

2. The health council may adopt rules regarding the operation and
governance of additional categories of registered medical marijuana
establishments.

oo

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for reporting
incidents of individuals not authorized to possess marijuana or usable
marijuana under this chapter and who are found in possession of
marijuana or usable marijuana. The rules must identify professionals
required to report, the information the reporter is required to report. and

actions the reporter shall take to secure the marijuana or usable marijuana.

>

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for law
enforcement officials and health care professionals to report to the
department incidents involving overdose or adverse reaction related to the
use of usable marijuana.”

Page 81, remove lines 1 through 16
Page 81, line 17, replace "19-24-41" with "19-24-40"
Page 81, replace lines 26 through 30 with:

"SECTION 41. Section 19-24-41 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

19-24-41. Funding.

Beginning in the 2019-21 biennium, revenue generated by the department
under this chapter must be sufficient to cover all costs of the department."
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Renumber accordingly

Page No. 6 17.0630.02009



Date: (S~ 2017

Roll Call Vote #: [

2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 23499

Senate Human Services Committee

0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description: 17.0630 .02.006

Recommendation: ¥ Adopt Amendment
O Do Pass [J Do Not Pass [J Without Committee Recommendation

] As Amended 1 Rerefer to Appropriations
] Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: [J Reconsider O

Motion Made By S, LMSM_ Seconded By Z}{ g [ en
‘ Senators

Yes | No Senators Yes | No

Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) X Senator Joan Heckaman i
Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) X Senator Merrill Piepkorn X
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. £
Senator David A. Clemens ) d
Senator Curt Kreun | 4

Total  (Yes) / No O

Absent ()

Floor Assignment

‘ If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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Roll Call Vote #: [/
2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1244
Senate Human Services Committee

0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description: [1.0630 .0 Z 007

Recommendation: m Adopt Amendment

[ Do Pass [0 Do Not Pass ] Without Committee Recommendation

[J As Amended L1 Rerefer to Appropriations
(] Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: [ Reconsider O
Motion Made By S, L&(f St Seconded By JAN. k lewn
Senators Yes No Senators Yes | No
Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) X Senator Joan Heckaman X
Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) X‘ Senator Merrill Piepkorn ,{/
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. X
Senator David A. Clemens )(
Senator Curt Kreun X
Total (Yes) T No Z

Absent 0

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. Z %14

Senate Human Services Committee

0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description:

Recommendation: [ Adopt Amendment
8 Do Pass [ Do NotPass [ Without Committee Recommendation

&As Amended LX’ Rerefer to Appropriations
[ Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: [J Reconsider O
Motion Made By ;M/l é.af,SW Seconded By ,S&(,{ k/‘LUVL
Senators Yes | No Senators Yes | No
Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) Senator Joan Heckaman
Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) Senator Merrill Piepkorn

Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr.

Senator David A. Clemens

Senator Curt Kreun

Total (Yes) No

Absent

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

motin tabled | Plase See Vot Sheet # 4
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2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. Z}L{L[

Senate Human Services Committee

O Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description:

Recommendation: [ Adopt Amendment
[0 Do Pass [J Do Not Pass O Without Committee Recommendation

] As Amended [J Rerefer to Appropriations
] Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: [0 Reconsider X m[@

Motion Made By 4. C{WMS Seconded By . AM@A

Senators Yes | No Senators Yes | No
Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) X Senator Joan Heckaman A
Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) /( Senator Merrill Piepkorn X
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. X
Senator David A. Clemens X
Senator Curt Kreun )(
Total (Yes) g No G

Absent O

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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‘ 2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
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BILLIRESOLUTIONNO. ___ 7.59¢
Senate Human Services Committee

(0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description:

Recommendation: [ Adopt Amendment
O DoPass [JDoNotPass [ Without Committee Recommendation

(J As Amended [J Rerefer to Appropriations
[ Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: N Reconsider O
Motion Made By S@"l . #eck 4Man Seconded By &//1 ) K/'&(M,
‘ Senators Yes | No Senators Yes | No
Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) A Senator Joan Heckaman A
Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) )(‘ Senator Merrill Piepkorn )(’
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. X
Senator David A. Clemens X
Senator Curt Kreun X
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Date:  2/16 2017
Roll Call Vote #: Z

‘ 2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1344

Senate Human Services Committee

(0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description: ,7,, 06 30,02 (’)OC/

Recommendation: (X Adopt Amendment
[0 Do Pass (0 Do Not Pass O Without Committee Recommendation

[J As Amended [J Rerefer to Appropriations
[ Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: [J Reconsider O

Motion Made By ..SM " M( A Seconded By S{,M : 6@40{ K

. Senators Yes | No Senators Yes | No
Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) X Senator Joan Heckaman X

Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) X | Senator Merrill Piepkorn A
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. X

Senator David A. Clemens X

Senator Curt Kreun )(

Total (Yes) é No (

Absent (%

Floor Assignment

l If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Date: ?ZZQ 2017

Roll Call Vote #: o,
. 2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2 34¢/
Senate Human Services Committee

(0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description:

Recommendation: O Adopt Amendment
O Do Pass (0 Do Not Pass 0 Without Committee Recommendation

] As Amended [J Rerefer to Appropriations
U] Place on Consent Calendar .
Other Actions: O Reconsider 8 wdh N mptim
Motion Made By Seconded By
. Senators Yes | No Senators Yes | No
Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) Senator Joan Heckaman
Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) Senator Merrill Piepkorn

Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr.

Senator David A. Clemens

Senator Curt Kreun

Total (Yes) pﬂ§§@$ No

Absent

Floor Assignment

‘ If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

Voice Vote



Date: 2125 2017

Roll Call Vote #: Y

‘ 2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.  2%4Y

Senate Human Services Committee

(0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description:

Recommendation: [ Adopt Amendment
[X Do Pass O Do Not Pass [0 Without Committee Recommendation

l)a’As Amended Q’Rerefer to Appropriations
[ Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: O Reconsider O

Motion Made By 901/( K/ YV SecondedBy _ Spu. MMKC(M{A

. Senators Yes | No Senators Yes | No
Senator Judy Lee (Chairman) X Senator Joan Heckaman X

Senator Oley Larsen (Vice-Chair) X | Senator Merril Piepkorn X
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. X
Senator David A. Clemens
Senator Curt Kreun Y

Total (Yes) 9’ No <

Absent O

Floor Assignment 5&1/1 Lee

. If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: s_stcomrep_33_001

February 19, 2017 5:13PM Carrier: J. Lee
Insert LC: 17.0630.02009 Title: 03000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2344: Human Services Committee (Sen.J.Lee, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (5 YEAS, 2 NAYS,
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2344 was placed on the Sixth order on the
calendar.

Page 6, line 3, replace "usable marijuana” with "dried leaves or flowers of the plant of genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form"

Page 6, line 4, replace "usable marijuana" with "dried leaves or flowers of the plant of genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form"

Page 6, line 4, remove "The allowable"
Page 6, remove line 5

Page 6, line 6 replace "marijuana, such as ingredients added to prepare a liquid delivery
form" with "A registered qualifying patient may not purchase or have purchased by a
registered caregiver more than ten grams of liquid, including oil, or pill delivery form
of marijuana with a maximum delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of thirty
percent in a thirty-day period and may not possess more than fifteen grams of liquid,
including oil, or pill delivery form of marijuana with a maximum
delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of thirty percent at any time"

Page 6, line 25, after the second underscored comma insert "member, manager, governor."

Page 7, line 11, after the underscored semicolon insert "and"
Page 7, line 21, remove ", and"

Page 7, remove line 22

Page 7, line 23, remove "the department"

Page 8, line 17, replace "twenty-one" with "nineteen"

Page 8, line 30, after "specialist" insert "or must be a pediatrician working in consultation
with one of these pediatric specialists"

Page 9, line 12, after the second "marijuana"” insert "or the dried leaves or flowers of the
plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form"

Page 9, line 13, replace "the dried leaves or flowers of the plant" with "marijuana infused
food"

Page 9, line 21, after "of" insert "useable"

Page 9, line 22, after the underscored period insert "If the physician authorizes the use of
dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery
form, the written certification must include an attestation in the physician's
professional opinion no other form of usable marijuana would be effective in
providing the patient therapeutic or palliative benefits."

Page 10, line 29, after "nonrefundable" insert "annual"

Page 10, line 29, after "fee" insert "of two hundred dollars"

Page 11, remove lines 1 and 2

Page 11, line 15, remove "and"

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_33_001
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Page 11, line 16, after "(7)" insert "If the physician authorizes the patient to use the dried
leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form,
attestation in the physician's professional opinion no other form of usable marijuana
will be effective in providing the patient therapeutic or palliative benefits; and

‘(g)‘ll
Page 12, after line 10, insert:

"4. If the applicant is a minor, the department may waive the application or

a. The parent or legal guardian of the applicant is the applicant's
registered designated caregiver; and

b. The applicant resides with the applicant's registered designated
caregiver."

Page 13, line 22, after "nonrefundable” insert "annual”

Page 13, line 22, after "fee" insert "of two hundred dollars"

Page 13, line 24, remove "The department shall establish an application fee in an amount
not to"

Page 13, remove line 25

Page 15, line 1, replace "caretaker" with "caregiver"

Page 50, line 23, replace the first "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 23, replace the second "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 24, replace "cardholder" with "compassion center"

Page 50, line 26, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver"
with "cardholder"

Page 50, line 29, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver”
with "cardholder"

Page 50, line 31, replace "section" with "chapter”

Page 51, line 1, replace "registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver"
with "cardholder"

Page 53, line 15, remove "Debilitating"

Page 53, line 16, replace "medical condition - Petition" with "Registry identification
cards"

Page 54, replace lines 1 through 7 with:

"1. Registry identification cards must contain:

The name of the cardholder;

[

b. Adesignation as to whether the cardholder is a qualifying patient,
designated caregiver, or compassion center agent;

A desianation as to whether a qualifying patient is a minor;

34
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d. A designation as to whether a qualifying patient or a designated
caregiver's qualifying patient is authorized to use the dried leaves or
flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis;

e. The date of issuance and expiration date;

f. Arandom ten-digit alphanumeric identification number containing at

least four numbers and at least four letters which is unique to the
cardholder;

g. Ifthe cardholder is a designated caregiver, the random identification

number of the qualifying patient the designated caregiver is
authorized to assist;

=

A photograph of the cardholder; and

i. The phone number or website address at which the card can be
verified.

Except as otherwise provided in this section, a reqistry identification card
expiration date must be one year after the date of issuance.

[N

If a physician states in the written certification that the qualifying patient
would benefit from the medical use of marijuana until a specified date,
less than one year, the registry identification card expires on that date."

54

Page 54, line 29, remove "dispensary or a"

Page 54, line 30, replace "manufacturing facility" with "compassion center"

Page 56, line 14, after "fee" insert "of five thousand dollars"

Page 56, line 15, remove ", in the amount set by the"

Page 56, line 16, remove "department, not to exceed five thousand dollars"

Page 56, line 17, after "incorporation" insert "or articles of organization"

Page 56, line 17, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 57, line 3, after "member" insert ", or of each member-manager, manager, or
governor.,"

Page 57, line 5, after "member" insert ", or each member-manager, manager, or governor,"

Page 57, line 8, after the first underscored comma insert "or for each of the proposed
compassion center applicant's member-managers, managers, or governors."

Page 58, line 6, after the underscored comma insert "or of the member-managers,
managers, or governors,"

Page 58, line 28, remove "established by the"

Page 58, line 29, replace "department, not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars" with "of
sixty thousand dollars for a dispensary and eighty thousand dollars for a
manufacturing facility"

Page 59, line 4, after "incorporation” insert "or articles of organization"

Page 59, line 4, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement,"
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Page 59, line 29, remove "in an amount established by the"

Page 59, line 30, replace "department, not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars" with "of
sixty thousand dollars for a dispensary and eighty thousand dollars for a
manufacturing facility"

Page 60, line 28, after "Bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 60, line 30, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 60, line 31, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 61, line 1, after "bylaws" insert "or operating agreement"

Page 61, line 1, after "ownership" insert "or management"

Page 61, line 2, after the second underscored comma insert "board of governors,
member-managers, or managers."

Page 62, after line 6, insert:
"c. May not dispense to a registered qualifying patient or registered
caregiver the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form unless the registry
identification card and verification system authorize this form of
useable marijuana."

Page 63, line 20, after the second "be" insert "well"
Page 63, line 20, remove "as provided by"

Page 63, line 21, remove "rules adopted under this chapter and"

Page 69, line 11, after "member" insert ", member-manager, manager, or governor,"

Page 70, line 4, remove "established by the department in an"

Page 70, line 5, replace "amount not to exceed three" with "of two"

Page 71, line 16, replace "registration" with "registry identification"
Page 71, after line 25, insert:

"12. Notwithstanding subsection 2, the department may issue a registry
identification card to an otherwise qualified compassion center agent who
is a compassion center employee or volunteer and who is not a North
Dakota resident."

Page 72, line 25, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 2, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 9, replace "C" with "B"

Page 73, line 20, remove "A compassion center must be fined up to one thousand dollars for
a violation of this"

Page 73, replace lines 21 and 22 with "In addition to any other penalty applicable in law. ifa
compassion center violates this chapter the department may fine the compassion

center up to one thousand dollars for each violation."
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Page 73, line 25, replace "C" with "B"
Page 73, line 30, replace "C" with "B"

Page 74, line 4, replace "registration" with "registry identification"

Page 74, line 9, replace "B" with "A"

Page 76, line 26, replace "Vaporizing" with "Using a combustible delivery form of usable
marijuana or vaporizing"

Page 76, line 26, after "the" insert "smoke or"
Page 76, line 27, remove "nonpatient"
Page 76, line 27, remove "child"

Page 77, line 27, after "vaporizing" insert "or combustion"

Page 78, replace lines 5 through 22 with:
"19-24-35. Rules.

1. The health council shall adopt rules as necessary for the implementation
and administration of this chapter.

2. The health council may adopt rules regarding the operation and
governance of additional categories of registered medical marijuana
establishments.

54

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for
reporting incidents of individuals not authorized to possess marijuana or
usable marijuana under this chapter and who are found in possession of
marijuana or usable marijuana. The rules must identify professionals
required to report, the information the reporter is required to report, and
actions the reporter shall take to secure the marijuana or usable

marijuana.

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for law
enforcement officials and health care professionals to report to the
department incidents involving overdose or adverse reaction related to
the use of usable marijuana."

|~

Page 81, remove lines 1 through 16

Page 81, line 17, replace "19-24-41" with "19-24-40"
Page 81, replace lines 26 through 30 with:

"SECTION 41. Section 19-24-41 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

19-24-41. Funding.

Beginning in the 2019-21 biennium, revenue generated by the department
under this chapter must be sufficient to cover all costs of the department."

Renumber accordingly
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Relating to implementation of the North Dakota Compassionate Care Act to authorize
medical marijuana

Minutes: Testimony Attached # 1.

Legislative Council: Sheila Sandness
OMB: Lori Laschkewitsch

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB 2344. Roll call was taken. He
reminded the committee that we are focusing on the fiscal note and will be passing the
committee recommendation to the floor.

Senator Rich Wardner, State Senator, District 37, Dickinson, ND

Introduced SB 2344.

This bill was discussed thoroughly on the floor yesterday and this hearing is to discuss the
money. We need to do some funding as it's rolled into the health department, but the
Attorney General's office will need funding. You need to know what is being dedicated to
this medical marijuana program. The person that can answer your questions is Arvy Smith
from the Health Dept.

Arvy Smith, Deputy State Health Officer, North Dakota Department of Health
Testimony on the fiscal note — Testimony Attached # 1.

Senator Mathern: | imagine its quite difficult to ascertain the exact number of persons to get
to this fiscal note, but in light of the information about the actual medicine being available
through prescription through pharmacists in the coming year. This ingredient that’s in
marijuana will be available in pill form to dispense through pharmacies. Is that figured in here
as in the numbers of growers, users and dispensaries?

Arvy Smith: There are currently two prescriptions available through pharmacists. There is
an additional one that is supposed to be coming available anytime now, but I've been hearing
that for about a year. That would be hard to factor how much use that would have. Where
did we come up with 5?7 The State of Delaware has similar conditions covered and similar
forms of use covered. They are experiencing 4.7 patients per 1000 population, so that’'s how
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we landed at five. We thought we were most comparable to that situation. It's a difficult
estimate. If those numbers go way down, our revenue goes down and we could experience
some financial difficulty, but that is the best estimate we have at this time. If the activity is
much higher than that and we have additional revenue and will be in a much better fiscal
position.

Senator Hogue: In the measure itself, it made clear that all fees were to go into a
compassionate care fund and never touch the general fund. We want this to be a self-
sustaining proposition. The measure said we wanted this to be funded by the state. Any fees
that are collected go into this fund. Are we changing the intent of the proponents of this by
telling them that they have to pay for it when they said we all have to pay for it — not just the
participants?

Arvy Smith: The original measure had the fees being deposited into this operating fund so
we did not change that. The original measure also had a continuing appropriation out of that
fund and we did not change that as well. We are having all of the fees going into the operating
fund. We noted in model law, language developed by MCSL, and that was something that
was done — that the fees must cover the costs of the program. That was where we went with
SB 2344.

Senator Hogue: The proponents of this measure did not specify in there that it was to be
self-funding so in your judgement, are we changing the dynamic because as | read through
it, they expected us to provide the full-time folks from DoH that were necessary and the fees
that were generated by the measure would go into the fund to help support it, but there is no
indication in the measure itself that its going to be self-sustaining. | think they're expecting
an implicit subsidy from the state, from our general fund to make this program work. We're
turning around and saying no, it's going to be self-funding. Am | wrong?

Arvy Smith: That is correct. It is a change from the original measure.

In 2019-21, we expect, even at the $200 level, to cover all costs. If it was the expectation
for the state to subsidize this, those fees could go down. That would be the result. But we
went with the model law on that issue.

Senator G. Lee: I'm trying to understand the cash flow. If it's going to be a cash basis
essentially because the banks don’t seem to want anything to do with it, how is it going to be
monitored in terms of the revenue that they take in, in terms of paying the tax? Is there going
to be audits routinely on their sales so you know they have a good number, in terms of what
you're saying here is going to be actual revenue?

Arvy Smith: There is available in states, some great management information systems that
will track all of the product. We are concerned about these needing to be cash transactions.
As far as them paying the fees to the state, those will be by check. That is allowable to pay
for the registration fee but the actual transactions of sales of medical marijuana to individuals
will be cash transactions. The systems out there track all of the revenue and all of the
inventory. We've got the growers separated — there will only be 4 growers and then there
will be eight dispensaries. We’ll add more if access isn’'t good enough across the state. We
have the authority to add additional dispensaries if necessary. The growers have to track it
seed to sale — the plant and so once they sell it to the dispensaries, we will have an inventory.
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By that inventory coming and going and the prices, we should be able to know how much
cash they should have and how much inventory they should have based on sales receipts.
We have built in one half of an auditor into this scenario to help us do that using the electronic
management information system.

Senator G. Lee: How do you know how much they’re going to have on hand and how much
they sell. What's the yield? Senator Wanzek's combine tells him what the yield is. How do
you know what the yield is on 8 plants?

Arvy Smith: In the growers, that’s going to be a little more difficult. From what | understand,
they bar-code every plant. There is seed to sale tracking and they’ll have to tell us the plant
numbers. They’ll have to track their plants that did or did not produce. That will be difficult in
the growers and that’s why it's good we’re limiting that to only 4 growers. Once we know that
produce, they can only sell to dispensaries. They cannot direct sell to patients.

Senator G. Lee: The growers and the dispensaries can have an unlimited amount on hand.
If they have a good crop, whatever they have in terms of yield, that's what they can have on
hand? They're not limited to a certain amount? The same with the dispensaries — are they
limited to a certain amount they can have on hand?

Arvy Smith: | believe we landed at 1000 plants and 3500 ounces. The growers are limited
to a thousand plants and that is in any stage of maturity. And 3500 ounces of marijuana.
The dispensaries is limited to 3500 ounces of product in their dispensary at any given time.

Senator Dever: If SB 2344 failed to get 2/3 vote, that the default would be the measure.
What would the fiscal note look like then?

Arvy Smith: | believe it would go back to the original Gov. Dalrymple level of $7M. $2M
from the general fund. Many aspects of this fiscal note would change, expenses all the way
around, revenue would change drastically. Revenue to the general fund would change
drastically as well, however, going back to original measure, it does not provide the de-
criminalization and so it would be very difficult to move forward with implementation knowing
that anybody doing anything allowed in the measure is subject to getting prosecuted and
arrested. | don’'t know how we would implement if the bill fails.

Senator Robinson: You referenced the State of Delaware as a model you've looked at in
putting this package together. How many states currently have in place medical marijuana?

Arvy Smith: | think it's 28 now, however just note that one medical marijuana program does
not at all resemble the next. Some of them are so limited that they offer only one condition
and one form of use. Others are very broad. | would see ND on the broader edge of the
spectrum. The ones that are having .6 patients per 1000 population are more like MN and a
couple other states that are only covering one condition.

Senator Wanzek: The $80,000 is a registration fee that is paid every 2 years? (answer -
yes.) | talked to the Bank of ND this morning and they've already had calls from farmers
wondering about a loan to become a manufacturer or a grower. Because of the
criminalization, they can’t loan any money out to any producers so this is going to take
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somebody with means. | have one constituent about being a grower, but it's going to be in
a controlled environment — like a greenhouse type environment?

Arvy Smith: The places that grow will need a local permit to do so. There are many
regulations related to security, use of pesticides and many different conditions that they have
to meet; what their security looks like, control over the product, locked facilities.

Senator Wanzek: Is the Department of Agriculture going to participate in any way helping to
monitor that?

Arvy Smith: The original measure and SB 2344 put all of the regulation on the Department
of Health. We needed to add some clarifying language regarding the for agriculture
department’s role in this. In our oversight, if we find cases where pesticides were used, that
is when the ag department becomes involved. As of now, no pesticides are allowed to be
used on the plants.

Senator Wanzek: How are you going to narrow it down to 4 if you get a bunch of
applications?

Arvy Smith: The criteria to apply are pretty significant. We’ve had several organizations
contact us wanting to grow asking what they need to do. There are about 15 pages of
regulations they need to meet to become a grower or a seller. There is a $5000 application
fee to be submitted upon application. The restrictive requirements, which were in the original
measure may limit some of that, but we will have to do a competitive award. When they
come in the door, and if they meet all these requirements, we’ve got checklists from other
states that they’re using for this that we’ll model after our law. They’ll have to come in good
compliance. We'll probably try to put them in different areas of the state, but look at the best
applications that can meet the need.

Senator Bowman: Is there any liability to the state if something doesn’t go right in this first
implementation because until we do it and its tried, we never know where the little catches
are going to be. Is there any liability issue for the state?

Arvy Smith: It has been discussed in various aspects. We learned that when we do our
regulation, for example, if they have more plants than they're supposed to, and we want to
confiscate some, we cannot do that. When we go take independent random samples of
product, we cannot touch the product. That would be asking our employees to commit a
federal crime. We will have to figure out a way to do the random independent testing. If we
see that product needs to be confiscated, we'll have to bring in local law enforcement.

As far as other liabilities, for example, if somebody has adverse effects, we did add language
to get those reported to us. We understand that the new Attorney General is not supportive
of marijuana. If that would change, | believe individuals are at their own risk.

Senator Hogue: Looking at the measure, it provided for the $5000 application fee and a
$25,000 permit fee and | think it allowed the growers to be the dispensers. What we have in
the bill now is a bifurcation of the growing and the dispensing. The growers have the $80,000
fee and the dispensers have the $60,000 fee. Can you give some insight into how those
numbers were arrived at? Your fiscal note shows about 4000 patients and administrative
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imposition with the patient’s application fees and the fees that have to be paid by the growers
and the dispensers. It works out to between $500-$600 per patient. Where did the $60,000
and $80,000 fees come from?

Arvy Smith: We looked at other states and what their levels they were at. To some extent,
we backed into those numbers. We saw what the expenses were and what needs to be
covered. They are a little bit higher than some of the other states. There are so many
unknowns that our tendency was to set them a little on the higher side because if we don’t
get the patients and the activity, and we don’t have enough revenue, we end up with a big
hole in our budget. If the activity goes above the 3800 and we have more revenue, we may
be able to look at lower amounts down the road. We have to get a biennium under our belt
and see where this thing lands in the state.

Senator Krebsbach: Would it be fair to say that we now have a system in marijuana similar
to or patterned after our three tier system in alcohol? Meaning a manufacturer, whole-saler
and distributor.

Arvy Smith: This is based on having the grower-producer and they not only grow but put it
into product. We did this based on visits with several entities that are wanting to come into
state and do this and have members on their team that are experienced in other states as
growers, sellers, etc. We put the production and the growth together. Then we have the
dispensaries or the sellers. They only get their product from the growers and then those
sellers sell either directly to a patient or in some cases to the patients designated care-giver
if the patient is not able to go purchase for whatever reason. A designated care-giver can
have up to 5 patients including themselves.

Senator G. Lee: In terms of the growers fee and the process they have to go through, |
assume there is a process on the county, township or city level that they may have to abide
by. If 'm going to be a grower and go through your process and pay the $80,000, then do |
go out to my location for approval? Or do | go there first and then come to the state.

Arvy Smith: When they send an application to us, they must already have that permit in
place so that we are not spending months getting them qualified only to find out they can’t
get a permit.

Senator G. Lee: In the fiscal note with the FTEs, and there’s a rental cost in there. Is this
going to be a self-contained unit off capital grounds somewhere where everyone will do just
that — the marijuana?

Arvy Smith: We are considering space right now. The Dept. of Health’'s Emergency
Preparedness section is housed south of WalMart in the south end of town. It’'s the old Sykes
building. We are already renting ¥ of one of the buildings for emergency preparedness. We
may look at the other %2 of that building for this group. Depending on how this comes out
with the number of FTE, we’ll look whether there’s some room at the capital or not. It will be
housed authority-wise within our Health Resources section which is the part of the DoH that
does nursing home regulation, food and lodging regulation and now we just add medical
marijuana regulation into that group.
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Senator Mathern: What would be the average cost per patient or consumer of marijuana for .
a year under this scenario of these fees and conditions. What is expected that someone
would be paying per year for their medicine?

Arvy Smith: We have heard estimates of the cost of medical marijuana at anywhere from
$200-400 per ounce, so we went with an average of $300. That is not a fee that we establish.
That is established by the industry. It could get quite expensive for them. It's not covered
by insurance or workers comp. If they use 3 oz. a month every month, so 3 oz. time $300
is $900 a month. Times 12 months - $10,000. We hear that the oils come in somewhat
higher than that. They need far less — not ounces, only grams of oils, but the price per unit of
oils is very high.

Senator Oehlke: Being in the insurance world, did the insurance department testify about
whether a grower or compassion center would be able to obtain liability coverage for the
products that they’re growing and or selling? It won’t cover illegal acts.

Arvy Smith: We did not have that conversation and | don’t recall any testimony. | imagine
they would have trouble getting insurance on a federally illegal product.

Senator Oehlke: Did we consider since that might be a likelihood, that a grower or a
compassion center wouldn’t be able to get liability coverage, should we consider a bond? If
one of our residents is injured, they’d have recourse? It would have to be a cash bond
because a bonding company wouldn'’t issue a bond for that either.

Arvy Smith: What we did build into the bill, was that they need to have a bond in case they
were to set up shop and go bankrupt and leave and leave a mess for us to clean up. | don't
know if the state would get involved. It's highly unlikely that risk management would want to
be involved in the state taking on that kind of liability to assist in that.

Senator Oehlke: The Secretary of State requires bonds from many businesses and that’s
kind of what its for, in case someone bails and doesn’t have insurance coverage, there would
be something there to provide relief for the person that’s injured. Those bonds aren’t typically
that large, but a bond for this might have to be.

Arvy Smith: These entities are required to be registered with the Secretary of State and in
good standing. I’'m not quite sure what their bonding requirements are.

Chairman Holmberg: That might be a question if the bill passes the senate that you share
with our colleagues over in the House saying it was a question that was brought up and there
is not satisfactory answer one way or another. We want to give them something to do if we
pass the bill.

Chairman Holmberg: Asked if anyone else wanted to testify on the financial arrangement
in this bill. None. Closed the hearing on SB 2344. .

Senator Krebsbach: Moved a Do Pass on SB 2344.
Senator Dever: Seconded the motion.
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Senator Robinson: There is a tremendous amount of confusion out there with what is
happening with the legislation. Wants to commend the work of the committee that has
worked on this so far. There are still a lot of unanswered questions. | would hope the House
can pick up where this committee has left off and by the end of the session, we will have
resolved the questions that we're aware of. As we move through the next 24 months, there
are going to be additional questions that surface. We've got a challenge ahead of us and its
difficult to connect the results of the November election with reality. We're trying to implement
something that is far-reaching.

A Roll Call Vote was taken: 8 yeas, 5 nays, 1 absent.
The bill goes back to Human Services and Senator J. Lee will carry on the floor.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to implementation of the ND Compassionate Care Act to authorize medical
marijuana; to provide a report to the legislative management; to provide a penalty; to provide
continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Minutes: Attachments 1-25.

Chairman Weisz: Called the committee to order and opened the hearing on SB 2344.
Is there testimony in support of SB 23447

Senator Rich Wardner, District 37: Explained SB 2344, handed out written testimony.
(See Attachment #1) (2:05-15:00)

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee?

Representative McWilliams: Senator when it comes to the fees how do the $80,000 and
$60,000 fees for the manufacturing and dispensing measure up with other states?

Senator Wardner: That was calculated by the State Health Department, they took the
thought we would have with people involved with medical marijuana and took fees from other
states and figured it out. There will be further testimony that will address this, but it did come
from lots of research.

Chairman Weisz: Is there further testimony in support of SB 23447
16:00

Rep. Al Carlson, District 41: In support of SB 2344. | will talk about several important
things on how we make decisions on medical marijuana in North Dakota. It passed by the
public, almost 63% voted in favor of this bill. It would authorize the Department of Health to
regulate this. Explained the written handout. | only make one suggestion, | know there will be
a lot of technical amendments that are coming on definitions and | urge caution that
sometimes you try to put so much in a measure and you should leave some of that to rule
and let that be written by the Health Department. | was in Colorado and on every other street
corner | saw shops that had advertisements that said “Get your Commute Joint - $8.00” and
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| said | don’t think that is what North Dakota wants. Give this an open mind and clean it up
as best you can so we give the citizens what they thought they were getting, a safe product
that have medical conditions that fall in the list. (See Attachment #2). (16:05-26:20).

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee? Seeing none. Is there
further testimony in support of SB 23447
27:30

Senator J. Lee, District 13: In support of SB 2344. Explained written testimony. (See
Attachment #3) (27:30-38:57)

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee?

Representative McWilliams: What is the chief concern for protection? What do we need to
protect them from?

Senator J. Lee: One of the things is the dosage must be clear. It needs to be on the package
so that people know what they are getting. The growers and manufacturers are responsible
for testing and labeling with what the dosage is. Patients need to know what dosage is
appropriate for them. We need to protect the children. Also the decriminalization needs to
be put into place to protect the people who are using it.

Representative Skroch: In section 28 you are saying that there need to be background
checks and fingerprinting among staff at a child care facility, was it a consideration that these
people would also be required to be fingerprinted as part of their being employed at a
Compassionate Care Center?

Senator J. Lee: | can't tell you what it says in the bill at this time, | don’t have a copy with
me. Please ask the experts that will be testifying after me to help sort out some of those
qguestions you may have.

Chairman Weisz: Is there further testimony in support of SB 23447

Jennifer Clark, Attorney for Legislature Council: 43:25 Neutral testimony and
explanation on SB 2344. You have an 82 page bill, when this came in Legislative Council
made decisions on how to draft this. We could have repealed and replaced the initiated
measure that is in effect right now and it would have been half the size, but it might be helpful
to allow people can see what was and what it was changed to. It went to the Senate and
they amended it, so that is why you have an engrossed bill in front of you. You can Kill it,
amend it, pass it, if there are no changes, it goes to the governor. It can go back to the
Senate if you agree or amend it. As an initiated measure it takes 2/3 vote for 7 years. If there
are disagreements it will go to a conference committee. It could die there if there is no
agreement. | worked with the Senate on the amendments they added to this. Definitions of
in the bill are important, we tried to find definitions that will be the same all the way through
the bill. They answer lots of the questions you might have. Lots of time went into those
definitions. It helps as you read the remainder of the Chapter you can understand. Definitions
include Usable Marijuana, who can get the card to use it, a physician and the relationship
they need to have access to that card, who is a designated caregiver, Compassion Centers
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— two types, manufacturing and dispensaries and our qualifying patients. That is our whole
circle of how this works. The State Department of Health is primarily monitoring this and
taking applications and selecting where the compassion centers will be. The Dept. of
Agriculture is included because we are growing something. The State Department of Health
will start accepting proposals for manufacturing facilities and dispensaries. There is a limit
on the number and we authorize them to have a few more dispensaries if there is a need.
Lots of detail in here to be respectful of the original language that was submitted to the voters.
You will see some detail on what the security system needs to be on the Compassion centers
and on what the employee handbook needs to look like. A positive is you know what you are
getting but a negative is to change it you need a legislative measure to do it and it needs to
have a 2/3 vote for 7 years. If you want to come back and change it a little bit in a couple of
years, you will need a 2/3 vote to do it. In the last section of this bill is talk about the
decriminalization which is an important part.

Representative Porter: Inside of the bill where is the part that says the compassionate care
center and the dispensary have to be two separate independent operators?

J. Clark: It says if you operate as a manufacturer, that is your sole job there, they have to
be different facilities and different applicants, | don’t know if they have to be different owners.

Representative Porter: | hear what you are saying, but | don’t see it.

J. Clark: On page 56, line 27-31 it says that if you are a manufacturing facility you cannot
be a dispensary.

Representative Porter: It doesn’t seem to limit the investors or ownership from owning
both. That is an issue we will have to look at. (56:00)

Chairman Weisz: Further questions? Seeing none. Any further support for SB 23447?

Arvy Smith, Deputy Health Officer for the North Dakota Dept. of Health: In support of
SB 2344. (See Attachment #4) (56:38-1:19:00)

Chairman Weisz: How are you protecting minors if you are allowing minors to be given
marijuana?

Arvy Smith: We limited the ages and the strength that is available to children.

A Smith: continued her testimony. (1:19:00)

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions?

Representative Schneider: You said you used the state of Delaware as an example
because it looked like North Dakota. Were the costs, which have been a complaint in the

proposed bill, here as high for the qualified patient or cardholder and how do the charges
compare to other states you compared?
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A Smith: We used Delaware where it seemed to look like North Dakota as far as
developing the charges and looked at other states and compared the rates they had. We
landed on $80,000 for the growers and $60,000 for the compassion centers for a two -year
period. With the regard to the compassion centers we were seeing some at $25,000 a
year or at $40,000. If we lower these costs the state will have to invest more in the start-
up. We could adjust those if it needs to be the next biennium. We don’t know how many
businesses are going to make ends meet because it depends how many people need this.
Our goal is to get a grower and seller up as soon as possible.

Representative Schneider: How do the cardholder costs compare?

A Smith: The other states are lower but they have many more people to spread their
fixed costs over so ours cost are a little higher.

Representative Schneider: | saw on my desk an amendment that you would have the
ability to grow if you were distant from a dispensary and that has been removed. Then the
amendment now is to add that back in. What did you see as reasons for removing it or
barriers to be putting it back?

A Smith: Our concern were the more growers out there and they were allowed to have as
many as 8 plants per patient, that would be a large amount of marijuana if there wouldn't
be a medical purpose for that it might cause an illegal market. Also if people grow their
own it will cut back on how many people buy it from the dispensaries and their profit would
be less and it might make it much more difficult for them to sustain a business. The voters
said they wanted this and gave us the starting point and we have been developing
improvements and the Senate has also. We may be back in two years and improve to it
again.

Representative McWilliams: Do you know how much marijuana is used per month per
patient on average? Is the average use 2 or 2 72 ounces?

A Smith: No we don’t know. We took into consideration what other states said.

We had heard that 3 ounces every 14 days was very high, some states allowed 2-3
ounces per month. So we settled in the middle but we don’t have any actual data on
usage.

Representative Porter: On page 57 section 14 that talks about the zoning. | am
questioning what happens with the local zoning if they don’t approve the center or
manufacturing? If we say this is something that is legal this is a land use in this particular
act, we are taking that authority from the local zoning provisions.

A Smith: | don’t know what local governments will do with this. | would think some would
allow it in certain areas, just because the grower is in an area doesn’t mean a dispensary
has to be right there. We have had many conferences about this with various businesses.
| would expect there will be local governments that will approve these.

Representative Porter: Aren’'t we allowing the local government to veto the ability to do
the business? We don't give them that authority in other areas of agriculture and
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commodities. Why wouldn’t we say this is a function of the state instead of a local zoning
ordinance?

A Smith: Thatis a component you can look at. The local permit was not a requirement
in the original measure. We just said we want it up front and we did add that.

Representative Porter: On the actual sale of the product at the compassionate care
center is the sale taxable?

A Smith: Yes, it is a taxable sale. This is not a prescription. The role of the physician is
to say the individual is my patient and that they have the qualifying condition and that they
may benefit from the use of marijuana to alleviate that condition. They are never
prescribing it is a recommendation.

Representative Porter: On the fiscal note you only listed the revenue in you figuring $1.7
million in 17-19 biennium is just from the sales and use tax. There isn’t anything you
figured on the city side of it?

A Smith: We did not calculate the cities side of it, that would vary.

Representative P. Anderson: | look at this that one of the roadblocks could be zoning. |
think we need to get this off the table.

A Smith: It was unclear and it was in NCSL'’s model law and suggested by other states
and that was our basis for putting it in. We just didn’t want to go through the whole
process and then find out that they did not want the dispensary or manufacturer there.

Representative P. Anderson: If we added grow your own would that impact the time
period of one year?

A Smith: If we added grow your own individuals would have quicker access to product.
The would be able to begin as soon as we got an application process out there. If we
allowed that for that we would have to collect an application a registration fee from all of
these patients and designated caregivers, allowing them to start growing. [f there was
2000 of them in an area and then a compassion center come in, meet the requirements
and get certified. What would we do with all these individuals who were growing. We
would have to shut them down and collect the product. That seems like a big concern with
doing that. There is significant cost to regulate those growers and for local law
enforcement to track that.

Representative P. Anderson: Would there be a way say once we have the dispensaries
up that you could say if you are outside of the 40 miles you could grow your own?

A Smith: Our preference with that would be to say if we had a facility in Dickinson and
they weren’t getting out to Bowman we would allow another dispensary in Bowman or we
would say they have to cover them. We do need to provide access to the patients. 1:36:48
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Chairman Weisz: Is there any testimony in support of SB 23447 Seeing none is there any
testimony in opposition to SB 23447

Anita Morgan, Compassionate Care Act Coalition:(See Attachment #5) We are here in
opposition to SB 2344. Explained written testimony. (1:37:57-1:51:43).

Chairman Weisz: Questions from the committee?

Representative Schneider: Your comments on the debilitating disease not being in there,
because on page 7 line 19 subsection M says that a “debilitating medical condition or
treatment for such disease or medical condition that produces one or more of the following”.

A. Morgan: Cancer and its treatments, alzheimer’'s, dementia and its treatments is
omitted, so what does that mean, that you may have cancer but we are not going to cover
you for your treatment long haul also the adding of ilinesses is most important. People ask
me to add my disease to this list but now that option is gone.

Representative McWilliams: You referenced the 6% THC content as it pertains to
pediatric cannabis, what is the maximum recommended THC content across the industry
and what is the possible complications or impacts of that?

A Morgan: They start with .5, it can range from 5-10% depending on the diseases, it is in
the handout, but it depends on what diseases they might be weaning the child off

of. The medical marijuana may need to be higher if they are trying to get them off of
something. It is by weight and how many seizures they might have, and what their disease
is, etc.

Chairman Weisz: Further questions from the committee?

Representative Porter: On the option to add conditions the only way for the Health
Department to do that would be to go through the Health council and administrative rules
which would take longer with their public hearing requirements than just coming back to the
legislature every 18 months and doing it. Inside of your group have you discussed that the
fact that it might be faster and more efficient to come back to the legislature than to go
through administrative rules process.

A Morgan: | never thought about that, but whatever would be fastest would be good. It is
always patients first.

Representative Porter: You mentioned opposition to the bill. If it doesn’t get to what you
want and it fails to meet the necessary vote, then what is left is not able to be put into effect.

A Morgan: The specific takes precedence as far as legal. \We are already in jeopardy for
patients because you took out Century Code Chapter 19-03-4 the paraphernalia was covered
in the original but it is not covered in SB 2344.

Representative Porter: Inside of the original possession wasn’t covered according what the
Attorney General has said to us. This requires a much higher level of legislative approval to
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make these changes and if they don’t happen and we fall back to the original way it was
passed and it is not able to be implemented then you have nothing.

A Morgan: North Dakota Century Code 1-02-07 from 1943. Whenever the general
provision in statute is conflict with the special provisions in the same or other statute the
two must be construed if possible so that the effect may be given to both provisions that
when conflict comes the specific trumps the general.

Chairman Weisz: Further questions from the committee? Seeing none. Further testimony
in opposition to SB 23447

Ray Morgan, | am bringing neutral testimony for someone that could not be here.
Kevin Cross from District 5 in Minot. Would like to be a grower of Medical marijuana for
North  Dakota. (See Attachment # 6) (2:02:35-2:06:14).

Chairman Weisz: Questions from the committee? Seeing none. Further testimony in
opposition to SB 2344.

Erica Schmidt, Chronic pain sufferer. 20 -year -old individual. In opposition to SB 2344.
(See Attachment #7) (2:07:00-2:11:03).

Chairman Weisz: Are there questions from the committee? Seeing none. Is there further
testimony on SB 23447

Maxine Schmidt: Erica’s mother. In opposition to SB 2344. (See Attachment # 8) (2:11:30-
2:18:09).

Representative Schneider: Would the edibles have helped your daughter?
Maxine Schmidt: Yes, they would have.

Representative McWilliams: One of the concerns we have is what kind of confusion could
there be between edible marijuana and other edibles that children could get into? |s there
an advantage in using an edible in the form of a brownie or gummy bear over a pill or an
oil?

Maxine Schmidt: There are lots of issues. | know there are some that can’t take pills or
can't tolerate patches, or oils, etc. There is so much we don’t know unfortunately. | am
thinking like a cookie, a very small cookie and the medication would be distributed slowly
and preventing side effects. | know you are worried about keeping it safe from small
children just as | worry about my other medications not being accessed by small children.
It would be a normal parenting to protect our children. The edible marijuana can be a very
good alternative for some people.

Representative P. Anderson: When your daughter was 6 or 10 years old and you went to
Mayo Clinic and the way the bill is written now in order for a child to and oil was through
pediatric neurologist, gastrologist, oncologist or by pediatrician consultation with one of
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those specialists. Would that have limited you in being able to have medical marijuana for
your 10-year-old?

M. Schmidt: Yes, especially when there was so many people in the medical field that did
not understand her iliness was real. The cancer was gone but the chronic pain did not go
away. They tell us the surgery of the cancer and treatment was the cause of the pain.

Representative P. Anderson: \WWho was her primary doctor provider when she was a
child?

M. Schmidt: She had a pediatrician, we did make many trips to Mayo Clinic and a cancer
doctor in Fargo.

Chairman Weisz: Any one that can’t be here this afternoon?

Connie Falkenstein: | suffer from fiber myalgia, arthritis, depression, panic disorder and it
is very difficult to be in front of you. | cannot take any pain medication because | am
allergic to almost everything. How can it be legal to give kids Ritalin which is meth and not
legal to give them something that won’t harm you like marijuana. Explains about her
grandson that has ADHD. Wants the bill fixed and put into effect for those that suffer.
(2:24:48-2:27:47).

Chairman Weisz: We will take a break for lunch and return and continue after the session.
Called the committee back to order. Is there continuing testimony in opposition to SB
23447 (2:27:34)

Andre’ Thom: In opposition to SB 2344. (See Attachment #9). (2:27:40-2:38:34).
Chairman Weisz: Questions from the committee?

Representative Skroch: Did you testify before the Senate Human Services committee?
Are you aware if any of your concerns were addressed in the Senate Human Services
committee?

A. Thom: No | did not. They were discussed and addressed but not to my desire. | was
not present there, so | am not able to speak to what amendments were being put forward.

Representative Skroch: My question is related to your final statement in your testimony
about wanting a do not pass. If we kill this bill what do you think we will be able to work off
of to allow the people of North Dakota to be able to get what they desire.

A. Thom: | believe this is an opportunity to amend it then if this would fail then it would be
put into effect as it is written. | would hope that we can amend this to be more in
conjunction with what the people want. If it goes back to the act it would give the
Department of Health to add qualifying conditions. The largest concern is the
decriminalization portion of it. | would like to see it focus on issues better and not to
change wholesale issues within the act specifically to the 6% and removing of the authority
from the department. | believe if it would revert back to the act the Department would have
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the power to add qualifying conditions which | feel is extremely important for the success of
this program. | feel the act is still stronger than what is being proposed currently.

Representative Skroch: You do realize that there has to be some regulation to roll this out
in the way you want it.

A. Thom: | think the Dept. of Health needs more authority. The decriminalization needs to
be dealt with and the what was removed, the delivery, transportation of medical cannabis or
paraphernalia, that should remain. The Department might have some jurisdiction in the
testing of the product, but beyond that perhaps the criminal code is where the legislature
has its strength.

Vice Chairman Rohr: You said there have not been any deaths in Minnesota from
prescribing THC. Have there been any near misses?

A. Thom: It was the DEA fact sheet that states there is no recorded deaths at all. That is
direct deaths and indirect deaths in Minnesota none has been recorded.

Vice Chairman Rohr: If the patient feels that their practitioner is not giving them as much
or the strength they want? \What mechanism is in place for that in Minnesota?

A. Thom: They would have an option to search for a new caregiver. In Minnesota the
pharmacist recommends the dosage and the certified health practitioner just decides if the
individual meets the definition of a qualifying condition.

Representative Porter: Does Minnesota allow non-residence to participate in their
program?

A. Thom: No they do not.
Representative Porter: Does Minnesota allow them to smoke it?
A. Thom: No they do not. No it is extract only.

Representative Porter: The North Dakota program far exceeds Minnesota in the
availability of different types of products.

A. Thom: Yes it does have more available options in terms of medication itself but fewer
conditions.

Representative Porter: As we look at a North Dakota law for North Dakotans, the
comment about non- residents isn’t relevant because there really aren’t any other states that
touch us that allows our residents to go over and receive product is there?

A. Thom: Nevada does. A couple other states allow card holders to possess their
medication but not necessarily be able to purchase in the state.

Representative Porter: | said states that touch us.
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A. Thom: | am unsure beyond Minnesota and North Dakota.

Representative Porter: Didn’t Nevada just pass recreational marijuana use so the medical
is really off the table anyway.

A. Thom: They are two separate programs regulated completely differently.

Representative Porter: So if you wanted to buy recreational marijuana why would you have
to worry about talking about a doctor first?

A. Thom: Your age and if you can bring it across state lines and transporting it across
state lines.

Representative Porter: So if you can bring it across state lines, what is going to happen at
the airport?

A. Thom: They might be asked to throw it away. They might confiscate it, or there might be
criminal charges.

Chairman Weisz: Is there further testimony in opposition to SB 23447

Linda Kerstin, North Dakota resident of District 6, Retired teacher: In opposition to SB
2344. (See Attachment #10) (2:53:24-3:05:14)

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee? Seeing none. Is there
further testimony in opposition to SB 23447

Bill and Patty Wilhelm, North Dakota Residents: Bill has Crohn’s disease. In opposition
to SB 2344. (See Attachment #11) Do the doctors have a paradigm in place and how much
money will be wasted in the process? We need guarantees on how this would work for us.
We believe it should be between the patient and the doctor. (3:05:55- 3:10:10).

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee? Seeing none. Further
testimony in opposition to SB 23447

Marty Riske, a co-signer on the Compassionate Care Act: In opposition to SB2344. |
want to review history because the constitution does not say anything about what people
should consume. When the women'’s temperance movement decided that alcohol was not
good for our society they did it right when they passed an amendment to the constitution in
1920. They said they will only go after the distributors, if you want beer or wine you can
make it in your basement. What a difference today. Medical marijuana has been legal in
Washington DC for 20 years. In 2014 they passed recreational marijuana. Let's get on with
making our patients better. 3:10:36-3:13:30

Chairman Weisz: Any questions from the committee? Seeing none. Further testimony in
opposition?

Rilie Ray Morgan, resident of Fargo, North Dakota: In opposition to SB 2344. (See
Attachment # 12). (3:13:48-3:19:46).
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Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee? Seeing none. Is there
further testimony in opposition to SB 23447

Gail Pederson, Special Practice RN in Holistic Nursing: In opposition to SB 2344.
(See Attachment #13). (3:20:17-3:27:26).

Chairman Weisz: Questions from the committee?

Representative Schneider: Do holistic nurses in other places incorporate marijuana into
their program?

G. Pederson: | don't know, because | am very isolated when it comes to other holistic
nurses.

Representative Skroch: You made references to the child use of medical marijuana
product. Are those dosages and variety of options spelled out in the Compassionate Care
Act?

G. Pederson: | don't know.

Representative Skroch: You stated that there needs to be legal research and
development in the state.

G. Pederson: | think there needs to be freedom to test these develop and research the
other forms of the product.

Representative Skroch: If we kill this bill and it is not in your original bill how would this
happen?

G. Pederson: | think it would be beneficial to the state to be able to do this.

Representative Skroch: If you can’t transfer this across state lines how would we be able
to supply this to the people of North Dakota?

G. Pederson: | don't know if that is a section that needs to be added to the dispensaries
and grow facilities. | am more in the concern of the patients.

Representative Porter: On page two of your testimony you said that you should not have
to do criminal background checks. That we aren’t doing it for other class 1 medications.
Are you familiar with the prescription drug monitoring program we have established within
the state? Don’t you think that is tracking prescriptions and individuals receiving class 1
drugs and it is monitoring pharmacies, doctors and recipients of the class 1 medications.

G. Pederson: That is a good program. Opioid over prescribing and overuse is an
epidemic. There is studies that have found marijuana has decreased opioid use. They are
not background checked though.
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Representative Porter: They are in the system and red flags thrown up and they will be
denied access to the medications if there is a problem. They don’t need a background
check to refuse them access. If there is an abuse of the program or an individual who is a
drug seeker, rather than someone who has a medical condition how are we as the
regulatory agency supposed to track them if we don’t have a system to monitor them.

G. Pederson: | still don't think it is necessary. You have the card, that is essentially your
regulatory. Why the extra $45 for the background check. That person is already in the
system with the card. Isn’t that criminalizing those people who is seeking the use of what is
now in North Dakota a legal substance.

Representative Porter: WWe mandate as a regulatory agency that someone who is a
daycare provider have a background check so everyone is aware up front. What would be
wrong with doing the same thing?

G. Pederson: The cost. It is an unnecessary cost is the bottom line. Why should they
have to pay extra money for that to be done?

Representative Porter: Do you know how much medical marijuana will cost? If they are at
the full 3 ounces per month from the dispensary?

G. Pederson: | have no idea. | know what the underground cost would be.
Representative Porter: That would be the illegal marijuana market?

G. Pederson: Yes.

Representative Porter: This is going to be a legal market.

G. Pederson: Yes.

Chairman Weisz: Are there any further questions from the committee? Seeing none. Is
there further testimony in opposition to SB 23447

Listed below is written testimony not presented orally in opposition to SB 2344:

Jake Anderson, Turtle Lake, ND: (See Attachment #14)

Jared Poe, Patient in Minnesota’s Medical Cannabis Program: (See Attachment #15).
Kari Olavson, Minnesota Resident: Mom to Jacob who suffers from epilepsy. (See
Attachment # 16).

Maggie Ellinger-Locke, Legislative Counsel for Marijuana Policy Project: (See Attachment
#17).

Joan Lee, Casselton, ND: Nursing background. (See Attachment # 18).

Nathan Prince, Watford City, ND: Has Grandmother who would benefit from Medical
marijuana. (See Attachment # 19).

Carel Two-Eagle, ND Resident: In opposition to any marijuana usage. (See Attachment #
20).

Patrick McClellan, Minnesota Resident: Has Muscular Dystrophy and enrolled in the
Minnesota Cannabis program. (See Attachment # 21).
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Sheri Paulson, Galesburg ND Resident: Has Muscular Dystrophy. (See Attachment #
22).

Dr. Sue Sisley, Arizonza Physician: See Attachment # 23).

Sonya Jensen, Fargo, ND: Mother of a child with Chronic Pancreatitis and non-alcoholic
steatohepatitis with liver atrophy. (See Attachment #24).

Danielle Goble, Minot, ND: Wife to war Veteran with PTSD. (See Attachment # 25).

Chairman Weisz: \We will close the hearing on SB 2344.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to implementation of the North Dakota Compassionate Care Act to authorize medical
marijuana; to provide a report to the legislative management; to provide a penalty; to provide a
continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Minutes: Attachments 1-11

Chairman Weisz: Called the committee to order and opened the discussion on SB 2344.
Anyone with amendments, please hand them out. We will go through the Sections of the bill
one by one discuss and agree on any amendments. We will address the amendments by
section, some of the amendments will be duplicates and in the end the intern will make one
amendment. (See attachments 1-11).

Chairman Weisz: | assume we are all good with section 1 in SB 2344. Ok, section 2 the
definitions. They basically start on page 5.

Representative Schneider: On page 5, | just want to be sure we are not counting the liquids
in the amount of marijuana that a person can possess.

Tara Brandner, Assistant Attorney General of North Dakota and Legal Council for the
Department of Health: We are saying how much THC can possess every thirty days, that
2000 mg would just be the THC not the liquid or additive. The Department will be requiring
packaging and labeling that identify the amount of THC in the product. We arrived at the
different amounts of THC in the products by looking at Oregon’s program. They allow 4000
mg and they said that is very high and they have had a medicinal marijuana program since
1998. They said the patients have adapted and developed a tolerance. Then we checked
Minnesota and it has the same model of what North Dakota is looking at. Introduced and
explained the amendment. (See Attachment #1, 2 and 3). (9:55-17:06)

Chairman Weisz: Questions from the committee?

Representative P. Anderson: The bill that came over from the Senate, they had 9%
versus 6% for the THC, right?
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Tara Brandner: In terms of pediatric and medicinal marijuana oil that number is 6%. We
have taken out the section with the amount and percentage of THC in a product and just left
it as how much they can have in total

Representative Seibel: What is Minnesota’s limit per month?

Tara Brandner: They have a 30 day supply. In Minnesota they have pharmacists that are
involved and they decide what the limit is. In North Dakota the pharmacists did not want to
be involved.

Representative McWilliams: Are they going to have enough with our limit, that is only 44
mg a day? Is that enough to care for the patients?

Tara Brandner: In Minnesota they offer products in 5, 10 and 15 mg doses and goes up to
25 mg as well. If our maximum is at 25 mg, yes they could have enough.

Representative Skroch: \Who determines the dosing and decides what they are getting and
do they have training to justify those dosages with?

Tara Brandner: It is the Compassion Care center, in Minnesota they are pharmacists, in
North Dakota there is no requirement that they be a pharmacist or medical physician. It is a
hard place to be because we are trying to make a determination of how much a person should
have with a medicine that hasn’t been FDA regulated or tested. We did our best to look at
other states and see what was available. One thing the Department requested be in SB 2344
was the requirement once you are licensed to become a Compassion Center, you essentially
say your qualifications and that is something they can consider in whether or not to allow a
Compassion Center to register. There are no required qualifications except they can’t have
a felony conviction and can’t have a drug charge.

Representative Skroch: So there can’t be an overdose since there is no specific training
into what dosages should be?

Tara Brandner: One of the things we have done is try to protect children by putting the
maximum percentage of THC at 6%. Delaware does the same thing.

One of the other items that the Department added to SB 2344 is the requirement that
Compassion Centers and other individuals report adverse effects they receive from Medical
marijuana so they will be able to study that.

Representative P. Anderson: On page 9 line 30 through page 10 lines 1-2 where the
physician says you can smoke it or not. That is problematic because the physician can only
say this is your condition and medical marijuana may help. We need to take that out.

Chairman Weisz: Can you wait until we get to that? We are looking at the amendment and
it changes the limits to 2000 mg in a 30 day period and it adds the transdermal and tinctures.
If there are any issues let's hear them. Instead of 30% it is 6% maximum. | don’t want motions
for each one we will take each section and agree on what to have for amendments. Any
issues on number one? It does clarify it and make it easier.
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Representative McWilliams: | just want to make sure that 2000 mg is enough in some
cases.

Charlene Rittenbach, Forensic Scientist with North Dakota State Crime Lab: Looking
at some of the other states and different dosages, marijuana is not FDA approved and there
is no typical dosage amount. We looked at Marinol, synthetic THC, when you are talking
about the capsules it is schedule 3 and FDA approved. It comes in 2.5 mg, 5 mg, and 10
mg capsules. It is prescribed for cancer patients and HIV for appetite stimulation and one
study said a maximum of 20 mg a day. Under capsules there was 50 mg max per serving but
they wouldn’t have to make the capsules 50mg, it can be smaller. If they did make 50 mg
capsules they would get 40 capsules per month. That would be more than one a day. |
would say the 2000 mg for the capsules would be good. In comparison a typical joint weighs
.66 grams and if you take your 2.5 ounces allowed per month you could get 107 joints per
month. That is 3.5 joints per day for 30 days. Marijuana THC will range from 8 to 20%.
Colorado’s average is 18%. | took 20% to figure the percentage of THC. So basically 13
mg THC per joint. That is 52 mg of THC per day if we use 4 joints per day if they smoke it
and times 30 you are at 1584 per month. We did try to make it all fit under the 2000mg level.
That was another verification for the 2000 mg. We did compare it with Minnesota products
and their mg are under the 2000. We are just setting the 2000 mg of THC per month no
matter how they take it in.

Representative Porter: My question falls back to the products that are FDA approved with
the same components. Are they now limited too or are they on a different limiting factor?

Tara Brandner: Products that are FDA approved the physician can prescribe them, so the
limits don’t apply.

Representative Porter: There are a lot of medicines that are FDA approved and on a
schedule, but they use them off label to treat something that they weren’'t made for. Are they
now limited if they find a different use for Marinol, as an example and where is that found?
(33:44)

Tara Brandner: The products that are FDA approved a physician can prescribe for those
specific conditions it is approved for. Any new product that would come out, if it is FDA
approved, a physician can prescribe them, then it is not covered under this.

Chairman Weisz: Then would the limits apply? If the patient has a prescription is that
amount counted in their total?

Tara Brandner: No, if it is prescribed it doesn’t count. The marijuana products are not
prescribed they are only recommended by the physician.

Chairman Weisz: Let's go on to Section 2. Page 6 line 13 in the bill. Explains the bill. There
are 5 conditions of the bona fide physician-patient relationship. Any problem with these?

Representative Porter: Why is it listed as physician all the way through the bill when the
primary care giver could be a nurse practitioner, not a physician?
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Tara Brandner: We limited it to just physicians because that is what was included in the
original measure 5. So the nurse practitioner could not do it. 1t would have to be a physician
that you are seeing for the debilitating condition.

Representative Porter: What if the individuals primary care giver is a Physician’s Assistant
and all of their medications are prescribed by the PA not a physician. | think that we need to
have the primary care givers included instead of just physicians. |think are making a mistake
to leave that out.

Tara Brandner: The goal of this language is to eliminate the possibility of criminals we also
need to remember we are talking about a federally illegal substance. | think physicians and
nurses as well would have anxiety to be involved in this.

Representative Skroch: | don't disagree with Representative Porter, but maybe we need
to just make this as close to what they voted on as we can.

Representative McWilliams: | agree with Representative Porter. | think it needs to be
consistent with whatever the we do across the board with primary care providers.

Chairman Weisz: Adjourned for lunch and called committee back to order afterward. We are
page 6 of the bill on the bona fide Physician-patient relationship.
50:00

Cheryl Rising, Legislative Liaison for Nurse Practitioner Association: We have not
been testifying on this bill because marijuana is schedule 1 and we are not able to prescribe
that. The way the bill is written here | do agree we should add the Advanced Practice
Registered Nurse (APRN). When you read Page 6 section 2 it would be appropriate to have
that added to review the records and work with the primary providers and to be able to
document the decisions made.

Tara Brandner: | will clarify that the inclusion of the APRN should not go in the definition of
the Bona fide physician-patient relationship, it should go in the definition of physician on page
9 line 1.

Chairman Weisz: Anyone else have anything on A, B, C, D, E? If we do add that APRN in
by the definition of the physician and then we can leave this as physician because we are
saying either or.

Representative Porter: Legislative council has a huge issue with using definitions with
descriptions of law. The word physician has a definition in the century code and if you change
the meaning of that just for this portion of the century code that may raise a huge red flag.
You cannot use the word physician interchangeably to represent an Advanced Practice RN.
We need to have that clear and concise inside of number 2 on page 6 where you are going
to put APRN and then you might need a new definition of what an APRN is inside of this
section.

Chairman Weisz: | think we need a new definition for physician on page 9.
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Representative Porter: You can change it to health care provider.

Chairman Weisz: Is everyone comfortable with that if we change the language where ever
it says physician it will say health care provider and we will add APRN and it will be defined
in number 19. Number 3 is cardholder, does anyone have an issue? Number 4 compassion
center is both the manufacturing and dispensaries. They are separate but both considered
a compassion center. Number 5 is the compassion enter agent. Number 6 is contaminated
is impure or inferior. Number 7 Debilitating medical condition. Someone suggested that we
add terminal iliness if you have 12 months or less to live to the list of conditions. Does anyone
have a problem with that?

Representative P. Anderson: Isn’'t terminal iliness defined somewhere? If you are going
into hospice care it is usually 6 months.

Chairman Weisz: We were asked for 12 months but if it is already defined as 6 months is
everyone comfortable with leaving it at 6 months. Ok. Then we will add terminal illness.

Representative P. Anderson: One of my amendments deals with this and that the Health
Department can add other medical conditions to the list. Arvy Smith testified we should just
start with these diseases and add others later. | would rather say after a certain date the
Health Department could add. (See Attachment #4).

Representative Porter: People stated when they were testifying that they were very
unfamiliar with the process of working through the Health Department. We are not here for
18 months but certainly they could have the hearing and make the addition of the condition
put the emergency clause on and it becomes effective right away. | think that is a better
process than doing the part that was put out in the ballot measure.

Chairman Weisz: Would you be comfortable with it if we basically add a portion that will say
that the Health Department look at other ilinesses and suggest them to the next session.

Representative P. Anderson: | would be fine with that. | just don’t want it left out of the bill
we are never going to add another medical condition.

Chairman Weisz: Is the committee comfortable with adding Health Department shall look
at other identifying conditions and report to legislative management the possible suggestions
for the next session?

Vice Chairman Rohr: How did you come up with the list of ilinesses you have here?

Tara Brandner: These are the ilinesses in the Measure. Some of the opposition to the
Senate bill was after cancer and some of the other treatments were removed. That was
removed because in M. it says “a chronic or debilitating medical condition or treatment for
such”, so it falls in that encompassing area. These are the conditions allowed in Delaware.
In terms of adding the conditions there is an advisory board that is part of the Compassion
Care program. One of the tasks is to provide recommendations to the Department and the
Legislature. Because of the lack of scientific evidence and if they chose not to add a condition
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and the potential for a law suit the Department and the Senate Human Services prefers that
the legislature adds the additional ilinesses. (1:05:07)

Representative Kiefert: You say cancer. If | have a cancerous mole or if | had prostate
cancer, do you think that is too broad?

Tara Brandner: The way SB 2344 is written it would be cancer but you would have to be
suffering from the disease at the time. So if you no longer have the cancer you would no
longer qualify.

Chairman Weisz: Continued to go through definitions in the bill Section 2.
8 Department means state department of health

9 Designated caregiver

10. Dispensary

11.Enclosed, locked facility

12 Manufacturing facility

13 Marijuana (1:07:19)

Representative McWilliams: Does marijuana have an expiration date? Does it get old?
Will it have a date just like any other drug?

Mylynn Tufte, State Health Officer: In some of the forms of marijuana that have been
presented in this bill would be like other medications and have an expiration date. It would
be certified and attested by the State Health office as quality and efficacious medication.

Chairman Weisz: Continued to go through definitions in the bill Section 2.
14 Medical marijuana waste

15 Medical use.

16 minor is defined as under the age of 19. Any problems with that?

Representative McWilliams: Why is it 19 here and 18 everywhere else? | would be more
comfortable if we just did 21 all the way across but allowing for some sort of an appeal with
a guardian to be able to access higher levels of THC after the age of 18. So we are still
keeping it out of the schools.

Tara Brandner: The Department of Health had proposed that the age of a minor be 21, the
academy of Pediatricians says anyone 21 and under should not be using marijuana. The
age 19 was done by the Senate Human Services committee as a way to insure that marijuana
stays out of the high school but that students who are in college can access it without their
parents.

Representative P. Anderson: | think one of the reasons 19 was in there is that it was not
legal for someone under 19 to smoke marijuana and if you are under 18 you could only do
the oil.

Tara Brandner: One of the reasons for defining a minor is that marijuana is federally illegal,
however under the Obama administration it said we will prioritize certain items and one is the
distribution of marijuana to minors. In measure 5 there were no restrictions for minors. We
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added in a definition to a minor and what specific product, they can only have medical
marijuana oil that has 6% THC and requires a parent or guardian dispense it and keep it in
a locked storage at all times.

Vice Chairman Rohr: When you mentioned the Academy of Pediatricians saying no use
under the age of 21 is that smoking?

Tara Brandner: That is any use of marijuana.

Representative P. Anderson: On the question of the age of 19, | put in a bill that you had
to be 19 to buy cigarettes so you weren’'t smoking in high school. [ think this is where this
comes from. We could say you have to use the oil until age 19 and it can stay 18 everywhere
else.

Tara Brandner: Right now it says under the age of 19 all across the board.

Chairman Weisz: Under 19 they have to use the oil at this stage. Is everyone ok with that?
Then we will leave it as is. Continues to discuss the bill definitions.

17 North Dakota identification.

18 Pediatric medical marijuana oil

19 change it to healthcare provider so it includes physician or APRN. Is this the consensus
of the committee?

Tara Brandner: | did provide the 3-27-2017 amendment, they have minimal changes, it
changes the language to no more to a maximum concentration or amount of THC, it is just a
clarification.

Representative Schneider: | am ok with that definition, but | think we are too restrictive. |
think we can deal with that when we get to 23 on page 9. We can leave the definition of the
oil to whatever is stated there. But then | want to look at the restriction of that being the only
treatment for pediatric. | have an amendment coming that would start on line 5 page 9 that a
physician must be a pediatrician comma and then go on with the rest of the specialists and
on line 6 we would have a period after specialist. That would serve to be the decision making
in the hands of the pediatrician who is also a specialist. It would keep us out of defining a
medical practice of what they must do and who must do it. (See Attachment #5)

Chairman Weisz: Doesn't it say that where it says “or must be a pediatrician working in
consultation with one of these”.

Representative Schneider: |think there is circumstances where the pediatrician would be
specialist enough to make the decision without being forced to consult with the other
specialists when it is not needed.

Representative Seibel: | agree, the pediatricians are already specialized and | wonder how
pediatric gastroenterologists we even have in North Dakota. | trust the pediatrician to do the
best for a child, personally.
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Representative P. Anderson: It says if the qualifying patient's medical condition is Post
Traumatic Stress Disorder the physician must be a licensed psychiatrist and we have so few
of those in North Dakota and it is an extra cost. It seems to me that a health care provider
can prescribe all the mind altering drugs so why is it just one condition that you have to go to
a licensed psychiatrist? | think we should take that statement right out.

Tara Brandner: The Department did not make changes to that section because that
language is from the original measure in regards to the licensed psychiatrist.

Representative Porter: | think we can put a period on page 9 line 2 after the word humans,
where it is and get rid of the rest through line 7. A physician is a physician | think we are
splitting hairs here. | don’t think we can practice medicine from this committee table.

Tara Brandner: Most states when dealing with children or minors do require them to see a
pediatrician or pediatric specialist of some sort. That was the reason the Department added
that language in.

Chairman Weisz: In arural area a child may have a provider that is not a pediatrician even
if he does go at times to the larger cities to see one. How would that work?

Tara Brandner: The pediatrician would be the provider for that qualifying condition. That
pediatrician could write that certification. They could have both.

Representative Porter: The pediatric patient that has a seizure disorder | don'’t think the
pediatrician is going to do different than what the family practice physician will do. If the
family practice physician thinks they need the extra input they will refer the patient to
University of Minnesota, to Rochester, to some place that has the pediatric neurologist. |
think the safeguards are already in position inside of the physician. We don'’t have to get
down into what the practice of medicine is in code.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Didn’t we say we were going to start with healthcare provider?

Chairman Weisz: The majority is ok with that. We are going to eliminate everything after the
period on line 2 through line 7 on page 9. Continues to discuss the bill definitions.

20 Posttraumatic stress disorder, we would take out “or a future addition”. We would use the
current edition of the DSM. Any other changes in line 20?7 Seeing none.

21 Qualifying patient

22 Registry identification card

Representative Porter: On line 22 page 9, do we want to allow for electronic cards?
Chairman Weisz: There could be an issue with tracking.

Tara Brandner: The card will be a card like your driver’s license with a picture of you. There
will be a scan bar on the back that law enforcement will be able to verify if it is valid.

Representative McWilliams: If someone goes to a dispensary will they just have to see the
card or do they have to scan it?
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Tara Brandner: They will have to scan it.

Chairman Weisz: | am trying to think of the language that we could use, it would depend on
how they do inventory tracking and cash management. You could have

Representative Porter: After the word document you could insert “or electronic document”.

Tara Brandner: We would be the first state to have an electronic document and | don’t
know if law enforcement would have problems with that.

Representative McWilliams: Would it be better to just leave it as it is, let the program take
effect and then see if it needs to be added later next session.

Representative Schneider: | like the electronic document it is safer and more secure. |
would say after document insert “or its electronic version” and leave it up to the Department
to sort it out. .

Representative Seibel: Is that going to increase the cost too to come up with the electronic
version?

Representative Skroch: Won't they need some kind of a reader too to do that and would
the dispensaries have to pay for that on their own.

Tara Brandner: The Department will have to adopt the same system or one that is
compatible with the ones the Compassion Centers have. | think the way it is written now the
Department could probably add electronic to it.

Representative D. Anderson: | think we should just leave it the way it is and see what the
department comes up with.

Chairman Weisz: | guess | would recommend that we do leave it, but it is up to the
committee.

Representative Westlind: Our driver’s license is a card and you have to show it. | think
this should be left too.

Chairman Weisz: How many would like to leave it or change it? It looks like we will leave
it the way it is now. We may come in to it later. Now we will go on to:
23 Useable marijuana. Any changes?

Representative Schneider: When we get to it in that section | would take out the last
sentence the pediatric medical and leave that to physicians practice to determine if there is
a better combination or item to use.

Chairman Weisz: |s everyone ok with the addition of the products? OK. Representative
Schneider would like to take out
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Tara Brandner: The 6% limit for children was chosen based on other states if you go back
to all forms then there is not a 6% THC limit. We do know THC has a negative effect on
children and developing brains.

Charlene Rittenbach: \When it comes to pediatric products a lot of them are high with CBD
or cannabidiol and lower in THC. The definition right now says 6% THC and the cannabidiol
level is open. The studies from the Scholarly Journal referenced CBD oil with a 25 to 1 ratio
of CBD to THC. So the THC was low. Most of the pediatric products are more dealing with
CBD and that doesn’t have psychoactive effects compared to THC.

Chairman Weisz: We just got done arguing over the age of 19 as a minor.  With these
products is there a difference between an 8 year old and a 17 year old?

Charlene Rittenbach: | am not sure | can answer that. Most of the pediatric products are
in oil form. Because inhalation and smoking obviously can cause adverse health effects.
With patches for children | don’t know if there is studies on that. If you limit the THC to 6%
and the cannabidiol is higher that would be allowed.

Representative Schneider: None of us are doctors and yet we are trying to restrict the
doctors from doing what they think is best. | see the value in the limitations of THC. Maybe
that limitation should come from Physicians or somewhere outside of the century code.
(1:39:43)

Chairman Weisz: |s the main rationale to limit the THC? Could you limit the THC in other
things like patches?

Tara Brandner: Yes. In the studies the CBD has the most beneficial effect in the children.
You could have a patch made at 6% THC. Remember this is not a prescription and that the
people in the compassion center are not medical personnel. Remember that the people in
the compassion center are not medical personnel.

Representative Schneider: But they are medical professionals who are entering a
recommendation.

Tara Brandner: No, essentially all the physicians and APRN’s are doing is saying the
individual has glaucoma as an example and she may benefit from the use of marijuana. No
dosage or form. Then you would go to the compassion center where you would get the
marijuana. You would have to give them some way for it to be limited in children.

Representative Skroch: If we have research that says that THC is harmful to the brain of a
child. | would rather err on the side of caution and wait until we have more research. We
wouldn’t want to do something that would be harmful to a child.

Charlene Rittenbach: Medications for pediatrics is usually done in terms of the weight of
the patient. When you have an age of the minor being 19 that dosage is different you typically
have a sliding scale. A pediatric patient that is 6 is a lot different than a pediatric patient that
is 18 years old
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Representative Porter: Based on the testimony | would rather that we left the concentration
to 6% no matter what method of use there is. It could be a patch or whatever as long as it
was limited to 6% for the pediatrics.

Representative McWilliams: | have a question and a suggestion at the same time.
Do we have any other medications that are given according to age instead of by weight?

Tara Brandner: Unfortunately this has not been scientifically tested and we can't really
know.

Representative McWilliams: Do we have a precedent in law that says like for oxycodone
that you have to be the age 18 to prescribe that or other opioid pain killers?

Tara Brandner: You have to remember this is a federally illegal drug, it is not oxycodone or
a prescription.

Representative McWilliams: Should we be looking at something weight based instead of
age based?

Chairman Weisz: Basically it is trial and error because there is no research that tells you if
you weigh 85 pounds you should have this much oil.

Representative Anderson: Could we solve some of this with a patch and go back to
pediatric marijuana is and limit the 6%.

Chairman Weisz: If we go to page 8 line 18 and just say that it could any of the products
as long as they stay at 6%. The committee agrees to limiting it at the 6% maximum THC. We
would add the tincture, capsule, patches, topical would all be available if they can be at 6%.
We will add the language that shows those products.

Tara Brandner: So you would be saying that medical marijuana products under 6% would
be allowed for pediatrics.

Chairman Weisz: Yes, that is what the committee is saying. Continuing on the definitions:
24 Verification system
25 Written certification. We would change physician to healthcare provider.

Representative Anderson: That's where “Physician’s professional opinion” needs to
come out.

Chairman Weisz: The physician has the ability to recommend then it says if they on page
9 line 25 where it says “authorized the use of dried leaves or flowers” and on to the physician’s
professional opinion”. | am not sure about the physician giving the professional opinion.

Tara Brandner: The reason for adding this on the Senate side there was some hope that
dried leaves and flowers would go back in. When we are talking a medicinal product, that
medicine is producible and it is consistent. The dried leaves and flowers in a dosage is
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neither. There is also a vaporization method. The concern is how you get the product into
your body.

Representative P. Anderson: You are saying a physician says. Here’s the condition that
made them available for marijuana but as a last resort it is dried leaves and flowers. The
physician is not involved in this.

Tara Brandner: It is the physician who can authorize dried leaves or flowers.

Representative McWilliams: Do physicians really know what is going to be the best? Do
they know?

Tara Brandner: The concerns the patients raised on the Senate side is here are certain
conditions that can only be helped by smoking the leaves and flowers. They asked who
would be best in answering that and the physician would be best. | think there is a concern
about the inhaling carcinogens.

Representative Schneider: That really is saying a physician is prescribing. No physician is
going to do that. | would suggest putting a period on line 30 page 9 after debilitating medical
condition. Let the physician do what is best, they know about carcinogens.

Representative McWilliams: As far as | know smoking is still legal. Smoking is putting
carcinogens into your body. No doctor is going to tell you that you should smoke.

Tara Brandner: It is legal to smoke tobacco but under state or federal law it is illegal to
smoke marijuana. If we talking again about a medicinal product and are dried leaves and
flowers really medicinal. This is the language the Senate preferred.

Representative P. Anderson: We should just end where Representative Schneider said at
condition. | think this just limits the smoking of the leaves and flowers. (See Attachment #6)

Tara Brandner: There are some states that limit to specifically oils. It is not that the dried
leaves and flowers can’t be used in the products, it is only that you can’t just smoke them on
their own.

Representative P. Anderson: | think we will have a problem if we can’t have smoking to
use it.

Representative Skroch: Has there been a lot of interest in getting the dried leaves and
flowers in Minnesota if they were limited to the oils?

Tara Brandner: They just allow all the other things in Minnesota except the dried leaves
and flowers. They will not offer the dried leaves and flowers because they don't feel it is
medicine.

Representative P. Anderson: Our measure said you can smoke it, that is where the 2.5
ounces came from and they were talking about the size of a joint.
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Tara Brandner: Itis not that smoking is not allowed under this measure but it would require
an extra step of a physician saying that would be your most beneficial product.

Chairman Weisz: Instead of stopping at your period on line 30 you could just say the
physician can authorize the use of dried leaves or flowers in a combustible form.

Representative P. Anderson: | would like to talk to some physician’s to see if they would
sign for someone to smoke it.

Chairman Weisz: That way they could come to the physician, say that the smoking would
help them and get the doctor to sign the certificate.

Representative McWilliams: | think we are going to get into this again when we get to
growing it. The ability to grow your own is in the original measure itself and if we take that out
and put in that you have to consult your doctor to be able to smoke it. We will end up with
more problems.

Chairman Weisz: Currently the bill does not allow growing your own. So we are talking
about going to a dispensary and getting their product.

Representative P. Anderson: Maybe the card could say all useable forms of medical
marijuana. That way it would include smoking.

Chairman Weisz: We are just saying that the doctor gives the certification.

Tara Brandner: The way it is written right now it does say it on the card that they can get
any form. It would identify that the option was available.

Representative P. Anderson: We should stop at delivery on the bottom of page 9, the
other is a last resort.

Chairman Weisz: It would need to say something about the physician may authorize the use
of dry leaves and flowers. So we will stop after the word delivery on the last line page 9.

Representative Skroch: Would the Health Department be more comfortable allowing the
other forms on the card if this process with the physician takes place. Do they need that kind
of protection in there to be able to write those rules?

Chairman Weisz: The compromise removes that and they can write the rules because we
are not limiting them and they will write the rules according to this. The last sentence Section
2 on page 10 would stay in where it starts “ a written certification” up to Section 3.

Tara Brandner: We did add the definitions of the products in our amendments and the local
zoning laws and we had changes on the allowable amounts. (See Attachment #1)

Chairman Weisz: We already limited it to the 2000 mg in a 30- day period for all the
products. We agreed to add the all the products and the maximum of 6% THC for topicals.
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Representative McWilliams: When | first looked at this | thought it was only for pediatric
that was 6%, but this is saying that all of these are limited to 6%.

Tara Brandner: Yes it is limited to 6% for lotion for your skin or head. That number is based
on Oregon’s percentage they allow in their topical. They have had medicinal marijuana since
1998.

Representative Porter. The only problem | had with zoning is, are we creating a new
definition of what local zoning is or is this just what is already in place? Why do we need a
definition of local zoning?

Tara Brandner: Local governments have the authority to regulate time place and manner.
This was proposed by the League of Cities and the Association of Counties so they had the
specificity in statute which they could reflect to. We are just being very clear about what we
mean by that/

Representative Porter: But if we don’t put what we mean by that then it defaults to a different
section of the code.

Representative Devlin: | don'’t think we need the part time, place and manner. That is what
they have in their ordinances. Whatever they have in there is up to them. If we don’t put that
in there it falls back to Century Code.

Stephanie Dassinger, Deputy Director of League of Cities: \We asked this language to
be included to make it clear what our authority is. In cities it is not as much of a problem,
because we have ordinance making authority under title 40. Counties it is less clear exactly
how far their zoning authority goes. This provides more clarification for counties and
townships on how they can regulate the zoning for these particular facilities.

Chairman Weisz: So you want the time, place and manner. Ok committee what do you want
to do.

Stephanie Dassinger: Yes, | don’t know that zoning is defined in code real clearly. There
is case law but to my knowledge there isn’t one clear definition.

Chairman Weisz: Representative Devlin says we can get rid of time, place and manner and
Representative Porter wants to just get rid of it altogether.

Representative Skroch: What if one of these centers wants to go 7 days a week 24
hours/day and it is against the city ordinance. Would that be defined by zoning laws?

Chairman Weisz: | think that would be covered by the language. It would give the ability
to the local on how when and where it goes.

Representative Porter: \When you get into the bill on page 57 line 15 it says you have to
have the approval of the local zoning law so they already have the authority. It is a common
practice inside the local zoning law. | don’t see the need to put a new definition in here




House Human Services Committee
SB 2344

3/127/17

Page 15

Representative Devlin: | agree with Representative Porter.

Chairman Weisz: Certainly they would have time to address all of this in their zoning
ordinances prior to this going into effect.

Representative Porter: This was my concern in the beginning so that if the boards say they

are not going to have a facility in their town. They could already say no we aren’t having it in
our town.

Representative Westlind: | would leave it off completely.

Chairman Weisz: Committee how many want to leave it in or out? For now we will leave it
out.

Representative P. Anderson: If we are following Oregon and the maximum concentration
the 6% and 50 mg and they allow 4000 mg maximum and we allow 2000 Mg. | think we
should increase it to 3000 mg. If they have been in the business that long and we are doing
only half of the amount.

Chairman Weisz: | think the limits are in there so that they do not sell what they have left
over.

Tara Brandner: We talked to Oregon and they said that the 4000 they allow was very high
and that their patients had adapted to that. We just divided it in half and came up with 2000.

Representative P. Anderson: So our patients would adapt to that as well. So | say we
should move it to 3000 mg.

Representative Skroch: There was a testimony this morning that 2000 was a good number
as a starting point and | am comfortable staying at that point.

Stephanie Dassinger: It is an impossible number to come up with so that is why we did
separate the oils and concentration of THC and see what the concern was. We started at
4000 and went in half. It was just decided 2000 would be the starting point.

Chairman Weisz: How many want 2000, how many 30007 2000 wins.

Representative P. Anderson: How about 25007?

Chairman Weisz: Moving on to Section 3?7 (2:31:42)

Representative Porter: \We just need to clean up the language on the bottom of page 11
and make it consistent, like the healthcare providers.

Chairman Weisz: We need to remove the language on page 11 lines 27 from “attestation”
through line 29 where it says “palliative benefits”. But the “signature and date” still has to be
in place. We already removed that somewhere else, so we have to remove it here too.
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Representative Schneider: | have an amendment to decrease the card price to $50 for
individuals on SSI, SSDI, medical assistance and Veterans.

Chairman Weisz: | would just as soon set a fee and keep it there for all of them. | would
agree $200 is a bit high. We are looking at $50.

Representative Porter: | am fine with $100.

Representative Skroch: | think $100 is ok.

Representative Devlin: | think $50 is enough for everyone.

Chairman Weisz: We have two proposals. How many people want $100 and how many
want $50? Ok it looks like the $50 wins. It has to support itself though, so we will have a
discussion further down the road. Just so we are clear this will change the fiscal note a few

hundred thousand.

Chairman Weisz: Are there any other changes in Section 3. We have to make the changes
to add APRN all the way through.

Representative McWilliams: On page 11 number 5, what does the “medical justification”
looks like?

Tara Brandner: We looked at Delaware’s forms and this was on their forms to clarify that
the patient has cancer and here is my medical reason why.

Chairman Weisz: So is everyone ok with that?

Representative McWilliams: The Bona fide physician patient relationship. Could we run
into a problem where you would have to have a previous relationship with that physician,
because if you went to a specialist you may not have much of a relationship, you may just
see him once?

Chairman Weisz: It would be a one on one relationship. You would be under the care of
the doctor that is treating you for whatever the reason for the treatment is. (2:41:37)

Representative Skroch: Line 26 page 12, we say if the applicant is a minor we mean it is
under the age of 197

Chairman Weisz: Yes. A minor is defined as under age 19.
Chairman Weisz: Section 4 is there any changes?
Representative Porter: We need to change the fee from $200 to $50 in two places.

Chairman Weisz: Does anyone else have a problem with section 47
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Representative Seibel: | struggle with the criminal history check because there is a lot of
people on opioids and other things and they don’t have to go through a background check.

Chairman Weisz: Is that for the care giver or the individual?

Tara Brandner: The individual or qualifying patient is not required to have a criminal
background check. ltis just the care giver and the agents and employees of the Compassion
Center that have to have a criminal background. Not the patient.

Chairman Weisz: Are you ok with that if the patient doesn’t have to have that?
Representative Seibel: Yes.

Representative P. Anderson: We are talking about a registered care giver and if my son
was the caregiver, | don’t think he should have to have a criminal background check either,
if there are 5 people then that person should have a background check.

Tara Brandner: In the measure there is an exception for the fee so if you were the caregiver
and your son was the patient, if you are a care giver the measure required a background
check for everyone so the department did not change that.

Representative P. Anderson: | wonder if we could make an exception if it is just a family
care giver.

Representative Skroch: |just think it is something we need to be sure they are not dealing
drugs.

Chairman Weisz: Section 5. Now we are into the qualifying.

Representative Seibel: So where ever physician is in here it will be changed to healthcare
provider, correct?

Chairman Weisz: Yes.

Representative P. Anderson: | have an amendment so that if someone is extremely ill the
health department might be able to expedite a card on page 19 number 4.

Chairman Weisz: It says 30 calendar days and obviously it takes time to process the card
and then it could be expedited under those conditions or a temporary card.

Representative Skroch: If we start developing the registry of care givers could someone
that was extremely ill use someone else’s caregiver and be able to access the care giver that
way rather than having to apply for it you personally?

Tara Brandner: The patient would have to apply and qualify, the departments intent is to do
it as quickly as possible. Especially in those situations. The goal was because the
department doesn’t know how many applications that they will get, that it was the 30 days
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from application. As to the care giver point they would have to have a card to go to a care
giver.

Chairman Weisz: | think you could give priority to terminally ill people in the application
process and get the card out as quickly as possible. | don’t think you need to put that into
code.

Tara Brandner: The intent of the department is to go through the applications as fast as
possible within the means they have available to them.

Representative Skroch: | started with qualified patient and designated care givers page 19
with 30 days. | thought that was just for the care giver.

Tara Brandner: Both the patient and the designated care giver will have to apply to the
department. A patient could apply themselves if they need it faster, because the patient
doesn’t have to have a care giver.

Representative Seibel: | have a question in subsections 6 and 7 about the application that
they can deny if they forget something and then can’t apply again for a year. What if they
miss one little thing in an application and they have to wait a year to reapply. | think that is
too extreme in case they just forgot something.

Chairman Weisz: | think they should be able to reapply right away again and produce the
right materials.

Representative Schneider: Page 20 on line 14, | think it gives the department a little wiggle
room. We could limit it to C and D too.

Arvy Smith: The intent was not to deny anyone, but if we try and try and can’t get us what
we need then they would be denied. We would not deny because they missed one piece. |
don’t know what wording | would suggest but the intent wasn’t that.

Representative Seibel: We have it on record of what the intent was so we can go back to
that if we have to.

Chairman Weisz: Anything else in Section 5?

Tara Brandner: We did have a minor change on page 20 line 8 after the word “act” it should
say “as”. Itis just missing that word.

Chairman Weisz: Hearing adjourned on SB 2344.
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Chairman Weisz: Re-opened the discussion on SB 2344. We are starting at section 6 on
page 23, the language about expiration date. If there’s nothing further there we can move
on. On page 41 it talks about transferability. Is everyone okay with that? Hearing nothing,
let's go on to section 8. This is asking for a 30-day notification. Is everyone ok with this?
Hearing nothing, we will go on. We're on the bottom of page 50. | know there are questions.
We need to address it because some of this language came about because initially we were
still looking at allowing home growing. On page 29 the department may conduct an onsite
interview of a card holder or registry identification card applicant to determine application or
renewal eligibility. This doesn't just include the caregiver or the compassion center agent, it
also includes the patient or the card holder.

Representative P. Anderson: If we just take out qualifying patient will that work? If | carry
my own card, | don'’t think the Health Department should be able to call and say they are
coming into your home in 24 hours. If I'm a designated caregiver for other people | get it, but
| don’t know that they should just come into an individual’'s home.

Representative Skroch: Are we going to take out growing in your home then? If we allow
that then it has to be in here to be able to know how much they are growing.

Chairman Weisz: Yes, if we allow them to grow their own we will have to change this. At
this stage the bill doesn’t have that. The proposal would be to eliminate qualifying patients
from the onsite interview.

Representative Skroch: | would be okay with that as long as the other safeguards are in
place that determine how many doses and so forth, a person can get their hands on.
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Chairman Weisz: We've already approved that language that talks about the limits and
things.

Tara Brandner, legal counsel for the North Dakota Department of Health: This language
came from the original measure so it would allow the department to enter the home of a
qualifying patient, a designated caregiver, or with the compassion center. It was the goal to
monitor when plants were available. Without the plants | don’t think the department is as
concerned. There was a concern about possibly addressing identification issues, but that
could be done in a way that doesn’t involve entering a patient’'s home.

Chairman Weisz: By identification do you mean who they are?

Tara Brandner: Yes. The patient will send in their application, their identification, and some
other information. If there is a concern about whether or not the patient is who they say they
are that would be when the department anticipated they would use this. | don’t think it's
necessary for the department to achieve what their goal is, so the department isn’t opposed
to this.

Chairman Weisz: | would hope not because DOT doesn’t seem to have to go to the homes
to ID, which is pretty stringent.

Representative McWilliams: On the top of page 51 line 1 where it says, “our compassion
center agent”, is the word “agent” a problem? What exactly does that mean when it says
‘compassion center agent” instead of just “compassion center”?

Tara Brandner: A compassion center agent is anyone who is either an owner, employer, or
volunteer. If your concern is entering individual's homes, you could strike the entire
language. Right now the department has the authority, later in the bill, to enter the premises
of the compassion center. If they were concerned about the compassion center agents, then
they would just visit them at the compassion center, more than likely not their homes. The
department isn't opposed to striking the entire number 1 if that was decided.

Chairman Weisz: That may make more sense.
Tara Brandner: The only concern with that is as long as the girl is not back in.

Chairman Weisz: Right, if it comes back in then we’ll have to readdress that issue.
Committee, we will strike Number 1. Number 2 is getting into the center itself. That requires
an onsite. Are there any problems with number 2? Number 3 seems reasonable so we
should be able to provide what they need. Number 4 is failure to provide the needed
information.

Representative McWilliams: In looking at number 3, are there any limits to what that could
be limited to? Could that be carried over to medical records? | wonder if that language is
too broad.

Chairman Weisz: It's broad because they are having to determine they are who they say
they are.
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Tara Brandner: One of the other things we noticed in researching other states is that they
require the qualifying patients to sign a HIPAA release because they are saying if we need
these records we can obtain them. The likelihood the department would go looking through
somebody’s medical records is low, | think they will rely on a doctor's statement. In the
instance when that might come into question then at least they have the ability to do that.

Chairman Weisz: No issues with number 4. They can take action. Number 5.

Tara Brandner: There is an alternative section further in the bill that discusses the review
of compassion centers as a whole, so if you want to remove the word “premises” you could
because that's addressed later in the bill.

Chairman Weisz: That is covered so you would be okay with that?
Tara Brandner: Yes. Section 21 of the bill addresses the inspection of compassion centers.

Chairman Weisz: We will remove the word “premises” so we'll say “the material owner
information is provided may result” then “take an action.” | don’t see anything on number 5.
Anything on number 6? That seems self-evident. Number 7.

Tara Brandner: The department did all the amendments that are proposed to include
removing the words, “registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver” and
replacing that with “cardholder.” Cardholder is a defined word that we use to mean those
people so it's really just clean up language. That would be for 5, 6, and 7.

Chairman Weisz: Is everybody okay with changing that to cardholder? Okay. We'll worry
about the technical language there. Number 7 is when they have to provide written notice,
five days to correct the violation. If you have a violation and you close the place down what
happens to the product?

Tara Brandner: The intent is for the department to address the disposal of marijuana
product in administrative rule. They would have the authority to do that. If the place is shut
down it would have to go through law enforcement.

Chairman Weisz: Let’s say they temporarily lose their license and then they get it back.

Tara Brandner: My understanding is that there is the ability, if a license is suspended for a
period of time, the compassion center would ultimately be able to keep their product, they
just wouldn’t be able to dispense.

Chairman Weisz: On page 52 is there anything on D and E? Everybody’s okay. We'll go
on to section 10. Does anybody have anything? It gives you 10 days to give you a change
of address notice. |s that number just pulled out of the air or does it have anything to do with
other areas?

Tara Brandner: | believe that number came from the original measure.
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Chairman Weisz: Is there anything else in section 10?

Representative McWilliams: | think we should change that 10 days to 30 days since
everything has to be changed when they move and a lot of things get missed.

Representative Skroch: Can this all be done online?
Tara Brandner: | can’t answer that.
Chairman Weisz: If we change it to 30 days then everything has to be changed.

Tara Brandner: In addition to the change of a name or address we are also talking about a
change that would render the patient no longer eligible.

Chairman Weisz: You're giving them 30 days also to continue using the product when they
are not eligible.

Representative McWilliams: Is that 10 business days or is that 10 calendar days?
Chairman Weisz: It's 10 calendar days.

Representative McWilliams: If we aren’t going to change it to 30 days then how about two
weeks?

Representative Skroch: Instead of that just say 10 business days.

Tara Brandner: | believe calendar days is used throughout the bill so instead of switching
to business days in the end it may be more efficient just to say the 14 calendar days.

Representative Skroch: In line 19 where we use physician, will we just make the
adjustments on that?

Chairman Weisz: Yes.

Representative Skroch: Then on lines 24 and 25 where it says registered qualified patient,
maybe we could change that to cardholder.

Chairman Weisz: Yes, that's in the amendment they proposed. All the technical changes
we won’t cover anymore because they will all be made, and Jennifer in Legal Council will
make the changes where it needs to be cardholder versus agent. How many want to change
it from 10 calendar days to 14 days? There are four. How many want to leave it the same?
There are six. | guess it will stay the same, it will stay 10 calendar days for this one. There
is a part in number 6 that says you have to dispose of any usable marijuana within 15
calendar days. If your card becomes void for whatever reason, then number 6 on page 53
states you have 15 days to dispose of any usable marijuana. Your department would then
say how to dispose of it?

Tara Brandner: Correct.
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Representative Skroch: How do you enforce that if you don'’t allow an in home inspection?
How do you guarantee they are destroying a product in 15 days?

Chairman Weisz: You can'’t guarantee it, but if you get stopped, you have it in possession,
and you don’t have a card then you'll be in trouble.

Representative Skroch: Who enforces it?
Chairman Weisz: Law enforcement for possession of marijuana.

Tara Brandner: Essentially, those cards will have an ID number and law enforcement will
have access to an electronic system so they can verify whether or not that card is valid. If
somebody’s card was expired and they would still be in possession, then law enforcement
has the ability to determine that.

Vice Chairman Rohr: How do they destroy the stuff?
Tara Brandner: That's something the department was looking at with other states.

Kenan Bullinger, North Dakota Department of Health: We visited a bit with our division
of Waste Management who oversees all, either destruction by burning or burying in landfills.
We would work with them in the adoption process.

Chairman Weisz: You're going to ask the person to bring the product back in then you will
dispose of it.

Vice Chairman Rohr: They wouldn’t be going into a pharmacy and dropping everything into
the pill box?

Kenan Bullinger: Not at all.

Chairman Weisz: Are we okay with 5, 6, and 7?7 Let's go on to Section 11. Now we'’re
talking about what's going to be on the cards. Based on our language change we said the
doctor would authorize it, so wouldn'’t that be fine then? Part of that letter of recommendation
from the doctor says that patient is authorized to use the dried leaves.

Representative P. Anderson: I'm still struggling with the fact that a doctor can do that but
that’'s how we left it in the bill.

Chairman Weisz: It was more of a compromise | guess. That would be covered there at
least unless that language came back out completely then there would be an issue here.

Tara Brandner: The intent of that language is because the combustibles require that extra
step, and that’s identified on the card, so the patient would easily be able to obtain that
product.
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Chairman Weisz: The card would show that identifying they can use the combustible
product.

Representative Skroch: In our drivers licenses we have things in them to make sure they
are not fake or duplicated, will these cards have that too?

Kenan Bullinger: Yes, there will be characters in these cards as well. We talked with DOT
and their system would be very expensive to convert to what we need, but we found another
system that is much less expensive. DOT had told us it would be $200,000 and we found a
system that would allow us to do that at a much less cost to the department. They would
have needed to make a legislative change to be able to do that as well.

Chairman Weisz: Tara, on g it says if you're a designated caregiver then it has to show the
qualifying patients. As patients come and go for that caregiver...

Tara Brandner: Under the measure as written a caregiver has the authority to go to a
dispensary and purchase the product on the patient’s behalf, up to five patients. The intent
is that a caregiver will have, in addition to their own member, they will also have the member
of their patients. If their patient is no longer eligible they should no longer be able to purchase
for them. By having both members on there it would allow the dispensary to know that both
cards are active and valid.

Chairman Weisz: | understand all that. Say I'm a caregiver for Karen so that’s on the card,
then | pick up Representative Kiefert, and now | have to get a new card right away.

Tara Brandner: You'd have a new card for each patient. As soon as Karen is no longer
eligible that card would not be valid.

Chairman Weisz: | would have my own card as a caregiver?
Tara Brandner: You'll have a card that lists each one.
Vice Chairman Rohr: How do you dispose of the cards that are no longer active?

Tara Brandner: I’'m not positive about that. | think that is something the department would
address in administrative rules. Since they have that number on them they would ultimately
be invalidated, sort of like how your driver’s license would no longer scan. The department
and the dispensaries are all required to scan it and make sure it is valid at all times. Law
enforcement has that ability as well. Even if you possess the card, if you've been determined
that you are no longer eligible it will come back as no longer eligible.

Chairman Weisz: Let's go on to section 12. Now we’re getting into the manufacturing and
collation.

Representative P. Anderson: | have received a lot of emails about the manufacturing and
dispensaries need to be different owners. Is that what the bill says? It seems to me this says
you can grow and dispense with the same corporate people.
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Tara Brandner: Your corporate structures have to be different. Your owners could be the
same but you would have to have different legal entities.

Representative P. Anderson: How do you feel about being the same?
Tara Brandner: I'll let Arvy respond.

Arvy Smith, Department of Health: We had discussions with the perspective investors and
more than one of them talked about how you have to have a physical separation of those
two entities. We really didn’t get into a lot of discussion either way, whether the actual owners
of those needed to be separate. Physical locations and separate entities would need to be.
Same owners are not specified, that it isn’'t allowed as it currently stands. We don’t have
strong feelings. We don’t want a big organization to come in and form a monopoly, but maybe
that wouldn’t happen in North Dakota.

Representative P. Anderson: What do other states do?
Arvy Smith: We're seeing a combination of that; some do and some don't.

Representative Skroch: If we would permit the same owner but of a different LLC or
corporate structure where they set up their business, once a monopoly is established that
system it would be very hard for someone else to compete with that structure. | feel we
should have multiple people involved and let it sort itself out as they go along.

Arvy Smith: We talked about dealing with that in administrative rule or through preferences,
like what if we don’t get enough applicants? We need to go that route to provide access. As
we look at applications, if we don’t get anything else in we may have to go that route in order
to get access to dispensaries. Initially, when this measure passed we had many phone calls
from people who wanted to start a business in North Dakota; both local and out of state
people. | always referred them to the 15 pages of requirements to run one of these places
in North Dakota. I'm not sure if this has deterred people or not from starting a business in
North Dakota.

Chairman Weisz: You put your language in here for four manufacturing and aid
dispensaries. Minnesota is losing a lot of money in the manufacturing. Having four
manufacturing areas in our small state, is that going to be an issue?

Arvy Smith: It comes to how many conditions are covered and how many forms of product
are allowable. Minnesota is very restrictive in these areas, we're more similar to Delaware
so that's who we look to. They have three but they are geographically small.

Chairman Weisz: But on the manufacturing that’s not really an issue.

Arvy Smith: Right. On the manufactured row it's not as big of a deal as dispensaries.

Chairman Weisz: How long have they done this in Delaware?

Arvy Smith: Two years.
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Representative P. Anderson: Are they limited to 1,000 plants?
Arvy Smith: | think that's where that came from.

Chairman Weisz: How many dispensaries does Delaware have?
Arvy Smith: [ think they were together.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Are we going to be geographically locating these centers so that
there’s not an access for these people?

Arvy Smith: Yes, we will look at those applications that come in, look at first come first
service, and then geographic area. We're not going to put four of them in Fargo and none
anywhere else. We also require them to tell us about their distribution plans of how they're
going to assure access in their area.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Representative Anderson, what are the people that are contacting
you saying about the issue with manufacturing and dispensing under one umbrella?

Representative P. Anderson: The product could be more expensive. | think limiting it to
four farms would be a mistake as well. What happens if one of the farms gets a disease or
gets in trouble?

Representative McWilliams: In the hearing there was one testimony that said we should
maybe look at canopy size instead of plant count. Does the department have more
information on that?

Chairman Weisz: We're not at that point in the bill yet. | have a problem with the four farms
as well. | think you're going to have a problem with viable competition.

? speaker: That is a difficult issue, there is no doubt about it. It depends on how many
qualifying patients we get to register. Two growers may be enough while four may not be
enough. We have no way of knowing how many or how much we need.

Chairman Weisz: Number 4 on page 56 gives you the ability. From the information | got |
think there is going to be reluctance for legitimate growers to come in. | would prefer that we
cut that number and then give the department the option of raising it. It won’t help if we have
20 growers and they are all bankrupt then they won’t help anyone. Do you have any idea
how many patients they have?

Tara Brandner: Just over 2,000. Minnesota invested heavily in labs at their own facility and
does a lot of research and development as well so that increases their costs.

Representative Skroch: Wouldn't it be a good idea for us to have NDSU or some other
college doing research too? |Is that a dangerous place to go if we're allowing other
manufacturers to develop the procedures and so forth for manufacturing?
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Tara Brandner: My understanding is that the federal government has been very specific
about who can do research and development on marijuana because it is a federally illegal
drug. My assumption is that NDSU would not be willing to jeopardize federal funding unless
they were authorized by the federal government to do this.

Representative Skroch: Unless we’re bringing people of expertise in who already know how
to manufacture, they have to get it right. How do we get it right if we don’t know how to do
this right?

Tara Brandner: As far as Minnesota’s model, Leaf Lines is run by a medical doctor who has
a degree from Georgetown. The majority of their staff are forensic scientists and they have
a number of pharmacists on staff, so they have the skills to be in this area. The hope is that
a similar company would come to North Dakota or would be available in North Dakota.

Chairman Weisz: That's why | think we should start with two because it has to be worth their
while to come in and do it right. If we need more | think the department could do that.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Do they have a R and D arm?

Tara Brandner: | believe they do but | can’t say for certain. They have been developing
and they continue to develop their products to ensure they are safe for patients.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Do you know if they are getting federal dollars for the research?
Tara Brandner: They are not.

Vice Chairman Rohr: There is an arm under alternative medicine. It would be a possibility.
| like the idea of them doing it right.

Representative D. Anderson: Do you have any idea how much money a typical user
spends in other states?

Tara Brandner: | do not.

Kenan Bullinger: It's all over the board. They spend anywhere from $600 to $1000 a month
per user and not covered by insurance.

Representative P. Anderson: At our hearing there was someone that couldn’t get to the
hearing, but his parents have grown medical marijuana in Oregon since 1997. They do
research and development. He said the 1,000 plants are fine to start with, but if we could
add 50 plants in research and development only because they do that on the manufacturing
side.

Chairman Weisz: We'll have to discuss that plant limit once we get to that point in the bill.
What does the committee think on the manufacturing? | suggest that we drop the
manufacturing to two, add language of four, and give that flexibility to the department. We
would drop the manufacturing to two but add the flexibility of number four for the Health
Department to add manufacturing facilities.
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Everyone agreed
Chairman Weisz: What if you have two applications and that is it?

Kenan Bullinger: Based on the phone calls and emails | get, we will have more than two
people. We will have pretty stringent requirements though, so they won'’t all be able to do it.
When you're talking dispensaries, part of the process was to have them submit to us possible
distribution when they distribute into an area where we might not have a dispensary. That
would be one of our criteria for selection.

Chairman Weisz: I'm good with that then. We're going to add manufacturing on number 4.
We will go on to Section 13 which deals with manufacturing facilities.

Tara Brandner: We have changed the language regarding producing and processing which
would include the cultivating and everything else, so we've gone throughout the measure
and revised that language. Where it says “cultivating” it now says “processing and
manufacturing” is considered producing and processing.

Chairman Weisz: Does anyone have any questions or issues with section 13?7 We’ll move
on to section 14. We already had some discussion on local zoning on line 15.

Tara Brandner: The language relative to the local zoning was included in the original
measure.

Chairman Weisz: The question came up and they compared it to liquor licenses. Some of
those could be sold for $200,000. Could you have an issue of them because they would
define that as a different class of business that has a permit application of $20,000-40,000
for someone. There is concern of zoning costing them out of the market. Did that question
come up?

Tara Brandner: It didn’t come up with the Department of Health. I'm not an expert in local
zoning laws so | can’t say. This was the language from the original language.

Simon: We looked at it a bit to see how they would compare to liquor licenses and they are
all over the board all across the state. It is really established at the local level.

Representative Damschen: | wonder if there are any ramifications for counties or townships
that allow the growing or processing of federally illegal substance? Is there a liability issue
there?

Simon: | don’t know.
Representative Skroch: Is there a way to categorize these dispensaries more like a

pharmacy or drug store versus having them associated with liquor licenses? Maybe how it's
described will impact that and how zoning references this?
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Chairman Weisz: | was not comparing these to liquor licenses in that sense. | just know
that some communities can raise the prices and charge a lot for the licenses.

Representative Schneider: | wonder if someone has done some research where some
states have prohibitions on zoning restrictions as it relates to dispensaries or what we would
call a compassion care center? Have you checked to see what Delaware or other states
have done with making the zoning accessible and without exorbitant fees for these folks?

Simon: We have not looked into that. | think that's an issue the local planning and zoning
officials would address on their own.

Representative Schneider: | would appreciate it if someone would look into that because
the information | got was that some states have prohibited these centers from being zoned
out, or perhaps other restrictions I'm not aware of. Not wanting to get involved doesn’t give
us the whole picture of what's possible here.

Tara Brandner: We can look further into that. \We looked at Oregon and they allow the
exact opposite; they allow counties to decide. | believe Colorado does the same thing where
the counties have the jurisdiction to choose. | can look to see if there are any counties that
have the prohibition.

Representative P. Anderson: Downtown Moorhead has a dispensary, so maybe we won'’t
have a problem.

Tara Brandner: | don’t know Minnesota law relative to zoning.

Representative Skroch: What kind of business is this described as; what kind of license
would this fall under?

Tara Brandner: | can't speak to that exactly but my understanding is that the bill itself does
not classify it; that would be up to the local zoning to make that decision.

Chairman Weisz: We may need to clarify the manufacturing, dispensary, and ag business
because the Tax Department has raised that question. They don’t want it to fall into an ag
enterprise, because we don’t want them to get all of the deductions for ag. The bill doesn't
address that either way so then it will be open to a matter of interpretation. That's something
we’'ll need to clarify and have LC draft some amendments.

Stephanie Dassinger, League of Cities: Regarding the zoning, we have been meeting
with city attorneys mostly from the dispensary side for the cities and so far we'’re not seeing
a problem. Liquor license law gives us a very broad authority to control the alcohol and there
are some maximum fees that are associated. More of the exorbitant fees are more on the
business to business transfer where if you want to buy my bar we’ll include my liquor license
and apply to transfer it for x amount of dollars. | don't think the laws you're looking at for
marijuana are going to allow that. Ordinances from other states have a variety; some are
conditional use permits where you’d apply for any non-permitted use and there’s usually a
small fee for that. Other jurisdictions have had a separate permitting process specifically for
marijuana facilities. | don’t know how the cities would like to regulate this. You might want
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to put in a maximum fee that cities could charge if that's a worry for you. This will take city
council meetings and public hearings so there will be a cost associated to local governments
for permitting these.

Representative Damschen: |If they don’t zone it out are they subject to not being covered
by the insurance or any type of liability insurance?

Stephanie Dassinger, League of Cities: | would have to ask the insurance reserve fund
that question. | will get back to you with an answer.

Representative Schneider: Why wouldn’t this be considered more like a drugstore instead
of a liquor store so we don't price this product that already has a lot of fees and expense out
of the reach of people with disabilities?

Stephanie Dassinger: That has been discussed and the three cities that have been involved
with the committee have discussed allowing it as a use in the way that a pharmacy would be
a permitted use.

Chairman Weisz: So with more information coming is it alright to leave that language in
number 1 and 2 under D? Committee agreed. Under E it talks about it having to be locked
and not visible. Are there any questions? Under F there has been some questions. This
requires that they have consented to a criminal background check.

Representative P. Anderson: This is officers and board members but not investors, so this
is probably fine.

Tara Brandner: | can't recall if investors were required to identify themselves or not.
Chairman Weisz: Under G we’re talking about experience. Does it need to be in code?

Tara Brandner: The majority of this information comes from Delaware’s code. Some of it
we thought would be better in rules, but since it was here and done, we thought it was easier
to adopt it and not change it at this time. If it's left here instead of the department moving it
to rules, at least then its complete and the department doesn’t have to go through that
process.

Chairman Weisz: True. It begs the question of how you determine relevant experience and
that it qualifies.

Tara Brandner: The idea was that the individuals would submit this information and if the
department would enter into a situation where they had four people submit applications and
there were only two dispensaries allowed, some of this information may come into
consideration when determining who is best fit to operate the compassion center.

Representative Skroch: I've had conversations with people who are interested in this being
developed in North Dakota. They state there are people who are licensed pharmacists on
board and they’d be more qualified at dispensing these products than a dispensary who
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doesn’t have these professional people on board. | can see where that would be important
to include in the criteria.

Chairman Weisz: Is everyone comfortable with the language? In H and | that is strictly
security. Are we okay with those? J is just an operations manual that the department would
put together.

Tara Brandner: The compassion center would put that together and submit that. The
department has a change for K. After the word “patients” strike everything after and insert
“on the basis of registered qualifying patients with limited financial resources” just so it's not
limited to those individuals on those various programs.

Chairman Weisz: That just came off the measure?
Tara Brandner: That was originally put in there.

Chairman Weisz: The jest of it was in the measure. We are good with |? How about M? It
doesn’t require background but it does require loans of every investor having any interest.

Representative P. Anderson: There is a problem with M. The people that | have heard
from are fine with the board members and officers being checked, but not the investors
because they don’t have to do that with the Secretary of State.

Tara Brandner: The memo issued by the US Justice Department talks about things we have
to have in law in order to ensure we're meeting the federal guidance. One of those is
preventing diversion and preventing the people owning these facilities from being in the
process of illegal activities as well. This is to insure that the owner or investor is not someone
that might do this and divert the money or use it for illegal activities. The investors just need
to make a report; it is not meaning they would have to have background checks.

Representative McWilliams: What happens in the case where a compassion center is
renting a space and that space changes ownership?

Tara Brandner: They would submit that information to the department. These are all things
they need to have in their application in order to have a complete application.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Would this information be made public and be on your website?

Tara Brandner: No, | don't believe so. There are confidentiality provisions in the back and
if that is a concern it is something we could add to the confidentiality provisions.

Representative Schneider: What information would they have to disclose if it was a
corporation registering?

Tara Brandner: | can't speak to that for sure. | believe it would just be the information that
is required on the articles and the filings.
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Chairman Weisz: There is some opposition on this so which direction does the committee
want to go on this section?

Representative Skroch: | think since this information is confidential it may be important for
this investor/creditor portion to be included. This information may be helpful later in any
implements used to affect future changes to this in the legislature if there might be an investor
that may try and sway law a certain way because of their investment.

Chairman Weisz: Is this the majority? Let's go on to Number 2. This is laying out the
criteria the department is going to be using. Is everyone ok with A — H?

Vice Chairman Rohr: How will they do the testing? Will that be part of the operations?

Tara Brandner: The department will address the testing for medical marijuana in regulations
or how they anticipate that going. I'll let Kenan speak to the specifics.

Kenan Bullinger: We will be doing a lot of testing on this because we want to be sure that
we have a safe product. We'll be looking at a number of possible contaminants. No
pesticides will be allowed by the EPA. If any is present it will be considered to be adulterated
and it will have to be destroyed. We will look for molds, fungus, heavy metals, and anything
that could contaminate it. In Minnesota a lot of the manufacturers have invested in their own
testing. The equipment is very expensive, and we at the department, are not going to be
doing this. There is not a lab in the state of ND that can do this. We will not be doing this at
the State Health Department because we are not allowed to handle the product. We had
contact with one lab in Williston that is doing some minimal work for industrial hemp on PHC
content. They have expressed interest but | haven't touched base with them to see if they
expanded their laboratory capabilities. The lab equipment necessary for this is extremely
expensive. The planning for this and hiring of the scientists and chemists is pretty expensive.

Chairman Weisz: The way this is written; it is the responsibility of the applicant to have it
tested.

Kenan Bullinger: That's correct. The applicant will have to do the testing, so it will be their
cost.

Representative Skroch: Is there a way to contract with Minnesota to do our testing?

Kenan Bullinger: Reciprocity would have to be explored. That could be looked into, but
right now it can’t go over state lines. It is a federal law that it can’t be transported across the
state line.

Representative Skroch: In the event that we would do this, could we frame it as not being
an exchange of money in terms of the sale of product but just analysis?

Kenan Bullinger: We are fully supportive of that. We’re going to need a lab or we aren't
going to have product into the hands of qualifying patients. How we do that would need to
be worked out somehow, or this program won'’t move forward.
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Representative McWilliams: Is there a requirement when they get their product tested that
they have to disclose where the lab is or be able to certify the results from somewhere?

Kenan Bullinger: The lab that works for us will have to be certified and accredited. Our lab
certifies and accredits labs in North Dakota. If there was one that came forward like the one
in Williston, our lab would help certify and accredit that lab to do the work. We wouldn't
handle any product and wouldn’t double check what they’re doing, but we would look at their
results and the methodologies they used to get their results.

Representative P. Anderson: It doesn’t say the lab has to be located in North Dakota.
Couldn’t we contract with another lab to do our testing?

Kenan Bullinger: It all deals with the interstate movement of product and that not being
allowed. We’d have to work out those issues on the movement of product and work out a
reciprocity agreement.

Chairman Weisz: It's a federal issue that you can’t move product across state line. Until
the feds allow this there is nothing in this legislation that would prohibit an applicant from
using a Minnesota lab.

Representative McWilliams: Is the THC content testing the most expensive?

Kenan Bullinger: No, the THC content testing is the cheapest to test, it's less than $200
that the Ag Department is paying. The chemical analysis, heavy metal analysis, ICP testing,
and some others can be up to a million dollars per instrument.

Chairman Weisz: Ok committee, are we good with Section 14?7 We will take a break until
11:15.

Chairman Weisz: Section 15 is the registration certification. | don’t see any issue with this.
Section 16 is renewal.

Representative McWilliams: In section 15 line 25 it says, “$60,000 for a dispensary and
$80,000 for manufacturing facility”, how did they come up with those numbers and how do
they compare with other states?

Chairman Weisz: When we finish up the bill and do the fiscal note then we will come back
and address all of the questions regarding the dollar amounts. Section 16 is the renewal. |
see it requires a 60-day pre-application fee like we did for daycare centers. Are there any
questions? Section 17 says they're nontransferable. In other words, if someone else wants
to do it they have to start the process at the beginning and do it all. Section 18 states the
bylaws have to be provided. Page 62 section 19, says it requires financial reports and
maintains records for seven years. | don’t see an issue with that. Section 20 is the dispensing
part.

Representative P. Anderson: On line 28 “the usable marijuana dispensed to a minor must
be in the form of pediatric medical marijuana oil” so we’ll need to take “oil” out.
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Chairman Weisz: Good catch. That complies with what we did earlier. The department
wants to change line 30 to a registered designated qualifying patient.

Tara Brandner: We are just cleaning up the language.

Chairman Weisz: On page 63 the language in ¢ shouldn’t follow with the change we made
because that would be on the card if they can have the leaves or flowers.

Representative P. Anderson: With all of the 28 states, they all say the physician describes
it and may benefit and nobody excludes.

Chairman Weisz: Section 21 allows for random inspection. We all agree that is good.

Tara Brandner: On section 3 the department's change was removing the words fungi,
pesticides, and molds replacing it with contaminants. That way the department can address
what specifically those are in rule.

Chairman Weisz: Section 21 looks good. Now we’re on section 22.

Tara Brandner: This language in section 22 was put in here by the Department of
Agriculture. They just want to be sure the product is reported to them if it is contaminated so
that it can be destroyed.

Chairman Weisz: Why does it need to be reported to them because they're going to destroy
it anyway when it has a contaminant?

Tara Brandner: My understanding is that the Department of Agriculture regulates plants so
they want that information reported to them to ensure it would be destroyed.

Representative McWilliams: In number 4, it says the compassion center shall pay the cost
of all random quality sample testing. Wouldn't that make more sense if that was the
manufacturer?

Tara Brandner: Correct. The compassion center includes both the manufacturer and the
dispensary. If, for some reason, the dispensary would have a product or they would be
concerned about a product, if that product was to be tested they would want that cost to go
to the dispensary. Likely, the dispensaries were purchasing product from a manufacturer
making sure the manufacturer has tested the product to ensure its safety. They want to sell
a good product to their patient.

Representative Devlin: In section 22, if the department of environmental quality goes
through the legislature they might want to be involved in this section as well because of the
pesticide.

Kenan Bullinger: The Ag Department is in here because this would be a misuse of a
pesticide so they would take the regulatory responsibility over making sure that product is
destroyed properly, just as they would any other food producing crop.
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Chairman Weisz: Section 23 gets into the volume. Where did you come up with the 1,000
plants and why did we need to limit the number of plants for the manufacturer?

Tara Brandner: The 1,000 limit and the 3,500 ounces both came from the original measure.
In conversations the department had with potential growers and manufacturers they didn’t
see an issue with the plant limit so there was no change.

Chairman Weisz: Why do we care?

Tara Brandner: The department cares about the number of plants to ensure that diversion
isn't happening. If we have a vast number of plants, we need to ensure that they will stay
where they are supposed to be and compassion centers don’t have access then the desire
is there to divert that into the illegal market.

Chairman Weisz: When you say 3,500 ounces is usable is that dried or what’s that based
on? It's based on weight but the weight on what?

Tara Brandner: It is the weight of the entire product. | think it's around 200 some pounds.

Chairman Weisz: How do you do the limit of 3,500 ounces? What about the moisture
content?

Tara Brandner: It is 3,500 ounces of product. This wouldn't be a THC thing. There is no
requirement that the dispensary had that much at any point in time. If they go through 3,500
ounces a day they could get that from the manufacturing facility. We are limiting the
manufacturing plant regardless of what form it is.

Representative P. Anderson: Could we put something in here about having 50 plants in the
manufacturing for research and development? Then we wouldn'’t be taking the 50 out of the
usable 1,000.

Tara Brandner: | think that's more of a policy question.

Representative P. Anderson: If we're limiting it to plants we could put in there a
manufacturing facility could have no more than 50 just for research and development.

Kenan Bullinger: | don’t know that the department would have any problem with that. We
would definitely want to earmark which of those are to an identification process. Every plant
in a grow facility will have an ID number and tag so that they can be tracked when it's
harvested. If those 50 plants are used for research and development, we'll want to make
sure we can track that some way as well.

Representative P. Anderson: | think that would be okay.
Chairman Weisz: | guess we could do that but we need to specify it was for research and

development only then read the rules on how they were going to track it through the
department.
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Representative Westlind: What happens to those plants when they are done with research?
Are they used or are they destroyed?

Representative P. Anderson: It would be my understanding that they would be destroyed.
They could put that into the rules.

Representative Schneider: Could we put something in there that would allow up to 50 plants
for research and development at the department’s discretion?

Vice Chairman Rohr: Would you design the research protocol and what they can study?
Kenan Bullinger: | don'’t think we want to get into that. It would take some oversight. It
would be to do hybrids and cross pollinate so that's where | would see the most benefit of

this. If they wanted to do medical research on them, we wouldn’t direct them on that.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Who's doing the research? Are they qualified? Do they understand
the process?

Kenan Bullinger: We could spell it out in the rules.

Chairman Weisz: The majority of the research is ag research to grow a better plant. So the
committee is ok with adding up to 50 plants for research.

Representative D. Anderson: | think that would have to be in a separate room because if
there is cross pollination your results wouldn'’t be very accurate.

Representative Westlind: If they have new stronger and better plants would the seeds be
destroyed with the plants when they have to destroy them? | think that is unnecessary.
Normally a grower would probably, in the process of production, try new strains just like any
other type of farming operation. If you found a good new strain, then save some of the seed
to expand that particular variety.

Chairman Weisz: | don'’t think that they would destroy the seed. They wouldn’t be able to
use the plant either. It would be up to the Health Department to set the rules on that.

Tara Brandner: | don't think this would be the Health Department. I'm not sure if the Ag
Department would be involved.

Chairman Weisz: You can’t do GMOs without having approval from the USDA.

Kenan Bullinger: | don’t know if the Ag Department would have the authority but the State
Seed Department, which | think is at NDSU, may have some jurisdiction.

Chairman Weisz: Their jurisdiction isn't certified as registered seed.

Vice Chairman Rohr: We have an Ag research center in Mandan.
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Chairman Weisz: That is the USDA. They aren’t regulated; they’re just researching crops
for the northern plains.

Representative Schneider: The only reason | think this might be helpful is that they wouldn’t
have to come back if they wanted to do the research and development. It gives them the
flexibility to have a better plant or maybe have a better medicine that comes out of this.

Chairman Weisz: Do you like the 50 plant limit and then the department can establish the
rule?

Vice Chairman Rohr: How much are the plants worth? [f the research isn’t credible then
who'’s going to want to look at the recommendations? If there are rules set that will all have
to be determined. | think 50 plants is fine.

Representative McWilliams: What is the dollar value for 1,000 plants? In looking at the
bill, with the $80,000 application fee every other year, does 1,000 plants generate enough
income?

Tara Brandner: The value of the plants depends on how big they are. The plants coming
out of Colorado are worth up to $42,000 a plant but that will vary on the market and the size
of the plant. They are high producing plants.

Chairman Weisz: This is for 1,000 plants at any time, not just for the year. Section 24 relates
to security. | don’t see an issue with that.

Tara Brandner: The only change are the words cultivating or manufacturing.

Chairman Weisz: Section 25 is inventory controls. Does anyone have an issue with that?
Representative Porter: The only thing that | want to add a point about is adding the card
into an electronic form. Everyone else has to have all of that end coding and technology to
run the business, but yet we as a state can’t come up with an electronic card for this?
Broke for lunch.

Chairman Weisz: Called the committee back to order. We will continue with SB 2344.
Section 26 is setting up the criteria for the compassion center's operation manual. | don't
see any issues with this. Section 27 is the training curriculum. | don’t see any issues with

this section. Section 28 talks about the records with agents.

Representative P. Anderson: When we talk about these records, how do we know that all
of these records will be kept confidential.

Chairman Weisz: The confidentiality section is in section 37. That seems to address
everything.

Representative P. Anderson: Does the submission of the annual report cover everything
so is that open?
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Tara Brandner: Section 39 addresses the annual report and includes all of the things that
are out there would be covered.

Representative McWilliams: Can we change page 70 section 2a? Why is there the
duplication with the driver’s license?

Tara Brandner: This was language in the original measure. The department didn’t see a
problem leaving it in the event a person didn’t have a driver’s license or an identification card
with them.

Representative McWilliams: | would like to suggest we have it as an “or” otherwise you
have to go the Department of Vital Records and get a certified copy of the birth certificate.

Tara Brandner: Or you could remove “certified”.

Chairman Weisz: You should be able to say that the agent has to verify the person is 21
years of age. If they don’t have a driver’s license or ID, they would have to produce a copy
of the birth certificate. You could say you're verifying the agent is at least 21 years of age.
The issue under 2b is where it says it has to be a North Dakota resident.

Representative Porter: The other question we have to ask is if they have to be a citizen of
North Dakota, but do they have to be American citizens? It depends on what the department
is trying to get at here on whether or not they need to be.

Tara Brandner: Just to clarify the language was from the original measure requiring that the
individual is a North Dakota resident.

Chairman Weisz: Do you want to clarify that they have to be a resident of the United States?
You can be a resident of the state, but not an American. First, | think that we need to know if
the committee is ok with a manufacturer from out of state.

Representative McWilliams: | think that we need to think about letting people from other
states come and do it so we have some experience.

Representative Porter: It should matter to us where the person is from, but the company
has to be incorporated in our state and under our laws. If they are going to form a LLC, a
regular corporation, or a sub chapter S it has to be incorporated inside the state of North
Dakota so it's under our laws and under our control. As long as it's not from Delaware then
seeks shelter in the state of Delaware under their corporate structures.

Chairman Weisz: Is the committee ok with that?

Representative Porter: There is nothing that stops an individual who is not a resident of the
state from incorporating within the state.

Tara Brandner: There is something now in the measure for workers. If you wanted to make
that change | would suggest leaving b as it is on page 72. You could go over to 12 where it




House Human Services Committee
SB 2344

3/28/17

Page 21

discussed not withstanding subsection 2, “The department may issue a registry identification
card to an otherwise qualified compassion center agent who is not a North Dakota resident”
and strike the reference to the employer or volunteer and say “a qualified compassion center
agent who is not a North Dakota resident.

Chairman Weisz: Even so, would this language prohibit someone from incorporating
outside the state of North Dakota?

Tara Brandner: I'd have to go back and check but my understanding is that it had to be a
North Dakota LLC corporation or a not for profit corporation. If that isn’t addressed and that’s
the intent, then | think we can put that clearly in there.

Chairman Weisz: Where does it say that in the bill?
Tara Brandner: | thought it was in the part we already went through.
Chairman Weisz: It would be appreciated if you could find that.

Representative Skroch: Do we want to say that they have to be an American citizen? Do
we want to mention Mexico or Canada?

Chairman Weisz: When we say agent it also means the workers, so if someone lives in
Moorhead they would not be able to work at a compassion center in North Dakota if we
change this.

Tara Brandner: They would be under the way it is drafted. | think if we are going to put
something in here, | would suggest that it should be added in Section 14 under 11 c, page
57. They will have to register with the Secretary of State.

Representative Porter: There is a process with the Secretary of State. It can be formed or
incorporated in another state and be registered as a foreign corporation into the state of North
Dakota. If this is the intent in c, that it's a registered North Dakota entity, then we should be
clear and say that in here.

Chairman Weisz: That makes sense to me that they have to be a North Dakota entity.
Representative Porter: | have another question in Section 28, it doesn't list that the records
could be maintained electronically. Sometimes if it doesn’t say that it could be electronic they

cannot use them.

Tara Brandner: | don't think the department has a position if that would help a compassion
center at a reduced cost.

Representative Porter: We just need to be clear that the electronic records are permissible.

Chairman Weisz: We can add by electronic means. Everybody seems to be okay with it
being an out of state resident. There is the issue if they have to be a United States citizen.
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If we change the language on page 72 number 12, it would take care of that issue but it
doesn’t address a US citizen.

Representative McWilliams: Can we pass a law limiting foreigners from being an employee
of a private business if they have a valid US work permit? If they have to have a background
check and if they came from a foreign country, it may be legal to do it but they may not be
qualified.

Chairman Weisz: If the problem crops up we can address it in two years. If people are
going to divert it, they will find a way to divert it. | think the requirements are such that it will
be difficult for them get a card. They would be taking a huge risk.

Tara Brandner: If an individual would produce documentation that would be false then they
wouldn't be given an agent license. If the concern is that they would produce by
documentation the process is developed to leave that out.

Chairman Weisz: We all agree we’ll take out that language on page 72 that says “the
department may issue an identification card to an otherwise qualified compassion center
agent who is not a North Dakota resident.”

Representative Schneider: On page 71 are we changing the renewal fee of $200 to $507?

Chairman Weisz: Yes. Section 29 is revocation. If they are not authorized it shall revoke
and they would be disqualified from any further participation under this chapter. This would
be a permanent disqualification. Section 30 is penalties. | have received lots of emails that
we are too heavy on the penalties. Do these penalties follow the regular penalties outside of
this?

Tara Brandner: Yes, it would be the same criminal punishment you would receive acting
outside in the normal situation.

Representative Schneider: | have a problem with line 27 with the fee of $150 if they don’t
get their address changed in the time frame listed. When it's not a criminal penalty | would
recommend after line 27 saying, “shall pay to the department a fee as set by department
regulations.” If | worked for the department | would set a continuum based on the seriousness
of the notice that wasn’t given, then put away.

Chairman Weisz: Is everyone ok with that?
Tara Brandner: The department thinks that's a great idea.

Chairman Weisz: Does anyone have a problem with a class B felony for the manufacturer?
That means they are selling it other than to the people they should. There is a class C felony
for a dispensary for the same thing. It would also disqualify anyone forever if they are
convicted under this subsection. Number 5 is the agent that has a class C felony for
submitting false records or documentation. Number 6 is where a compassion center could
be fined up to $1000. Number 7 is a class B felony. That would be the same as distributing
and that's the same penalty we have now.
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Tara Brandner: Correct. This would be a qualifying patient who instead is using the product
and giving it to someone who ineligible.

Chairman Weisz: Currently, if | purchase illegal marijuana and sell it then | could be charged
with a class B felony, correct?

Tara Brandner: Correct. Technically under the statute you could be charged with that.

Representative P. Anderson: | don't think the penalty for medical marijuana should be more
than the penalty for street marijuana.

Tara Brandner: | believe that's correct. The intent is to keep distribution from unqualified
people. Whether or not it's the sale or just the gift of marijuana, we’re intending to keep the
product in the hands of the patient who was qualified. If the new bill is reducing it then the
position would be to reduce it to that same level.

Representative Schneider: | would want the penalties to be consistent for non-distribution.

Chairman Weisz: Number 8 is the designated caregiver. That’s a class B felony and that’s
considering them as distribution under the current statute. Number 9 is where the person
gives false records or documentation.

Tara Brandner: They used the concealed carry penalty. If they give false paperwork, then
it is a class C felony so they just did the same thing here.

Chairman Weisz: Number 10 is a class A misdemeanor which is in current statute. The
word “physician” will have to be changed to “healthcare provider.” We have these penalties.
| don’t think we want them to be higher.

Representative P. Anderson: The amount they can have in their possession is three
ounces so that wouldn’t be enough to be a seller of marijuana.

Representative McWilliams: Can we get a reminder on what the penalties are on a class
C felony?

Chairman Weisz: Class C felony is up to five years in prison and $10,000 fine, a class B
felony is up to ten years and a $20,000 fine, and class A is maximum of 20 years and $20,000
fine.

Representative McWilliams: Is that a mandatory jail sentence?

Chairman Weisz: No, it's up to the judge.

Tara Brandner: This language in number 11 is from the original measure as well. The point

of this is to prevent a physician from getting rich twice; first seeing the patient and receiving
benefits from that and then being an owner of the facility where they would be referred.
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Representative McWilliams: | think this is too much of a penalty and | think they should be
lower.

Tara Brandner: It's not uncommon in statute.

Representative McWilliams: I'd like to make it clear that | don'’t think it's right.
Representative Porter: | think we should leave the penalties where they are.

Chairman Weisz: Is everyone ok with this? It sounds like they will stay where they are.
Vice Chairman Rohr: Were these fines consistent with the measure?

Tara Brandner: The measure did not have penalties listed except for the physician, possibly
number 7. The felonies are consistent with current state law. The department used what is
being done in other states to fashion these.

Chairman Weisz: There was concern about paraphernalia.

Tara Brandner: In the amendments the department provided we added that language back.
We would add a new sub point in there. The intent was not to intentionally omit that.

Chairman Weisz: Does there need to be something in b on page 76 in lines 3 and 4 or not?

Tara Brandner: A cardholder would encompass what the qualifying patient and the
registered caregiver has. If the registered caregiver would purchase a pipe for a qualifying
patient, they would not be subject to criminal punishment.

Chairman Weisz: | was looking at receiving compensation for the cost.

Representative Seibel: | think we need to leave them both in here because one deals with
the patient and the other deals with the caregiver. You want to protect the caregiver as well.

Tara Brandner: Do you want to add that in 2a and 2b?
Chairman Weisz: Yes. | think we need to add in related supplies.

Vice Chairman Rohr: What is the difference between drug paraphernalia and related
supplies?

Tara Brandner: Drug paraphernalia is a criminal offense if it's used for an illegal substance.
Under this act marijuana would be legal. The possession of paraphernalia for this act would
not be illegal, but because there was concern and because we wanted to be very clear we
added that in. If we would prefer to use paraphernalia | don'’t think that's a problem instead
of related supplies. The people testifying the other day were concerned with the possession
of paraphernalia.
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Chairman Weisz: We are just giving them a comfort level by saying it is related supplies. If
it makes you feel better, we can add related supplies.

Tara Brandner: In the original it listed a whole bunch of things.

Representative Damschen: What is the difference between them if it is all paraphernalia?
Tara Brandner: It all falls down to what is the intent of the product.

Chairman Weisz: | think we should just put in related supplies so there are no questions.

Representative Porter: | want to be clear as to how it is proven inside of this act how you
know if the product was actually purchased at a compassion care center.

Tara Brandner: All of the packaging will have well marked packages that says where it came
from, similar to that from a pharmacy.

Representative Porter: If | got this package the first time and just keep filling it up from my
neighborhood pot dealer it would be a lot cheaper that way.

Tara Brandner: One of the requirements for packaging and labeling would be an expiration
date and you will get a new package each time. Some of these products would be harder to
find on the black market than they would be from a compassion center.

Kenan Bullinger: Each label will also have a THC level on it and we could always test it to
see if it has a different level of THC.

Representative Porter: | think the ability to let police do their job will be hampered greatly
unless we can find a way to do some sort of control.

Kenan Bullinger: The intent of this law is to make medical marijuana available to qualifying
patients. We know that diversion and illegal sales are going to happen, but that's not the
intent of this law.

Chairman Weisz: Do you think we are ok with the protection section?

Representative Damschen: You can dye marijuana and then you would know which one is
legal and which one is not.

Chairman Weisz: Tomorrow morning we are going to look at the fiscal note. | don’t believe
what is left in the bill will take us long at all.

Representative P. Anderson: The amendments | had pretty much cover what Tara has
brought forth.

Chairman Weisz: Committee recessed until after session today.
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Minutes: Attach. #1 #2

Chairman Weisz: called the committee to order.
Attendance taken.

Chairman Weisz: We will take up 2344 again. We will start on Section 32 which is
limitations.

Representative McWilliams: | don’t think someone should be standing out in the yard
smoking a joint, but what about using a patch or 0il? | have an issue with that one and home
day care. Daycare would be the whole house, so if they used marijuana they couldn’t do it
at their home.

Tara Brandner, Assistant Attorney General, Legal Counsel for Dept. of Health: The
limitations were taken out of model law. They were the first one on any public or private
school that would prevent a child from using while one school property. The daycare part of
the home would be off limits for the use. These limitations are there to protect children from
obtaining and using it on school property. One of the things that the university systems
brought up is that they are concerned about people possessing on school property because
of the likelihood of federal funding and whether that would cause a problem or not.

Representative McWilliams: | wonder if we can make some kind of exception for patches
and oils if you are in your own home and there are no kids there. | fail to see the risk in that.

Kenen Bullinger, Department of Health: | think we need to talk to the DHC and see if they
will even allow a child care provider to be using medical marijuana while they are caring for
children. Most parents would not want you to be able to use marijuana if you are taking care
of their children.
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Representative McWilliams: Are you talking about the care giver or just someone in the
house. It could be an adult child or spouse at home.

Kenan Bullinger: Ifitis an in home child care center if there is only one employee they are
limited to the number of children they can care for and it would be that one person. Are you
talking about the patient being the non-care provider?

Representative Porter: On Sub B, after grounds we need to insert or sanctioned events on
line 25; section 32. The civic center could house other events for a school.

Chairman Weisz: Every one of our K-12 schools receive federal funding; not just higher ed.

Tara Brandner: | think they were thinking that the children that were suffering from these
illnesses and using marijuana would not be at school anyway. | think the concern is should
somebody under the influence of an illegal substance really be in charge of supervising
children.

Representative P. Anderson: If the child had epilepsy; they could not use it?

Tara Brandner: They could not use it while at school. They could maybe take it before they
go to school.

D. Bartz, Health Resources Section, DHS: We discussed this and the care giver could
come and get the child and take them off site and administer the marijuana and then bring
them back. There is no one that could assist the child with it at the school. That is an option.
They would lose the federal funding.

Representative Schneider: | would want to know that they really would lose their federal
funding or not?

Tara Brandner: | do not have anything. That is a concern that we have heard from the
schools.

Rep. Schneider: | would like to know that for sure before we make those assumptions.

D. Bartz: | did check that out with CMS. If something is illegal and it is passed from one to
another the full federal would come down on them. They would lose their certification.

Representative Schneider: | want to see this in writing.

Representative McWilliams: Is there a precedence in other states have they lost federal
funding?

Tara Brandner: We have a new administration now and have said there is clearly a
difference between municipal marijuana and recreational marijuana. We don’t know what that
means. | cannot speak to what other states have done. We have tried to follow the cole
memo as closely as possible to prevent the possibility of a law suit.
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Arvy Smith: When we apply for a federal grant we have to sign a certification that not only
will be have a drug free workplace policy in place, but every subcontractor of ours must have
a drug free work place policy in place. | find it hard to believe this would be an exception to
that.

Representative McWilliams: If they are licensed daycare they cannot use this as a medicine
in their own home, off hours and when kids aren’t there.

Chairman Weisz: If they are not a licensed daycare then this doesn’t apply to them. If they
are licensed they receive federal funding.

Tara Brandner: |don't have trouble adding licensed to child care facility or day care if that
would be easier.

Representative P. Anderson: | am reading from what Delaware says for limitations; in a
school bus, on the grounds of any preschool, primary or secondary school, corrections
facility, any healthcare or treatment facility operated by the department or funded
contractually through the department. It doesn’t say anything about in home daycare.

Arvy Smith: Maybe, part of this would be in how the daycare is defined in a home. Maybe
it would be part of the home and not the whole home. We need to talk to human services to
how they define a day care in a home.

Representative McWilliams: | would support putting in “licensed”.

Chairman Weisz: We will have someone from DHS come down and explain this for us. We
will leave this until then and go on to the next section.

Chairman Weisz: Section 33: Is everyone ok with this. The question comes up about an
apartment. Do they have to allow someone that has a card and can smoke it to smoke in
the apartment? It needs to be in there because if you are leasing property.

Chairman Weisz: Section 34: Facility restrictions where we get into nursing home facilities
and adult foster homes. It Is not eliminating the ability to have it. 60% of the funding for a
nursing home is Medicaid. If there was an issue with a facility would that jeopardize the
funding for that facility or all of them?

D. Bartz: | believe it would just be for that facility.

Chairman Weisz: Section 35: Rules

Chairman Weisz: Section 36: Verification

Chairman Weisz: Section 37: Confidentiality

Tara Brandner: We did have an amendment on this just to be sure that people wouldn’t
know how to break in. it is just related to the security requirements.
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Chairman Weisz: Section 38: Advisory board.
Chairman Weisz: Is this something the department wanted?

Tara Brandner: The original measure had an advisory board in it, but there was nothing in
there of what it was or what it would do. This was something that the was wanted by the
voters or drafters of the measure. The department just went in and defined what they would
do. Their numbers were reduced to four.

Representative Seibel: Does the four include the department rep or is that in addition?

Tara Brandner: That is in addition. The original definition for an advisory board was a 9-
member committee established and appointed by the governor. That has been revised to
what you see before you.

Chairman Weisz: Section 39: Annual report
Chairman Weisz: Section 40: Compassionate care fund

Arvy Smith: It originally measure. There was a piece in the original measure that would allow
the state to give money to individuals to purchase marijuana. That was removed to keep the
state away from giving individuals money to purchase a federally illegal substance. Line 2,
the language said the moneys were appropriated on a continuing basis, but didn't really
indicate to who so we added in the language appropriated to the department on a continuing
basis.

Chairman Weisz: This includes private donations. This was put in there so that the people
that could not afford the marijuana could get money.

Avry Smith: The money would go to the department to offset expenses of implementing the
program. | can’t imagine anyone giving money to the department. It allowed us to get private
donations to support the program. | don’t know if that should be removed if we are not giving
it to people?

Chairman Weisz: You still kept it in here? The intent of the measure was to set up a fund
that we could pay the people because of the limitations. Take out 31 then.

Arvy Smith: We would be fine in removing #2. | can’t think of an instance where this would
be used.

Representative Skroch: What insulates the state treasury or the department from handling
the money; this is an illegal substance. Proceeds from the licensing and processing of it is
an illegal substance?

Avry Smith: This is not the actual transaction of selling a drug it was for an application for
a license fee.
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Representative Schneider: It was pretty clear in the measure that there would be funds for
the people that could not afford this. | think they would be fine with setting up a 501 3C to
take the private donations to be able to use them for this purpose.

Chairman Weisz: Removing private donations and then someone can start a 501 3 C.

Avry Smith: We have been running the numbers and we do not believe that we will be able
to occur depending on where we land with the fees.

Representative Seibel: | would like to make a little change in terminology as | really don’t
think it will ever generate enough to cover all of the cost of the department.

Chairman Weisz: Good catch. It should be able to cover the cost of the compassionate care
program for the department.

Tara Brandner: Turn to page 4 of my amendments. What the bill says is that the revocation
of the license should go to Burleigh County. This is just cleaning up the language. This was
asked for by the Supreme Court.

Representative Schneider: Is there a way that those that are ill could do skype or video
access to do that?

Tara Brandner: We are hosting in Burleigh County but, | can’t imagine that the department
would have a problem with that. It would be costly for the department to travel to every county
in the state to essentially defend these actions.

Chairman Weisz: Let's move back to childcare in Section 32. You can’t possess or use
marijuana in a child care or home daycare. How would that be interrupted from DHS's
prospective?

Rebecca Eberhart: Right now we do have a rule that an individual cannot be under the
influence of drugs or alcohol while providing child care. That is looking at child care hours
and the premise is any part of the home that they are using for child care.

Chairman Weisz: The question came up that they could not be the upstairs bedroom?
How would the department interpret that?

Rebecca Eberhart: An individual cannot be under the influence of during child care hours
It would have to be on the license that a specific room would be off limits to the children if
that was where they were using it.

Tara Brandner: The department of health doesn’t have a problem if you put in there that this
will reference the rules of the DHS.

Representative P. Anderson: Can't we just take out the whole d off then?

Chairman Weisz: No, then there would not be any restrictions at all. This would also include
their kids not just the employees of the daycare. We have to be clear. We need to be sure
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that licensed is in there. We don’t even have to add by rule because | think it is already in
rule by DHS what it means to be a licensed daycare.

Tara Brandner: | think the department would be ok with that.

Representative Schneider: | would be more comfortable with it being in there was a
reference to the DFS standard.

Representative Seibel: Could we just say in accordance with DHS rules?

Chairman Weisz: On line D. we would just add that. Are you ok with that?
Representative Schneider: On the schools | would be more comfortable with primary and
secondary and not to have university, it is dealing with adults in the university and a legal
medicine.

Representative Porter: | would like to have someone from the university to weigh in on this.

Chairman Weisz: On page 80 there is language that says talks about a physician not
complying with the rules; how would the board deals with that?

Courtney Koebele, ND Medical Association: How would the board of medicine deal with
that. The board only looks at things that are reported to them.

Chairman Weisz: If someone reported this they take the position of violation of this chapter.

Courtney Koebele: | think it would depend on what the violation would be and if it harmed
patients. Would it be unethical. It depends on how they would violate.

Chairman Weisz: This is kind of a gray area because it is not a prescription.

Courtney Koebele: | don't think there are very many physicians that would be interested in
putting their name on this.

Representative Porter: | guess | didn't hear on 25, page 37, if we were going to include on
the grounds and include school events?

Chairman Weisz: He is suggesting school events should be sanctioned as well no matter
where they are. Now they are limited to school property.

Representative Porter: It would be a sanctioned school function.

Chairman Weisz: It would say on the grounds of any public or private school or at any
sanctioned school event.

Representative Skroch: Administration and teachers are kind of in control at a school, but
how do you take responsibility for all kinds of people that are there?
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Chairman Weisz: If they are the cardholder it is their responsibility.

Tara Brandner: If they were under the influence it would not affect them. It would be that
they can’t use it or bring it with them.

Representative Schneider: Language on #4 on page 77 amendment, line 30 | had an
addition to that end of that sentence to say a minor who is a qualifying patient. Like a 17-
year-old who might taking that usable marijuana would not be prevented from that.

Chairman Weisz: When we made the changes to the pediatrics they would be able to
vaporize it if it is less than 6% PHC. It is illegal to use it in front of a minor, because it could
be a higher % for an adult.

Representative Schneider: It is intended to allow the minor to use the medicine that is for
him. So #4 doesn’t prevent the minor from taking his or her own medicine.

Chairman Weisz: Ok we are done with the basic bill.

Representative McWilliams: There is an amendment by Sen Larson amendment.
Chairman Weisz: There was an amendment regarding growing their own.
Representative Porter: | am not interested in doing anything.

Representative McWilliams: This was addressed in the measure and it is not in our bill on
home cultivation and that was on the ballot | would personally feel like that part is not in the
bill and this is the opportunity to do it right now, and it goes to the floor and we don’t have a
2/3 vote it is going to revert back to the bill that was passed. If we don’t deal with this, then
it will not address that. This is a good bill. We need to identify everything that was actually
on the ballot.

Chairman Weisz: | think this is very difficult, because it is discriminatory for the people that
can’'t grow their own and for the manufacturers because they will not be able to make it money
if anyone can do it.

Representative McWilliams: | think we could address this in some creative ways. | think
they should still have to pay an extra fee to be able to grow it. This would be for people that
are 40 miles away and don’t have a way to get the medicine.

Representative Porter: | think what we have put together is a good compromise between
the original measure and this bill. When the language was put together we came up with a
good compromise. The system that will be put in place in the communities will fail if everyone
can grow it. | don’t think this is going to cause anyone to have trouble getting the product.
We can look at this again in 2 years and see how this is doing.

Representative P. Anderson: If we can get 80% of the population able to get marijuana in
the 40-mile radius | think that is ok. If we add home cultivation for the 20% it will take years
to get this in place.
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Chairman Weisz: Study home cultivation per measure 5.

Representative P. Anderson: | would like to move the amendment from Sen. O Larsen
Representative Seibel: Second

Discussion:

Representative Porter: | am going to oppose this. During the interim it won’t even be
implemented so there won'’t be anything to study. Next session we will have bills and etc.

Representative McWilliams: | disagree. | think there are a number of other states that are
doing it that would give us something to study. | think our constituents are going to be upset.

Representative Schneider: | agree that if we study it now we will have a better idea of the
consequences before we have to make decisions on this.

Representative Damschen: | think there is a line drawn somewhere between the people
that organizers of this motion and the people that actually voted for it.

Representative McWilliams: | think if we at least put a study in there it has a better chance
of passing. If we don'’t put it in there | don’t think it will pass.

Representative Skroch: | think we have our own way of doing this in our state and | don’t
think studying other states is going to help us. We will have bills next session to deal with all
of this. We won’t have enough data to see how this plays out before the next session.

Voice vote: Not sure

Representative P. Anderson: | would like a roll call vote.

Roll call vote: Yes 4 No 10 Absent 0 Failed

Katie Fitsimmons University System, Director of Student Affairs, ND University
Systems: Read US Federal Complaints Requirements set forth in the 1989 amendments.
(1:19:17)

Chairman Weisz: The state has made it legal so then what?

Katie Fitsimmons: Marijuana is still illegal on the federal level and that is all that matters.
They would look at federal laws only and therefore what states are implementing would be
mute. In Washington it is illegal federally to use on college campuses and it has affected

them.

Representative Schneider: Is that true in Delaware and Colorado?
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Katie Fitsimmons: | am more familiar with Washington. The way it has been presented
three times in the last six months regarding this issue. Until this becomes legal on the federal
level; no college campus can allow this on their premise.

Representative Schneider: if there is something in law | would like to see that if you have
that available.

Representative Skroch: Is there any effort to let the public know how this would affect the
funding, etc.

Katie Fitsimmons: | don’t know where people are getting their information. | know that this
is a huge issue for the schools [f a student has a need for this then we allow those students
to not live on campus. There has been a lot of information out there that is true and untrue.
It would take lots of money to let them know what this would do to our universities and
effectively shut them down if this was allowed in our campuses.

Tara Brandner: One thing that | can address is that it is the Corrupt Practices Act prevents
a state entity from lobbying for or against a legislative measure. The only information the
DHS was able to put out was factual information and that was to try an avoid the potential for
a law suit.

Representative McWilliams: What is the disciplinary action against a student now that
would be taken against a student who under this measure would have appeal.

Katie Fitsimmons: When | was in California there were lots of students that brought me their
bogus medical marijuana cards and they weren’t enrolled usually within a couple weeks after
that. You just take them on a case by case basis and see what those individual’s intentions
are.

Representative McWilliams: Would the system try to charge them with a felony or
misdemeanor because they were on campus.

Katie Fitsimmons: That would be up to the professionals involved. If you have a student
manufacturing it would be turned over to the law enforcement. It would be on a campus by
campus basis. There are students that went through a university conduct system process
and when there were elevated drugs from a university residence address those students are
usually turned over to local law enforcement and the school will then press charges against
them.

1:30

Ryan Rauschenberger, State Tax Department. How the medical marijuana will be taxed.
Only prescriptions are not subject to the sales tax. The sales tax would be between the
dispensary and the consumer. We did a fiscal note for both the ballot measure and for the
bill. (1:31:13) Went through the fiscal note.

Chairman Weisz: Local tax would be collected too?
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Ryan Rauschenberger: Yes, it would be treated the same way that any other business
would be treated. They would be subject to those taxes as well.

Chairman Weisz: Could they be considered ag and get the deductions?

Ryan Rauschenberger. They could possibly be considered under ag under some
circumstances. The county can take it under consideration.

Chairman Weisz: So we should spell it out.

Representative Seibel: It is illegal and the banks can’t take the money and it needs to be a
cash purchase, so can we tax a federally illegal transaction?

Ryan Rauschenberger: Yes, it would be subject to tax even if it is not legal.

Representative P. Anderson: Is there any way the sales tax from the dispensary could go
to the fund the health department program for support of the marijuana program.

Ryan Rauschenberger: It could maybe be done on the back end. We would have to have
a special marker that would be put on the sales tax. To earmark that would be possible?
Under current law we probably do that. Right now they would just be subject to a general
sales tax permit.

Representative P. Anderson: It could keep the costs lower if we could earmark that the tax
went to the health department to support the program. Could we do that and add it to this
bill.

Representative Kiefert: |s that practice used for anything else?

Ryan Rauschenberger: Under the general fund there have been carve outs that go to a
different fund. Right now everything in the general fund goes back to the cities and counties.
We would have to call it something other than sales tax.

Representative Skroch: | am not sure how all the expenses will be paid to implement this
program, but is this tax going to have to pay for other expenses involved in this program too,
like law enforcement. Those costs would have to come out of the sales tax generated too;
would it not?

Ryan Rauschenberger: | guess it would have to be defined as to what it could be used for.
That would be a consideration too.

Chairman Weisz: How did you arrive at the numbers you used?
Ryan Rauschenberger: We used health department numbers.

Chairman Weisz: No income tax?
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Ryan Rauschenberger: No not now, but in the biennium we would have to address that.
We are trying to keep it to sales tax which we can identify.

Representative McWilliams: Do you see a problem with a cash only business paying sales
tax on line.

Ryan Rauschenberger: No that is not a problem. We have several other companies that
are cash only. They can wire us the funds.

Representative McWilliams: If they can’t have a bank account and cannot have a debit
card, then what.

Ryan Rauschenberger: We accept cash.
Chairman Weisz: We are going to go through the revenue first and then the cost.

Arvy Smith: (1:46:26) We have new numbers that might change from the who fiscal note.
We have a bottom line, but we still have a gap as it being able to self-fund.

Brenda Wise: Department of Health: With the fiscal note there is a combination of agencies
in it. Do you want me to bring up just the Dept. of Health? | have a summary of what our
department is predicting. | will go through the fiscal note first and then go over our summary.
Went through the handout. (1:49:49) (Attach. #1)

Chairman Weisz: Why did you think that 4 times as many would apply than what we would
allow?

Brenda Wise: We just went from the amount of interest we had received. Continued to go
through the fiscal note.

The attorney general figured that the fee charges for background checks are required to pay
for their background check. Estimated $50,000 for background checks which has to be
deposited in the general fund.

Continued through the original fiscal note. The assumptions on the bottom of the pages
summarize what | just went through.

Chairman Weisz: Before what you gave us now, where did the 4.52 million includes the 3.4
million of the sales tax.

Brenda Wise: The number of qualified patients decreased when the grow your own was
permitted.

Chairman Weisz: Where are they coming up with 4.5 million? Is that strictly the revenue
from the registration?

Brenda Wise: (Attachment 2) She went through the second handout.
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Chairman Weisz: Do you have any questions?

Representative McWilliams: Why did the department feel that there would not be a change
in the number of cards if we lowered the price of the card since now it would be more
affordable?

Brenda Wise: We didn’t look at the price and population; we looked at other states and how
many they had rather than the price of a card.

Representative P. Anderson: We were only interested in dropping the cost of the card for
the users, not the board members. They can stay at $200.

Chairman Weisz: \We are not done yet. That could still be done.

Brenda Wise: The more you add to the number of compassion centers the more staff we will
need to do the checking on them. The dispensaries will have to be checked too. There will
be ten of them.

Representative P. Anderson: How often will they have to go out and check?

Kenen Bullinger: | think it is necessary that we have a present at those facilities so that we
can be on top of what is going on. Probably at least twice a month and it could take about 2
days per facility.

Representative Seibel: How many qualified patients does the state of Minnesota have?

Kenan Bullinger: They have 2000, but they don’t have all of the forms of use that we do.

Arvy Smith: We based our information on Delaware’s information because they were closest
to us.

Representative Seibel: So do you think 3500 might be too large, since Minnesota only has
20007

Arvy Smith: We based it on Delaware because we were the most similar with conditions
covered and forms of use allowed. This is our best guess.

Representative McWilliams: My question is for Kennon. You were talking about checking
all of the facilities and such twice a month. Don’t you think that is excessive?

Kenan Bollinger: You may be able to back off later, but in the beginning you need to have
a very frequent presence. We do that with all new businesses and we are just learning with
this kind of business. We need to be there often.

Avry Smith: That activity will come down since our fiscal note doesn’t allow for that frequent
of visits.

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions?
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Representative Seibel: | don't think that we will have double the number of patients that
Minnesota has.

Representative McWilliams: | don't agree with the numbers that there saying we won’t have
more people getting cards if the price of the card drops to $50 instead of $200.

Representative D. Anderson: | don't think the price of the card is going to hold any one |
think it will be the $300/ounce that will hold them back.

2:18:41
Recess for lunch
Chairman Weisz: we will have BCI go through the fiscal note checks.

Kathy Roll, Financial Administration, Office of Attorney General: Going over the fiscal
note.

Chairman Weisz: How many can one FTE process?
Kathy Roll: 2,000.

Chairman Weisz: That additional FTE would be to handle the additional requests for this
bill? Where does the $40 come from?

Kathy Roll: The background check here is in need of a few components. There is a $15
state fee; $15 fingerprint background check to FBI; then a $10 federal record check.

Representative Rohr: [s there an international background check?
Kathy Roll: | am not aware of any.
Representative Rohr: How long are the background checks good for?

Kathy Roll: They are done when you start employment. You can request a background
check as often as you want to.

Representative Rohr: If we have someone who is a medical marijuana card holder and
they were OK and it is good indefinitely; are we going to require again to do a background
check every year when they renew their card?

Kathy Roll: | believe it is for every two years.

Brenda Wise: (2:24:27) Going through the FTE side. There are six FTE's. Those are the
costs we are considering for the first biennium 2017-2019.

Representative Rohr: So we are talking 6 FTE individuals.



House Human Services Committee
SB 2344

3/29/17

Page 14

Brenda Wise: (2:29:04) Discussing 2020-2021 budget. We discussed two additional
dispensers and two additional field inspectors to add to the one.

Chairman Weisz: You are talking about the manufacture and dispensary.
Brenda Wise: That is correct.

Representative P. Anderson: when you add the two additional inspectors | assume you
would add them the beginning of the biennium.

Brenda Wise: We did from the numbers standpoint. This is appearing in a special line item
in the budget so if we don’t use it for this it goes back to the general fund. If it seems we are
coming in a little high, we are trying to have some control and cannot use it elsewhere.

Chairman Weisz: Committee you have the sheets with the numbers and we have had some
discussion. Going over the fiscal note for 2017-2019. They are the ones who are working for
the dispenser or working for the manufactures.

Representative Rohr: If you have a high turnover of employees and someone has to pay
$200 every time they hire an employee | could see that being a big problem.

Chairman Weisz: Ok | only hear one dissention so we will make that change in the
amendments that will come down to us. Also we will increase the $80,000 to $100,000 and
the $60,000 to $80,000. | forgot what it generated. We would pick up $40,000 for the
growers; because that is a two-year license. If you add 8 dispensaries by 2 years, then you
would pick up $160,000 so we would still be $120,000 less behind.

Representative P. Anderson: Maybe grow up will not be enough so they will need three
grow up and that is another $100,000.

Representative Rohr: We had some discussion about sales tax revenue coming back into
that program directly. Is that at all factored into these budgets?

Chairman Weisz: No because their budget is based on general fund dollars. You could
make the case that it is not completely self-funded, but the extra economic activity is going
to generate $3.4 million in sales tax revenue. We are close on the funding. If we go to 80
and 100 | don’t mind pulling out the 1921 language that it has to be self-funded. Is the
committee ok to go with the 80 and 100? Should we take out the language that it has to be
self-funded by 1921.

Representative Seibold: Do you think that may hurt the chance of passage on the House
floor?

Chairman Weisz: | think we would be fine with that. We will delete Section 41.

Representative Devlin: | don’t believe we should take out that section. | think we should
leave it in and fund it with sales tax.
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Chairman Weisz: | did as Legislative Council to take a look at it. We will be meeting
probably tomorrow or Friday and | don’t expect anyone to vote on this without seeing the
actual amendments.

Representative Westlind: Then it must be self-funded or equal ant economic impact into
the state.

Chairman Weisz: If we are $100 thousand short they would want sales tax to cover it so
you have to add provisions and they will look at addressing that. Appropriations might not
light that.

Rep. Skroch: Would the committee be comfortable if we would change the date on line 2 to
the beginning 2021-2023 biennium until that time however we wanted to fund that would be
sales tax that we could have a sunset clause at that point and ask them to be self-sufficient
by 2021-2023.

Chairman Weisz: We don't hold the future legislative session to anything. They will then
have numbers and can look at it then. This wraps up 2344.

Tara Brandner: It is the same physician has a reasonable expectation that they will follow
up care so they expect the patient isn’t coming in for just this one opportunity to obtain the
substance. They think this will be a continue relationship.

Chairman Weisz: Maybe we should have language in there for this.

Tara Brandner: The physician should have a thought that they will see this patient again.
So if we change the language on page 6, line 23 to read the physician has a reasonable
expectation that the physician will be able to provide follow up care. They will have to analyze
whether or not the marijuana is actually benefiting them. The patients need to be monitored
to see how they are doing on the product.

Chairman Weisz: The doctor needs to analyze the patient.

Representative Kiefert: Would the doctor be responsible to write an order of discontinuation
then?

Tara Brandner: You are right. They are to notify the department whether they qualify or
not.

Representative Schneider: | would like to take out line 20; we should look at taking out for
primary medical care and leave it as the patient is under the patients continue care for the
debilitating medical condition that qualifies.

Tara Brandner: | don’t have a problem with that.

Chairman Weisz: | don't have a problem with that.
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Tara Brandner: D insures that they are doing what they need to and are not taking
advantage of an opportunity. We will strike primary from c; then add the language that Rep.
Kiefert wanted.

Chairman Weisz; We want to do this bill as well as we can.

Closed.
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Minutes: Attachment 1, ,Z

Chairman Weisz: called the committee to order on SB 2344. Attendance taken. | assume
that everyone did their homework over the weekend. | do have some changes from the
Attorney General's office and we conferred with the ag department. The first thing is that we
will walk through the bill and we can see how much we agree on we will take it up and | will
see if the Attorney General’s office had a suggestion for that part. (See Attachment #1).
Page1. Does anyone have anything on this page? Seeing no objection.

Representative P. Anderson: We had trouble trying to figure out some of these changes
so | will try to go back to the original we worked off of. Amendment 17.0630.03019 doesn't
reflect the changes | had.

Chairman Weisz: As we go through this amendment .03019 point out what is not in here
and then we will have the discussion to make sure we all agree on it.

Anything on Page 2. | thought the language was a little cumbersome but it does say what we
want. Page 3 debilitating diseases, we added terminally on this, so that is in and there will be
a definition on that later

Representative McWilliams: On the terminal iliness it says a chronic or debilitating disease
does that mean any disease that has the characteristics of one of those chronic diseases
under line n. on page 3?

Chairman Weisz: It can be any debilitating condition with those symptoms listed under n.
Anything on Page 47

Representative P. Anderson: On page 4 line 25. | think that it should say “pediatric
medical marijuana product” means just the oil.



House Human Services Committee
SB 2344

4/3/17

Page 2

Chairman Weisz: The Attorney General’s office wanted this changed to clarify. The wanted
under pediatric marijuana means cannabinoid oil which is processed cannabis plant extract
that contains no more than 6% THC or medical marijuana product that may not contain a
maximum concentration or amount of THC of more than 6%. They want that added it into
page 6 under 19-24.1-02.

Representative P. Anderson: Then we wouldn’t need 25 at all? That wasn'’t in the original
bill either.

Representative Porter: If it is under definitions that means that they use it somewhere else
in the bill and we need to find that before we do any changing of definitions.

Chairman Weisz: Right. The other thing they wanted a clearer definition on number 1 on
page 1 they want to make it clear that it is an Advanced Practice Registered nurse is licensed
under section 43-12.1 to practice in the state of North Dakota. It doesn’t say that they have
to live in ND, but they have to be licensed to practice in ND. Add this to page 1 line 1 under
definitions. We are good with that.

Representative P. Anderson: Often times when we do this we added Physician’s Assistant
as part of the health care provider and we have added that to other bills.

Chairman Weisz: Let's deal with this first then we can add that if we need to.

Page 4 We will put the medical marijuana aside for now.

Page 5 We define terminal illness. That is 6 months because that is the standard in North
Dakota. On page 5 line 30 under pediatric marijuana they want the language to read
“marijuana means cannabinoid oil which is processed cannabis plant extract that contains
no more than 6% THC or medical marijuana product that may not contain a maximum
concentration or amount of THC of more than 6%.” They want to clarify that it cannot be
smoked. Is everyone comfortable with that. Yes. Then we will make that change.

Page 6 On Qualifying patient. Anyone have anything?

Page 7 No issues on this page.

Page 8 | thought there was a problem with the age, but it was the compassion center agent
and not the patient.

Page 9 No issues.

Page 107 One question came up bottom of page 10 line 11. The Burleigh Count for hearing.
| don’t know how to fix it. Someone from somewhere else could have to show up in Burleigh
County Court. It is easier than the Health Department having to chase all over to every
county in the state.

Representative P. Anderson: | would rather see the Department travel rather than a very
ill patient. | can’t believe that there will be that many.

Representative Skroch: | know that the court can make accommodations. Can’t we put
something in here that the court could make accommodations if someone is unable to travel.

Chairman Weisz: We could do that, but often it is up to the judge to decide what he will or
won't do. | understand the concern; how many are going to be denied, and many are going




House Human Services Committee
SB 2344

4/3/17

Page 3

to appeal that are denied. | think the courts will try to accommodate a reasonable
accommodation.

Representative Skroch: Do we need to add that into law?
Representative McWilliams: | think there is a brief language that would say that.

Representative Schneider: We could just add a phase on to the end of that, put a comma
after sharing with accommodations made for appearances by video for out of county
participants.

Representative Porter: Are we sure that the technology exists to do it? Number 1, and are
we sure that it is legal and a binding hearing number 2?

Chairman Weisz: | know you can do it by phone but that depends on the judge.

Representative Porter: If we are going to change it, | think we need to be sure we are not
creating a mess inside the court system and that it can be done.

Chairman Weisz: It doesn't really say that they have to appear in the beginning. People are
concerned if they live further away that they will have to come a long way to appear.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Was this language in the original measure or did we add in?

Chairman Weisz: It was in the original measure. If it becomes an issue, we may have to
address it. Page 11. Under 19-24.1-09 number 1. This should have come out too and that
was what we approved when we took out going into the home. Because we will already go
into the Compassion Center in a later section. This should be gone. Is that ok with everyone.
Ok. Page 12 and page 13. Nothing there to change.

Representative P. Anderson: | think we could be a little clearer. The idea was that
operating and manufacturing would start with two but they could add more. It is missing the
manufacture.

Chairman Weisz: | have language from the Department where it says they would change to
dispensaries to Compassion Centers because that would include both of them. That is what
we agreed on. | had it marked it was missing manufacturer.

Representative P. Anderson: Page 14 on line 3 at the bottom, we talked about this and
Arvy Smith said she rather leave it open and this wasn’t in our original at all that they may
not have common ownership. This was just simply added.

Chairman Weisz: What does the committee think. | know that there was a greater chance
of diversion if you have them owning both.

Representative Seibel: | would like to keep it as it is to keep them separate for diversion
reasons.

Chairman Weisz: Does anyone have a problem with that? None seen.
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Representative Porter: Are we setting ourselves up to fail inside of the industry. We are
talking about a lot of money and there might be some investors that are just wanting to be
small investors. Because | am a 5% owner does my name have to be out there? You are
going to shy the capital away. Can | be a small percent owner in both a manufacturing facility
and a dispensary? We are going to run the risk of not being able to get enough capital to
do both.

Chairman Weisz: | thought common ownership mean the same company. | don't think it
says that an investor couldn’t have a small share of ownership.

Representative Porter: | think there is two different things going on here. | don’t want to
have to have disclosure of my small investment. We can get away from the disclosure by
saying it is a closed record. The Department can see who the owners are but not the public.

Chairman Weisz: | think we already do have that, but we will look at this again when we
get to the confidentiality.

Representative McWilliams: | think we could add something in there to say the
manufacturing facility and dispensary may not have common ownership greater than 50% in
either one.

Representative D. Anderson: | was thinking over the weekend and it would have been
smarter to have one manufacturer and multiple growers that have a share in the
manufacturing because the equipment to manufacture it is very expensive. In Arizona the
grower and the dispensary can have the same ownership.

Chairman Weisz: We will leave this and come back to it. We can’t require them to be a
North Dakota company. We need to strike North Dakota out through out. On page 15, line
b. Line C would still apply though, but the company could come from some other place.
Does anyone else have anything on page 15?7 Page 16?7 Any issues? Seeing none. Page
17. There was a suggestion from the Senate. They had an issue with the dropping of the
card from $200 down to $50. They have some concerns that it won't be self- sustaining.
They are talking about raising the initial fees for the dispensary and the manufacturer to offset
that. It is supposed to be self-sustaining.

Representative D. Anderson: | know it is supposed to be self-sustaining but we are going
to get $1.7 million in sales tax. | would like to leave it at $50.

Representative Schneider: Will we have any additional information by the time this in
theory hits Conference committee that can add to that discussion. We could always change
it later.

Chairman Weisz: | think we will have some information 2 years from now.
Representative Seibel: My problem is that in 2 years we would come in here and change

the rules for the dispensaries that are up and running already. | don't like changing in the
middle of the game. We should change it now. If someone is told that they have to pay
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$80,000 or $100,000 and then we raise it later, that is hard. To me if we are going to change
it change it now.

Representative Porter: | agree with Representative Seibel that they both should have to
make up the difference now.

Chairman Weisz: If you do the math and you went to $90,000 and $110,000 it would
balance pretty well.

Representative McWilliams: | would rather not increase the registration fee and
| think the card could be increased to $75.

Representative Porter: | would agree with Chairman Weisz that we increase it to $90,000
and $110,000.

Chairman Weisz: Is that where the majority is at?
Representative McWilliams: What did the original measure say?
Chairman Weisz: Not more than $100,000 for the growers.
Representative Skroch: We are talking about page 17 letter a.

Chairman Weisz: Yes, it increases the fee from $80,000 to $90,000 and from a $100,000 to
$110,000.

Representative Westlind: Arkansas charges $100,000 per year, | still feel this is not going
to hold them back if they want to get into this.

Chairman Weisz: So that is the change then on page 14. Can you give us a definition of
what common ownership means on line 3 of page 14?

Tara Brandner: North Dakota Assistant Attorney General: That language common
ownership came from the Legislative Council. It wasn’t part of ours. This language would not
include investors that don’t have ownership interest. There is a question about what is the
difference between investors and common ownership investors is a broader term. Investors
could simply be receiving a financial interest. It would depend on the structure of the
corporation they are setting up. | am not sure what the Department was trying to do, but they
were saying that if the manufacturer and the dispensary owners were common they might
not allow a dispensary. The primary concern here is with this language is if the only facilities
to enter the market are a Compassion Center or dispensary with the same ownership
structure that we would essentially just not have a dispensary. That is why they were ok with
leaving it open.

Representative Skroch: If the two businesses are separate LLCs did that create a
separation in the ownership somehow or are they considered the same? Are they free to
establish any structure they so choose?



House Human Services Committee
SB 2344

4/3/17

Page 6

Tara Brandner: As far as a business structure they have to be a LLC or a Corporation,
whether that be for profit or non-profit is up to them. Common ownership is a term that came
from the Legislative Council so | can’t speak to it. | think the goal was to say the people that
owned those entities, like LLC A. and LLC B. and if they are owned by the same person, it
was to split that. The department’s concern was that could potentially leave the option for no.

Chairman Weisz: We can leave the language the same, we can change it or modify it. You
don't see either way that this would have any effect on the Cole Memo.

Representative Schneider: Can | ask Tara a question. In the original measure it said that
it would be held in Burleigh County unless that they requested a change. We talked about
having videos or something. Do you have any suggestions about putting that in language so
that it protects the rights of the person but doesn’t step on the toes of the court?

Tara Brandner: | am not sure how you would do that. As you stated, the concern is how do
we protect the court’s rights. | don’t know if LC would have ideas about how to draft that or
not. The concern is ultimately telling the court what they can and cannot do.

Representative Schneider: Do you know off the top of your head whether some of the
courts have video capacity? | know they have telephonic, but that isn’t really adequate.

Tara Brandner: No, | don’t know.
Representative Westlind: | would like to see 3 taken out entirely.
Chairman Weisz: Ok is the committee ok with this? Ok we will take it out then.

Representative McWilliams: | think we should increase the card to $65. | don’t see a big
difference between paying $50 or $65.

Representative Schneider: When you are on SSl| you are living on poverty level and | would
really like to leave it at $50 for the sick people.

Chairman Weisz: Ok, committee we need to decide which it will be. Ok, it sounds like it
should remain the same. No dissention.
Page 17

Representative Westlind: | am in favor of keeping it at $50,000 and $110,000. The people
that pay the $50 for the card are not going to be aware that this fee is in the bill. | don’t think
the people that voted for this bill will even know that and | doubt they will look it up.

Chairman Weisz: Ok it sounds like the consensus is with leaving it the same. Ok, | am
going to move quickly here, so if you have an objection speak up.

Page 18
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Representative Schneider: We need to change the amount in there to match the other place
with the $90,000 and $110,000.

Chairman Weisz: Yes, that is correct. Thank you.
Page 19

Page 20

Page 21 | do have some suggested changes in here for page 21. On the penalties.

There is a concern on number 1 on page 21 where it just gives the authority to the
department. Some suggested that we can give them the authority up to a maximum so they
don'’t get carried away.

Representative Devlin: | think it was originally $150 and | don’t know why it was changed
to being established by the department. Perhaps we could just say up to $150. Not to
exceed $150.

Chairman Weisz: Is everyone ok with that? It seems like that is ok with everyone.

On page 22 there are 2 things. One, we can remove number 10 on page 22. We don’t need
it in this bill. It is already a Class A misdemeanor to make a false statement to law
enforcement. It is the same language. | looked it up in century code.

Representative P. Anderson: on number 9 if you make a false statement to law
enforcement it is a Class A misdemeanor and if you make a false statement to the department
it is a Class C felony. | think that is a little high.

Chairman Weisz: | will explain why it is drafted that way. The department thought it was
current penalty, but this applies if it is a department employee that makes a false statement.
Then it could be a Class C felony. That is not really what we are looking at here. Does
anyone have a problem with making this a class a misdemeanor? | didn’t see any opposition
to that, so we will make that change.

Representative P. Anderson: | think they are taking up SB 2149 next week and they
reduced all of those penalties. | think it should be the intent of this bill that if someone
possesses medical marijuana illegally it is not a higher charge than if they possess street
marijuana. | don’t know that is what happening here.

Chairman Weisz: | had that checked out and every felony and misdemeanor is at the same
level now, but there is one other place where the language is where it talks about “in
exchange for anything of value”. If you are looking under the penalties. They said that all
references to or use of the words, “in exchange for anything of value” should be removed per
the conversations in the House Human Services committee hearing. Is everyone ok with
that? In number 2 it is used, in number 3 it is used, in number 4 it is used and number 7, and
number 8. That should be it. Is the committee ok with that?

Representative Schneider: | am ok with that, but when we were having the exchange with
the level of these Tara said that they would review this to make sure it is consistent with
whatever law is passed this time since we have got conference committees and such that
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might change some of the that. | would like it to at least reflect as legislative intent that we
did not want penalties in this section to be higher. They could be equal to or less than any
changes in comparable penalties in criminal law.

Chairman Weisz: | don’t know if it is doable, but we could have language that just says any
changes this would reflect. So if conference committee would take it down to be a whatever
that this would automatically make that adjustment. | am not sure how to do that language,
but | am sure Jennifer could do it. There is not a conflict, because they could change a
penalty in something else that wouldn’t conflict with that. This is not criminal code and so if
criminal code changes this doesn’t change. If that is what the committee wants | can put in
language that says that if the criminal code changes, these will change too.

Representative Schneider: When we were having the discussion we didn’'t want these
penalties to be higher than the normal. | think that is important. | would like that legislative
intent.

Chairman Weisz: | agree with that. | don’t think the penalties should be different if you sell
street marijuana or medical marijuana. Does anyone have an issue with that? Are we good?

Page 23. Anything?

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27 Instead of ‘or” they have "ore”.

Page 28 They had a question for us. No itis on 29 actually on line 4. Does anyone have an
issue with page 287

Chairman Weisz: Page 29 line 4. It is confusing language. Under this chapter if | am
smoking marijuana in front of a child who is not on it. What they are saying is that it is ok for
me to smoke around a minor who has medical marijuana. The question is is that what we
want it to say? So if you are not a qualifying patient as a minor you can’t be around someone
who is smoking marijuana, but we are still limiting it to 6% in other parts. To me it doesn't
make a lot of sense.

Representative P. Anderson: | don’t think we have a law about smoking cigarettes around
kids and | think that is way worse.

Representative Porter: | would disagree. The byproduct of cigarette smoke doesn’t contain
hallucinogenic. | would have to argue that smoking of marijuana in front of kids is way worse
than nicotine in front of kids.

Chairman Weisz: Ok, committee. We can either strike it or just say “you cannot smoke
around a minor”. It sounds like everyone is ok with, “not around a minor”. We will add that.
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The other issue they had. They had a question on 19-24.135 on the bottom of page 29 where
it is talking about nursing homes. They had a chat with CMS. CMS had issues. They want
to add some language under 2 they want to say, “as authorized under this chapter unless
failing to do so would cause the facility to lose monetary or licensing related benefit under
federal law or regulation”.

Representative P. Anderson: | think this language comes from Delaware.

Chairman Weisz: | don’t doubt that. | had a conversation with CMS and they said that if
they showed up in a facility and saw marijuana there would be a problem with their license.
They aren’t saying they can'’t do it, but the facility could say no.

Representative Porter: We had the same argument about schools and colleges with federal
funding and we can’t put the entire nursing home at risk of losing all of their federal funding
because of this act. If they can figure out a way around it, great, but if they can’t and the
person needs medical marijuana then the family is going to have to make arrangements to
take them out in the car or something else. They are not going to be able to do it at that
facility.

Representative P. Anderson: It does say right above it, “consumption is limited to a place
specified by the facility,”.

Chairman Weisz: Are we ok with that language? No one disagreed. Ok committee that is
the last page.

Representative P. Anderson: | am wondering about the advisory board. Page 31. | know
that 20 members is too many, but 4 is not enough. | have had several people wonder if we
could go to 6 or something.

Representative Porter: | kind of agree with Representative P. Anderson, but | think it needs
to be an odd number. Like maybe 5, so it is not even but not 7.

Representative Devlin: Remember that the health officer will be on there too, so that will
make it odd. | am in favor of 6 with the health officer making it 7.

Chairman Weisz: Ok, Is everyone ok with 6 plus the health officer? Ok we will make that
change. Ok committee you should have the amendments | handed out and that has to do
with the questions that came up about should these facilities be exempt from property tax
like an ag farm. This eliminates it, but if you look on the amendment it should say with the
exception of medical marijuana grown under chapter 19-24. This is to insure that industrial
marijuana is not an ag enterprise. So if you put up that building to grow it, you are paying
property tax. Is the committee ok with that? Ok we will add those.

Chairman Weisz: The other amendment has to do with primary sector. The amendment
would say no you do not qualify as a primary sector business. These would not be considered
primary sector under this definition. Do you want to limit them to not be primary sector
operations? It sounds like everyone is ok with this.



House Human Services Committee
SB 2344

4/3/17

Page 10

.Representative P. Anderson: Remember when Delaware let them have 4000 and we
lowered it to 2000. Is there any interest in raising it?

Chairman Weisz: | am more comfortable leaving it the same at least for now. The maximum
per month is still way under that.

Representative Schneider: | just have a request again on the bottom of page 10 to make it
easier for people that live outside of Burleigh County. | would just add after hearing “except
for telephonic and video participation approved by the court”.

Chairman Weisz: Is the committee ok with that? Ok we will add that. | will entertain a motion
on the amendments.

Representative Porter: | Move to adopt the amendments 17.0630.03019 and
17.0630.03023 to SB 2344.

Representative Skroch: | second it.

Chairman Weisz: Ok we will take a voice vote on the amendments.
Motion carried. Ok now | will entertain a motion on the amended bill.

Representative Porter: | move a do pass as amended on SB 2344 and rerefer to
appropriation.

Representative P. Anderson: Seconded.

Chairman Weisz: Is there any further discussion? Seeing none, the clerk will call the roll for
a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2344.

Roll call vote taken: Yes 13 No 1 Absent 0. Motion carried.

Chairman Weisz: | will carry the bill.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2344
Page 1, line 4, remove "and"
Page 1, line 4, after "19-24-41" insert ", and 19-24-42"

Page 54, line 21, after "e." insert "A designation as to whether a qualifying patient or designated
caregiver under subdivision d is authorized to grow the plant of the
genus cannabis as provided under section 19-24-42:

£"
Page 54, line 22, replace "f." with "g."
Page 54, line 24, replace "g." with "h."
Page 54, line 26, replace "h." with "i."
Page 54, line 27, replace "." with "."

Page 55, line 24, replace "A" with "Except as otherwise provided under section 19-24-42, a"

Page 75, line 27, after the underscored comma insert "cultivation."

Page 75, line 30, after the first underscored comma insert "cultivation,"

Page 76, line 4, after the first underscored comma insert "cultivation."

Page 76, line 8, after the second underscored comma insert "cultivation,"

Page 76, line 12, after the first underscored comma insert "cultivation,"

Page 82, after line 11, insert:

"SECTION 42. Section 19-24-42 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

19-24-42. Cultivation of marijuana by a registered qualifying patient or
registered designated caregiver.

1. Ifthe residence of a registered qualifying patient who is authorized to use

the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis is more than
forty miles [64.37 kilometers] from the nearest dispensary. that qualifying

patient or that qualifying patient's registered designated caregiver may
arow the plant of the genus cannabis for the use of that reqistered
ualifying patient.

A reqistered qualifying patient or reqgistered qualifying caregiver authorized
to grow under this section may grow no more than eight plants of the
denus cannabis, but may not exceed the allowable amount of usable
marijuana for medical use. A plant grown under this section must be grown
in an enclosed. locked facility, which may not be located within one
thousand feet [604.80 meters] of a property line of a pre-existing public or
private school.

p
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Before a reqgistered qualifying patient or registered qualifying caregiver
arows the plant of the genus cannabis under this section. the patient or
careqiver shall give local law enforcement a notice of intent to grow. The

department shall establish the notice requirements under this subsection.

4. Areqistered qualifying patient or registered caregiver may not grow the
plant of the genus cannabis under this section, unless that individual's

registry identification card designates that individual as authorized to grow
under this section."

Renumber accordingly
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2344

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact chapter 19-24.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to medical
marijuana; to amend and reenact section 54-60-03, paragraph 3 of subdivision a of
subsection 15 of section 57-02-08, and paragraph 2 of subdivision b of subsection 15
of section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to primary sector
business certification and property tax exemptions for farm buildings and residences; to
repeal chapter 19-24 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to medical marijuana;
to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a report; to provide a penalty;
to provide a continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency..

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Chapter 19-24.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and
enacted as follows:

19-24.1-01. Definitions.

As used in this chapter, unless the context indicates otherwise:

1. "Advanced practice reqistered nurse" means an advanced practice
reqgistered nurse as defined under section 43-12.1-02.

2. "Allowable amount of usable marijuana" means the amount of usable
marijuana a registered qualifying patient or reqistered designated caregiver
may purchase in a thirty-day period under this chapter.

a. During a thirty-day period, a registered qualifying patient may not
purchase or have purchased by a reqistered designated caregiver
more than two and one-half ounces [70.87 grams] of dried leaves or
flowers of the plant of genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form.
At any time a registered qualifying patient, or a registered designated
careqiver on behalf of a registered qualifying patient, may not possess
more than three ounces [85.05 grams] of dried leaves or flowers of the
plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form.

A registered qualifying patient may not purchase or have purchased
by a registered designated caregiver more than the maximum
concentration or amount of tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a
thirty-day period. The maximum concentration or amount of
tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a thirty-day period for a cannabinoid
concentrate or medical cannabinoid product, or the cumulative total of
both, is two thousand milligrams.

|o

"Bona fide provider-patient relationship" means a treatment or counseling
relationship between a health care provider and patient in which all the
following are present:

|0
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The health care provider has reviewed the patient's relevant medical fa
records and completed a full assessment of the patient's medical

history and current medical condition, including a relevant, in-person,
medical evaluation of the patient.

[

The health care provider has created and maintained records of the
patient's condition in accordance with medically accepted standards.

The patient is under the health care provider's continued care for the
debilitating medical condition that qualifies the patient for the medical
use of marijuana.

34

o

The health care provider has a reasonable expectation that provider
will continue to provide followup care to the patient to monitor the
medical use of marijuana as a treatment of the patient's debilitating
medical condition.

e. The relationship is not for the sole purpose of providing written
certification for the medical use of marijuana.

"Cannabinoid" means a chemical compound that is one of the active
constituents of marijuana.

"Cannabinoid capsule" means a small, soluble container, usually made of
gelatin, which encloses a dose of a cannabinoid product or a cannabinoid
concentrate intended for consumption. The maximum concentration of
amount of tetrahhydrocannabinol permitted in a serving of a cannabinoid
capsule is fifty milligrams.

"Cannabinoid concentrate" means a concentrate or extract obtained by
separating cannabinoids from marijuana by a mechanical, chemical, or

other process.

"Cannabinoid edible product" means a food or potable liquid into which a
cannabinoid concentrate or the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the
genus cannabis is incorporated.

"Cannabinoid tincture" means a solution of alcohol, cannabinoid
concentrate, and other ingredients intended for consumption.

"Cannabinoid topical" means a cannabinoid product intended to be applied
to the skin or hair. The maximum concentration or amount of
tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a cannabinoid topical is six percent.

"Cannabinoid transdermal patch" means an adhesive substance applied to
the skin which contains a cannabinoid product or cannabinoid concentrate
for absorption into the bloodstream. The maximum concentration or
amount of tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a serving of a cannabinoid
transdermal patch is fifty milligrams.

"Cardholder" means a qualifying patient, designated caregiver, or
compassion center agent who has been issued and possesses a valid
reqgistry identification card.

"Compassion center" means a manufacturing facility or dispensary.
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"Compassion center agent" means a principal officer, board member,
member, manager, governor, employee, volunteer, or agent of a
compassion center.

"Contaminated" means made impure or inferior by extraneous substances.

"Debilitating medical condition" means one of the following:

a. Cancer,;
b. Positive status for human immunodeficiency virus;

c. Acquired immune deficiency syndrome;

d. Decompensated cirrhosis caused by hepatitis C;
e. Amyotrophic lateral sclerosis;

f. Posttraumatic stress disorder;

g. Agitation of Alzheimer's disease or related dementia;
h. Crohn's disease;

i. Fibromyalgia;

I-  Spinal stenosis or chronic back pain, including neuropathy or damage
to the nervous tissue of the spinal cord with objective neurological
indication of intractable spasticity;

k. Glaucoma;

|. Epilepsy:

m. Aterminalillness; and
n. A chronic or debilitating disease or medical condition or treatment for

such disease or medical condition that produces one or more of the
following:

(1) Cachexia or wasting syndrome;

(2) Severe debilitating pain that has not responded to previously
prescribed medication or surgical measures for more than three
months or for which other treatment options produced serious
side effects:

(3) Intractable nausea;

(4) Seizures; or

(5) Severe and persistent muscle spasms, including those
characteristic of multiple sclerosis.

"Department" means the state department of health.

"Designated caregiver" means an individual who agrees to manage the
well-being of a registered qualifying patient with respect to the qualifying
patient's medical use of marijuana.
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"Dispensary" means an entity registered by the department as a
compassion center authorized to dispense usable marijuana to a
reqistered qualifying patient and a registered designated caregiver.

"Enclosed, locked facility" means a closet, room, greenhouse, building, or
other enclosed area equipped with locks or other security devices that

permit access limited to individuals authorized under this chapter or rules
adopted under this chapter.

"Health care provider" means a physician or an advanced practice
registered nurse.

"Manufacturing facility" means an entity registered by the department as a
compassion center authorized to produce and process and to sell usable
marijuana to a dispensary.

"Marijuana" means all parts of the plant of the genus cannabis; the seeds
of the plant; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every
compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the
plant, the seeds of the plant, or the resin extracted from any part of the

plant.

"Maximum concentration or amount of tetrahydrocannabinol" means the
total amount of tetrahydrocannabinol and tetrahydrocannabinolic acid in a
medical cannabinoid product or a cannabinoid concentrate.

"Medical cannabinoid product" means a product intended for human
consumption or use which contains cannabinoids.

a. Medical cannabinoid products are limited to the following forms:

(1) Cannabinoid tincture;

(2) Cannabinoid capsule;

(3) Cannabinoid transdermal patch; and

(4) Cannabinoid topical.

[

"Medical cannabinoid product" does not include:

(1) A cannabinoid edible product;

(2) A cannabinoid concentrate by itself; or

(3) The dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis
by itself.

"Medical marijuana product" means a cannabinoid concentrate or a
medical cannabinoid product.

"Medical marijuana waste" means unused, surplus, returned, or out-of-date

usable marijuana; recalled usable marijuana; unused marijuana; or plant
debris of the plant of the genus cannabis, including dead plants and all
unused plant parts and roots.
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"Medical use of marijuana" means the acquisition, use, and possession of GT_}
usable marijuana to treat or alleviate a qualifying patient's debilitating (C)

medical condition.

"Minor" means an individual under the age of nineteen.

"North Dakota identification" means a North Dakota driver's license or
comparable state of North Dakota or federal issued photo identification
card verifying North Dakota residence.

"Pediatric medical marijuana" means a medical marijuana product
containing cannabidiol which may not contain a maximum concentration or
amount of tetrahydrocannabinol of more than six percent.

"Physician" means a physician licensed under chapter 43-17 to practice
medicine in the state of North Dakota.

"Posttraumatic stress disorder" means a patient meets the diagnostic
criteria for posttraumatic stress disorder under the "Diagnostic and
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders", American psychiatric association,
fifth edition, text revision (2013).

"Processing" or "process" means the compounding or conversion of
marijuana into a medical marijuana product.

"Producing", "produce", or "production" mean the planting, cultivating,
growing, trimming, or harvesting of the plant of the genus cannabis or the
drying of the leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis.

"Qualifying patient" means an individual who has been diagnosed by a
health care provider as having a debilitating medical condition.

"Registry identification card" means a document issued by the department
which identifies an individual as a registered qualifying patient, registered
designated caregiver, or registered compassion center agent.

"Terminal illness" means a disease, illness, or condition of a patient:

For which there is not a reasonable medical expectation of recovery;

|

b. Which as a medical probability, will result in the death of the patient,
regardless of the use or discontinuance of medical treatment
implemented for the purpose of sustaining life or the life processes:
and

c. As aresult of which, the patient's health care provider would not be
surprised if death were to occur within six months.

"Usable marijuana" means a medical marijuana product or the dried leaves
or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible delivery
form. However, the term does not include the dried leaves or flowers
unless authorized through a written certification and does not include a
cannabinoid edible product. In the case of a registered qualifying patient
who is a minor, "usable marijuana" is limited to pediatric medical

marijuana.
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"Verification system" means the system maintained by the department \» \q
under section 19-24.1-31 for verification of registry identification cards.

"Written certification" means a form established by the department which is
executed, dated, and signed by a health care provider within ninety
calendar days of the date of application, stating that in the health care
provider's professional opinion the patient is likely to receive therapeutic or
palliative benefit from the medical use of marijuana to treat or alleviate the
patient's debilitating medical condition. A health care provider may
authorize the use of dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form to treat or alleviate the patient's
debilitating medical condition. A written certification may not be made
except in the course of a bona fide provider-patient relationship.

19-24.1-02. Medical marijuana program.

The department shall establish and implement a medical marijuana program

under this chapter to allow for production and processing, the sale and dispensing of

usable marijuana, and medical use of marijuana. A person may not produce or process

or sell, possess, transport, dispense, or use marijuana or usable marijuana under the

medical marijuana program unless the person is authorized to do so as a compassion

center, a cardholder, or otherwise authorized by rule adopted under this chapter.

19-24.1-03. Qualifying patients - Registration.

1.

N

A qualifying patient is not eligible to purchase, use, or possess usable
marijuana under the medical marijuana program unless the qualifying
patient has a valid reqistry identification card.

A qualifying patient application for a registry identification card is complete
and eligible for review if an applicant submits to the department:

a. A nonrefundable annual application fee in the amount of fifty dollars,
with a personal check or cashier's check payable to "North Dakota
State Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program".

b. An original written certification, which must include:

(1) The name, address, and telephone number of the practice
location of the applicant's health care provider:;

(2) The health care provider's North Dakota license number;

(3) The health care provider's medical or nursing specialty;

(4) The applicant's name and date of birth;

(6) The applicant's debilitating medical condition and the medical
justification for the health care provider's certification of the
patient's debilitating medical condition;

(6) Attestation the written certification is made in the course of a

bona fide provider-patient relationship and that in the provider's
professional opinion the applicant is likely to receive therapeutic
or palliative benefit from the medical use of marijuana to treat or
alleviate the applicant's debilitating medical condition;
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e.

f.

(7) Whether the health care provider authorizes the patient to use
the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in
a combustible delivery form; and

(8) The health care provider's signature and the date.

An original qualifying patient application for a registry identification
card form established by the department which must include all of the

following:
(1) The applicant's name, address, and date of birth.

The applicant's social security number.

proposed designated caregiver, if any.

(2)
(3) The name, address, and date of birth of the applicant's
(4)

A photographic copy of the applicant's North Dakota
identification. The North Dakota identification must be available
for inspection and verification upon request of the department. If
the applicant is a minor, a certificated copy of a birth record is

required.

The applicant's or guardian's signature and the date, or in the
case of a minor, the signature of the minor's parent or legal
quardian with responsibility for health care decisions and the
date.

B

A signed consent for release of medical information related to the
applicant's debilitating medical condition, on a form provided by the

department.

A recent two-by-two inch [5.08-by-5.08 centimeter] photograph of the
applicant.

Any other information or material required by rule adopted under this
chapter.

If the applicant is unable to submit the required application information due

to age or medical condition, the individual responsible for making medical

decisions for the applicant may submit the application on behalf of the

applicant. The individual responsible for making medical decisions:

a.

b.

Must be identified on the qualifying patient application for a registry
identification card; and

Shall provide a copy of the individual's North Dakota identification.
The North Dakota identification must be available for inspection and
verification upon the request of the department.

If the applicant is a minor, the department may waive the application or

renewal fee if:

8.

b.

The parent or legal guardian of the applicant is the applicant's
reqgistered designated caregiver; and

The applicant resides with the applicant's reqistered designated
caregiver.
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19-24.1-04. Designated caregivers - Registration. AN

1. Adesignated caregiver is not eligible to purchase, assist in the use of, or
possess usable marijuana under the medical marijuana program unless
the designated caregiver has a valid registry identification card.

[ro

A designated caregiver application is complete and eligible for review if an
applicant submits to the department all of the following:

a. Anonrefundable annual application fee in the amount of fifty dollars,
with a personal check or cashier's check made payable to "North
Dakota State Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program".

[

An original designated caregiver application for a registry identification
card form established by the department which must include all of the

following:

(1) A certified copy of a birth record verifying the applicant is at least
twenty-one years of age.

(2) A photographic copy of the applicant's North Dakota
identification. The North Dakota identification must be available
for inspection and verification upon request of the department.

The name, address, telephone number, and date of birth of the
qualifying patient.

@

The name, address, and telephone number for the qualifying
patient's health care provider.

[=

The name, address, and telephone number of the applicant.

The applicant's social security number.

B kB

7) The applicant's signature and the date.

An original designated caregiver authorization form established by the
department which must be executed by a registered qualifying patient
providing the designated caregiver applicant with the responsibility of
managing the well-being of the registered qualifying patient with
respect to the registered qualifying patient's medical use of marijuana.
The form must include:

34

(1) The name and date of birth of the designated caregiver
applicant; and

(2) The registered qualifying patient's signature and the date.

d. Arecent two-by-two inch [5.08-by-5.08 centimeter] photograph of the
applicant.

e. Any other information or material required by the department by rule.

54

A criminal history record check conducted under section 12-60-24 must be
performed upon initial application and biennially thereafter and at any other
time upon the request of the department. All fees associated with the
criminal history record check must be paid by the applicant.
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An individual convicted of a drug-related misdemeanor offense within the
five yvears preceding the date of application or of a felony offense is
prohibited from serving as a designated caregiver.

An applicant shall submit a separate and complete application for each of
the applicant's registered qualifying patients. A registered designated
caregiver may assist no more than five registered qualifying patients. A
registered designated caregiver who is a registered qualifying patient may
assist no more than four additional registered qualifying patients.

A registered designated caregiver may not purchase or possess more than
the allowable amount of usable marijuana for each of the reqgistered
designated careqiver's reqgistered qualifying patients and for the registered
designated caregiver if the caregiver is a registered qualifying patient.

19-24.1-05. Qualifying patients and designated caregivers - Identification

cards - Issuance and denial.

1.

N

|

|

|

Upon receipt of a complete application for or renewal of a qualifying patient
or designated caregiver registry identification card, the department shall
verify the submitted information.

The verification methods used by the department on an application or
renewal and accompanying documentation may include:

a. Contacting an applicant by telephone or mail, or if proof of identity is
uncertain, the department shall require a face-to-face meeting and the
production of additional identification materials;

b. Contacting the North Dakota board of medicine or North Dakota board
of nursing to verify the certifying health care provider is licensed in the
state and is in good standing; and

c. Contacting the health care provider to obtain additional documentation

verifying the qualifying patient applicant's medical diagnosis and
medical condition qualify the applicant for participation in the medical
marijuana program.

Upon verification of the information contained in an application or renewal,
the department shall approve or deny the application or renewal.

Except as provided in subsection 5, the department shall issue a registry
identification card within thirty calendar days of approving an application or
renewal. A designated caregiver must have a registry identification card for
each of the designated caregiver's reqistered qualifying patients.

The department may not issue a reqistry identification card to a qualifying
patient who is a minor unless:

a. The department receives documentation the minor's health care
provider has explained to the parent or legal guardian with
responsibility for health care decisions for the minor the potential risks
and benefits of the use of pediatric medical marijuana to treat or
alleviate the debilitating medical condition; and
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The department receives documentation the parent or legal guardian
with responsibility for health care decisions for the minor consents in

writing to:

(1) Allow the minor's use of pediatric medical marijuana to treat or
alleviate the debilitating medical condition;

&

(2) Serve as the minor's designated caregiver or identifies a
registered designated caregiver to act as the minor's designated

caregiver;
(3) Control the acquisition of usable marijuana and control the

dosage and frequency of the use of usable marijuana by the
minor; and

(4) If serving as the minor's designated caregiver, prevent the minor
from accessing the usable marijuana by storing the usable
marijuana in an enclosed, locked facility.

If the department denies an application or renewal, the applicant may not
reapply for one year from the date of the denial, unless otherwise
authorized by the department, and the applicant is prohibited from all
lawful privileges provided under this chapter.

The department shall deny an application for or renewal of a qualifying
patient's reqistry identification card if the applicant:

a. Does not meet the requirements of this section or section 19-24.1-03;
b. Did not provide the required information and materials:

c. Previously had a reqistry identification card revoked:; or

d. Provided false or falsified information or made a material

misstatement.

The department shall deny an application for or renewal of a designated
caregiver registry identification card if the designated caregiver applicant:

a. Does not meet the requirements of this section or section 19-24.1-04;
b. Did not provide the required information and materials;

c. Previously had a registry identification card revoked; or

d. Provided false or falsified information or made a material

misstatement.

The department shall notify, in writing, the qualifying patient or designated
caregiver applicant of the reason for denying an application or renewal.

The department shall notify the following in writing:

a. Aregistered qualifying patient if that patient's designated caregiver's
application or renewal is denied; and

b. Aregistered designated caregiver if that caregiver's qualifying
patient's application or renewal is denied.
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11. The cardholder may appeal a denial or revocation of a registry
identification card to the district court of Burleigh County for hearing. The
court may authorize the cardholder to appear by reliable electronic means.

19-24.1-06. Reqistry identification cards - Renewal.

To prevent interruption of possession of a valid registry identification card, a
registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver shall apply for a registry
identification card renewal by submitting a complete reapplication as provided under
section 19-24.1-03 or 19-24.1-04 no less than forty-five calendar days before the
expiration date of the existing registry identification card.

19-24.1-07. Registry identification cards - Nontransferable.

A reqistry identification card is not transferable, by assignment or otherwise, to
another person. If a person attempts to transfer a card in violation of this section, the
reqistry identification card is void and the person is prohibited from all privileges
provided under this chapter.

19-24.1-08. Qualifying patients and designated caregivers - Voluntary
withdrawal.

A registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver may
voluntarily withdraw from participation in the medical marijuana program. A registered
qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver seeking to withdraw from the
medical marijuana program shall notify the department in writing no less than thirty
calendar days before withdrawal.

19-24.1-09. Cardholders - Eligibility and compliance.

1. Acardholder shall provide the department or the department's designee
immediate access to any material and information necessary for
determining eligibility and compliance with this chapter.

Failure of a cardholder to provide the department access to the material, or
information as provided under this chapter may result in the department
taking action. which may include the revocation of the cardholder registry
identification card and referral to state or local law enforcement.

N

Failure of a cardholder to comply with the requirements under this section
which is documented by the department, may result in sanctions, including
suspension, revocation, nonrenewal, or denial of registration, and referral
to state or local law enforcement.

o

The department shall refer credible criminal complaints against a
cardholder to appropriate state or local law enforcement authorities.

[~

S

a. If aviolation of the requirements under this section is cited as a result
of compliance monitoring, the department shall provide the cardholder
with written notice of the findings following the compliance monitoring
visit.

Unless otherwise specified by the department, the cardholder shall
correct the violation within five calendar days of receipt of the notice
citing the violation.

o
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c. The department shall verify whether the cardholder corrected the : {&
violation.

d. The violation is not deemed corrected until the department provides
written verification the corrective action is satisfactory.

e. If the violation is not corrected within the required time, the

department may revoke the registry identification card of the
cardholder.

19-24.1-10. Cardholders - Notification of change.

1.

N

|

|

|o
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Within ten calendar days of the change, in a manner prescribed by the
department, a registered qualifying patient or reqistered designated
caregiver shall notify the department of any of the following:

A change in the cardholder's name or address:

|

b. Knowledge of a change that would render the registered qualifying
patient no longer eligible to participate in the medical marijuana

program;

Knowledge of a change that results in the registered qualifying
patient's health care provider no longer meeting the definition of the
term "health care provider" as defined under section 19-24.1-01; or

|

d. Knowledge of a change that renders the registered qualifying patient's
registered designated caregiver no longer eligible to participate in the
medical marijuana program.

If a reqistered qualifying patient seeks to change the patient's designated
caregiver, the registered qualifying patient shall notify the department in
writing of this change.

If a cardholder loses the cardholder's reqistry identification card, the
cardholder shall notify the department in writing within twenty-four hours of
becoming aware of the loss.

If a registered qualifying patient is unable to make a notification required
under this section due to age or medical condition, that patient's reqgistered
designated caregiver or the individual responsible for making medical
decisions for that patient shall provide the notification.

If the department receives notification of an item listed in this section and
the nature of the item reported does not affect a cardholder's eligibility, the
department shall issue the cardholder a new reqistry identification card
with a new random ten-digit alphanumeric identification number within
twenty calendar days of approving the updated information and the
cardholder shall pay a fee, not to exceed twenty-five dollars. If a
cardholder notifying the department is a registered qualifying patient who
has a registered designated caregiver, the department shall issue the
patient's reqgistered designated caregiver a new reqistry identification card
within twenty calendar days of approving the updated information.

If the department receives notification of an item listed in this section and
the nature of the item reported makes the cardholder ineligible, the
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cardholder's reqistry identification card becomes void immediately upon
notification of the department and the registered cardholder shall dispose
of any usable marijuana in the cardholder's possession within fifteen
calendar days, in accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

A registered qualifying patient's certifying health care provider shall notify
the department in writing if the health care provider's registered qualifying
patient no longer has a debilitating medical condition or if the health care
provider no longer believes the patient will receive therapeutic or palliative
benefit from the medical use of marijuana. The qualifying patient's registry
identification card becomes void immediately upon the health care
provider's notification of the department and the registered qualifying
patient shall dispose of any usable marijuana in the cardholder's
possession within fifteen calendar days, in accordance with rules adopted
under this chapter.

19-24.1-11. Regqistry identification cards.

1.

N

oo

The contents of a reqistry identification card must include:

a. The name of the cardholder;

b. Adesignation as to whether the cardholder is a qualifying patient,
designated careqiver, or compassion center agent;

c. Adesignation as to whether a qualifying patient is a minor;

d. Adesignation as to whether a qualifying patient or a designated
caregiver's qualifying patient is authorized to use the dried leaves or
flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis;

e. The date of issuance and expiration date;

f.  Arandom ten-digit alphanumeric identification number containing at
least four numbers and at least four letters which is unigue to the
cardholder;

g. Ifthe cardholder is a designated caregiver, the random identification
number of the qualifying patient the designated caregiver is authorized

to assist;

=

A photograph of the cardholder; and

i. The phone number or website address at which the card can be
verified.

Except as otherwise provided in this section or rule adopted under this
chapter, a reqistry identification card expiration date must be one year after
the date of issuance.

If a health care provider states in the written certification that the qualifying
patient would benefit from the medical use of marijuana until a specified
date, less than one year, the reqistry identification card expires on that
date.
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19-24.1-12. Compassion centers.

1. A person may not process or produce or dispense usable marijuana or
otherwise act as a compassion center in this state unless the person is
registered as a compassion center.

N

Except as otherwise provided under this section, the department shall
register no more than:

a. Two compassion centers with the sole purpose of operating as a
manufacturing facility; and

b. Eight compassion centers with the sole purpose of operating as a
dispensary.

The department shall establish an open application period for the
submission of compassion center applications. At the completion of the
open application period, the department shall review each complete
application using a competitive process established in accordance with
rules adopted under this chapter and shall determine which applicants to
register as compassion centers.

|

|~

The department may register additional compassion centers if the
department determines additional compassion centers are necessary to
increase access to usable marijuana by registered qualifying patients and
registered designated caregivers.

|on

If the department revokes or does not renew a compassion center
registration certificate, the department may establish an open application
period for the submission of compassion center applications.

6. The department of commerce may not certify a compassion center as a
primary sector business.

19-24.1-13. Compassion centers - Authority.

1. The activities of a manufacturing facility are limited to producing and
processing and to related activities, including acquiring, possessing,
storing, transferring, and transporting marijuana and usable marijuana, for
the sole purpose of selling usable marijuana to a dispensary.

[h

The activities of a dispensary are limited to purchasing usable marijuana
from a manufacturing facility, and related activities, including storing,
delivering, transferring, and transporting usable marijuana, for the sole
purpose of dispensing usable marijuana to a registered qualifying patient,
directly or through the registered qualifying patient's registered designated
caregiver. The activities of a dispensary include providing educational
material and selling usable marijuana related supplies to a registered
qualifying patient or a registered designated caregiver.
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19-24.1-14. Compassion centers - Application.

1. The department shall establish forms for an application to be registered as

a compassion center. For a compassion center registration application to

be complete and eligible for review, the applicant shall submit to the

department all of the following:

=

o

[©

o
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A nonrefundable application fee, not to exceed five thousand dollars,
made pavable to the "North Dakota State Department of Health,
Medical Marijuana Program".

The legal name, articles of incorporation or articles of organization,
and bylaws or operating agreement of the proposed compassion
center applicant.

Evidence of the proposed compassion center applicant's registration
with the secretary of state and certificate of good standing.

The physical address of the proposed location of the proposed
compassion center and:

(1) Evidence of approval from local officials as to the proposed
compassion center applicant's compliance with local zoning
laws for the physical address to be used by the proposed
compassion center; and

(2) Evidence the physical address of the proposed compassion
center is not located within one thousand feet [604.80 meters] of
a property line of a pre-existing public or private school.

For a manufacturing facility applicant, a description of the enclosed,
locked facility that would be used in the production and processing of
marijuana, including steps that will be taken to ensure the production
and processing is not visible from the street or other public areas.

The name, address, and date of birth of each principal officer and
board member, or of each member-manager, manager, or governor, of
the proposed compassion center applicant and verification each
officer and board member, or each member-manager, manager, or
governor, has consented to a criminal history record check conducted
under section 12-60-24.

For each of the proposed compassion center applicant's principal
officers and board members, or for each of the proposed compassion
center applicant's member-managers, managers, or governors, a
description of that individual's relevant experience, including training
or professional licensing related to medicine, pharmaceuticals, natural
treatments, botany, food science, food safety, production, processing,
and the individual's experience running a business entity.

A description of proposed security and safety measures, which
demonstrate compliance with the security and safety requirements
under section 19-24.1-25.

An example of the design and security features of usable marijuana
containers which demonstrates compliance with section 19-24.1-21.
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i.  Acomplete operations manual, which demonstrates compliance with
section 19-24.1-27.

<

A description of the plans for making usable marijuana available on an
affordable basis to registered qualifying patients with limited financial
resources.

A list of all individuals and business entities having direct or indirect
authority over the management or policies of the proposed
compassion center applicant.

A list of all individuals and business entities having an ownership
interest in the proposed compassion center applicant, whether direct
or indirect, and whether the interest is in profits, land, or building,
including owners of any business entity that owns all or part of the
land or building.

3

n. The identity of any creditor holding a security interest in the proposed
compassion center premises.

The department is not required to review an application submitted under
this section unless the department determines the application is complete.
The criteria considered by the department in reviewing an application must
include:

a. The suitability of the proposed compassion center location, including
compliance with any local zoning laws, and the geographic
convenience to access compassion centers for registered qualifying
patients and registered designated caregivers from throughout the
state;

The character and relevant experience of the principal officers and
board members, or of the member-managers, managers, or
governors, including training or professional licensing and business

experience;

The applicant's plan for operations and services, including staffing and
training plans, whether the applicant has sufficient capital to operate,
and the applicant's ability to provide an adequate supply of usable
marijuana to registered qualifying patients and registered designated

caregivers;

The sufficiency of the applicant's plans for recordkeeping:

|

[©

o

The sufficiency of the applicant's plans for safety, security, and the
prevention of diversion, including the proposed location and security
devices employed:

|®

f. The applicant's plan for making usable marijuana available on an
affordable basis to registered qualifying patients with limited financial
resources;

d. The applicant's plan for safe and accurate packaging and labeling of
usable marijuana; and

=

The applicant's plans for testing usable marijuana and marijuana.
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3. Following completion of the review under subsection 2, the department
shall select the applicants eligible for registration under section 19-24.1-15.

19-24.1-15. Compassion centers - Registration.

1.  Upon receipt of notification by the department a compassion center
application is eligible for registration, the applicant shall submit all of the
following additional items to the department to qualify for registration:

a. A certification fee, made payable to the "North Dakota State
Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program", in the amount of
ninety thousand dollars for a dispensary and one hundred ten
thousand dollars for a manufacturing facility.

[o

A financial assurance or security bond to ensure the protection of the
public health and safety and the environment in the event of
abandonment, default, or other inability or unwillingness to meet the
requirements of this chapter.

The legal name, articles of incorporation or articles of organization,
and bylaws or operating agreement, of the proposed compassion
center applicant.

[

|

The physical address of the proposed compassion center;
confirmation the information in the application regarding the physical
location of the proposed compassion center has not changed, and if
the information has changed the department shall determine whether
the new information meets the requirements of this chapter; and a
current certificate of occupancy, or equivalent document, to
demonstrate compliance with the provisions of state and local fire
code for the physical address of the proposed compassion center. It is
not necessary for an applicant to resubmit any information provided in
the initial application unless there has been a change in that
information.

An update to previously submitted information, including information
about compassion center agents and compliance with section
19-24.1-18.

|®

2. If an applicant complies with subsection 1, the department shall issue the
applicant a registration certificate.

19-24.1-16. Compassion centers - Renewal.

1. A compassion center registration certificate expires two years after
issuance. A compassion center may submit a renewal application at any
time beginning ninety calendar days before the expiration of the
reqgistration certificate. A compassion center shall submit a renewal
application a minimum of sixty calendar days before the expiration of the
registration certificate to avoid suspension of the certificate.

n

The department shall approve a compassion center's renewal application
within sixty calendar days of submission, if the following conditions are
satisfied:
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The compassion center submits a renewal fee, in the amount of ninety [‘;5 \V

a.
thousand dollars for a dispensary and one hundred ten thousand
dollars for a manufacturing facility, which the department shall refund
if the department rejects the renewal application:;

b. The compassion center submits a complete renewal application;

c. The department has at no time suspended the compassion center's
registration for violation of this chapter;

d. Inspections conducted under this chapter do not raise any serious
concerns about the continued operation of the compassion center:
and

e. The compassion center continues to meet all the requirements for the

operation of a compassion center as set forth in this chapter and rules
adopted under this chapter.

If a compassion center does not meet the requirements for renewal, the
department may not issue a registration certificate and the department
shall provide the compassion center with written notice of the
determination. If a compassion center's certificate is not renewed, the
compassion center shall dispose all marijuana and usable marijuana in
accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

19-24.1-17. Compassion centers - Registration certificates nontransferable

- Notification of changes.

1.

[N

A registration certificate authorizing operation of a compassion center may
not be transferred to another person. Unless a compassion center applies
for and receives an amended registration certificate authorizing operation
of a compassion center, the registration certificate is void if there is a
change in ownership of the compassion center, there is a change in the
authorized physical location of the compassion center, or if the compassion
center discontinues operation.

A compassion center shall provide the department a written notice of any
change described under this section at least sixty calendar days before the
proposed effective date of the change. The department may waive all or
part of the required advance notice to address emergent or emergency
situations.

19-24.1-18. Compassion centers - Agents - Registry identification cards.

1

N

Upon issuance of a compassion center registry certificate, the department
shall issue a reqistry identification card to each qualified compassion
center agent associated with the compassion center.

To qualify to be issued a registry identification card, each compassion
center agent must be at least twenty-one years of age and shall submit all
of the following registry identification card application material to the

department:

a. A photographic copy of the agent's department-approved
identification. The agent shall make the identification available for
inspection and verification by the department.
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b. Arecent two-by-two inch [5.08-by-5.08 centimeter] photograph of the
agent.

c. Awritten and signed statement from an officer or executive staff
member of the compassion center stating the applicant is associated
with the compassion center and the capacity of the association.

d. The name, address, and telephone number of the agent.

e. The agent's social security number.

f. The name, address, and telephone number of the compassion center
with which the agent is associated.

g. The agent's signature and the date.

h. A nonrefundable application or renewal fee in the amount of two

hundred dollars, in the form of a check made out to "North Dakota
State Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program".

Each compassion center agent shall consent to a criminal history record
check conducted under section 12-60-24 to demonstrate compliance with
the eligibility requirements.

a. All applicable fees associated with the required criminal history record
checks must be paid by the compassion center or the agent.

b. A criminal history record check must be performed upon initial
application and biennially upon renewal. A compassion center agent
shall consent to a criminal history record check at any time the
department determines necessary.

An individual convicted of a drug-related misdemeanor offense within
the five-year period before the date of application or a felony offense
is prohibited from being a compassion center agent.

|©

The department shall notify the compassion center in writing of the
purpose for denying a compassion center agent application for a registry
identification card. The department shall deny an application if the agent
fails to meet the registration requirements or to provide the information
required, or if the department determines the information provided is false.
The cardholder may appeal a denial or revocation of a reqgistry
identification card to the district court of Burleigh County for hearing. The
court may authorize the cardholder to appear by reliable electronic means.

The department shall issue a compassion center agent a registry
identification card within thirty calendar days of approval of an application.

A compassion center agent with a registry identification card shall notify
the department of any of the following within ten calendar days of the
change, in a manner prescribed by the department:

a. Achange in the cardholder's name or address; and

b. Knowledge of a change that would render the compassion center
agent no longer eligible to be a cardholder.
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If a compassion center agent loses the agent's reqistry identification card, c{@ ™
that agent shall notify the department in writing within twenty-four hours of ¢
becoming aware the card has been lost.

If a cardholder notifies the department of items listed in this section but the
nature of the item reported results in the cardholder remaining eligible, the
department shall issue the cardholder a new registry identification card
with a new random ten-digit alphanumeric identification number within
twenty calendar days of approving the updated information and the
cardholder shall pay a fee, not to exceed twenty-five dollars. If a
cardholder notifies the department of an item that results in the cardholder
being ineligible, the reqistry identification card immediately becomes void.

A compassion center shall notify the department in writing within two
calendar days of the date a compassion center agent ceases to work for or
be associated with the compassion center. Upon receipt of the notification,
that individual's reqistry identification card becomes void immediately.

The reqistry identification card of a compassion center agent expires one
year after issuance or upon the termination of the compassion center's
registration certificate, whichever occurs first. To prevent interruption of
possession of a valid registry identification card, a compassion center
agent shall renew a registry identification card by submitting a complete
renewal application no less than forty-five calendar days before the
expiration date of the existing reqgistry identification card.

19-24.1-19. Cardholders - Compassion centers - Revocation.

1.

N
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The department may suspend or revoke a cardholder's registry
identification card or a compassion center's registration certificate for a
material misstatement by an applicant in an application or renewal.

The department may suspend or revoke a reqistry identification card or
reqistration certificate for a violation of this chapter or rules adopted under

this chapter.

If a compassion center agent or a compassion center sells or otherwise
transfers marijuana or usable marijuana to a person not authorized to
possess marijuana or usable marijuana under this chapter, the department
shall revoke the cardholder's registry identification card or the compassion
center's reqistration certificate, or both. If the department revokes a
cardholder's reqistry identification card under this subsection, the
cardholder is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

The department shall provide written notice of suspension or revocation of
a reqistry identification card or registration certificate.

A suspension may not be for a period longer than six months.

|

b. A manufacturing facility may continue to produce and process and to
possess marijuana and usable marijuana during a suspension, but
may not transfer or sell usable marijuana.
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c. Adispensary may continue to possess usable marijuana during a
suspension, but may not purchase, dispense, or transfer usable
marijuana.

d. The cardholder or the compassion center may appeal a denial or

revocation of a reqgistry identification card or reqistry certificate to the
district court of Burleigh County for hearing. The court may authorize
the cardholder or compassion center to appear by reliable electronic
means.

19-24.1-20. Cardholders - Compassion centers - Violations - Penalties.

1

N

|

|

|
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A cardholder or compassion center that fails to provide a notice as required
under this chapter shall pay to the department a fee in an amount
established by the department, not to exceed one hundred fifty dollars.

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a manufacturing facility or
a manufacturing facility agent is quilty of a class B felony for intentionally
selling or otherwise transferring marijuana or usable marijuana in any form,
to a person other than a dispensary, or for internationally selling or
otherwise transferring marijuana in any form other than usable marijuana,
to a dispensary. A person convicted under this subsection may not
continue to be affiliated with a compassion center and is disqualified from
further participation under this chapter.

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a dispensary or a
dispensary agent is quilty of a class B felony for intentionally selling or
otherwise transferring usable marijuana, to a person other than a
registered qualifying patient or a registered designated caregiver, to a
registered qualifying patient who is a minor, or in a form not allowed under
this chapter. A person convicted under this subsection may not continue to
be affiliated with a compassion center and is disqualified from further
participation under this chapter.

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a dispensary or a
dispensary agent is guilty of a class B felony for intentionally selling or
otherwise transferring usable marijuana, in a form other than pediatric
medical marijuana, to a reqgistered designated caregiver, for use by a
registered qualifying patient who is a minor. A person convicted under this
subsection may not continue to be affiliated with a compassion center and
is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

A compassion center or compassion center agent that knowingly submits
false records or documentation required by the department to certify a
compassion center under this chapter is quilty of a class C felony. A person
convicted under this subsection may not continue to be affiliated with a
compassion center and is disqualified from further participation under this

chapter.

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, if a compassion center
violates this chapter the department may fine the compassion center up to
one thousand dollars for each violation.

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a registered gqualifying
patient who intentionally sells or otherwise transfers usable marijuana, to
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another person, is quilty of a class B felony. An individual convicted under 17,
this subsection is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a registered designated
caregiver who intentionally sells or otherwise transfers usable marijuana,
to a person other than a registered qualifying patient to which the caregiver
is associated with registration, is quilty of a class B felony. An individual
convicted under this subsection is disqualified from further participation
under this chapter.

An individual who knowingly submits false records or documentation
required by the department to receive a registry identification card under
this chapter is guilty of a class A misdemeanor. An individual convicted
under this subsection may not continue to be affiliated with a compassion
center and is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

A health care provider who holds a financial interest in a compassion
center may not knowingly refer a patient to a compassion center or to a
reqgistered designated caregiver, advertise in a compassion center, or issue
a written certification. A health care provider who violates this subsection
must be fined up to one thousand dollars.

19-24.1-21. Compassion centers - Dispensing.

1

P
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A compassion center shall comply with the dispensing requirements of this
section.

Design and security features of usable marijuana containers must be in
accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

A manufacturing facility or agent of the manufacturing facility may not
dispense marijuana or usable marijuana, except the manufacturing facility
or agent may sell usable marijuana to a dispensary.

A dispensary or agent of the dispensary may not dispense usable
marijuana unless the dispensary first uses the verification system to
confirm the registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver
identification card is valid. A dispensary or agent of the dispensary:

a. May not dispense usable marijuana to a person other than a
registered qualifying patient or a registered qualifying patient's
registered designated caregiver. If a registered qualifying patient is a
minor:

(1) The dispensary or agent of the dispensary may not dispense
usable marijuana to a minor; and

(2) The usable marijuana dispensed to the minor's designated
caregiver must be in the form of pediatric medical marijuana oil.

&

May not dispense to a registered qualifying patient or registered
designated caregiver more than the allowable amount of usable
marijuana and may not dispense an amount if it is known that amount
would cause the recipient to purchase or possess more usable
marijuana than is permitted under this chapter.
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May not dispense to a reqgistered qualifying patient or registered
designated caregiver the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the 0
genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form unless the reqistry
identification card and verification system authorize this form of usable

19-24.1-22. Compassion centers - Inspections.

|

1. A compassion center is subject to random inspection by the department.
During an inspection, the department may review the compassion center's
records, including the compassion center's financial and dispensing
records, which may track transactions according to reqistered qualifying
patient and registered designated caregiver registry identification numbers.

N

The department shall conduct inspections of compassion centers to ensure
compliance with this chapter. The department shall conduct inspections of
manufacturing facilities for the presence of contaminants. The department
shall select a certified laboratory to conduct random quality sampling
testing, in accordance with rules adopted under this chapter. A compassion
center shall pay the cost of all random quality sampling testing.

19-24.1-23. Compassion centers - Pesticide testing.

A manufacturing facility shall test marijuana at a manufacturing facility for the

A
_<‘*,
oo

presence of pesticides. If a marijuana pesticide test or a random quality sampling test

under section 19-24.1-22 indicates the presence of a pesticide, the manufacturing

facility shall report the test result immediately to the department and to the agriculture

commissioner. Upon the order of the department or agriculture commissioner, the

manufacturing facility immediately shall destroy all affected or contaminated marijuana

and usable marijuana inventory in accordance with rules adopted under this chapter,

and shall certify to the department and to the agriculture commissioner that all affected

or contaminated inventory has been destroyed.

19-24.1-24. Compassion centers - Cannabis plants.

The health council shall adopt rules establishing the maximum amount of plants

of the genus cannabis and the amount of marijuana and usable marijuana a

compassion center may possess. Except as otherwise provided under this section, the

rules may not allow a manufacturing facility to possess more than one thousand plants,

regardless of the stage of growth, and may not allow a dispensary to possess more

than three thousand five hundred ounces [99.22 kilograms] of usable marijuana at any

time, regardless of formulation. The rules may allow a manufacturing facility to possess

no more than an additional fifty plants for the exclusive purpose of

department-authorized research and development related to production and

processing.

19-24.1-25. Compassion centers - Security and safety.

1. In compliance with rules adopted under this chapter, a compassion center

shall implement appropriate security and safety measures to deter and

prevent the unauthorized entrance to areas containing marijuana and

containing usable marijuana and to prevent the theft of marijuana and

usable marijuana.
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A compassion center shall limit to authorized personnel entry to an areain ¢
which production or producing takes place or in which marijuana or usable
marijuana is held.

A compassion center must have a fully operational security alarm system
at the authorized physical address which includes an electrical support
backup system for the alarm system to provide suitable protection against
theft and diversion.

A compassion center shall maintain documentation in an auditable form
for:

a. All maintenance inspections and tests conducted under this section,
and any servicing, modification, or upgrade performed on the security

alarm system;

b. An alarm activation or other event that requires response by public
safety personnel; and

c. Any breach of security.

19-24.1-26. Compassion centers - Inventory control.

i

N

|

A compassion center shall comply with the inventory control requirements
provided under this section and rules adopted under this chapter.

a. A manufacturing facility shall:

(1) Employ a bar coding inventory control system to track batch,
strain, and amounts of marijuana and usable marijuana in
inventory and to track amounts of usable marijuana sold to
dispensaries; and

(2) Host a secure computer interface to transfer inventory amounts
and dispensary purchase information to the department.

[

A dispensary shall:

(1) Employ a bar coding inventory control system to track batch,
strain, and amounts of usable marijuana in inventory and to
track amounts sold to registered qualifying patients and
registered designated caregivers: and

(2) Host a secure computer interface to transfer inventory amounts
and registered qualifying patient and registered designated
caregiver purchase information to the department.

A compassion center shall store the compassion center's marijuana and
usable marijuana in an enclosed locked facility with adequate security, in
accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

A compassion center shall conduct inventories of marijuana and usable
marijuana at the authorized location at the frequency and in the manner
provided by rules adopted under this chapter. If an inventory results in the
identification of a discrepancy, the compassion center shall notify the
department and appropriate law enforcement authorities immediately. A
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compassion center shall document each inventory conducted by the e

compassion center. £ X))

19-24.1-27. Compassion centers - Operating manual - Training.

1. A compassion center shall maintain a current copy of the compassion
center's operating manual that meets the requirements of rules adopted
under this chapter.

N

A compassion center shall develop, implement, and maintain on the
premises an onsite training curriculum or shall enter contractual
relationships with outside resources capable of meeting compassion
center agent training needs. A compassion center shall ensure each
compassion center agent receives training that includes:

a. Education regarding professional conduct, ethics, and state and
federal laws regarding patient confidentiality:;

b. Informational developments in the field of medical use of marijuana;

c. All safety and security measures required under section 19-24.1-25;

d. Specific procedural instructions for responding to an emergency,
including robbery or violent accident; and

e. The compassion center's operating manual and all requirements

related to recordkeeping.

19-24.1-28. Compassion centers - Bylaws and operating agreements.

As part of a proposed compassion center's initial application, the applicant shall
provide to the department a current copy of the applicant's bylaws or operating
agreement. Upon receipt of a registration certificate, a compassion center shall
maintain the bylaws or operating agreement in accordance with this chapter. In addition
to any other requirements, the bylaws or operating agreement must include the
ownership or management structure of the compassion center; the composition of the
board of directors, board of governors, member-managers, or managers; and
provisions relative to the disposition of revenues and earnings.

19-24.1-29. Compassion centers - Retention of and access to records and
reports.

A compassion center shall keep detailed financial reports of proceeds and
expenses. A compassion center shall maintain all inventory, sales, and financial
records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The compassion
center shall maintain for a period of seven years all reports and records required under
this section. A compassion center shall allow the department, or an audit firm
contracted by the department, access at all times to all books and records kept by the
compassion center.

19-24.1-30. Compassion centers - Recordkeeping - Compassion center
agents - Registry identification cards.

1. Each compassion center shall maintain:
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In compliance with rules adopted under this chapter, a personnel ~AN0
record for each compassion center agent for a period of at least three 0"
years following termination of the individual's affiliation with the

compassion center. The personnel record must comply with minimum
requirements set by rule adopted under this chapter.

|

A record of the source of funds that will be used to open or maintain
the compassion center, including the name, address, and date of birth
of any investor.

|

A record of each instance in which a current or prospective board
member, member-manager, manager, or governor, who managed or
served on the board of a business or not-for-profit entity and in the
course of that service was convicted, fined, or censured or had a
reqistration or license suspended or revoked in any administrative or
judicial proceeding.

1o

Each compassion center agent shall hold a valid registry identification
card.

19-24.1-31. Verification system.

1.

2.

The department shall maintain a confidential list of cardholders and each
cardholder's address, phone number, and registry identification number.

The department shall establish a secure verification system. The
verification system must allow law enforcement personnel, health care
providers, pharmacists, compassion centers, and compassion center
agents twenty-four-hour access to enter a reqistry identification number to
determine whether the number corresponds with a current valid registry
identification card. The system may disclose:

a. Whether an identification card is valid;

b. The name of the cardholder;

c. Whether the cardholder is a registered qualifying patient, registered
designated caregiver, or registered compassion center agent;

d. Whether a registered qualifying patient is a minor; and

e. The registry identification number of any affiliated registered qualifying

patient, registered designated caregiver, or compassion center.

19-24.1-32. Protections.

Except as provided in sections 19-24.1-20 and 19-24.1-33:

1.

[P

A reqistered qualifying patient is not subject to arrest or prosecution or the
denial of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty or disciplinary action
by a court or occupational or professional regulating entity for the
acquisition, use, or possession of usable marijuana or related supplies
under this chapter.

A reqistered designated caregiver is not subject to arrest or prosecution or
the denial of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty or disciplinary
action by a court or occupational or professional regulating entity:
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For assisting a registered qualifying patient with the acquisition, use, ‘g\
or possession of usable marijuana or related supplies under this
chapter, if the registered designated caregiver is connected to the
reqistered qualifying patient through the department's registration

process.

b. For receiving compensation for costs associated with assisting a
registered qualifying patient with the acquisition, use, or possession of
usable marijuana or related supplies under this chapter, if the
reqistered designated caregiver is connected to the registered
qualifying patient through the department's registration process.

|

It is presumed a registered qualifying patient is engaged in, or a registered
designated caregqiver is assisting with, the acquisition, use, or possession
of usable marijuana or related supplies in accordance with this chapter if
the registered qualifying patient or reqgistered designated caregiver is in
possession of a valid registry identification card and is not in possession of
usable marijuana in an amount that exceeds what is authorized under this
chapter. This presumption may be rebutted by evidence the conduct
related to acquisition, use, or possession of usable marijuana or related
supplies was not for the purpose of treating or alleviating the registered
qualifying patient's debilitating medical condition under this chapter.

A person is not subject to arrest or prosecution or the denial of any right or
privilege, including a civil penalty or disciplinary action by a court or
occupational or professional regulating entity, for being in the presence or
vicinity of the medical use of marijuana authorized under this chapter.

A manufacturing facility is not subject to prosecution, search or inspection,
or seizure, except by the department or a department designee, under this
chapter for acting under this chapter to:

a. Produce or process or to conduct related activities for the sole
purpose of selling usable marijuana to a dispensary; or

b. Transfer, transport, or deliver marijuana or usable marijuana to and
from a department designee or manufacturing facility in accordance
with this chapter.

A dispensary is not subject to prosecution, search or inspection, or seizure,
except by the department or a department designee, under this chapter for
acting under this chapter to:

a. Purchase usable marijuana from a manufacturing facility and
conducting related activities for the sole purpose of dispensing usable
marijuana, selling related supplies, and and providing educational
materials to registered qualifying patients and designated caregivers:
or

b. Transfer usable marijuana to and from a department designee or
related marijuana facility in accordance with this chapter.

A reqgistered compassion center agent is not subject to arrest or
prosecution or the denial of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty
or disciplinary action by a court or occupational or professional regulating
entity, for working or volunteering for a compassion center if the action
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performed by the compassion center agent on behalf of the compassion 35 <
center is authorized under this chapter. c

8. The sale and possession of marijuana paraphernalia by a dispensary is
lawful if in accordance with this chapter.
9. The medical use of marijuana by a registered cardholder or the producing

and processing and the dispensing of usable marijuana by a compassion
center is lawful if in accordance with this chapter.

10. A health care provider is not subject to arrest or prosecution or the denial
of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty or disciplinary action by a
court or occupational or professional regulating entity, solely for providing a
written certification or for otherwise stating in the health care provider's
professional opinion a patient is likely to receive therapeutic or palliative
benefit from the medical use of usable marijuana to treat or alleviate the
patient's debilitating medical condition or for refusing to provide written
certification or a statement. This chapter does not release a health care
provider from the duty to exercise a professional standard of care for
evaluating or treating a patient's medical condition.

11. A cardholder or registered compassion center is not subject to arrest or
prosecution for use of drug paraphernalia or possession with intent to use
drug paraphernalia in @a manner consistent with this chapter.

12. A person in possession of medical marijuana waste in the course of
transporting or disposing of the waste under this chapter and rules adopted
under this chapter may not be subject to arrest or prosecution for that
possession or transportation.

13. A person in possession of marijuana or medical marijuana in the course of
performing laboratory tests as provided under this chapter and rules
adopted under this chapter may not be subject to arrest or prosecution for
that possession or testing.

19-24.1-33. Limitations.

This chapter does not authorize a person to engage in, and does not prevent
the imposition of any civil liability or criminal liability or other penalties for engaging in
the following conduct:

1. Undertaking an activity under the influence of marijuana if doing so would
constitute negligence or professional malpractice.

2. Possessing or consuming usable marijuana:

a. On a school bus or school van that is used for school purposes;

b. On the grounds of any public or private school;

c. At any location while a public or private school sanctioned event is
occurring at that location;

d. On the grounds of a correctional facility; or
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e. On the grounds of a child care facility or licensed home day care, rg‘“
unless authorized under rules adopted by the department of human .
services.

Undertaking any activity prohibited by section 23-12-09, 23-12-10,
23-12-10.2, 23-12-10.4, 23-12-10.5, or 23-12-11.

Using a combustible delivery form of usable marijuana or vaporizing
usable marijuana under this chapter if the smoke or vapor would be
inhaled by a minor who is not the registered qualifying patient for whom the
usable marijuana is intended.

Operating, navigating, or being in actual physical control of a motor
vehicle, aircraft, train, or motorboat, while under the influence of marijuana.
However, a reqistered qualifying patient may not be considered to be
under the influence of marijuana solely because of the presence of
metabolites or components of marijuana that appear in insufficient
concentration to cause impairment.

19-24.1-34. Acts not prohibited - Acts not required.

1:

2.

This chapter does not require:

a. A government medical assistance program or private insurer to
reimburse a person for costs associated with the medical use of

marijuana;

b. A person in lawful possession of property to allow a guest, client,
customer, or other visitor to possess or consume usable marijuana on
or in that property:

c. Alandlord to allow production or processing on rental property; or

d. A health care provider to provide a written certification or otherwise
recommend marijuana to a patient.

This chapter does not prohibit an employer from disciplining an employee
for possessing or consuming usable marijuana in the workplace or for
working while under the influence of marijuana.

19-24.1-35. Facility restrictions.

L

A basic care facility, nursing facility, assisted living facility, adult day care
facility, or adult foster care home licensed in the state may adopt
reasonable restrictions on the medical use of marijuana by residents or
individuals receiving inpatient services, including:

a. The facility will not store or maintain the registered qualifying patient's
supply of usable marijuana.

b. The facility, caregivers, or hospice agencies serving the facility's
residents are not responsible for providing the usable marijuana for
registered qualifying patients or assisting with the medical use of

marijuana.

Usable marijuana can be consumed by a method other than
vaporizing or combustion.

|©

Page No. 29 17.0630.03024



N

d. Consumption of usable marijuana is limited to a place specified by the %)/
facility.

A facility listed in subsection 1 may not unreasonably limit a registered
qualifying patient's medical use of marijuana as authorized under this
chapter unless failing to do so would cause the facility to lose a monetary
or licensing-related benefit under federal law or regulations.

19-24.1-36. Health council - Rules.

1.

[ro

|wo
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The health council shall adopt rules as necessary for the implementation
and administration of this chapter, including transportation and storage of
marijuana and usable marijuana, advertising, packaging and labeling,
standards for testing facilities, inventory management, and accurate record

keeping.

The health council may adopt rules regarding the operation and
governance of additional categories of registered medical marijuana
establishments.

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for reporting
incidents of individuals not authorized to possess marijuana or usable
marijuana under this chapter and who are found in possession of
marijuana or usable marijuana. The rules must identify professionals
required to report, the information the reporter is required to report, and
actions the reporter shall take to secure the marijuana or usable marijuana.

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for law
enforcement officials and health care professionals to report to the
department incidents involving overdose or adverse reaction related to the
use of usable marijuana.

19-24.1-37. Confidentiality.

1.

N

Data in a reqistration application or renewal and supporting data submitted
by a qualifying patient, designated caregiver, compassion center, proposed
compassion center, or compassion center agent, including data on
designated caregivers and health care providers, is confidential.

Data kept or maintained by the department may be disclosed for:

a. The verification of registration certificates and registry identification
cards under this chapter;

b. Submission of the annual report required by this chapter;

c. Submission to the North Dakota prescription drug monitoring program;

d. Notification of state or local law enforcement of apparent criminal
violation of this chapter;

e. Notification of state and local law enforcement about falsified or

fraudulent information submitted for purposes of obtaining or renewing
a reqistry identification card: or
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Notification of the North Dakota board of medicine or North Dakota K
board of nursing if there is a reason to believe a health care provider
provided a written certification and the department has reason to

believe the health care provider otherwise violated this chapter.

3. Upon a cardholder's written request, the department may confirm the
cardholder's status as a registered qualifying patient or a registered
designated caregiver to a third party, such as a landlord, school, medical
professional, or court.

4. Data submitted to a local government to demonstrate compliance with any

security requirements required by local zoning ordinances or requlations is
confidential.

19-24.1-38. Advisory board.

1. The governor shall appoint six members to serve on an advisory board
that:

a. Shall advise the department in implementation of the medical
marijuana program.

b. May receive reports from the department on the status and activities
of the medical marijuana program.

c. May provide recommendations to the department and the legislative
management on the medical marijuana program.

2. The state health officer shall serve as an ex officio voting member and as
chairman of the advisory board.

19-24.1-39. Report to legislative management.

Annually, the department shall submit to the legislative management a report
that does not disclose any identifying information about registered cardholders,
compassion centers, or health care providers, but contains the following information:

1. The number of registry identification card applications and renewals;

2. The number of registered qualifying patients and registered designated

caregivers;

3. The nature of the debilitating medical conditions of the registered qualifying
patients;

4. The number of registry identification cards revoked:

5. The number of health care providers providing written certifications for
qualifying patients:

6. The number of compassionate care centers; and

7. Any expenses incurred and revenues generated by the department from

the medical marijuana program.
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19-24.1-40. Medical marijuana fund - Continuing appropriation.

The medical marijuana fund is established in the state treasury. The department
shall deposit in the fund all fees collected under this chapter. The department shall
administer the fund. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to the department on a
continuing basis for use in administering this chapter.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 54-60-03 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-60-03. Commissioner of commerce - Duties.

With the advice and counsel of the North Dakota development foundation, the
governor shall appoint a commissioner to supervise, control, and administer the
department. The commissioner serves at the pleasure of the governor and receives a
salary set by the governor within the limits of legislative appropriations. The
commissioner:

1. Shall file an oath of office in the usual form before commencing to perform
the duties of the commissioner;

2. Shall serve as chairman of the cabinet;

3.  Shall appoint personnel as may be determined necessary to carry out the
duties of the department;

4. Shall manage the operations of the department and oversee each of the
divisions;

5. Shall assume central responsibilities to develop, implement, and
coordinate a working network of commerce service providers;

6. Shall coordinate the department's services with commerce-related services
of other state agencies;

7. Shall advise and cooperate with departments and agencies of the federal
government and of other states; private businesses, agricultural
organizations, and associations; research institutions; and with any
individual or other private or public entity;

8. May enter contracts upon terms and conditions as determined by the
commissioner to be reasonable and to effectuate the purposes of this
chapter,;

9. Shall report between the first and tenth legislative days of each regular
legislative session to a standing committee of each house of the legislative
assembly as determined by the legislative management and shall report
annually to the foundation:

a. On the department's goals and objectives since the last report;

b. On the department's goals and objectives for the period until the next
report;

c. Onthe department's long-term goals and objectives;
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d. On the department's activities and measurable results occurring since
the last report; and

e. On commerce benchmarks, including the average annual wage in the
state, the gross state product exclusive of agriculture, and the number
of primary sector jobs in the state;

10. May not certify as a primary sector business a compassion center
registered under chapter 19-24.1;

11. Shall adopt rules necessary to implement this chapter; and

4#-12. May take any actions necessary and proper to implement this chapter.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Paragraph 3 of subdivision a of subsection 15 of
section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as
follows:

(3) Any structure or improvement used primarily in connection with
a retail or wholesale business other than farming, any structure
or improvement located on platted land within the corporate
limits of a city, any structure or improvement used by a
manufacturing facility as defined in section 19-24.1-01, or any
structure or improvement located on railroad operating property
subject to assessment under chapter 57-05 is not exempt under
this subsection. For purposes of this paragraph, "business other
than farming" includes processing to produce a value-added
physical or chemical change in an agricultural commodity
beyond the ordinary handling of that commodity by a farmer
prior to sale.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Paragraph 2 of subdivision b of subsection 15 of
section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as
follows:

(2) "Farmer" means an individual who normally devotes the major
portion of time to the activities of producing products of the sail,
with the exception of marijuana grown under chapter 19-24.1:
poultry;; livestock;; or dairy farming in such products'
unmanufactured state and has received annual net income from
farming activities which is fifty percent or more of annual net
income, including net income of a spouse if married, during any
of the three preceding calendar years. For purposes of this
paragraph, "farmer" includes a:

(a) "Beginning farmer", which means an individual who has
begun occupancy and operation of a farm within the three
preceding calendar years; who normally devotes the major
portion of time to the activities of producing products of the
soil, poultry, livestock, or dairy farming in such products'
unmanufactured state; and who does not have a history of
farm income from farm operation for each of the three
preceding calendar years.

(b) "Retired farmer", which means an individual who is retired
because of illness or age and who at the time of retirement
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owned and occupied as a farmer the residence in which s
the person lives and for which the exemption is claimed.

(c) "Surviving spouse of a farmer", which means the surviving
spouse of an individual who is deceased, who at the time
of death owned and occupied as a farmer the residence in
which the surviving spouse lives and for which the
exemption is claimed. The exemption under this
subparagraph expires at the end of the fifth taxable year
after the taxable year of death of an individual who at the
time of death was an active farmer. The exemption under
this subparagraph applies for as long as the residence is
continuously occupied by the surviving spouse of an
individual who at the time of death was a retired farmer.

SECTION 5. STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH REPORT - MEDICAL
MARIJUANA DEBILITATING MEDICAL CONDITIONS. During the 2017-18 interim,
the state department of health shall conduct a study of the feasibility and desirability of
adding identified medical conditions or providing for an administrative process to add
identified medical conditions to the definitions of "debilitating medical condition" under
the medical marijuana program. The department shall include the findings and
recommendations of this study, together with any legislation required to implement the
recommendations, in the annual reports made to the legislative management under
section 19-24.1-39.

SECTION 6. REPEAL. Chapter 19-24 of the North Dakota Century Code is
repealed.

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - MEDICAL MARIJUANA PENALTIES. It
is the intent of the sixty-fifth legislative assembly that if future legislative assemblies
amend criminal penalties relating to marijuana, the corresponding medical marijuana
penalties also be amended in order to retain consistency.

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2344, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep.Weisz, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (13 YEAS,
1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2344 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact chapter 19-24.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to medical
marijuana; to amend and reenact section 54-60-03, paragraph 3 of subdivision a of
subsection 15 of section 57-02-08, and paragraph 2 of subdivision b of subsection
15 of section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to primary sector
business certification and property tax exemptions for farm buildings and residences;
to repeal chapter 19-24 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to medical
marijuana; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a report; to
provide a penalty; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to declare an
emergency..

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Chapter 19-24.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

19-24.1-01. Definitions.

As used in this chapter, unless the context indicates otherwise:

1. "Advanced practice registered nurse" means an advanced practice
reqgistered nurse as defined under section 43-12.1-02.

2. "Allowable amount of usable marijuana" means the amount of usable
marijuana a reqistered qualifying patient or registered designated
caregiver may purchase in a thirty-day period under this chapter.

a. During a thirty-day period, a registered qualifying patient may not
purchase or have purchased by a registered designated caregiver
more than two and one-half ounces [70.87 grams] of dried leaves or
flowers of the plant of genus cannabis in a combustible delivery
form. At any time a registered qualifying patient, or a registered
designated caregiver on behalf of a registered qualifying patient,
may not possess more than three ounces [85.05 grams] of dried
leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible

delivery form.

A reqistered qualifying patient may not purchase or have purchased
by a reqgistered designated caregiver more than the maximum
concentration or amount of tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a
thirty-day period. The maximum concentration or amount of
tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a thirty-day period for a
cannabinoid concentrate or medical cannabinoid product, or the
cumulative total of both, is two thousand milligrams.

i3

"Bona fide provider-patient relationship" means a treatment or counseling
relationship between a health care provider and patient in which all the
following are present:

|0

a. The health care provider has reviewed the patient's relevant medical
records and completed a full assessment of the patient's medical
history and current medical condition, including a relevant, in-person,
medical evaluation of the patient.
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b. The health care provider has created and maintained records of the
patient's condition in accordance with medically accepted standards.

c. The patient is under the health care provider's continued care for the
debilitating medical condition that qualifies the patient for the medical
use of marijuana.

d. The health care provider has a reasonable expectation that provider

will continue to provide followup care to the patient to monitor the
medical use of marijuana as a treatment of the patient's debilitating
medical condition.

e. The relationship is not for the sole purpose of providing written
certification for the medical use of marijuana.

|

"Cannabinoid" means a chemical compound that is one of the active
constituents of marijuana.

[o

"Cannabinoid capsule" means a small, soluble container, usually made of
gelatin, which encloses a dose of a cannabinoid product or a cannabinoid
concentrate intended for consumption. The maximum concentration of
amount of tetrahhydrocannabinol permitted in a serving of a cannabinoid
capsule is fifty milligrams.

"Cannabinoid concentrate" means a concentrate or extract obtained by
separating cannabinoids from marijuana by a mechanical, chemical, or

other process.

|©

"Cannabinoid edible product" means a food or potable liquid into which a
cannabinoid concentrate or the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the
genus cannabis is incorporated.

[~

"Cannabinoid tincture" means a solution of alcohol, cannabinoid
concentrate, and other ingredients intended for consumption.

|

|«©

"Cannabinoid topical" means a cannabinoid product intended to be
applied to the skin or hair. The maximum concentration or amount of
tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a cannabinoid topical is six percent.

10. "Cannabinoid transdermal patch" means an adhesive substance applied
to the skin which contains a cannabinoid product or cannabinoid
concentrate for absorption into the bloodstream. The maximum
concentration or amount of tetrahydrocannabinol permitted in a serving of
a cannabinoid transdermal patch is fifty milligrams.

11. "Cardholder" means a qualifying patient, designated caregiver, or
compassion center agent who has been issued and possesses a valid
reqgistry identification card.

"Compassion center" means a manufacturing facility or dispensary.

12

13. "Compassion center agent" means a principal officer, board member,
member, manager, governor, employee, volunteer, or agent of a
compassion center.

14. "Contaminated" means made impure or inferior by extraneous
substances.

15. "Debilitating medical condition" means one of the following:

a. Cancer;
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b. Positive status for human immunodeficiency virus;

c. Acquired immune deficiency syndrome;

d. Decompensated cirrhosis caused by hepatitis C;
e. Amyotrophic lateral sclerosis:

f. Posttraumatic stress disorder;

g. Agitation of Alzheimer's disease or related dementia;
h. Crohn's disease;

i. Fibromyalgia;

j.  Spinal stenosis or chronic back pain, including neuropathy or
damage to the nervous tissue of the spinal cord with objective
neurological indication of intractable spasticity;

k. Glaucomas;

. Epilepsy:;

m. Aterminalillness; and
n. Achronic or debilitating disease or medical condition or treatment for

such disease or medical condition that produces one or more of the
following:

Cachexia or wasting syndrome;

1)

(2) Severe debilitating pain that has not responded to previously
prescribed medication or surgical measures for more than
three months or for which other treatment options produced
serious side effects;

(3) Intractable nausea;

(4) Seizures; or

(5) Severe and persistent muscle spasms, including those
characteristic of multiple sclerosis.

"Department" means the state department of health.

16

17. "Designated caregiver" means an individual who agrees to manage the
well-being of a registered qualifying patient with respect to the qualifying
patient's medical use of marijuana.

18. "Dispensary" means an entity registered by the department as a
compassion center authorized to dispense usable marijuana to a
registered qualifying patient and a reqgistered designated caregiver.

19. "Enclosed, locked facility" means a closet, room, greenhouse, building, or
other enclosed area equipped with locks or other security devices that
permit access limited to individuals authorized under this chapter or rules
adopted under this chapter.

20. "Health care provider" means a physician or an advanced practice
registered nurse.
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"Manufacturing facility" means an entity registered by the department as
a compassion center authorized to produce and process and to sell
usable marijuana to a dispensary.

"Marijuana" means all parts of the plant of the genus cannabis; the seeds
of the plant; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every
compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the
plant, the seeds of the plant, or the resin extracted from any part of the

plant.

"Maximum concentration or amount of tetrahydrocannabinol" means the
total amount of tetrahydrocannabinol and tetrahydrocannabinolic acid in
a medical cannabinoid product or a cannabinoid concentrate.

"Medical cannabinoid product” means a product intended for human
consumption or use which contains cannabinoids.

a. Medical cannabinoid products are limited to the following forms:

(1) Cannabinoid tincture;

(2) Cannabinoid capsule;

(3) Cannabinoid transdermal patch; and

(4) Cannabinoid topical.

"Medical cannabinoid product" does not include:

[c

(1) Acannabinoid edible product;

(2) A cannabinoid concentrate by itself; or

(3) The dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis
by itself.

"Medical marijuana product' means a cannabinoid concentrate or a
medical cannabinoid product.

"Medical marijuana waste" means unused, surplus, returned, or
out-of-date usable marijuana; recalled usable marijuana; unused
marijuana; or plant debris of the plant of the genus cannabis, including
dead plants and all unused plant parts and roots.

"Medical use of marijuana" means the acquisition, use, and possession
of usable marijuana to treat or alleviate a qualifying patient's debilitating
medical condition.

"Minor" means an individual under the age of nineteen.

"North Dakota identification" means a North Dakota driver's license or
comparable state of North Dakota or federal issued photo identification
card verifying North Dakota residence.

"Pediatric medical marijuana" means a medical marijuana product
containing cannabidiol which may not contain a maximum concentration
or amount of tetrahydrocannabinol of more than six percent.

"Physician" means a physician licensed under chapter 43-17 to practice
medicine in the state of North Dakota.
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"Posttraumatic stress disorder" means a patient meets the diagnostic
criteria for posttraumatic stress disorder under the "Diagnostic and
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders", American psychiatric association,
fifth edition, text revision (2013).

"Processing" or "process" means the compounding or conversion of
marijuana into a medical marijuana product.

"Producing", "produce", or "production"” mean the planting, cultivating,
growing, trimming, or harvesting of the plant of the genus cannabis or the
drying of the leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis.

"Qualifying patient" means an individual who has been diagnosed by a
health care provider as having a debilitating medical condition.

"Registry identification card" means a document issued by the
department which identifies an individual as a reqgistered qualifying
patient, registered designated caregiver, or reqistered compassion center

agent.

"Terminal illness" means a disease, illness, or condition of a patient:

a. For which there is not a reasonable medical expectation of recovery:

b. Which as a medical probability, will result in the death of the patient,
regardless of the use or discontinuance of medical treatment
implemented for the purpose of sustaining life or the life processes;
and

c. As aresult of which, the patient's health care provider would not be

surprised if death were to occur within six months.

"Usable marijuana" means a medical marijuana product or the dried
leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in a combustible
delivery form. However, the term does not include the dried leaves or
flowers unless authorized through a written certification and does not
include a cannabinoid edible product. In the case of a registered
qualifying patient who is a minor, "usable marijuana" is limited to pediatric
medical marijuana.

"Verification system" means the system maintained by the department
under section 19-24.1-31 for verification of registry identification cards.

"Written certification" means a form established by the department which
is executed, dated, and signed by a health care provider within ninety
calendar days of the date of application, stating that in the health care
provider's professional opinion the patient is likely to receive therapeutic
or palliative benefit from the medical use of marijuana to treat or alleviate
the patient's debilitating medical condition. A health care provider may
authorize the use of dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus
cannabis in a combustible delivery form to treat or alleviate the patient's
debilitating medical condition. A written certification may not be made
except in the course of a bona fide provider-patient relationship.

19-24.1-02. Medical marijuana program.

The department shall establish and implement a medical marijuana program

under this chapter to allow for production and processing, the sale and dispensing of

usable marijuana, and medical use of marijuana. A person may not produce or

process or sell, possess, transport, dispense, or use marijuana or usable marijuana

under the medical marijuana program unless the person is authorized to do so as a
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compassion center, a cardholder, or otherwise authorized by rule adopted under this

chapter.

19-24.1-03. Qualifying patients - Registration.

1. Aqualifying patient is not eligible to purchase, use, or possess usable

marijuana under the medical marijuana program unless the qualifying

patient has a valid registry identification card.

[~

A qualifying patient application for a reqistry identification card is

complete and eligible for review if an applicant submits to the

department:

a. Anonrefundable annual application fee in the amount of fifty dollars,

with a personal check or cashier's check payable to "North Dakota

State Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program".

b. An original written certification, which must include:

(1) The name, address, and telephone number of the practice
location of the applicant's health care provider;

(2) The health care provider's North Dakota license number;

(3) The health care provider's medical or nursing specialty:

(4) The applicant's name and date of birth;

(5) The applicant's debilitating medical condition and the medical
justification for the health care provider's certification of the
patient's debilitating medical condition;

(6) Attestation the written certification is made in the course of a
bona fide provider-patient relationship and that in the provider's
professional opinion the applicant is likely to receive
therapeutic or palliative benefit from the medical use of
marijuana to treat or alleviate the applicant's debilitating
medical condition:

(7) Whether the health care provider authorizes the patient to use
the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis in
a combustible delivery form; and

(8) The health care provider's signature and the date.

c. An original qualifying patient application for a registry identification
card form established by the department which must include all of
the following:

(1) The applicant's name, address, and date of birth.

(2)
(3)
(4)

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE

The applicant's social security number.

The name, address, and date of birth of the applicant's
proposed designated caregiver, if any.

A photographic copy of the applicant's North Dakota
identification. The North Dakota identification must be available
for inspection and verification upon request of the department.
If the applicant is @ minor, a certificated copy of a birth record is

required.
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(5) The applicant's or guardian's signature and the date, or in the
case of a minor, the signature of the minor's parent or legal
guardian with responsibility for health care decisions and the

date.

d. Asigned consent for release of medical information related to the
applicant's debilitating medical condition, on a form provided by the
department.

e. Arecent two-by-two inch [5.08-by-5.08 centimeter] photograph of the
applicant.

f. Any other information or material required by rule adopted under this
chapter.

3. If the applicant is unable to submit the required application information
due to age or medical condition, the individual responsible for making
medical decisions for the applicant may submit the application on behalf
of the applicant. The individual responsible for making medical decisions:
a. Must be identified on the qualifying patient application for a reqgistry

identification card; and

b. Shall provide a copy of the individual's North Dakota identification.
The North Dakota identification must be available for inspection and
verification upon the request of the department.

4. |If the applicant is a minor, the department may waive the application or

renewal fee if:

a. The parent or legal quardian of the applicant is the applicant's
registered designated caregiver; and

b. The applicant resides with the applicant's registered designated
caregiver.

19-24.1-04. Designated caregivers - Registration.

1. Adesignated caregiver is not eligible to purchase, assist in the use of, or
possess usable marijuana under the medical marijuana program unless
the designated caregiver has a valid registry identification card.

2. Adesignated caregiver application is complete and eligible for review if
an applicant submits to the department all of the following:

a. Anonrefundable annual application fee in the amount of fifty dollars,
with a personal check or cashier's check made payable to "North
Dakota State Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program".

An original designated caregiver application for a registry
identification card form established by the department which must
include all of the following:

4

(1) Acertified copy of a birth record verifying the applicant is at
least twenty-one years of age.

(2) A photographic copy of the applicant's North Dakota
identification. The North Dakota identification must be available
for inspection and verification upon request of the department.
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(3) The name, address, telephone number, and date of birth of the
qualifying patient.

(4) The name, address, and telephone number for the qualifying
patient's health care provider.

(5) The name, address, and telephone number of the applicant.

(6) The applicant's social security number.

(7) The applicant's signature and the date.

An original designated caregiver authorization form established by
the department which must be executed by a registered gqualifying
patient providing the designated caregiver applicant with the
responsibility of managing the well-being of the registered qualifying
patient with respect to the registered qualifying patient's medical use
of marijuana. The form must include:

[©

(1) The name and date of birth of the designated caregiver
applicant; and

(2) The registered qualifying patient's signature and the date.

d. Arecent two-by-two inch [5.08-by-5.08 centimeter] photograph of the
applicant.

e. Any other information or material required by the department by rule.

[©0

A criminal history record check conducted under section 12-60-24 must
be performed upon initial application and biennially thereafter and at any
other time upon the request of the department. All fees associated with
the criminal history record check must be paid by the applicant.

|

An individual convicted of a drug-related misdemeanor offense within the
five years preceding the date of application or of a felony offense is
prohibited from serving as a designated caregiver.

[o

An applicant shall submit a separate and complete application for each of
the applicant's registered qualifying patients. A registered designated
caregiver may assist no more than five reqistered qualifying patients. A
registered designated caregiver who is a registered qualifying patient
may assist no more than four additional registered qualifying patients.

©

A registered designated caregiver may not purchase or possess more
than the allowable amount of usable marijuana for each of the registered
designated caregiver's registered qualifying patients and for the
registered designated caregiver if the caregiver is a registered qualifying
patient.

19-24.1-05. Qualifying patients and designated caregivers -
Identification cards - Issuance and denial.

1. Upon receipt of a complete application for or renewal of a qualifying
patient or designated caregiver registry identification card, the
department shall verify the submitted information.

[~

The verification methods used by the department on an application or
renewal and accompanying documentation may include:
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Contacting an applicant by telephone or mail, or if proof of identity is
uncertain, the department shall require a face-to-face meeting and
the production of additional identification materials;

|

o

Contacting the North Dakota board of medicine or North Dakota
board of nursing to verify the certifying health care provider is
licensed in the state and is in good standing; and

Contacting the health care provider to obtain additional
documentation verifying the qualifying patient applicant's medical
diagnosis and medical condition qualify the applicant for participation
in the medical marijuana program.

[

Upon verification of the information contained in an application or
renewal, the department shall approve or deny the application or
renewal.

Except as provided in subsection 5, the department shall issue a registry
identification card within thirty calendar days of approving an application
or renewal. A designated careqgiver must have a registry identification

card for each of the designated caregiver's registered qualifying patients.

The department may not issue a registry identification card to a qualifying
patient who is a minor unless:

a. The department receives documentation the minor's health care
provider has explained to the parent or legal guardian with
responsibility for health care decisions for the minor the potential
risks and benefits of the use of pediatric medical marijuana to treat
or alleviate the debilitating medical condition; and

|

The department receives documentation the parent or legal guardian
with responsibility for health care decisions for the minor consents in

writing to:

(1) Allow the minor's use of pediatric medical marijuana to treat or
alleviate the debilitating medical condition;

(2) Serve as the minor's designated caregiver or identifies a
reqistered designated caregiver to act as the minor's
designated caregiver;

(3) Control the acquisition of usable marijuana and control the
dosage and frequency of the use of usable marijuana by the
minor; and

(4) If serving as the minor's designated caregiver, prevent the
minor from accessing the usable marijuana by storing the
usable marijuana in an enclosed, locked facility.

If the department denies an application or renewal, the applicant may not
reapply for one year from the date of the denial, unless otherwise
authorized by the department, and the applicant is prohibited from all
lawful privileges provided under this chapter.

The department shall deny an application for or renewal of a qualifying
patient's reqgistry identification card if the applicant:

a. Does not meet the requirements of this section or section
19-24.1-03;
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e

Did not provide the required information and materials;

c. Previously had a registry identification card revoked; or

d. Provided false or falsified information or made a material
misstatement.

8. The department shall deny an application for or renewal of a designated
caregiver registry identification card if the designated caregiver applicant:
a. Does not meet the requirements of this section or section
19-24.1-04;
b. Did not provide the required information and materials;
c. Previously had a registry identification card revoked; or
d. Provided false or falsified information or made a material
misstatement.
9. The department shall notify, in writing, the qualifying patient or

designated caregiver applicant of the reason for denying an application
or renewal.

10. The department shall notify the following in writing:

a. Aregistered qualifying patient if that patient's designated caregiver's
application or renewal is denied; and

b. Aregistered designated caregiver if that caregiver's qualifying
patient's application or renewal is denied.

11. The cardholder may appeal a denial or revocation of a registry
identification card to the district court of Burleigh County for hearing. The
court may authorize the cardholder to appear by reliable electronic
means.

19-24.1-06. Registry identification cards - Renewal.

To prevent interruption of possession of a valid registry identification card. a
registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver shall apply for a
reqistry identification card renewal by submitting a complete reapplication as
provided under section 19-24.1-03 or 19-24.1-04 no less than forty-five calendar
days before the expiration date of the existing reqgistry identification card.

19-24.1-07. Regqistry identification cards - Nontransferable.

A regqistry identification card is not transferable, by assignment or otherwise,
to another person. If a person attempts to transfer a card in violation of this section,
the registry identification card is void and the person is prohibited from all privileges
provided under this chapter.

19-24.1-08. Qualifying patients and designated caregivers - Voluntary
withdrawal.

A registered qualifying patient or reqgistered designated caregiver may
voluntarily withdraw from participation in the medical marijuana program. A
registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver seeking to withdraw
from the medical marijuana program shall notify the department in writing no less
than thirty calendar days before withdrawal.
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19-24.1-09. Cardholders - Eligibility and compliance.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

A cardholder shall provide the department or the department's designee
immediate access to any material and information necessary for
determining eligibility and compliance with this chapter.

Failure of a cardholder to provide the department access to the material,
or information as provided under this chapter may result in the
department taking action, which may include the revocation of the
cardholder registry identification card and referral to state or local law
enforcement.

Failure of a cardholder to comply with the requirements under this
section which is documented by the department, may result in sanctions,
including suspension, revocation, nonrenewal, or denial of reqgistration,
and referral to state or local law enforcement.

The department shall refer credible criminal complaints against a
cardholder to appropriate state or local law enforcement authorities.

a. If aviolation of the requirements under this section is cited as a
result of compliance monitoring, the department shall provide the
cardholder with written notice of the findings following the
compliance monitoring visit.

b. Unless otherwise specified by the department, the cardholder shall
correct the violation within five calendar days of receipt of the notice
citing the violation.

c. The department shall verify whether the cardholder corrected the
violation.

d. The violation is not deemed corrected until the department provides
written verification the corrective action is satisfactory.

e. If the violation is not corrected within the required time, the

department may revoke the registry identification card of the
cardholder.

19-24.1-10. Cardholders - Notification of change.

1

Within ten calendar days of the change, in a manner prescribed by the
department, a registered qualifying patient or registered designated
caregqiver shall notify the department of any of the following:

A change in the cardholder's name or address:

|

b. Knowledge of a change that would render the registered qualifying
patient no longer eligible to participate in the medical marijuana

program;

c. Knowledge of a change that results in the registered qualifying
patient's health care provider no longer meeting the definition of the
term "health care provider" as defined under section 19-24.1-01; or

d. Knowledge of a change that renders the registered qualifying

patient's registered designated caregiver no longer eligible to
participate in the medical marijuana program.
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If a registered qualifying patient seeks to change the patient's designated
careqiver, the registered qualifying patient shall notify the department in
writing of this change.

If a cardholder loses the cardholder's registry identification card, the
cardholder shall notify the department in writing within twenty-four hours
of becoming aware of the loss.

If a reqistered qualifying patient is unable to make a notification required
under this section due to age or medical condition, that patient's
reqistered designated caregiver or the individual responsible for making
medical decisions for that patient shall provide the notification.

If the department receives notification of an item listed in this section and
the nature of the item reported does not affect a cardholder's eligibility,
the department shall issue the cardholder a new reqistry identification
card with a new random ten-digit alphanumeric identification number
within twenty calendar days of approving the updated information and the
cardholder shall pay a fee, not to exceed twenty-five dollars. If a
cardholder notifying the department is a reqistered qualifying patient who
has a registered designated caregiver, the department shall issue the
patient's registered designated caregiver a new registry identification
card within twenty calendar days of approving the updated information.

If the department receives notification of an item listed in this section and
the nature of the item reported makes the cardholder ineligible, the
cardholder's reqistry identification card becomes void immediately upon
notification of the department and the reqgistered cardholder shall dispose
of any usable marijuana in the cardholder's possession within fifteen
calendar days, in accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

A registered qualifying patient's certifying health care provider shall notify
the department in writing if the health care provider's registered qualifying
patient no longer has a debilitating medical condition or if the health care
provider no longer believes the patient will receive therapeutic or
palliative benefit from the medical use of marijuana. The qualifying
patient's reqistry identification card becomes void immediately upon the
health care provider's notification of the department and the registered
qualifying patient shall dispose of any usable marijuana in the
cardholder's possession within fifteen calendar days, in accordance with
rules adopted under this chapter.

19-24.1-11. Registry identification cards.

1.

The contents of a registry identification card must include:

a. The name of the cardholder;

b. Adesignation as to whether the cardholder is a qualifying patient,
designated caregiver, or compassion center agent;

c. Adesignation as to whether a qualifying patient is a minor;

d. Adesignation as to whether a qualifying patient or a designated
caregiver's qualifying patient is authorized to use the dried leaves or
flowers of the plant of the genus cannabis;

e. The date of issuance and expiration date;
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A random ten-digit alphanumeric identification number containing at
least four numbers and at least four letters which is unique to the
cardholder:;

g. Ifthe cardholderis a designated caregiver, the random identification
number of the qualifying patient the designated caregiver is
authorized to assist;

=

A photograph of the cardholder; and

The phone number or website address at which the card can be
verified.

"

Except as otherwise provided in this section or rule adopted under this
chapter, a reqistry identification card expiration date must be one year
after the date of issuance.

If a health care provider states in the written certification that the
qualifying patient would benefit from the medical use of marijuana until a
specified date, less than one year, the reqgistry identification card expires
on that date.

19-24.1-12. Compassion centers.

1.

[N

|0

|

[o

6.

A person may not process or produce or dispense usable marijuana or
otherwise act as a compassion center in this state unless the person is
reqgistered as a compassion center.

Except as otherwise provided under this section, the department shall
reqgister no more than:

a. Two compassion centers with the sole purpose of operating as a
manufacturing facility; and

b. Eight compassion centers with the sole purpose of operating as a
dispensary.

The department shall establish an open application period for the
submission of compassion center applications. At the completion of the
open application period, the department shall review each complete
application using a competitive process established in accordance with
rules adopted under this chapter and shall determine which applicants to
reqgister as compassion centers.

The department may reqister additional compassion centers if the
department determines additional compassion centers are necessary to
increase access to usable marijuana by registered qualifying patients and
reqgistered designated caregivers.

If the department revokes or does not renew a compassion center
registration certificate, the department may establish an open application
period for the submission of compassion center applications.

The department of commerce may not certify a compassion center as a
primary sector business.

19-24.1-13. Compassion centers - Authority.

1

The activities of a manufacturing facility are limited to producing and
processing and to related activities, including acquiring, possessing.
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storing, transferring, and transporting marijuana and usable marijuana,
for the sole purpose of selling usable marijuana to a dispensary.

The activities of a dispensary are limited to purchasing usable marijuana
from a manufacturing facility, and related activities, including storing,
delivering, transferring, and transporting usable marijuana, for the sole
purpose of dispensing usable marijuana to a reqgistered qualifying patient,
directly or through the registered qualifying patient's registered
designated caregiver. The activities of a dispensary include providing
educational material and selling usable marijuana related supplies to a
registered qualifying patient or a registered designated caregiver.

19-24.1-14. Compassion centers - Application.

1.

The department shall establish forms for an application to be registered
as a compassion center. For a compassion center registration application
to be complete and eligible for review, the applicant shall submit to the
department all of the following:

a. Anonrefundable application fee, not to exceed five thousand dollars,
made payable to the "North Dakota State Department of Health,
Medical Marijuana Program".

The legal name, articles of incorporation or articles of organization,
and bylaws or operating agreement of the proposed compassion
center applicant.

i

Evidence of the proposed compassion center applicant's registration
with the secretary of state and certificate of good standing.

|

The physical address of the proposed location of the proposed
compassion center and:

(=5

(1) Evidence of approval from local officials as to the proposed
compassion center applicant's compliance with local zoning
laws for the physical address to be used by the proposed
compassion center; and

(2) Evidence the physical address of the proposed compassion
center is not located within one thousand feet [604.80 meters]
of a property line of a pre-existing public or private school.

For a manufacturing facility applicant, a description of the enclosed,
locked facility that would be used in the production and processing of
marijuana, including steps that will be taken to ensure the production
and processing is not visible from the street or other public areas.

|®

[

The name, address, and date of birth of each principal officer and
board member, or of each member-manager, manager, or governor,
of the proposed compassion center applicant and verification each
officer and board member, or each member-manager, manager, or
governor, has consented to a criminal history record check
conducted under section 12-60-24.

g. Foreach of the proposed compassion center applicant's principal
officers and board members, or for each of the proposed
compassion center applicant's member-managers, managers, or
governors, a description of that individual's relevant experience,
including training or professional licensing related to medicine,
pharmaceuticals, natural treatments, botany, food science, food
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safety, production, processing, and the individual's experience
running a business entity.

A description of proposed security and safety measures, which
demonstrate compliance with the security and safety requirements
under section 19-24.1-25.

An example of the design and security features of usable marijuana
containers which demonstrates compliance with section 19-24.1-21.

A complete operations manual, which demonstrates compliance with
section 19-24.1-27.

A description of the plans for making usable marijuana available on
an affordable basis to registered qualifying patients with limited
financial resources.

A list of all individuals and business entities having direct or indirect
authority over the management or policies of the proposed
compassion center applicant.

A list of all individuals and business entities having an ownership
interest in the proposed compassion center applicant, whether direct
or indirect, and whether the interest is in profits, land, or building,
including owners of any business entity that owns all or part of the

land or building.

The identity of any creditor holding a security interest in the
proposed compassion center premises.

The department is not required to review an application submitted under

this section unless the department determines the application is

complete. The criteria considered by the department in reviewing an

application must include:

a.

i

[

o

=™
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The suitability of the proposed compassion center location, including
compliance with any local zoning laws, and the geographic
convenience to access compassion centers for registered qualifying
patients and registered designated careqgivers from throughout the
state:

The character and relevant experience of the principal officers and
board members, or of the member-managers, managers, or
governors, including training or professional licensing and business

experience;

The applicant's plan for operations and services, including staffing
and training plans, whether the applicant has sufficient capital to
operate, and the applicant's ability to provide an adequate supply of
usable marijuana to registered qualifying patients and reqgistered
designated caregivers;

The sufficiency of the applicant's plans for recordkeeping;

The sufficiency of the applicant's plans for safety, security, and the
prevention of diversion, including the proposed location and security
devices employed:

The applicant's plan for making usable marijuana available on an
affordable basis to registered qualifying patients with limited financial
resources;
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g. The applicant's plan for safe and accurate packaging and labeling of
usable marijuana; and

h. The applicant's plans for testing usable marijuana and marijuana.

3. Following completion of the review under subsection 2, the department
shall select the applicants eligible for registration under section
19-24.1-15.

19-24.1-15. Compassion centers - Reqgistration.

1. Upon receipt of notification by the department a compassion center
application is eligible for registration, the applicant shall submit all of the
following additional items to the department to qualify for registration:

a. A certification fee, made payable to the "North Dakota State
Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program", in the amount of
ninety thousand dollars for a dispensary and one hundred ten
thousand dollars for a manufacturing facility.

|

A financial assurance or security bond to ensure the protection of the
public health and safety and the environment in the event of
abandonment, default, or other inability or unwillingness to meet the
requirements of this chapter.

The legal name, articles of incorporation or articles of organization,
and bylaws or operating agreement, of the proposed compassion
center applicant.

[©

o

The physical address of the proposed compassion center;
confirmation the information in the application regarding the physical
location of the proposed compassion center has not changed, and if
the information has changed the department shall determine whether
the new information meets the requirements of this chapter; and a
current certificate of occupancy, or equivalent document, to
demonstrate compliance with the provisions of state and local fire
code for the physical address of the proposed compassion center. It
is not necessary for an applicant to resubmit any information
provided in the initial application unless there has been a change in
that information.

An update to previously submitted information, including information
about compassion center agents and compliance with section
19-24.1-18.

|®

2. If an applicant complies with subsection 1, the department shall issue the
applicant a registration certificate.

19-24.1-16. Compassion centers - Renewal.

1. Acompassion center registration certificate expires two years after
issuance. A compassion center may submit a renewal application at any
time beginning ninety calendar days before the expiration of the
registration certificate. A compassion center shall submit a renewal
application a minimum of sixty calendar days before the expiration of the
registration certificate to avoid suspension of the certificate.

2. The department shall approve a compassion center's renewal application
within sixty calendar days of submission, if the following conditions are
satisfied:
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a. The compassion center submits a renewal fee, in the amount of
ninety thousand dollars for a dispensary and one hundred ten
thousand dollars for a manufacturing facility, which the department
shall refund if the department rejects the renewal application;

b. The compassion center submits a complete renewal application;

c. The department has at no time suspended the compassion center's
registration for violation of this chapter:

d. Inspections conducted under this chapter do not raise any serious
concerns about the continued operation of the compassion center:;
and

e. The compassion center continues to meet all the requirements for

the operation of a compassion center as set forth in this chapter and
rules adopted under this chapter.

If a compassion center does not meet the requirements for renewal, the
department may not issue a registration certificate and the department
shall provide the compassion center with written notice of the
determination. If a compassion center's certificate is not renewed, the
compassion center shall dispose all marijuana and usable marijuana in
accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

19-24.1-17. Compassion centers - Registration certificates

nontransferable - Notification of changes.

1

[N

A reqistration certificate authorizing operation of a compassion center
may not be transferred to another person. Unless a compassion center
applies for and receives an amended registration certificate authorizing
operation of a compassion center, the reqgistration certificate is void if
there is a change in ownership of the compassion center, there is a
change in the authorized physical location of the compassion center, or if
the compassion center discontinues operation.

A compassion center shall provide the department a written notice of any
change described under this section at least sixty calendar days before
the proposed effective date of the change. The department may waive all
or part of the required advance notice to address emergent or emergency
situations.

19-24.1-18. Compassion centers - Agents - Registry identification cards.

1.

[N

Upon issuance of a compassion center reqistry certificate, the
department shall issue a reqistry identification card to each qualified
compassion center agent associated with the compassion center.

To qualify to be issued a regqistry identification card, each compassion
center agent must be at least twenty-one years of age and shall submit
all of the following registry identification card application material to the

department:

a. A photographic copy of the agent's department-approved
identification. The agent shall make the identification available for
inspection and verification by the department.

A recent two-by-two inch [5.08-by-5.08 centimeter] photograph of the
agent.

i
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c. Awritten and signed statement from an officer or executive staff
member of the compassion center stating the applicant is associated
with the compassion center and the capacity of the association.

d. The name, address, and telephone number of the agent.

e. The agent's social security number.

f. The name, address, and telephone number of the compassion
center with which the agent is associated.

g. The agent's signature and the date.

h. Anonrefundable application or renewal fee in the amount of two
hundred dollars, in the form of a check made out to "North Dakota
State Department of Health, Medical Marijuana Program".

Each compassion center agent shall consent to a criminal history record
check conducted under section 12-60-24 to demonstrate compliance with
the eligibility requirements.

a. All applicable fees associated with the required criminal history
record checks must be paid by the compassion center or the agent.

b. Acriminal history record check must be performed upon initial
application and biennially upon renewal. A compassion center agent
shall consent to a criminal history record check at any time the
department determines necessary.

An individual convicted of a drug-related misdemeanor offense within
the five-year period before the date of application or a felony offense
is prohibited from being a compassion center agent.

[©

The department shall notify the compassion center in writing of the
purpose for denying a compassion center agent application for a registry
identification card. The department shall deny an application if the agent
fails to meet the registration requirements or to provide the information
required, or if the department determines the information provided is
false. The cardholder may appeal a denial or revocation of a registry
identification card to the district court of Burleigh County for hearing. The
court may authorize the cardholder to appear by reliable electronic
means.

The department shall issue a compassion center agent a reqistry
identification card within thirty calendar days of approval of an

A compassion center agent with a registry identification card shall notify
the department of any of the following within ten calendar days of the
change, in a manner prescribed by the department:

a. Achange in the cardholder's name or address; and

b. Knowledge of a change that would render the compassion center
agent no longer eligible to be a cardholder.

If a compassion center agent loses the agent's reqistry identification
card, that agent shall notify the department in writing within twenty-four
hours of becoming aware the card has been lost.
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If a cardholder notifies the department of items listed in this section but
the nature of the item reported results in the cardholder remaining
eligible, the department shall issue the cardholder a new registry
identification card with a new random ten-digit alphanumeric identification
number within twenty calendar days of approving the updated information
and the cardholder shall pay a fee, not to exceed twenty-five dollars. If a
cardholder notifies the department of an item that results in the
cardholder being ineligible, the registry identification card immediately
becomes void.

A compassion center shall notify the department in writing within two
calendar days of the date a compassion center agent ceases to work for
or be associated with the compassion center. Upon receipt of the
notification, that individual's reqistry identification card becomes void

immediately.

The reqistry identification card of a compassion center agent expires one
year after issuance or upon the termination of the compassion center's
registration certificate, whichever occurs first. To prevent interruption of
possession of a valid registry identification card, a compassion center
agent shall renew a reqistry identification card by submitting a complete
renewal application no less than forty-five calendar days before the
expiration date of the existing registry identification card.

19-24.1-19. Cardholders - Compassion centers - Revocation.

1.

[

|wo

|

The department may suspend or revoke a cardholder's registry
identification card or a compassion center's registration certificate for a
material misstatement by an applicant in an application or renewal.

The department may suspend or revoke a registry identification card or
reqistration certificate for a violation of this chapter or rules adopted
under this chapter.

If a compassion center agent or a compassion center sells or otherwise
transfers marijuana or usable marijuana to a person not authorized to
possess marijuana or usable marijuana under this chapter, the
department shall revoke the cardholder's registry identification card or
the compassion center's reqgistration certificate, or both. If the department
revokes a cardholder's registry identification card under this subsection,
the cardholder is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

The department shall provide written notice of suspension or revocation
of a registry identification card or reqgistration certificate.

A suspension may not be for a period longer than six months.

|

A manufacturing facility may continue to produce and process and to
possess marijuana and usable marijuana during a suspension, but
may not transfer or sell usable marijuana.

i3

A dispensary may continue to possess usable marijuana during a
suspension, but may not purchase, dispense, or transfer usable

marijuana.

The cardholder or the compassion center may appeal a denial or
revocation of a reqistry identification card or reqistry certificate to the
district court of Burleigh County for hearing. The court may authorize
the cardholder or compassion center to appear by reliable electronic
means.

13
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19-24.1-20. Cardholders - Compassion centers - Violations - Penalties.

1. Acardholder or compassion center that fails to provide a notice as
required under this chapter shall pay to the department a fee in an
amount established by the department, not to exceed one hundred fifty
dollars.

[N

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a manufacturing facility
or a manufacturing facility agent is quilty of a class B felony for
intentionally selling or otherwise transferring marijuana or usable
marijuana in any form, to a person other than a dispensary, or for
internationally selling or otherwise transferring marijuana in any form
other than usable marijuana, to a dispensary. A person convicted under
this subsection may not continue to be affiliated with a compassion
center and is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a dispensary or a
dispensary agent is quilty of a class B felony for intentionally selling or
otherwise transferring usable marijuana, to a person other than a
reqgistered qualifying patient or a registered designated caregiver, to a
registered qualifying patient who is a minor, or in a form not allowed
under this chapter. A person convicted under this subsection may not
continue to be affiliated with a compassion center and is disqualified from
further participation under this chapter.

|eo

[+

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a dispensary or a
dispensary agent is quilty of a class B felony for intentionally selling or
otherwise transferring usable marijuana, in a form other than pediatric
medical marijuana, to a registered designated careqiver, for use by a
registered qualifying patient who is a minor. A person convicted under
this subsection may not continue to be affiliated with a compassion
center and is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

[o

A compassion center or compassion center agent that knowingly submits
false records or documentation required by the department to certify a
compassion center under this chapter is guilty of a class C felony. A
person convicted under this subsection may not continue to be affiliated
with a compassion center and is disqualified from further participation
under this chapter.

|©

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, if a compassion center
violates this chapter the department may fine the compassion center up
to one thousand dollars for each violation.

[~

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a registered qualifying
patient who intentionally sells or otherwise transfers usable marijuana, to
another person, is guilty of a class B felony. An individual convicted under
this subsection is disqualified from further participation under this

chapter.

|0

In addition to any other penalty applicable in law, a registered designated
careqgiver who intentionally sells or otherwise transfers usable marijuana,
to a person other than a registered qualifying patient to which the
caregiver is associated with registration, is quilty of a class B felony. An
individual convicted under this subsection is disqualified from further
participation under this chapter.

|©

An individual who knowingly submits false records or documentation
required by the department to receive a registry identification card under
this chapter is guilty of a class A misdemeanor. An individual convicted
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under this subsection may not continue to be affiliated with a compassion
center and is disqualified from further participation under this chapter.

A health care provider who holds a financial interest in a compassion
center may not knowingly refer a patient to a compassion center or to a
reqistered designated careqiver, advertise in a compassion center, or
issue a written certification. A health care provider who violates this
subsection must be fined up to one thousand dollars.

19-24.1-21. Compassion centers - Dispensing.

I

2.

1S4

|

A compassion center shall comply with the dispensing requirements of
this section.

Design and security features of usable marijuana containers must be in
accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

A manufacturing facility or agent of the manufacturing facility may not
dispense marijuana or usable marijuana, except the manufacturing
facility or agent may sell usable marijuana to a dispensary.

A dispensary or agent of the dispensary may not dispense usable
marijuana unless the dispensary first uses the verification system to
confirm the registered qualifying patient or reqistered designated
caregqiver identification card is valid. A dispensary or agent of the

dispensary:

a. May not dispense usable marijuana to a person other than a
reqgistered qualifying patient or a registered qualifying patient's
reqistered designated caregiver. If a registered qualifying patient is a
minor:

(1) The dispensary or agent of the dispensary may not dispense
usable marijuana to a minor; and

(2) The usable marijuana dispensed to the minor's designated
caregiver must be in the form of pediatric medical marijuana
oil.

i

May not dispense to a registered qualifying patient or registered
designated caregiver more than the allowable amount of usable
marijuana and may not dispense an amount if it is known that
amount would cause the recipient to purchase or possess more
usable marijuana than is permitted under this chapter.

May not dispense to a registered qualifying patient or registered
designated caregiver the dried leaves or flowers of the plant of the
genus cannabis in a combustible delivery form unless the registry
identification card and verification system authorize this form of
usable marijuana.

[

19-24.1-22. Compassion centers - Inspections.

1.

A compassion center is subject to random inspection by the department.
During an inspection, the department may review the compassion
center's records, including the compassion center's financial and
dispensing records, which may track transactions according to registered
qualifying patient and registered designated careqiver registry
identification numbers.
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2. The department shall conduct inspections of compassion centers to
ensure compliance with this chapter. The department shall conduct
inspections of manufacturing facilities for the presence of contaminants.
The department shall select a certified laboratory to conduct random
quality sampling testing, in accordance with rules adopted under this
chapter. A compassion center shall pay the cost of all random guality
sampling testing.

19-24.1-23. Compassion centers - Pesticide testing.

A manufacturing facility shall test marijuana at a manufacturing facility for the
presence of pesticides. If a marijuana pesticide test or a random gquality sampling
test under section 19-24.1-22 indicates the presence of a pesticide, the
manufacturing facility shall report the test result immediately to the department and
to the agriculture commissioner. Upon the order of the department or agriculture
commissioner, the manufacturing facility immediately shall destroy all affected or
contaminated marijuana and usable marijuana inventory in accordance with rules
adopted under this chapter, and shall certify to the department and to the agriculture
commissioner that all affected or contaminated inventory has been destroyed.

19-24.1-24. Compassion centers - Cannabis plants.

The health council shall adopt rules establishing the maximum amount of
plants of the genus cannabis and the amount of marijuana and usable marijuana a
compassion center may possess. Except as otherwise provided under this section,
the rules may not allow a manufacturing facility to possess more than one thousand
plants, regardless of the stage of growth, and may not allow a dispensary to possess
more than three thousand five hundred ounces [99.22 kilograms] of usable
marijuana at any time, regardless of formulation. The rules may allow a
manufacturing facility to possess no more than an additional fifty plants for the
exclusive purpose of department-authorized research and development related to
production and processing.

19-24.1-25. Compassion centers - Security and safety.

1. In compliance with rules adopted under this chapter, a compassion
center shall implement appropriate security and safety measures to deter
and prevent the unauthorized entrance to areas containing marijuana
and containing usable marijuana and to prevent the theft of marijuana
and usable marijuana.

[

A compassion center shall limit to authorized personnel entry to an area
in which production or producing takes place or in which marijuana or
usable marijuana is held.

|0

A compassion center must have a fully operational security alarm system
at the authorized physical address which includes an electrical support
backup system for the alarm system to provide suitable protection
against theft and diversion.

A compassion center shall maintain documentation in an auditable form
for:

[+

a. All maintenance inspections and tests conducted under this section,
and any servicing, modification, or upgrade performed on the
security alarm system:;

b. An alarm activation or other event that requires response by public
safety personnel; and
c. Any breach of security.
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19-24.1-26. Compassion centers - Inventory control.

1.

[N

|wo

A compassion center shall comply with the inventory control
requirements provided under this section and rules adopted under this

chapter.

a. A manufacturing facility shall:

(1) Employ a bar coding inventory control system to track batch,
strain, and amounts of marijuana and usable marijuana in
inventory and to track amounts of usable marijuana sold to
dispensaries; and

(2) Host a secure computer interface to transfer inventory amounts
and dispensary purchase information to the department.

b. Adispensary shall:

(1) Employ a bar coding inventory control system to track batch,
strain, and amounts of usable marijuana in inventory and to
track amounts sold to registered qualifying patients and
registered designated caregivers; and

(2) Host a secure computer interface to transfer inventory amounts
and registered qualifying patient and registered designated
caregiver purchase information to the department.

A compassion center shall store the compassion center's marijuana and
usable marijuana in an enclosed locked facility with adequate security, in
accordance with rules adopted under this chapter.

A compassion center shall conduct inventories of marijuana and usable
marijuana at the authorized location at the frequency and in the manner
provided by rules adopted under this chapter. If an inventory results in
the identification of a discrepancy, the compassion center shall notify the
department and appropriate law enforcement authorities immediately. A
compassion center shall document each inventory conducted by the
compassion center.

19-24.1-27. Compassion centers - Operating manual - Training.

i 8

[N

A compassion center shall maintain a current copy of the compassion
center's operating manual that meets the requirements of rules adopted
under this chapter.

A compassion center shall develop, implement, and maintain on the
premises an onsite training curriculum or shall enter contractual
relationships with outside resources capable of meeting compassion
center agent training needs. A compassion center shall ensure each
compassion center agent receives training that includes:

a. Education regarding professional conduct, ethics, and state and

federal laws regarding patient confidentiality;

b. Informational developments in the field of medical use of marijuana;
c. All safety and security measures required under section 19-24.1-25;
d. Specific procedural instructions for responding to an emergency,

including robbery or violent accident; and
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e. The compassion center's operating manual and all requirements
related to recordkeeping.

19-24.1-28. Compassion centers - Bylaws and operating agreements.

As part of a proposed compassion center's initial application, the applicant
shall provide to the department a current copy of the applicant's bylaws or operating
agreement. Upon receipt of a reqgistration certificate, a compassion center shall
maintain the bylaws or operating agreement in accordance with this chapter. In
addition to any other requirements, the bylaws or operating agreement must include
the ownership or management structure of the compassion center; the composition
of the board of directors, board of governors, member-managers, or managers; and
provisions relative to the disposition of revenues and earnings.

19-24.1-29. Compassion centers - Retention of and access to records
and reports.

A compassion center shall keep detailed financial reports of proceeds and
expenses. A compassion center shall maintain all inventory, sales, and financial
records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The
compassion center shall maintain for a period of seven years all reports and records
required under this section. A compassion center shall allow the department, or an
audit firm contracted by the department, access at all times to all books and records
kept by the compassion center.

19-24.1-30. Compassion centers - Recordkeeping - Compassion center
agents - Registry identification cards.

1. Each compassion center shall maintain:

a. In compliance with rules adopted under this chapter, a personnel
record for each compassion center agent for a period of at least
three years following termination of the individual's affiliation with the
compassion center. The personnel record must comply with
minimum requirements set by rule adopted under this chapter.

b. Arecord of the source of funds that will be used to open or maintain
the compassion center, including the name, address, and date of
birth of any investor.

c. Arecord of each instance in which a current or prospective board

member, member-manager, manager, or governor, who managed or
served on the board of a business or not-for-profit entity and in the
course of that service was convicted, fined, or censured or had a
registration or license suspended or revoked in any administrative or
judicial proceeding.

2. [Each compassion center agent shall hold a valid reqistry identification
card.

19-24.1-31. Verification system.

1. The department shall maintain a confidential list of cardholders and each
cardholder's address, phone number, and reqistry identification number.

2. The department shall establish a secure verification system. The
verification system must allow law enforcement personnel, health care
providers, pharmacists, compassion centers, and compassion center
agents twenty-four-hour access to enter a reqgistry identification number
to determine whether the number corresponds with a current valid
registry identification card. The system may disclose:
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a. Whether an identification card is valid;

b. The name of the cardholder;

c. Whether the cardholder is a registered qualifying patient, registered
designated caregiver, or registered compassion center agent;

d. Whether a registered qualifying patient is a minor; and

e. The reqistry identification number of any affiliated registered

qualifying patient, reqgistered designated caregiver, or compassion
center.

19-24.1-32. Protections.

Except as provided in sections 19-24.1-20 and 19-24.1-33:

1

[N

|©o

|

|o

A reqgistered qualifying patient is not subject to arrest or prosecution or
the denial of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty or disciplinary
action by a court or occupational or professional requlating entity for the
acquisition, use, or possession of usable marijuana or related supplies
under this chapter.

A registered designated caregiver is not subject to arrest or prosecution
or the denial of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty or
disciplinary action by a court or occupational or professional regulating

entity:

a. For assisting a registered qualifying patient with the acquisition, use,
or possession of usable marijuana or related supplies under this
chapter, if the registered designated caregiver is connected to the
registered qualifying patient through the department's registration

process.

[c

For receiving compensation for costs associated with assisting a
reqistered qualifying patient with the acquisition, use, or possession
of usable marijuana or related supplies under this chapter, if the
registered designated caregiver is connected to the reqgistered
qualifying patient through the department's reqistration process.

It is presumed a reqgistered qualifying patient is engaged in, or a
registered designated caregiver is assisting with, the acquisition, use, or
possession of usable marijuana or related supplies in accordance with
this chapter if the registered qualifying patient or reqgistered designated
caregiver is in possession of a valid reqistry identification card and is not
in possession of usable marijuana in an amount that exceeds what is
authorized under this chapter. This presumption may be rebutted by
evidence the conduct related to acquisition, use, or possession of usable
marijuana or related supplies was not for the purpose of treating or
alleviating the registered qualifying patient's debilitating medical condition
under this chapter.

A person is not subject to arrest or prosecution or the denial of any right
or privilege, including a civil penalty or disciplinary action by a court or
occupational or professional requlating entity, for being in the presence or
vicinity of the medical use of marijuana authorized under this chapter.

A manufacturing facility is not subject to prosecution, search or
inspection, or seizure, except by the department or a department
designee, under this chapter for acting under this chapter to:
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a. Produce or process or to conduct related activities for the sole
purpose of selling usable marijuana to a dispensary; or

b. Transfer, transport, or deliver marijuana or usable marijuana to and
from a department designee or manufacturing facility in accordance
with this chapter.

[©

A dispensary is not subject to prosecution, search or inspection, or
seizure, except by the department or a department designee, under this
chapter for acting under this chapter to:

a. Purchase usable marijuana from a manufacturing facility and
conducting related activities for the sole purpose of dispensing
usable marijuana, selling related supplies, and and providing
educational materials to registered qualifying patients and
designated caregivers; or

b. Transfer usable marijuana to and from a department designee or
related marijuana facility in accordance with this chapter.

[~

A registered compassion center agent is not subject to arrest or
prosecution or the denial of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty
or disciplinary action by a court or occupational or professional requlating
entity, for working or volunteering for a compassion center if the action
performed by the compassion center agent on behalf of the compassion
center is authorized under this chapter.

|

The sale and possession of marijuana paraphernalia by a dispensary is
lawful if in accordance with this chapter.

|«©

The medical use of marijuana by a registered cardholder or the
producing and processing and the dispensing of usable marijuana by a
compassion center is lawful if in accordance with this chapter.

10. A health care provider is not subject to arrest or prosecution or the denial
of any right or privilege, including a civil penalty or disciplinary action by a
court or occupational or professional requlating entity, solely for providing
a written certification or for otherwise stating in the health care provider's
professional opinion a patient is likely to receive therapeutic or palliative
benefit from the medical use of usable marijuana to treat or alleviate the
patient's debilitating medical condition or for refusing to provide written
certification or a statement. This chapter does not release a health care
provider from the duty to exercise a professional standard of care for
evaluating or treating a patient's medical condition.

11.  Acardholder or registered compassion center is not subject to arrest or
prosecution for use of drug paraphernalia or possession with intent to
use drug paraphernalia in a manner consistent with this chapter.

12. Aperson in possession of medical marijuana waste in the course of
transporting or disposing of the waste under this chapter and rules
adopted under this chapter may not be subject to arrest or prosecution
for that possession or transportation.

13. Aperson in possession of marijuana or medical marijuana in the course
of performing laboratory tests as provided under this chapter and rules
adopted under this chapter may not be subject to arrest or prosecution
for that possession or testing.
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19-24.1-33. Limitations.

This chapter does not authorize a person to engage in, and does not prevent
the imposition of any civil liability or criminal liability or other penalties for engaging in
the following conduct:

1. Undertaking an activity under the influence of marijuana if doing so would
constitute negligence or professional malpractice.

2. Possessing or consuming usable marijuana:

On a school bus or school van that is used for school purposes;

|

o

On the grounds of any public or private school;

At any location while a public or private school sanctioned event is
occurring at that location;

|

|

On the grounds of a correctional facility; or

On the grounds of a child care facility or licensed home day care,
unless authorized under rules adopted by the department of human
services.

|®

|eo

Undertaking any activity prohibited by section 23-12-09, 23-12-10,
23-12-10.2, 23-12-10.4, 23-12-10.5, or 23-12-11.

|

Using a combustible delivery form of usable marijuana or vaporizing
usable marijuana under this chapter if the smoke or vapor would be
inhaled by a minor who is not the registered qualifying patient for whom
the usable marijuana is intended.

|o

Operating, navigating, or being in actual physical control of a motor
vehicle, aircraft, train, or motorboat, while under the influence of
marijuana. However, a registered qualifying patient may not be
considered to be under the influence of marijuana solely because of the
presence of metabolites or components of marijuana that appear in
insufficient concentration to cause impairment.

19-24.1-34. Acts not prohibited - Acts not required.

1. This chapter does not require:

a. Agovernment medical assistance program or private insurer to
reimburse a person for costs associated with the medical use of

marijuana;

=g

A person in lawful possession of property to allow a quest, client,
customer, or other visitor to possess or consume usable marijuana
on or in that property;

A landlord to allow production or processing on rental property; or

34

d. Ahealth care provider to provide a written certification or otherwise
recommend marijuana to a patient.

N

This chapter does not prohibit an employer from disciplining an employee
for possessing or consuming usable marijuana in the workplace or for
working while under the influence of marijuana.
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19-24.1-35. Facility restrictions.

1.

[~

A basic care facility, nursing facility, assisted living facility, adult day care
facility, or adult foster care home licensed in the state may adopt
reasonable restrictions on the medical use of marijuana by residents or
individuals receiving inpatient services, including:

a. The facility will not store or maintain the registered qualifying
patient's supply of usable marijuana.

b. The facility, caregivers, or hospice agencies serving the facility's
residents are not responsible for providing the usable marijuana for
registered qualifying patients or assisting with the medical use of

marijuana.

c. Usable marijuana can be consumed by a method other than
vaporizing or combustion.

d. Consumption of usable marijuana is limited to a place specified by
the facility.

A facility listed in subsection 1 may not unreasonably limit a registered
qualifying patient's medical use of marijuana as authorized under this
chapter unless failing to do so would cause the facility to lose a monetary
or licensing-related benefit under federal law or regulations.

19-24.1-36. Health council - Rules.

1

[~

|0

[

The health council shall adopt rules as necessary for the implementation
and administration of this chapter, including transportation and storage of
marijuana and usable marijuana, advertising, packaging and labeling,
standards for testing facilities, inventory management, and accurate

record keeping.

The health council may adopt rules regarding the operation and
governance of additional categories of registered medical marijuana
establishments.

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for
reporting incidents of individuals not authorized to possess marijuana or
usable marijuana under this chapter and who are found in possession of
marijuana or usable marijuana. The rules must identify professionals
required to report, the information the reporter is required to report, and
actions the reporter shall take to secure the marijuana or usable

marijuana.

The health council shall adopt rules to establish requirements for law
enforcement officials and health care professionals to report to the
department incidents involving overdose or adverse reaction related to
the use of usable marijuana.

19-24.1-37. Confidentiality.

1

[~

Data in a registration application or renewal and supporting data
submitted by a qualifying patient, designated caregiver, compassion
center, proposed compassion center, or compassion center agent,
including data on designated caregivers and health care providers, is
confidential.

Data kept or maintained by the department may be disclosed for:
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a. The verification of registration certificates and registry identification
cards under this chapter:

b. Submission of the annual report required by this chapter:;

c. Submission to the North Dakota prescription drug monitoring
program;

d. Notification of state or local law enforcement of apparent criminal
violation of this chapter:

e. Notification of state and local law enforcement about falsified or
fraudulent information submitted for purposes of obtaining or
renewing a registry identification card; or

f.  Notification of the North Dakota board of medicine or North Dakota

board of nursing if there is a reason to believe a health care provider
provided a written certification and the department has reason to
believe the health care provider otherwise violated this chapter.

Upon a cardholder's written request, the department may confirm the
cardholder's status as a registered qualifying patient or a registered
designated caregiver to a third party, such as a landlord, school, medical
professional, or court.

|

4. Data submitted to a local government to demonstrate compliance with
any security requirements required by local zoning ordinances or
regulations is confidential.

19-24.1-38. Advisory board.

1. The governor shall appoint six members to serve on an advisory board
that:

a. Shall advise the department in implementation of the medical
marijuana program.

b. May receive reports from the department on the status and activities
of the medical marijuana program.

c. May provide recommendations to the department and the legislative
management on the medical marijuana program.

2. The state health officer shall serve as an ex officio voting member and as
chairman of the advisory board.

19-24.1-39. Report to legislative management.

Annually, the department shall submit to the legislative management a report
that does not disclose any identifying information about registered cardholders,
compassion centers, or health care providers, but contains the following information:

The number of registry identification card applications and renewals:

I_s

2. The number of registered qualifying patients and registered designated
caregivers;

3. The nature of the debilitating medical conditions of the registered
qualifying patients:;

4. The number of registry identification cards revoked:
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5. The number of health care providers providing written certifications for
qualifying patients;
6. The number of compassionate care centers; and

7. Any expenses incurred and revenues generated by the department from
the medical marijuana program.

19-24.1-40. Medical marijuana fund - Continuing appropriation.

The medical marijuana fund is established in the state treasury. The
department shall deposit in the fund all fees collected under this chapter. The
department shall administer the fund. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to the
department on a continuing basis for use in administering this chapter.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 54-60-03 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-60-03. Commissioner of commerce - Duties.

With the advice and counsel of the North Dakota development foundation,
the governor shall appoint a commissioner to supervise, control, and administer the
department. The commissioner serves at the pleasure of the governor and receives
a salary set by the governor within the limits of legislative appropriations. The
commissioner:

1. Shall file an oath of office in the usual form before commencing to
perform the duties of the commissioner;

2. Shall serve as chairman of the cabinet;

3. Shall appoint personnel as may be determined necessary to carry out the
duties of the department;

4.  Shall manage the operations of the department and oversee each of the
divisions;

5.  Shall assume central responsibilities to develop, implement, and
coordinate a working network of commerce service providers;

6. Shall coordinate the department's services with commerce-related
services of other state agencies;

7. Shall advise and cooperate with departments and agencies of the federal
government and of other states; private businesses, agricultural
organizations, and associations; research institutions; and with any
individual or other private or public entity;

8. May enter contracts upon terms and conditions as determined by the
commissioner to be reasonable and to effectuate the purposes of this
chapter;

9. Shall report between the first and tenth legislative days of each regular
legislative session to a standing committee of each house of the
legislative assembly as determined by the legislative management and
shall report annually to the foundation:

a. On the department's goals and objectives since the last report;
b. On the department's goals and objectives for the period until the next
report;
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c. On the department's long-term goals and objectives;

d. On the department's activities and measurable results occurring
since the last report; and

e. On commerce benchmarks, including the average annual wage in
the state, the gross state product exclusive of agriculture, and the
number of primary sector jobs in the state;

10. May not certify as a primary sector business a compassion center
reqistered under chapter 19-24.1:

11. Shall adopt rules necessary to implement this chapter; and

44-12. May take any actions necessary and proper to implement this chapter.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Paragraph 3 of subdivision a of subsection 15
of section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as
follows:

(3) Any structure or improvement used primarily in connection with
a retail or wholesale business other than farming, any structure
or improvement located on platted land within the corporate
limits of a city, any structure or improvement used by a
manufacturing facility as defined in section 19-24.1-01, or any
structure or improvement located on railroad operating property
subject to assessment under chapter 57-05 is not exempt
under this subsection. For purposes of this paragraph,
"business other than farming" includes processing to produce a
value-added physical or chemical change in an agricultural
commodity beyond the ordinary handling of that commodity by
a farmer prior to sale.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Paragraph 2 of subdivision b of subsection 15
of section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as
follows:

(2) "Farmer" means an individual who normally devotes the major
portion of time to the activities of producing products of the soil,
with the exception of marijuana grown under chapter 19-24.1;
poultry;; livestock;; or dairy farming in such products'
unmanufactured state and has received annual net income
from farming activities which is fifty percent or more of annual
net income, including net income of a spouse if married, during
any of the three preceding calendar years. For purposes of this
paragraph, "farmer" includes a:

(a) "Beginning farmer", which means an individual who has
begun occupancy and operation of a farm within the three
preceding calendar years; who normally devotes the
major portion of time to the activities of producing
products of the soil, poultry, livestock, or dairy farming in
such products' unmanufactured state; and who does not
have a history of farm income from farm operation for
each of the three preceding calendar years.

(b) "Retired farmer", which means an individual who is retired
because of iliness or age and who at the time of
retirement owned and occupied as a farmer the residence
in which the person lives and for which the exemption is
claimed.
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(c) "Surviving spouse of a farmer", which means the
surviving spouse of an individual who is deceased, who
at the time of death owned and occupied as a farmer the
residence in which the surviving spouse lives and for
which the exemption is claimed. The exemption under
this subparagraph expires at the end of the fifth taxable
year after the taxable year of death of an individual who
at the time of death was an active farmer. The exemption
under this subparagraph applies for as long as the
residence is continuously occupied by the surviving
spouse of an individual who at the time of death was a
retired farmer.

SECTION 5. STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH REPORT - MEDICAL
MARIJUANA DEBILITATING MEDICAL CONDITIONS. During the 2017-18 interim,
the state department of health shall conduct a study of the feasibility and desirability
of adding identified medical conditions or providing for an administrative process to
add identified medical conditions to the definitions of "debilitating medical condition"
under the medical marijuana program. The department shall include the findings and
recommendations of this study, together with any legislation required to implement
the recommendations, in the annual reports made to the legislative management
under section 19-24.1-39.

SECTION 6. REPEAL. Chapter 19-24 of the North Dakota Century Code is
repealed.

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - MEDICAL MARIJUANA PENALTIES.
It is the intent of the sixty-fifth legislative assembly that if future legislative
assemblies amend criminal penalties relating to marijuana, the corresponding
medical marijuana penalties also be amended in order to retain consistency.

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency
measure."

Renumber accordingly
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SENATE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE Z/g
SB 2344
SENATOR RICH WARDNER

Madam Chair Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee. My name is Rich Wardner
and | am from Dickinson and serve District # 37 in the Senate. | will be giving some opening remarks on
SB 2344 and then Jennifer Clark from Legislative Council will go through SB 2344 and explain the details
of the North Dakota Compassionate Care Act.

The Department of Health and the Office of the Attorney General collaborated to make the necessary
changes to the initiated measure. The four sponsors met with the Department of Health and went over
the proposed legislation and were in agreement with the bill before final drafting. The main objective
was to insure that the voters were going to get what they voted for; medical marijuana.

*We are committed to doing this right!

1. The Department of Health has to be able to administer, regulate and enforce the
program.

2. The Department of Health needs a revenue stream to fund supervision of the
program.

3. Patients who need medical marijuana will have access to it.

4. We need to ensure the product is developed and distributed safely and securely.

5. Sale and delivery methods of medical marijuana will be restricted to prevent its
recreational use.

The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance to federal prosecutors concerning marijuana
enforcement under the Controlled Substance Act. Several states have enacted laws relating to the use of
marijuana for medical purposes and the Department in recent years has focused its efforts on certain
enforcement priorities that are particularly important to the federal government.
* Preventing the distribution of marijuana to minors.
* Preventing the revenue from the sale of marijuana from going to criminal enterprises.
* Preventing the state-authorized marijuana activity from being used as a cover or
pretext for other illegal drugs.
* Preventing violence and the use of firearms in the cultivation and distribution of
marijuana.
* Preventing drugged driving and exacerbation of other adverse public health
consequences associated with marijuana use.
* Preventing marijuana possession or use on federal property.
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The major changes to the proposed legislation:

1. Usable medical marijuana will only be available in the form of liquids and pills (to the exclusion
of smoking, edibles, etc.) Children are restricted to the use of pediatric medical marijuana.
2. The State is limiting the number of "compassion centers" that can grow and distribute medical
marijuana, these entities sharing no common ownership.
e 4 manufacturing facilities (grow only)
e 8 dispensaries

This will allow for easier, more cost-efficient regulation without limiting access to those in need.
* Designated caregivers can assist with buying and delivering medical marijuana to
patients who need help accessing these compassion centers.
* The Department of Health is allowed to add additional dispensaries if this amount is
not sufficient for patients who need help accessing these compassion centers

3. The option for persons to cultivate their own marijuana plants in-house if they lived more than
forty miles from a compassion center was removed.
* This provision would have been costly and time-consuming for law enforcement to
enforce.
* This provision would have made it impossible to ensure consistent quality and
potency.

Changes were made for three reasons:

1. Corrections/clarifications to language
e The language on the ballot was piecemeal from the laws of different states and required
revisions for clarification and to better align with the NDCC.
e By leaving rules to the discretion of the DoH rather than putting them in statute, we can
ensure greater cost-effectiveness and efficiency in government.
e The bill adds important decriminalization language that the initiated measure left out: If
a patient is using medical marijuana legally, we need to ensure that she will not be
charged with a criminal violation.
2. Desire for increased safety
e We want the medical marijuana available to be carefully regulated as to potency and
quality so that patients are ingesting a safe product.
e The bill includes special protections for children.
e |t limits the forms available to children to pediatric medical marijuana oil, which
includes < 6% THC.
e |t takes into account the importance of coordination with pediatricians and
parental involvement.
3. Efficiency and cost-effectiveness of regulation
e Removes non-profit status requirement for compassion centers.
e Adds up to $100,000 fee to gain a license for a compassion center.
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e The restrictions to the number of compassion care centers will increase efficiency and
cost-effectiveness.

The goal is to give the North Dakota Health Department the tools to administer, regulate
and enforce the North Dakota Compassionate Care Act in a safe and effective manner and
provide a safe quality product for those qualified patients that need medical marijuana.
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PRESCRIBING:

If a physician issued a prescription he or she would los
because it is a Schedule | federally illegal drug. A phys

SB 234y
Attty # 2

e their DEA License to prescribe medicine
ician can issue a "Written certification" for

marijuana. The FDA has not approved marijuana as a safe and effective drug for any indication.

A very small portion of physicians said they would issue "written certifications" for medicinal marijuana.

MEASURE 5

SB 2344

"Written certification" means a document dated
and signed by a physician, stating that in the
physician's opinion the patient is likely to receive
therapeutic or palliative benefit from the medical
use of marijuana to treat or alleviate the patient's
debilitating medical condition or symptoms
associated with the debilitating medical condition. A
written certification shall be made only in the
course of a bona fide physician-patient relationship
where the qualifying patient is under the physician's
care for the qualifying patient's primary care or for
the qualifying patient's debilitating condition after
the physician has completed an assessment of the
qualifying patient's medical history and current
medical condition. The bona fide physician-patient
relationship may not be limited to authorization for
the patient to use medical marijuana or
consultation for that purpose. The written
certification shall specify the qualifying patient's
debilitating medical condition.

Written certification" means a form established by
the department which is executed, dated, and
signed by a physician within ninety calendar days of
the date of application, stating that in the
physician's professional opinion the patient is likely
to receive therapeutic or palliative benefit from the
medical use of marijuana to treat or alleviate the
patient's debilitating medical condition. A written
certification may not be made except in the course
of a bona fide physician-patient relationship.

"Physician" means a properly licensed physician in
the state of North Dakota. If the qualifying patient's
debilitating medical condition is posttraumatic
stress disorder, the physician must also be a
licensed psychiatrist.

"Physician" means a physician licensed to practice
medicine in the state of North Dakota who has the
authority to prescribe drugs to humans. If the
qualifying patient's debilitating medical condition is
posttraumatic stress disorder, the physician must
be a licensed psychiatrist. If the qualifying patient

is younger than eighteen years of age, the
physician must be a pediatric neurologist, pediatric
gastroenterologist, pediatric oncologist, or
pediatric palliative care specialist
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7. "Debilitating medical condition" means one or
more of the following:
a. Cancer and its treatments;
b. Positive status for human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV);
c. Acquired immune deficiency
syndrome (AIDS);
d. Decompensated cirrhosis (hepatitis
C);
e. Amyotrophic lateral sclerosis (ALS
or Lou Gehrig's disease);
f. Posttraumatic stress disorder
(PTSD);
g. Agitation of Alzheimer's disease,
dementia, or the treatment of these
conditions;
h. Crohn's disease or fibromyalgia;
i. Spinal stenosis or chronic back pain
including neuropathy or damage to
the nervous tissue of the spinal cord
with objective neurological indication
of intractable spasticity;
j. Glaucoma;
k. Epilepsy;
I. A chronic or debilitating disease
medical condition or its treatment
that produces one or more of the
following: cachexia or wasting
syndrome; severe pain that has not
responded to previously prescribed
medication or surgical measures for
more than three months or for which
other treatment options produced
serious side effects; intractable
nausea; seizures; or severe and
persistent muscle spasms, including
but not limited to those characteristic
of multiple sclerosis;
m. Any other medical condition or its
treatment added by the North Dakota
department of health.

7. "Debilitating medical condition" means one or

more of the following:
a. Cancer;
b. Positive status for human
immunodeficiency virus;
c¢. Acquired immune deficiency syndrome;
d. Decompensated cirrhosis caused by
hepatitis C;
e. Amyotrophic lateral sclerosis;
f. Posttraumatic stress disorder;
g. Agitation of Alzheimer's disease or related
dementia;
h. Crohn's disease;
i. Fibromyalgia;
j. Spinal stenosis or chronic back pain,
including neuropathy or damage to the
nervous tissue of the spinal cord with
objective neurological indication of
intractable spasticity;
k. Glaucoma;
l. Epilepsy;
m. A chronic or debilitating disease or
medical condition or treatment for such
disease or medical condition that produces
one or more of the following: (1) Cachexia or
wasting syndrome; (2) Severe debilitating
pain that has not responded to previously
prescribed medication or surgical measures
for more than three months or for which
other treatment options produced serious
side effects; (3) Intractable nausea; (4)
Seizures; or (5) Severe and persistent muscle
spasms, including those characteristic of
multiple sclerosis; and
n. Any other medical condition or treatment
for such condition which is identified by the
department.
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Is it a cash only business?

It is not in the law or measure initiative that it needs to be a cash only business. The State of North
Dakota is not able to regulate if it is a "cash only" business. The bill has taken away the nonprofit status,
but the businesses are able to put their money wherever they choose, if they can find a bank that will
accept their business.

"U.S. Department of Justice Deputy Attorney General James M. Cole issued a memorandum (the “Cole
Memo”) to all United States Attorneys providing updated guidance to federal prosecutors concerning
marijuana enforcement under the Controlled Substance Act.

The decision to open, close, or refuse any particular account or relationship should be made by each
financial institution based on a number of factors specific to that institution. These factors may include its
particular business objectives, an evaluation of the risks associated with offering a particular product or
service, and its capacity to manage those risks effectively. Thorough customer due diligence is a critical
aspect of making this assessment.

In assessing the risk of providing services to a marijuana-related business, a financial institution should
conduct customer due diligence that includes:

(i) verifying with the appropriate state authorities whether the business is duly licensed and
registered,

(ii) reviewing the license application (and related documentation) submitted by the business for
obtaining a state license to operate its marijuana-related business;

(iii) requesting from state licensing and enforcement authorities available information about the

business and related parties;
(iv) developing an understanding of the normal and expected activity for the business, including

the types of products to be sold and the type of customers to be served (e.g., medical versus
recreational customers);

(v) ongoing monitoring of publicly available sources for adverse information about the business
and related parties;
(vi) ongoing monitoring for suspicious activity, including for any of the red flags described in this

guidance; and

(vii) refreshing information obtained as part of customer due diligence on a periodic basis and
commensurate with the risk. With respect to information regarding state licensure obtained in
connection with such customer due diligence, a financial institution may reasonably rely on
the accuracy of information provided by state licensing authorities, where states make such
information available.

A financial institution providing financial services to a marijuana-related business that it reasonably
believes, based on its customer due diligence, does not implicate one of the Cole Memo priorities or

violate state law should file a “Marijuana Limited” SAR. The content of this SAR should be limited to the
following information:

(i) identifying information of the subject and related parties;
(i) addresses of the subject and related parties;

(iii) the fact that the filing institution is filing the SAR solely because the subject is engaged in a
marijuana-related business; and

(iv) the fact that no additional suspicious activity has been identified. Financial institutions should use
the term “MARIJUANA LIMITED” in the narrative section."

Excerpts from FIN-2014-G001

The health department will only collect registration fees in cash or personal check. They are able to put
these fees in the Bank of North Dakota and it is not an illegal business activity.

4.3
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Insurance:
Medicinal Marijuana is not covered by insurance for two reasons
1. The FDA has not approved marijuana as a safe and effective drug for any indication.

2. Marijuana is classified as a Schedule | controlled substance under the Controlled Substances
Act, which puts it in the same category as the most dangerous drugs out there

The Deputy Insurance Commissioner does not believe there will be any effects on the insurance business
with the implementation of this bill. There is no regulation of the insurance industry included in this bill
because it is not covered by insurance.

What could the US Attorney General do?

The US Attorney General's Office has not enforced the federal law outlawing marijuana if the state
complies with a set of standards. (The Cole Memo)

Preventing the distribution of marijuana to minors;
Preventing revenue from the sale of marijuana from going to criminal enterprises, gangs, and
cartels;

o Preventing the diversion of marijuana from states where it is legal under state law in some form to
other states;

e Preventing state-authorized marijuana activity from being used as a cover or pretext for the
trafficking of other illegal drugs or other illegal activity;

e Preventing violence and the use of firearms in the cultivation and distribution of marijuana;

e Preventing drugged driving and the exacerbation of other adverse public health consequences
associated with marijuana use;

e Preventing the growing of marijuana on public lands and the attendant public safety and
environmental dangers posed by marijuana production on public lands; and

e Preventing marijuana possession or use on federal property.

The ballot initiative didn't meet these standards, so therefore this bill is necessary because it must be
passed in order to comply with these standards.

The US Attorney General still has the authority to outlaw dispensing marijuana at any time.

Direct Language of the ballot measure:

Initiated Statutory Measure No. 5

This initiated measure would add a new chapter to Title 19 of the North Dakota Century Code creating an
Act which provides for the medical use of marijuana for defined medical conditions, such as cancer,
AIDS, hepatitis C, ALS, glaucoma, and epilepsy. To participate in the program, the Act would provide for
identification cards and certificates of registration which would be issued by the Department of Health for
patients, caregivers, and qualified facilities, if all requirements are met. The Act would create provisions
for monitoring, inventorying, dispensing, cultivating and growing marijuana to be regulated and enforced
by the Department of Health. A qualified patient could be dispensed up to three ounces of usable
marijuana, and could grow marijuana if his or her home is located more than forty miles from the nearest
registered facility. For violations, the Act would authorize the Department of Health to provide for
corrective action, suspension, revocation, appeal, hearings, and referral for criminal prosecution. The Act
would require the Department of Health to submit an annual report to the legislature regarding program
statistics.

YES - means you approve the measure summarized above.
NO - means you reject the measure summarized above

94-9
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MEDICAL MARIJUANA - COMPARISON OF INITIATED MEASURE AND

2017 SENATE BILL NO. 2344

Senate Bill No. 2344 (2017) amends North Dakota Century Code Chapter 19-24, which became effective
December 8, 2016. To implement the proposed changes in a manner consistent with the Legislative Council's form
and style, as well as to provide for ease of reading, the bill replaces the provisions of Chapter 19-24 with the

proposed changes.

The following tables provide a section-by-section summary of Chapter 19-24 and a section-by-section summary

of the proposed changes. Additionally, the tables include a column with a cross reference to the corresponding

language.
Current Chapter 19-24 Cross Reference
19-24-01. Title. 19-24-01
e Title North Dakota Compassionate Care Act.
19-24-02. Definitions. 19-24-02
19-24-03. Qualifying patient identification care application requirements. 19-24-03
e The State Department of Health shall issue registry identification card to qualified applicants.
e Application requirements.
e Requirements for written certification of physician.
19-24-04. Designated caregiver registry identification card application requirements. 19-24-04
e The department shall issue registry identification card to qualified applicant.
e Application requirements.
19-24-05. Registry identification cards. 19-24-05
e Methods the department may use to verify application information. 19-24-06
e Upon verification, the department shall approve or deny within 45 days of receipt of application. 19-24-07
e The department shall issue registry identification card within 30 days of approval. 19-24-08
e Cardholders and physicians shall notify the department of changes. 19-24-30
e Terms under which the department shall deny a registry identification card application. 19-24-35
e Registry identification card renewal requirements.
e Department denial of application is appealable.
e Registry identification card is nontransferable.
e Cardholder may voluntarily withdraw from program.
19-24-06. Addition of debilitating medical conditions. 19-24-11
e Process to allow individuals to petition the department to add conditions or treatments to list of
debilitating medical conditions.
e The department may add conditions or treatments to list of debilitating medical conditions.
e Department denial to add to list is appealable.
19-24-07. Registration and operation of compassion centers. 19-24-12
e Requirements for operation of compassion centers. 19-24-13
e Prohibit operation of compassion center without a certificate of registration. 19-24-14
e Compassion center must be operated on a not-for-profit basis. 19-24-15
e Prohibit compassion center use of pesticides. 19-24-16
e Prohibit location of compassion center near school. 19-24-17
e Requirements for bylaws. 19-24-18
e Compassion centers shall maintain accurate books and records. 19-24-19
e The department may access books and records. 19-24-20
19-24-21
North Dakota Legislative Council February 2017
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Current Chapter 19-24

Cross Reference

Compassion centers shall comply with specified security requirements, including exterior safety
measures, alarm systems, alarm system testing, security system failure, video surveillance,
inventory control, marijuana storage, inventory maximum (1,000 marijuana plants and 3,500
ounces of usable marijuana), random inspection, and dispending (maximum of 3 ounces over
14-day period).

Compassion centers shall maintain operations manuals.
Compassion centers shall comply with specified training of employees, agents, and volunteers.
Compassion centers shall keep specified personnel records.

The department shall issue registry identification cards to qualified compassion center officers,
board members, agents, employees, and volunteers.

Compassion center officers, board members, agents, volunteers, and employees shall consent
to criminal history screening background checks.

Qualification requirements for application for registry identification cards.

Compassion center requirements, including proof of tax exempt status, identification of each
principal officer and board member, identification of all persons with direct or indirect authority
over the management of policies of the compassion center, and identification of persons with
ownership interests in the compassion center.

Compassion center review criteria.

The department shall issue registration certification to approved compassion center applicants.
Compassion center registration certificate expiration, termination, and renewal.

The department shall suspend compassion center registration certificate if law is broken.
Hearing process for compassion center with registration certificate terminated.

Compassion center registration certificate is nontransferable.

Compassion center shall notify the department of changes.

19-24-08. Cultivation and growing of marijuana.

Qualifying patient who lives more than 40 miles from the nearest compassion center may
cultivate up to 8 marijuana plants.

Prohibits cultivation near schools.

Qualifying patient or designated caregiver shall notify local law enforcement of intent to grow
marijuana.

19-24-09. Onsite visits and interviews.

Upon 24-hour advance notice, the department may perform onsite interviews of qualifying
patients and primary caregivers to determine eligibility in the program.

Qualifying patients and primary caregivers shall provide the department access to material and
information necessary to determine eligibility.

Consequences for failure to adhere to rules during interview.

The department may take corrective actions if qualifying patient or primary caregiver violates
requirements.

Appeal process for qualifying patient or primary caregiver.

Participation in medical marijuana program does not relieve a qualifying patient or primary
caregiver from criminal prosecution or civil penalties for activities not authorized under this
chapter; from liability or criminal prosecution arising out of operation of a vehicle while under the
influence of marijuana; and for criminal prosecution or civil penalty for possession, distribution,
or transfers of marijuana or use of marijuana in specified circumstances.

Violation of rules may result in corrective action relating to qualifying patients' or primary
caregiver's registry identification card.

Qualifying patient or primary caregiver may appeal corrective action relating to registry
identification card and establishes appeal process.

19-24-10. Severability.

North Dakota Legislative Council 2

19-24-22
19-24-23
19-24-23
19-24-25
19-24-26
19-24-27
19-24-28
19-24-29
19-24-30

19-24-32

19-24-09
19-24-32
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Current Chapter 19-24

Cross Reference

19-24-11. Privacy of the Compassionate Care Act records and paperwork.

e Except for official department duties, without written consent, the department may not release
records or details of any applicant, cardholder, compassionate care agent, or registered
designated caregiver.

e The department shall submit an annual report to the Legislative Assembly.
19-24-12. Facility restrictions.

e Nursing facilities and similar facilities may adopt reasonable restrictions of the use of marijuana
by residents.

e Facility may not unreasonably limit a resident's use of marijuana.
19-24-13. Compassionate care fund - Private donation.

e Compassionate Care Fund for deposit of fees collected, civil penalties imposed, and private
donations raised.

e Continuing appropriation for use of money in fund.
e State Health Officer may accept and spend private money to assist in carrying out this chapter.

¢ Money in the fund does not revert to the general fund at the end of the fiscal year.

19-24-37
19-24-39

19-24-34

19-24-41

Proposed Chapter 19-24

Cross Reference

19-24-01. Title - Compassionate Care Program.
e Title North Dakota Compassionate Care Act.

e State Department of Health shall establish the Compassionate Care Program, to implement a
medical marijuana program.

19-24-02. Definitions.
19-24-03. Qualifying patient registry identification card - Application.

e Qualifying patient not eligible to participate in program without valid registry identification card.
e Application requirements.
e Written certification of physician.

e Applicant's representative may make application in the case of age or medical condition.
19-24-04. Designated caregiver registry identification card - Application requirements.

e Designated caregiver not eligible to participate in program without valid registry identification
card.

e Application requirements.

e Limits designated caregiver to no more than five qualifying patients.

19-24-05. Qualifying patient and designated caregiver registry identification cards - Issuance
and denial.

e The department shall verify complete applications for qualifying patient or designated caregiver
registry identification cards and upon verification shall approve or deny the application.

e Verification methods may include telephone, mail, and face-to-face meetings. The department
may contact the Board of Medicine to verify certifying physician and may contact a physician
directly.

e Upon approval, the department has 30 days to issue registry identification card.
e Protocol for applicants who are minors (under age 21).

e Denial of an application results in 1-year prohibition from registration.

e Basis for denial of registration.

e Department notification requirements in case of denial.

e Denial is an appealable order.

North Dakota Legislative Council 3
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Proposed Chapter 19-24

Cross Reference

19-24-06. Registry identification card - Renewal application.

e Registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver shall apply for renewal of a
registry identification card at least 45 days before expiration of card.

19-24-07. Registry identification card - Nontransferable.
e Registry identification cards are nontransferable.

e Attempt to transfer in violation of section results in invalidation of card and prohibition of person
from participating in Compassionate Care Program.
19-24-08. Registry identification card - Voluntary withdrawal.
¢ Registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver may voluntarily withdraw from
participating in Compassionate Care Program.
e Provide the department 30-days' notice of intent to withdraw from program.
19-24-09. Cardholders - Eligibility and compliance.

e Upon 24-hour notice, the department may conduct onsite interview of a cardholder or registry
identification card applicant to determine application or renewal eligibility.

Without notice, the department may conduct onsite assessment of a cardholder based on
reasonable suspicion cardholder is violating Compassionate Care Act.

Registered qualifying patient and registered designated caregiver shall provide the department
access to premises, material, and information to determine eligibility or compliance.

Failure to provide access under this section may result in sanction.

The department shall report to law enforcement credible criminal complaints against a registered
qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver.

If the department finds noncompliance under this section, the department shall provide the
cardholder with written notice and 5 days to correct the violation.

19-24-10. Change notifications - Responses.

e Registered qualifying patient or registered designate caregiver shall provide the department
timely notice of changes.

e Registered qualifying patient's certifying physician shall notify the department if patient's status
changes.
19-24-11. Debilitating medical condition - Petition.
e Process through which a resident of the state may petition to have the department add a medical
condition or a treatment of a medical condition to the list of debilitating medical conditions.
e The department has 180 days following petition to make determination, which is appealable.
19-24-12. Cultivation, manufacturing, and dispensing - Compassion centers - Prohibition -
Registration.

e Prohibits person from cultivating, manufacturing, or dispensing marijuana, unless registered as
a dispensary or a manufacturing facility.

e The department may register no more than four manufacturing facilities and no more than eight
dispensaries. However, there may be additional dispensaries if the department determines
additional dispensaries are necessary to increase access to usable marijuana.

e The department shall establish an open application period for compassion center applications.
19-24-13. Compassion centers - Dispensaries - Manufacturing facilities - Authority.

e Scope of activities for dispensaries and manufacturing facilities.

e Compassion center may not be both a manufacturing facility and a dispensary.
19-24-14. Compassion centers - Application.

e The department shall establish application forms for registration as a compassion center.

e Requirements for complete application, including an application fee, not to exceed $5,000; proof
of good standing with the Secretary of State; information regarding principal officers and board
members; and the identity of all ownership interests.

North Dakota Legislative Council 4
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Proposed Chapter 19-24

Cross Reference

19-24-15. Compassion centers - Registration certification.

e Upon determining an application is complete, the department shall review the application based
on set criteria and select applicants eligible for registration.

e Upon being selected as eligible for registration, the applicant shall submit additional items,
including a certificate fee not to exceed $100,000.

19-24-16. Compassion centers - Registration certificate - Renewal.
o Compassion center registration is valid for 2 years.
e Registration renewal process, including a renewal fee not to exceed $100,000.

e Afinding by the department the compassion center is not eligible for renewal is appealable.
19-24-17. Compassion centers - Registration Certificate - Nontransferable.

e Compassion center registration certificates are nontransferable.

o Compassion centers shall report changes.
19-24-18. Compassion center bylaws.

e Compassion center bylaw requirements.
19-24-19. Compassion centers - Financial reports.

e Compassion centers shall keep detailed financial reports of proceeds and expenses, and shall
retain records for at least 7 years.

e The department may access at all times all books and records kept by compassion centers. -
19-24-20. Compassion centers - Dispensing.

e Manufacturing facilities may not dispense usable marijuana, except to dispensaries.

e Dispensary may not dispense usable marijuana unless it uses the verification system to confirm
the registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver identification card is valid.

e Dispensing requirements for minors include the requirement that usable marijuana be dispensed
to the minor's registered designated caregiver and that the form of usable marijuana is limited
to pediatric medical marijuana oil.

e Limits on amount that may be dispensed to an individual.
19-24-21. Compassion centers - Inspections.

e Compassion centers are subject to random inspections by the department.
e The department shall inspect compassion centers.

e The department shall conduct random quality sampling testing.
19-24-22. Compassion centers - Pesticide testing.

e Manufacturing centers shall test marijuana for the presence of pesticides.
e Positive testing for pesticides results in destroying affected marijuana.
19-24-23. Compassion Centers - Marijuana plants.

e Department rules may not allow manufacturing facilities to possess more than 1,000 plants or
to possess more than 3,500 ounces of usable marijuana.

19-24-24. Compassion centers - Security and safety measures.

e Compassion centers shall implement specified security and safety measures.
19-24-25. Compassion centers - Inventory controls.

e Compassion centers shall comply with specified inventory control requirements.
19-24-26. Compassion centers - Operation manual.
e Compassion centers shall maintain a current copy of the center's operating manual, which must
meet specified requirements.
19-24-27. Compassion centers - Training curriculum.

e Compassion centers shall maintain onsite training.
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Proposed Chapter 19-24

Cross Reference

19-24-28. Compassion centers - Records - Agents.

Compassion center shall maintain records of the center's agents.

Each compassion center agent shall hold a valid registry identification card.
Compassion center agent registry identification card qualifications.
Registered compassion center agents shall report changes.

Compassion centers shall report changes in agents.

19-24-29. Cardholders - Compassion centers - Revocation.

The department may suspend or revoke a cardholder's registry identification card or a
compassion center's registration for material misstatements in an application or renewal, for
violation of the Compassionate Care Act, or for violation of rules adopted under the
Compassionate Care Act.

Revocation of a registry identification card results in disqualification from further participation
under the Compassionate Care Act.

If the department makes a revocation under this section, it shall do so in writing and this act is
appealable.

19-24-30. Violations - Penalties.

Cardholder or compassion center that fails to provide required notice shall pay a $150 fee.

Class C felony for manufacturing facility or its agent to dispense anything but usable marijuana
and to dispense to anyone other than a dispensary.

Class C felony for dispensary or its agent to dispense anything other than usable marijuana and
to dispense usable marijuana to anyone other than a registered qualifying patient or a registered
qualifying caregiver.

Class C felony for a dispensary or its agent to dispense anything other than pediatric medical
marijuana oil to a minor's registered designated caregiver.

Class C felony for compassion center agent to submit false records or documentation as part of
compassion center certification process.

Violation of Compassionate Care Act by compassion center is $1,000 fine if no other penalty is
specified.

Class C felony for registered qualifying patient to sell or transfer usable marijuana to another
person.

Class C felony for registered designated caregiver to sell or transfer usable marijuana to anyone
other than that caregiver's registered qualifying patient.

Class C felony for applicant for registration identification card to submit false records or
documentation in application.

Class B misdemeanor to make false statement to law enforcement relating to the medical use
of marijuana.

Physician who holds a financial interest in a compassion center may not refer a patient to a
compassion center or to a registered designated caregiver, advertise in a compassion center,
or issue a written certification. Violation of this may result in a fine of up to $1,000.

19-24-31. Protections.

Registered qualifying patient is not subject to arrest or prosecution for the acquisition, use, or
possession of usable marijuana under the Compassionate Care Act.

Registered designated caregiver is not subject to arrest or prosecution for assisting a specified
registered qualifying patient with the acquisition, use, or possession of usable marijuana under
the Compassionate Care Act. A registered designate caregiver may receive compensation for
this service.

Presumption qualifying patient or designated caregiver who has a valid registry identification
and who is in possession of usable marijuana in an allowed amount, is engaged in or is assisting
as allowed under the Compassionate Care Act. Presumption may be rebutted upon proof the
possession or use if not for the purpose of treating or alleviating the registered qualifying
patient's debilitating medical condition.
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Proposed Chapter 19-24

Cross Reference

Person is not subject to arrest or prosecution for being in the presence or vicinity of the medical
use of marijuana under the Compassionate Care Act.

Compassion center is not subject to prosecution, search or inspection, or seizure for acting
under the Compassionate Care Act.

Compassion center agent is not subject to arrest or prosecution for working or volunteering for
a compassion center under the Compassionate Care Act.

Cardholder use of medical marijuana under the Compassionate Care Act is lawful.
Possession of medical marijuana waste as authorized under Compassionate Care Act is lawful.

Possession of marijuana or medical marijuana by person conducting laboratory tests under the
Compassionate Care Act is not subject to arrest of prosecution for that possession.

19-24-32. Limitations.

Compassionate Care Act does not authorize or prevent civil or criminal liability or penalties,
including undertaking activities under the influence of marijuana if doing so constitutes
negligence or professional malpractice; possession or use of usable marijuana on premises of
schools, day care, or correctional facilities; violating the state's smoking laws; vaporizing usable
marijuana if the vapor would be inhaled by a minor child; or driving under the influence of
marijuana. However, the presence of metabolites or components of marijuana in and of itself
does not mean an individual is under the influence of marijuana.

19-24-33. Acts not required - Acts not prohibited.

Compassionate Care Act does not require Medicaid or private insurance to reimburse for
medical marijuana; a person to allow a guest, client, customer, or other visitor to possess or
consume medical marijuana on that property; or a landlord to allow cultivation of marijuana for
medical use on rental property.

Compassionate Care Act does not prohibit an employer from disciplining an employee for
possession or consumption of usable marijuana in the workplace or for working while under the
influence of marijuana.

19-24-34. Facility restrictions.

Basic care facility, nursing facility, assisted living facility, adult day care facility, or adult foster
care home licensed in the state may adopt reasonable restriction on the medical use of
marijuana by residents.

These facilities may not unreasonably limit a registered qualifying patient's access to or use of
medical marijuana.

19-24-35. Registry identification cards.

Registry identification card requirements.

Registry identification cards expiration is 1 year, or less as provided by the written certification
of the physician.

19-24-36. Verification system.

The department shall maintain a confidential list of cardholders.

The department shall establish a secure verification system for use by law enforcement,
physicians, pharmacists, compassion centers, and compassion center agents to verify registry
identification cards.

19-24-37. Confidentiality.

Data in a registration application or renewal is confidential.

Data kept or maintained by the department may be disclosed for specified purposes.

19-24-38. Advisory board.

The Governor shall appoint four members to serve on an advisory board.

The State Health Officer shall serve as a voting member and chairman of the advisory board.

19-24-39. Annual report - Report to the Legislative Management.

The department shall provide an annual report to the Legislative Management on status of the
Compassionate Care Act.
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Proposed Chapter 19-24 Cross Reference
19-24-40. Rules. None
e The Health Council shall adopt rules as necessary for the implementation and administration of
the Compassionate Care Act.
19-24-41. Compassionate care fund - Private donations - Continuing appropriation. 19-24-13
e Compassionate care fund established for deposit of all fees collected under Compassionate
Care Act.
e Continuing appropriation for use in administering the Compassionate Care Act.
19-24-42. Funding. None
e Beginning in the 2019-21 biennium, revenue generated by Department under the
Compassionate Care Act must be sufficient to cover all costs of the department in administering
the Act.
Emergency Clause None
North Dakota Legislative Council 8 February 2017
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Human Services Committee
Senate Bill 2344

Wednesday, February 8, 2017
North Dakota Department of Health

Good morning, Chairman Lee and members of the Human Services Committee.
My name is Arvy Smith, and I am the co-acting director of the North Dakota
Department of Health (DoH). I am here to support and provide information on
Senate Bill 2344 regarding a medical marijuana program in North Dakota.

On November 8, 2016, the people of North Dakota voted to establish a medical
marijuana program in the state. As we have stated, the new law posed some
challenges for which we immediately started analyzing and seeking solutions to.
SB 2344 provides those solutions. In addition the bill increases safety and
efficiency factors, at levels selected by the sponsors of this bill, and addresses
priorities identified in U.S. Deputy Attorney General, James M. Cole’s August 29,
2013 letter regarding marijuana enforcement by the federal government. In the
Cole Memo, the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) reiterated that marijuana
remains illegal under the federal Controlled Substances Act but the DOJ would
focus its efforts on certain enforcement priorities including: preventing the
distribution of marijuana to minors, diversion of marijuana from a legal market to
an illegal market, and preventing violence and the use of firearms in the cultivation
and distribution of marijuana.

The legal marijuana industry is a relatively new industry and states are still
learning how best to establish policy and regulate this industry. While we reviewed
other states’ practices, policies, laws, etc. and a model law developed by the
National Conference of State Legislatures (NCSL), it is important to note that the
early implementers are continuing to update their laws and regulations to make
improvements. We are using this information in developing North Dakota’s
medical marijuana program.

Clarifications and Technical Changes

With regard to regulation of compassion centers, the North Dakota law was based
on Delaware administrative rule and while this provided a good start, changes
continue to be made to Delaware laws and rules. Also, administrative rule is
essentially how an agency will implement a law passed by the legislature. Rules
contain a higher level of detail than what is typically contained in state law. The
high degree of technicalities incorporated in the original measure make it less
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flexible to adjust as needed for a new industry. In using Delaware rules to develop
the language of the measure that passed, the authors failed to change references to
“these rules” to “this law” and in a couple of instances specifically referred to
Delaware law. In addition to fixing these references, one of our suggested changes
includes moving certain aspects of the law to administrative rule to provide the
ability to change more rapidly where necessary through rule rather than law.

The medical marijuana system includes several key components including growing
and manufacturing facilities, dispensaries, laboratories, designated caregivers, and
finally qualifying patients. The term compassion center is used when discussing
both the manufacturing facilities and the dispensaries. One improvement to the law
we are proposing is to clearly define each of these terms and use them consistently
throughout the law.

The measure, as passed, contained fourteen pages of requirements for compassion
centers. Language included requirements to operate a compassion center,
application requirements to be a compassion center and requirements for things to
be included in the operating manual. The language of these requirements was not
always consistent, causing confusion as to which requirements to follow. It is
critical that the requirements to are consistent with the application requirements so
that the department receives quality applications that address the requirements to
operate and so that the compassion centers are regulated in accordance with the
same rules for operation. If we are abundantly clear as to the requirements up front,
we will receive better applications and be able to have operational compassion
centers earlier than if we are continually sending their applications back to meet a
set of regulations they were unaware of when they applied.

Finally, a critical component we added to the law is the language to decriminalize
the growing, manufacturing, dispensing, possession and use of marijuana for
medical purposes. The language is necessary to prevent patients, caregivers, and
agents of compassion centers, including lab testers and transporters, from arrest or
prosecution, under state law, for their actions in compliance with medical
marijuana laws. These protections from arrest and prosecution are included in
Section 31 of this bill. It is important to note that this language does not change the
fact that use of marijuana is still illegal under federal law, and, while the federal
government is not currently enforcing this law, there is nothing preventing the
federal government from changing that stance. A state agency cannot, and should
not, have employees violating federal law in order to accomplish their job duties.
Because of this, Risk Management has advised the DoH that we cannot require our
employees to handle, be in possession of, or transport marijuana for regulatory
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‘ purposes. Consequently, the Department will have to find unique ways to conduct
random, controlled lab testing and use law enforcement if we find that marijuana
product needs to be confiscated.

Additional clarifications the DoH is supporting are as follows:

Safe

Establish that jurisdiction for judicial review is Burleigh County district
court

Establish all fees in law, not to exceed a certain amount; fees for compassion
centers were in the measure but not maximum fees for designated caregivers
and qualifying patients

Remove the petition/public hearing process and use existing ND rules
Clarify that the continuing appropriation included in the original measure is
to the DoH

Add violations and penalties

Require conducting of an annual comprehensive inventory rather than
biennially

Clarify registry identification card contents

‘ With regard to safety and to address priorities of the U.S. Deputy Attorney
General, the following changes are included in SB 2344:

Allows patients to purchase the equivalent of 2.5 oz. per month instead of 3
oz. every fourteen days and limits the amount patients can possess 3 oz. at
any given time (Section 2; page 5 line 30). This is to reduce diversion as a
result of excessive purchasing and excessive use. Many sources indicated
that 3 oz. every fourteen days was excessive.

Limits forms of use for minors to oils, limits the THC contents for minors at
less than 6%, and requires pediatrician sign off for individuals under age 18
(Section 2; page 8 line 21). This doesn’t allow smoking of marijuana for any
individuals. The original measure allowed all forms of use for all qualifying
patients.

Requires seed to sale bar coding of every plant by manufacturing facilities
(Section 25; page 65 line 17).

Prohibits the sale of usable marijuana in any form other than pill or liquid by
a dispensary (Section 2; page 9 line 23). Patients would be able to purchase
an oil form which they can use to create an edible form or use in a
vaporizing system.

Prohibits minors from purchasing or being in possession of marijuana.
Strengthens various security requirements.

3
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Efficiency and Cost Effectiveness

With regard to efficiency and cost effectiveness, the following changes are
included in SB 2344:

Removes the non-profit status requirement; Since federal 501(c)(3) status is
not available because marijuana is federally illegal, a clear standard is not
available. Discussion with other states indicates that this requirement doesn’t
seem to add value to the process.

Allows only 4 manufacturing facilities to grow, manufacture and sell
marijuana to dispensaries; allows only 8 dispensaries to sell marijuana to
qualifying patients and designated caregivers; the DoH may add dispensaries
if product is not readily accessible to ND clients. (Section 12; page 55 line
1). Limitation of growing and dispensing significantly reduces the cost to
state and local government and reduces the possibility for diversion.
Requires fees to cover all DoH implementation costs by the 2019-21
biennium (Section 42; page 81 line 29). This requirement is included in
other states and NCSL model law.

Moves deadlines for processing qualifying patient, designated caregiver and
compassion center applications from law to administrative rule. This will
allow better managing of staff time and workload and flexibility to adjust
deadlines.

Allows the department to establish rules to add debilitating conditions
petitioned by the public (Section 11; page 54 line 1)

Requires local planning and zoning approval prior to reviewing the
application. (Section 14, page 56, lines 23-25) This is consistent with model
law and other states’ laws to avoid unnecessary costs.

Requires a bond to ensure adequate clean-up in the event a compassion
center goes out of business. (Section 15, page 59, lines 1-3) This improves
safety and potential cleanup costs to the DoH.

Requires compassion centers to ensure access to qualifying patients and

include a distribution plan in their application. (Section 26, page 67, lines
27-28)
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Fiscal Note
In summary the fiscal note for SB 2344 shows the following:

DoH 2017-19 2019-21
Expenses 2,643,684 3,190,350
Revenue 1,317,500 3,190,350
General Fund App Needed 1,326,184 0
Attorney General

Expenses 162,085 346,516
Revenue 0 0
General Fund App Needed 162,085 346,516

In the 2017-19 biennium, there won’t be two years of revenue and there will be
some start-up costs so one-time general funding of $1,317,500 is needed. By the
2019-21 biennium, the revenue must be sufficient to cover all costs so the general
fund need is $0 for the DoH. The cost for the Attorney General is to conduct the
criminal background checks. While the designated caregivers and compassion
centers or the agents must pay for the background checks, those fees are deposited
directly to the general fund, not to the Attorney General’s Office.

There are two reasons this fiscal note is significantly lower than the original fiscal
note for the measure that passed. First, in looking at other states’ programs we
learned that we can obtain the management information system at a much lower
cost than we first expected.

Second, SB 2344 eliminates the ability of qualifying patients and designated
caregivers to grow their own marijuana for medical use. In estimating the number
of potential qualifying patients and caregivers, we noted from other states'
information that those that did not allow individuals to grow their own marijuana
had lower numbers of patients and caregivers. So this fiscal note revises the
numbers down to 3,800 qualifying patients and 1,900 designated caregivers each
year, reducing the number of criminal background checks that need to be done.
This also greatly reduces the amount of regulation by the DoH, the attorney
General's Office and local law enforcement. It is important to note that if the ability
of caregivers and patients to grow their own is reinstated, costs will increase
significantly for all three entities.
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The fiscal note also shows that revenue to the general fund and the state aid
distribution fund totals $1,700,000 in the 2017-19 biennium and $3,400,000 in the
2019-21 biennium (91.3% to the general fund and 8.7% to the state aid distribution
fund). The Tax Department is unable to calculate the amount of income tax that
will be generated as a result of this legislation.

Neither the DoH nor the Attorney General’s appropriation bills contain an
appropriation for this at this time. Governor Burgum’s budget included $6,216,884
with $4,525,508 from fees and $1,691,376 from the general fund, and 13 FTE for
the DoH.

The assumptions used to calculate the fiscal note for each biennium are included in
the fiscal note. We were able to use registration amounts less than what is proposed
in SB 2344 for qualifying patients, designated caregivers and compassion centers
and their agents at this time. However, it is very difficult to estimate the numbers
of qualified patients and designated caregivers that will pursue registration so these
numbers could change. Looking at other states, some were as low as .6 per 1,000
population and one was as high as 15.7 per 1,000 population. It appeared that those
that allowed patients and caregivers to grow their own had higher numbers of
registrants. Registrations are lower where the number of conditions covered and
the forms of use are significantly restricted. Based on this information, we assumed
5 qualifying patients per 1,000 population, and assumed that half of the qualifying
patients would have a designated caregiver resulting in 3,800 qualifying patients
and 1,900 designated caregivers each year. The fiscal note assumed a $200 per
year registration fee for qualified patients, designated caregivers and compassion
center agents, a $80,000 per two years registration fee for manufacturing facilities
and a $60,000 per two years registration fee for dispensaries.

Timeline

Finally, while not ideal, we plan to begin developing administrative rules
immediately and make adjustments once legislation is finalized so that we can
move them through the approval process as soon as possible. Once the rules for
compassion centers are finalized, we can begin accepting applications from
compassion centers and awarding registrations. We have been told that from the
time they are approved to operate it will take two months to set up business and
three months until product can be harvested. Based on that, we expect product to
be available for purchase approximately one year from now.

This concludes my testimony. I am happy to answer any questions you may have.
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HOWARD SOHN, ESQUIRE &
ATTORNEY AT LAW
7777 Glades Road, Suite 100
Boca Raton, Florida 33434
(561) 935-3521 Office
Crimdefender1@gmail.com

February 6, 2017

Senator Judy Lee, Chairperson
Senate Human Services Committee
State of North Dakota

Re: Senate Bill No. 2344
North Dakota Compassionate Care Act

Dear Senator Lee:

By way of background, my name is Howard Sohn and | am an attorney
and member of a group from both Florida and North Dakota (NoDak Medical
Marijuana, Inc.) who had the opportunity to meet with Arvy Smith; an
Assistant Attorney General; Rebecca Ternes, aide to the governor and other
State officials in Bismarck on January 13™ to offer our input as members of
the medical marijuana industry in regard to the ballot initiative approved by
the voters in November, 2016.

| am writing in regard to the status and content of Senate Bill 2344
(North Dakota Compassionate Care Act), which | understand was recently
approved by the Delayed Bills Committee and which | have had chance to
fully review.

Initially, let me say that we all agree that the ballot initiative needed
significant revisions and we are impressed with the efforts made thus far by
the North Dakota Department of Health and legislators to begin the process
of implementing medical marijuana for the citizens of North Dakota.

With that said, some of the changes/revisions such as removing the
home grow provisions, separating manufacturing/cultivation centers from
dispensaries, reducing the monthly amount of marijuana per patient from 6
ounces to 2 % ounces per month and authorizing eight (8) statewide
dispensaries and four (4) manufacturing/cultivation facilities/centers are good
and will greatly assist in making medical marijuana available to as many
qualified patients as possible.
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Other changes/revisions do not accomplish this goal and in our opinion
will not effectively allow this contemplated legislation to succeed and most
importantly work for the patients in need of this medication, as well as the
State of North Dakota and the industry professionals who will need to
become actively and financially involved/invested to be able to provide
medical marijuana to any and all qualified and registered patients.

The most important and critical change/provision is the removal of
smoking from the definition of usable marijuana and only allowing medical
marijuana to be made available in oil, liquid or pill form.

First and foremost is the recognition that we are dealing with medical
not recreational marijuana and there are many patients who can only obtain
the medical benefits by ingesting this medication via smoking.

In this regard, the Senate Bill and ballot initiative both reflect that the
first and foremost listed illness and debilitating medical condition is cancer.
As | am sure you are aware, cancer patients undergoing radiation and/or
chemotherapy have extreme difficulty in eating and swallowing and
accordingly cannot obtain the benefits of this medical marijuana in pill or
liquid form. The only way they can obtain the required and life saving
medical benefits is by smoking. To ban smoking denies these patients the
ability to obtain this life-saving and physician-certified relief and forces them
to illegally purchase marijuana on the black market and on the street and run
the risk of arrest and prosecution simply to treat their individual and qualified
medical conditions and attempt to extend, if not, save their lives.

Additionally, industry professionals who are contemplating applying for
cultivation/manufacturing and/or dispensary licenses and paying the
significantly increased fees of $100,000 for a two (2) year license and every
renewal thereafter, will be required to invest additional millions of dollars to
build and equip the facilities needed to supply medical marijuana to qualified
and registered patients. With this smoking ban the dried leaves, buds and
flowers of the plants are not needed for the manufacturing of the liquids, oils
and pills and the growers will be forced to either grind up or dispose of the
most valuable parts of the product at a considerable loss and unnecessary
expense. This renders any business plan not financially sound and will
prevent qualified growers and dispensaries from paying the exorbitant start-
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up and build-out costs, leaving the qualified patients without access to their
promised medical marijuana.

This is not conjecture on our part but is exactly what is occurring in
the adjoining state of Minnesota where medical marijuana was recently
enacted and as in the pending North Dakota bill, usable marijuana was limited
to oils and tinctures and bans smoking.

While the number of qualified patients in Minnesota is increasing, the
prices for the oils and tinctures are exorbitant and unaffordable and the two
(2) state sanctioned medical marijuana manufacturers who invested millions
setting up their operations have lost millions of dollars, with one of the
manufacturers reporting losses of $3,000,000 and the other reporting losses
of $2,200,000 last year.

Further, as you are undoubtedly aware and as readily confirmed, the
population of Minnesota is approximately 5.5 million while North Dakota is
approximately 850,000. If Minnesota’s medical marijuana program won’t
work under these circumstances with a population more than six (6) times
that of North Dakota there is no chance for Senate Bill 2344 in its present
form to have any likelihood of success.

North Dakota can and should learn from Minnesota and not set up a
program to fail but set up one to succeed.

Another issue concerns the required background checks and
exclusions of compassion center agents based on their prior criminal records.
As you may or may not know, in order to properly operate a cultivation
facility to supply medical marijuana the company/business must employ and
utilize persons with exceptional and proprietary expertise in growing
technigues so as to provide the best available product to patients and allow
the manufacturing facility to operate at the highest level of efficiency.

As is universally recognized in the industry and which is beyond
dispute, the persons that possess this highly sophisticated and proprietary
expertise have unfortunately been involved in the criminal justice system in
the past due to the criminal penalties associated with marijuana.
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Rather than excluding one from being a compassion center agent if he
or she has a felony conviction, we would suggest that this provision read:

Individuals convicted of a felony offense within 10 years from
the date of application or a drug-related misdemeanor offense
within 5 years from the date of application are prohibited from
being a compassion center agent.

This ten (10) year period for a felony offense is double the five (5)
year time period passed overwhelmingly by the voters in the ballot initiative
and it is our position/opinion that this will sufficiently protect the State of
North Dakota while at the same time allowing qualified persons with the
requisite degree of growing and/or dispensary expertise to work and
participate in the North Dakota medical marijuana industry.

Additionally, in regard to compassion center agents, Senate Bill No.
2344 in its present state requires a compassion center agent to be a resident
of North Dakota in order to obtain a valid registry identification card. (Section
28, 19-24-28(2) (b). Section 2, 19-24-02 (5) defines a compassion center
agent as a principal officer, board member, employee, volunteer or agent of a
compassion center.

This North Dakota residency requirement is completely unworkable as
this is the first time any type of marijuana has been authorized in the State of
North Dakota and as such, anyone with marijuana cultivation, dispensary
and/or business experience must necessarily come from outside the State of
North Dakota.

In addition, as | am certain you and your fellow legislators are aware
and as | have been educated by our local North Dakota partners, North
Dakota by virtue of its location and relationship with the adjoining state of
Minnesota has a large number of out-of-state employees working in many
local businesses and industries. If it is the intent of the legislature to have
some local connection to the authorized and licensed compassion care
centers, a workable solution may be to require that the President of the
company applying for the required licenses be a North Dakota resident.

Finally, one additional change/revision that we would like to address
concerns the requirement that the cultivation facility/manufacturer
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specifically identify the physical address and location of it's grow facility in
its license application and subsequent renewals. For security purposes alone
this is the last thing the State of North Dakota should require and can best
be addressed by redacting and protecting the physical address from public
access. Minnesota and all other states do this common sense redacting of
names and addresses for obvious security reasons.

| hope you consider our suggestions, comments and input when
reviewing and addressing the pending bill as it makes its way through the
legislature.

As | stated above, the goal of all parties concerned should be to create
and implement a simple, straightforward and manageable medical marijuana
system in order to provide qualified patients with access to the most
affordable and effective medication for their qualified medical conditions,
while the same time providing the State of North Dakota with additional tax
revenue.

In the event you and your fellow Senators and legislators believe it
may be helpful or beneficial to your review of the pending Senate Bill, my
associates/partners and | would be more than willing to present any
additional documentation, information or evidence from the industry
perspective and travel to Bismarck to testify before any committees or the
full legislature when this bill is under discussion or review pending approval
and submission to the Governor for his consideration and execution.

Thank you for taking the time to review these suggestions and should
you have any questions or require any additional information and/or
documentation, please feel free to contact me at the above address.

Sincerely yours, /
7 ; ,;717‘ /
: / (e

HOWARD SOHN RON MARTIN - FARGO
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Copies furnished to:
Senator Oley Larsen
Senator Howard C. Anderson
Senator David A. Clemens
Senator Joan Heckaman
Senator Curt Kreun
Senator Merrill Piepkorn
Arvy Smith
Rebecca Ternes
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Residential Marijuana Grows in Colorado: The New Meth Houses?

. Executive Summary

Colorado’s state laws legalizing marijuana do not limit how much marijuana can be grown within a private
residence. Further, there is no mechanism at the state-level to document or regulate home grows, even
large ones. This has led to a proliferation of large-scale marijuana grow operations in hundreds of homes
throughout the state. Much of the marijuana produced in large home grows is shipped out of Colorado and
sold in markets where it commands a high price.

Although growing a large number of marijuana plants within private residences can fall within the parameters of
state law, it presents potential risk to the occupants, homeowners, and neighbors of these residences, as well
as to first responders who are called to them. Marijuana grows often cause extensive damage to the houses
where they are maintained and are increasingly the causes of house fires, blown electrical transformers, and
environmental damage. Much like the “meth houses” of the 1990s, many of these homes may ultimately be
rendered uninhabitable.

DetailLs

Colorado’s legalization of medical marijuana and recreational marijuana by voter referendum set the stage

for unfettered marijuana production in the state. Both Amendment 20 and Amendment 64 contain loopholes
that allow for large marijuana grows within private residences. Although the State of Colorado created the
Marijuana Enforcement Division (MED)—a regulatory body for licensed marijuana businesses—the MED does

. not have authority to regulate home grows.

Access to medical marijuana became every Coloradan’s constitutional
According to the Colorado right in November 2000 when voters approved Amendment 20.
Departmgnt of PUb.I'C Heaith Amendment 20 allows patients to possess six marijuana plants, unless a
and Environment, in January . - .
2016 there were 8,210 medical physician recommends more. As of 2016,. physwlan recqmmendatlons
marijuana patients in Colorado for 75 to 99 plants are commonly used to justify large residential grows,
with physician recommendations § many of which produce marijuana for sale outside the state. In January
to grow 50 to 99 plants. If each 2016, there were 107,798 medical marijuana registry patients. Of those,
patient grew 50 plants, that roughly 8 percent (8,210 patients) had physician recommendations for 50
equals 410,000 marjuana plants. § 4, 99 plants.! Notably, in January 2014, when cultivation and possession
From each plant, they would of recreational marij.l-Jana became legal under state law, there were more
likely harvest 1 pound of finished || overall medical marijuana patients (110,979), but fewer with elevated
marijuana every 90 days. Thatis | plant counts of 50 or more plants (5,308).2

1.64 million pounds of harvested
marijuana per year. As of March 2016, there is not a state-imposed limit on either the number

of plants a physician may recommend for a medical marijuana patient

or on the number of plants a patient may grow in a private residence. In
May 2015, state legislation was passed that limited medical marijuana patients to growing 99 plants on private
property—it will take effect January 2017.3

Amendment 64 allows any adult 21 years old or older in Colorado to cultivate up to six plants.

It further allows for the possession of all marijuana produced by those plants, provided the marijuana remains

in the enclosed residence and is not sold.* Amendment 64 also allows any adult in Colorado to “assist” any

other adult in Colorado in “possessing, growing, processing, or transporting” his/her marijuana.> Consequently,
‘Iarge grows and/or quantities of processed marijuana within a residence are often justified through the claim

2
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Residential Marijuana Grows in Colorado: The New Meth Houses?

. that the resident is assisting others by

growing or storing their marijuana. As there
is no mechanism at the state or local level to
document or regulate recreational marijuana
home grows, there is no practical means for
local police to verify whose plants are grown
or whose marijuana is stored in any given
residence.

Ficure 1. A BASEMENT GrROW IN A CoLORADO HOME.

Some local governments have begun to place
limits on the number of plants that can be
grown in private residences. However, such
local ordinances are widely varied and rarely
effectively enforced.

As a result of the permissiveness of
Colorado’s medical and recreational
marijuana laws, the system is extensively
exploited by traffickers who operate large
marijuana grows that supply out-of-state
markets. Since 2014, there has been a
noticeable increase in organized networks of

. sophisticated residential grows in Colorado
that are orchestrated and operated by drug
trafficking organizations. These organizations ‘
operate hundreds of large-scale home grows |
throughout Colorado. Harvested marijuana is |
shipped or transported from Colorado to markets in the Midwest and along the I
East Coast.®

Source: DEA

every 90 days. Growing them requires specific conditions that consume high levels of electrical power

and water and results in the drainage of chemical-laden waste water. Grow rooms must be maintained at
temperatures between 71 and 80 degrees Fahrenheit. At certain times during the growing cycle, plants must
remain under high-power grow lights for 24 hours a day. Fertilizers and pesticides—sometimes harsh ones—
are required to grow robust and healthy plants. At times in the growing cycle, each plant can require 3 or more
gallons of water per day.

\
|
Indoor marijuana plants can grow as tall as 6 feet or more and yield more than a pound of harvested marijuana ‘
|

\
|
|

Local police departments often receive numerous calls from neighbors about marijuana grow houses. \

Common complaints include strong odors, excessive noise from industrial air-conditioning units, blown ‘
electrical transformers, and heavy vehicle traffic. ‘
Colorado homes where marijuana is grown often sustain extensive structural damage. Moisture,
condensation, and molds spread throughout the residence. Growers often cut holes in floors and exterior walls
in order to install ventilation tubes. Growers often tamper with electrical systems in order to supply multiple

‘high—power grow lights and industrial air-conditioning units. These alterations are often done by tenant growers

with little regard for fire risk or the home’s structural integrity. This is an increasing concern for first responders.

3
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Altered electrical systems with loose and
entangled wires, flammable fertilizers and
chemicals, explosive materials such as
propane and butane, or holes cut into sub-
floors for venting all pose clear hazards to
firefighters or police officers responding to
the residence in an emergency situation.

Outlook

Adding to the list of unintended
consequences of marijuana legalization

in Colorado, the proliferation of large
residential grows is taxing local police and
fire departments, consuming power and
water resources, and potentially affecting
home values in communities throughout
the state. Further, the ability to establish
large-scale marijuana grow operations
within residential homes under the guise
of state law will likely continue to attract
drug traffickers and criminal organizations.
Thus, Colorado will continue to be a source
for much of the marijuana destined for
markets in other states.

" Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment, January 2016.
2 Ibid.

3 Colorado Senate Bill 15-014, passed May 2015.

4 Colorado Constitution. Article 18, Section 16, Subsection 3(b).

5 Colorado Constitution. Article 18, Section 16, Subsection 3(e).

8 DEA Denver Division Investigative Reporting. 2016; extracted information is: (U); overall document classification is: (U).

This product was prepared by the DEA Denver Division. Comments and questions may be
addressed to the Chief, Analysis and Production Section at dea.onsi@usdoj.gov.
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Feb. 9, 2017

SB2344 Testimony
Senate Human Services Committee

My name is Joan Lee, Casselton, ND. | represent myself. | am not an expert on Marijuana.
However, | have some experience with the administration of medication and compassion for
individuals who are sick or dying—my professional background is Nursing. | am also a parent

and grandmother.

When it was reported that petitions were being circulated to put Medical Marijuana on the ballot
in ND, | took note; and when petitions were being circulated to garner support to put recreational
Marijuana on the ballot, | did so, as well.

While | was personally surprised when Measure 5 passed last November, | believe voters were
persuaded that in certain intractable diseases patients should have access to the drug—in case
it might help. | believe most voters made the decision based on peoples hopes or stories and
rather than the content of the thirty some page measure and hadn’t read the entire measure or
understood the implications of some of its provisions.

| stand in support SB 2344 for several reasons:

1. Asis sometimes the case with complicated initiated measures, the provisions of this law
were the ideas put together by a few people who were well meaning, but the measure was
inadequately vetted to be responsibly implemented as written. | think this bill is an
improvement.

2. We already have substance abuse problems with legal and illegal drugs, The Legislature
must do its best to protect our citizens from unintended access or the consequences of a
drug that is still illegal under Federal Law. I'm thinking of our children: consequences of
exposure for their development; and youth: consequences to their educational success; as
a gateway drug; and highway safety. This includes the protection of the individuals who
want to use marijuana for medical purposes.

3. Millions of dollars have been spent in the state to prevent and treat smoking related
disease. If the purpose is medicinal use, | believe it unwise to legalize the smoking of
marijuana for many of the same reasons tobacco smoking is unhealthy, including secondary
exposure. | believe it is also more difficult to prevent recreational use if smoking marijuana
is permitted. | also question the drug being sold in “gummy bears™ and baked goods.

4. | also do not support the provision in the original version {(Measure 5) that permits any
patient living more than 40 miles from a dispensary to grow their own marijuana supply. For
goodness sake, many people will drive further than that to go to work, a movie, or Cosco! |
believe that would be a law enforcement nightmare! (Though Measure 5 was successiul, |
would like to remind the committee that voters did not support recreational use: promoters
could not garner_sufficient_signatures to put_ it on the ballot.)

Additionally, | would prefer that the individuals who use medical marijuana would be part of a
clinical research project to document whether or not there is true medicinal efficacy in the
treatment of diseases; That it would be scrutinized as any other drug approved for the treatment

of disease.

-Notes from: National Highway Trattic. Safety Adminisiration
~Drogs-and-Safsty Performance Fact SheetronMarijuana/Gannabis {excerpts)
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‘ Tracy Vearrier PA-C
—

| 4905 Cornice Dr.
Bismarck ND, 58503
701-425-1496

tvearrie@hotmail.com

Been a Physician Assistant for 13 years and represent the best interests for Paige Vearrier my
daughter who suffers from seizures and medications designed to prevent seizures. SB 2344
mentions using only cannabis oil for pediatrics. Why is this? Based on what? All forms should be
acceptable as the doctor and the patient agrees upon. What if she does not tolerate the oil
because of her reflux or her condition of gastroschisis? Under Measure 5 transdermal would be
acceptable. Also vapor. Mayo clinic web site has pediatric doses released and medical cannabis
will have the correct amount of CBD and THC and the various of strains of each in a precise
recipe based on Paige’s weight and uncontrolled epilepsy. It is not unusual for a healthcare
‘ provider to be promoting cannabis. CME is available for healthcare providers. 13 credits of CME
can be done online through The Medical Cannabis Institute. These CME are backed by the AMA
or American Medical Association. Cannabis is medicine and | am thankful North Dakota now has
the compassion for the residents who live here. Measure 5 was passed by North Dakota by a
landslide. It wasn’t even close to being defeated. Keep the intentions of Measure 5 and do not

accept less for ND.

Tracy Vearrier PA-C, MB
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My name is Linda Kersten and | have traveled here today from
Newburg, located way up north in District 6, to tell you how the
changes you made to Measure 5 will affect my family and others. | will
address two changes. The first has to do with the lack of choice in the
way the marijuana is to be administered and the second the steep fees
levied to purchase a card.

| would like to share my story with you. | grew up on a farm in rural ND
and was taught by my alcoholic father that marijuana was a horrible
drug that would destroy my life. He would preach to my sister and me
about never taking a cigarette from one of those Air Force boys that
frequented our local dances. Little did | know that as a 70-year-old
retired teacher and grandmother, | would be hunting for this drug to
help my daughter.

My daughter was diagnosed with stage 4 colon cancer 7 years ago. At
that time Karla was 42 years old and along with her husband, Terry
were the parents of a 7 and a 4-year-old. Over those seven years Karla’s
cancer has continued to reoccur and she has been through 4 major
surgeries, multiple rounds of chemo, and been held up in prayer by
family and friends far beyond the borders of ND.

In March of last year, | signed the petition to get Measure 5 on the
ballot. By April Karla’s cancer had returned and with it so did the chemo
and another major surgery at Mayo. | would go stay with her and her
family the week of her treatments. My Karla is the strongest woman |
know, but after the first week of treatment she said, | don’t know if |
can keep doing this. She paused and then said, | have to for the kids.
During her second week as she lay on the couch suffering with aches
and pains, extreme nausea, vomiting, and being unable to eat we
decided to try marijuana. She and | went into the bathroom and sat on
floor and SMOKED, let me say that again, we SMOKED marijuana. |
watched in disbelief as, in a matter of minutes she went from being in
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wretched hell to sitting up in a chair saying, “if it wasn’t dark, I'd go for
a walk around the block.” Do you believe in miracles? For us that night,
medical marijuana was a miracle.

If I had not witnessed this with my own eyes | would have never
believed it. | would have never put my family’s reputation on the line
and told our story openly and honestly to the people of North Dakota
using social media, letters to the editor, and even on talk radio. Under
SB2344 if Karla’s cancer returns she and every other patient like her will
not be given the choice of smoking it. You have decided for her and
others that smoking will remain illegal. Let me ask you this, what does it
matter which route is used it get the drug into the body? Why have
you made that an issue? Marijuana is entering the body no matter
which route we choose -whether it be oral, sublingual, inhalation, or
transdermal. Do they not all do the same thing? Let me answer that.
Yes, they do. They all are important routes to get marijuana into your
system, not one is better or worse. It depends on the needs and
conditions of the patient. In SB 2344 you are legalizing oral use only.
So how do patients like my daughter experiencing extreme nausea and
vomiting keep a pill down long enough for it to work.

Even the Mayo Clinic website states: “The extent and timing of its
effects may be harder to control with the pill form than with
smoking.” Is it not the condition of the patient that should dictate
the method of <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>